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EXCHANGE ACT OF 19344€<Commission F11e Number: 000-283044€<PROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, A INC.(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)a€<«DelawareA A A A 33-
0704889(State or other jurisdiction of incorporationa€<(I.R.S. Employeror orgamzatlon)a€<Ident1flca1:1qn@ A Number)a€<a€<4€<«3756 Central Avenue, Riverside, Cahformaa€<92SOG(Address of

principal executive offices)a€«(Zip Code)a€<Registranta€™s telephone number, including area code:A A A (951) 686-60604€<Securities registered pursuant to SectionA 12(b)A of the
Act:a€<Title of each classA A A A Trading Symbol(s)A A A A NameA ofA eachA exchangeA onA whichA registeredCommon Stock, par value $.01 per sharea€<PROVa€<The NASDAQ Stock Market
LLCa€<Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: NoneIndicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. &”
Yes &”’ Nolndicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.a” Yes &™’ Nolndicate by check mark whether the registrant
(1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. a™’ Yes &~ NolIndicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically
every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (A§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to submit such files). &’ Yes &~ Nolndicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller
reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of 4€celarge accelerated filer,a€ d€ceaccelerated filer,a€ a€cesmaller reporting company,a€ and "emerging growth
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.Large accelerated filer &"A A A A Accelerated filer &"Non-accelerated filer 4™’a€<Smaller reporting company &"’a€<4€<Emerging growth company
4"a€<If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting
standards provided pursuant to SectionA 13(a)A of the Exchange Act. 4" Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed a report on and attestation to its management's assessment of
the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting under Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (15 U.S.C. 7262(b)) by the registered public accounting firm that prepared or
issued its audit report. 4"If securities are registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act, indicate by check mark whether the financial statements of the registrant included in the filing reflect
the correction of an error to previously issued financial statements. &"Indicate by check mark whether any of those error corrections are restatements that required a recovery analysis of
incentive-based compensation received by any of the registranta€™s executive officers during the relevant recovery period pursuant to A§240.10D-1(b). 4" Indicate by check mark whether the
registrant is a shell company (as defined in Exchange Act RuleA 12b-2). 4~ Yes 4™’ NoThe aggregate market value of voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates of the registrant,
based on the closing sales price of the registranta€™s common stock as quoted on the NASDAQ Global Select Market on December 31, 2023, was $77.6 million. As of August 23, 2024, there
were 6,862,888 shares of the registranta€™s common stock issued and outstanding. DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE]1.Portions of the definitive Proxy Statement for the fiscal
2024 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (4€ceProxy Statementa€) are incorporated by reference into PartA III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K where indicated. The 2024 Proxy Statement will
be filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year to which this report relates.a€<Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS,
INC.Table of Contentsa€<A A A A PagePART 14€<4€<A ItemA 1.4€<Business:14€<4€General1a€<«a€«Subsequent Events1a€<a€<Market Area24a€<4€<Competition24€<4€«Reportable
Segments3a€«a€dnternet Website3a€<a€<«Lending Activities3a€«a€<«Loan Servicingl2a€«a€«Asset Quality13a€<«a€<Investment Securities Activities19a€<4€Deposit Activities and Other Sources of
Funds214&€<a€<Subsidiary Activities25a€<a€«Regulation26a€<a€«Taxation344€<«&€<Employees and Human Capital35a€<a€<«Executive Officers36Item 1A.4€<Risk Factors37ItemA 1B.a€<Unresolved
Staff Comments47Item 1C.&4€<Cybersecurity47ItemA 2.4€<Properties48ItemA 3. a€<Legal Proceedings48ItemA 4.4€<Mine Safety Disclosures49a€<&€<«a€<«A PART I1&4€<4€<A ItemA 5.4€<Market for
Registranta€™s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases ofA Equity Securities49ItemA 6.4€<[Reserved]50ItemA 7.4€<Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations:514€<a€<General524€<«a€<Critical Accounting Estimates524€<4€<Executive Summary and Operating Strategy53a€<a€<«Comparison of Financial
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about Market Risk62ItemA 8.4€<Financial Statements and Supplementary Data66ItemA 9.4€<Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure66Item
9A.4€<Controls and Procedures66Item 9B.&4€<Other Information68Item 9C.4€<Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections684€<a€<a€<a€<PART II14€<4€<A Ttem
10.a€<Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance68Item 11.a€<Executive Compensation69Item 12.a€<Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and
Related Stockholder Matters69Item 13.4€<Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence70Item 14.4€<Principal Accountant Fees and Services70a€<a€<a€<A PART
IVA€<a€<A Item 15.4€<Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules71Item 16.4€<Form 10-K Summary734€<a€<a€<A Signaturesa€«744€a€<a€<a€Table of ContentsPART Iltem 1.
BusinessGeneralProvident Financial Holdings, Inc. (the &€ceCorporationa€), a Delaware corporation, was organized in January 1996 for the purpose of becoming the holding company of
Provident Savings Bank, F.S.B. (the 4€ceBanka€) upon the Banka€™s conversion from a federal mutual to a federal stock savings bank (4€ceConversiona€). The Conversion was completed on
June 27, 1996. The Corporation is regulated by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (4€eFederal Reservea€). At June 30, 2024, the Corporation had consolidated total assets
of $1.27 billion, total deposits of $888.3 million and stockholdersa€™ equity of $129.9 million. The Corporation has not engaged in any significant activity other than holding the stock of the
Bank. Accordingly, the information set forth in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (4€ceForm 10-K&€), including the audited consolidated financial statements and related data, relates primarily to
the Bank. As used in this report, the terms a€cewe,a€ a€ceour,a€ a€ceus,a€ and the a€ceCorporationa€ refer to Provident Financial Holdings, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless the
context indicates otherwise. When we refer to the 4&€ceProvidenta€ in this report, we are referring to Provident Financial Holdings, Inc. A When we refer to the 4€ceBanka€ or 4€ceProvident
Savings Banka€ in this report, we are referring to Provident Savings Bank, F.S.B., a wholly owned subsidiary of Provident.a€<The Bank, founded in 1956, is a federally chartered stock savings
bank headquartered in Riverside, California. The Bank is regulated by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (a€ceOCCa&€), its primary federal regulator, and the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (4€0eFDICA€), the insurer of its deposits. The Banka€™s deposits are federally insured up to applicable limits by the FDIC. The Bank has been a member of the Federal
Home Loan Bank (4€ceFHLB&€) a4€“ San Francisco since 1956.4€<The Bank is a financial services company committed to serving consumers and small to mid-sized businesses in the Inland
Empire region of Southern California. The Bank conducts its business operations as Provident Bank, and through its subsidiary, Provident Financial Corp (&€0ePFC&€). The business activities of
the Bank consist of community banking, investment services and trustee services for real estate transactions.a€<The Banka€™s community banking operations primarily consist of accepting
deposits from customers within the communities surrounding its full-service offices and investing those funds in the origination of single-family, multi-family and commercial real estate loans
and, to a lesser extent, construction, commercial business, consumer and other mortgage loans to be held for investment. Through its subsidiary, PFC, the Bank conducts trustee services for the
Banka€™s real estate transactions and in the past has held real estate for investment. For additional information, see &€ceSubsidiary Activitiesa€ in this Form 10-K. The activities of PFC are
included in the Bank's operating segment results. The Bank&€™s revenues are derived principally from interest earned on its loan and investment portfolios, and fees generated through its
community banking activities.4€<On June 22, 2006, the Bank established the Provident Savings Bank Charitable Foundation (&€ceFoundationa€) in order to further its commitment to the local
community. The specific purpose of the Foundation is to promote and provide for the betterment of youth, education, housing and the arts in the Banka€™ s primary market areas of Riverside
and San Bernardino counties. The Foundation was funded with a $500,000 charitable contribution made by the Bank in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. The Bank contributed $40,000 to the
Foundation in both fiscal 2024 and 2023.4€<Subsequent Eventa€<On July 25, 2024, the Corporation announced that the Provident Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $0.14 per share.
Shareholders of Provident common stock at the close of business on August 15, 2024 were entitled to receive the cash dividend, payable on September 5, 2024.4€<1Table of ContentsMarket
Areaa€<The Bank is headquartered in Riverside, California and operates 12 full-service bankmg offices in Riverside County and one full-service banking office in San Bernardino County.
Management considers Riverside and Western San Bernardino counties to be the Banka€™ s primary market for deposits.A As of June 30, 2024, the Bank was the largest independent
community bank headquartered in Riverside County and held the eighth largest deposit market share of all banks in the county, with the largest share among community banks.&€<The region
encompassing Riverside and San Bernardino counties, known as the 4€celnland Empire,a€ is the Banka€™s main market area. According to the 2020 Census Bureau, these counties have the
fourth and fifth largest populations in California, respectively, and are part of the greater Los Angeles metropolitan area, consisting primarily of suburban and urban communities.A The Inland
Empire, with a population of approximately 4.7 million, is relatively densely populated. The U.S. Department of Labora€™s Bureau of Labor Statistics reported an unemployment rate of 5.3% in
the Inland Empire in June 2024, slightly higher than Californiad€™s rate of 5.2% and the national rate of 4.1%. In June 2023, these rates were 4.4% in the Inland Empire, 4.6% in California, and
3.6% nationwide. Californiad€™ s home sales remained stagnant for the second consecutive month in June 2024, with a 30-year fixed mortgage rate above 7% throughout most of May 2024.
Closed escrow sales of existing single-family detached homes in California were at a seasonally adjusted annualized rate of 270,200 in June 2024, down 0.8% from the revised 272,410 homes
sold in May 2024 and 2.7% from June 2023a€™ s revised 277,690. This sales pace has been below the 300,000 threshold for 21 consecutive months, with year-to-date home sales falling behind
last yeara€™s level by 0.5% in the first half of 2024. After setting record highs in the past two months, the statewide median home price decreased by 0.8% from $908,040 in May 2024 to
$900,720 in June 2024, marking the third month in a row above the $900,000 benchmark. The June 2024 median home price was 7.5% higher than the $837,850 recorded in June 2023, marking
the 12th consecutive month of annual price increases, although the smallest since January 2024. The continued rise in million-dollar home sales in California contributed to median price growth,
with the million-dollar-and-higher market segment increasing by 2.0% year-over-year in June 2024, while the sub-$500,000 segment declined by 21.0%. Homes priced above $1 million now
account for 36.3% of all sales, the largest share in at least five years. (Source data from California Association of Realtors a€“ July 17, 2024 News Release).a€<The Inland Empire, also known as
the Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario Metropolitan Statistical Area, is a large, two-county area where about 30% of the labor force commutes, with nearly 400,000 people traveling daily from
the Inland Empire to coastal areas. Over the past 20 years, the region has undergone significant changes, particularly in the health care and transportation and warehousing sectors, which have
seen substantial employment growth. Typically, the Inland Empire's unemployment rate is higher than those of California and the U.S. except during specific recessions like the dot-com and
COVID-19 periods. The region performed better during the recovery from the 2020 recession, with the latest unemployment rate published by the Employment Development Department (EDD)
for December 2023 at 5.1%. The change in unemployment rate from February 2020 to December 2023 was 0.2% for the U.S., 0.5% for California, and 1.2% for the Inland Empire, indicating a
higher increase in the Inland Empire, which is less desirable. Conversely, the employment growth rate over the same period was 1.8% for the U.S., -1.2% for California, and 2.8% for the Inland
Empire. In 2023, the Inland Empire was a top performer in job creation compared to other California regions, with a 1.9% increase. The Inland Empire also led the state in business creation
during the recovery from the 2020 recession, with a significant acceleration starting in the second quarter of 2022 and reaching near-national levels by the second quarter of 2023. (Source data
from the Lowe Institute of Political Economy - The State of the Region the Inland Empire 2024 4€“ March 2024).4€<Competitiona€<The Bank faces significant competition in its market area in
originating real estate loans and attracting deposits. The population growth in the Inland Empire has attracted numerous financial institutions to the Banka€™ s market area. The Banka€™s
primary competitors are large national and regional commercial banks as well as other community-oriented banks and savings institutions. The Bank also faces competition from credit unions
and a large number of mortgage companies that operate within its market area, as well as unregulated or less regulated non-banking entities operating locally and elsewhere. Many of these
institutions are significantly larger than the Bank and therefore have greater financial and marketing resources than the Bank. This competition may limit the Banka€™s growth and profitability
in the future.a€<2Table of ContentsReportable Segmentsa€<Management monitors the revenue and expense components of the various products and services the Bank offers, but operations are
managed and financial performance is evaluated on a Corporation-wide basis in comparison to a business plan which is developed each year. Accordingly, all operations are considered by
management to be one operating segment and one reportable segment as contained in the Consolidated Statements of Operations to the Corporationd€™s audited consolidated financial
statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.a€<Internet Websitea€<The Corporation maintains a website at www.myprovident.com. The information contained on that website is not included
as a part of, or incorporated by reference into, this Form 10-K. Other than an investora€™s own internet access charges, the Corporation makes available free of charge through that website
the Corporationa€™s annual report, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K, including amendments to these reports, if any, as soon as reasonably practicable after
these materials have been electronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (&€0eSECA€). In addition, the SEC maintains a website that contains reports, proxy
and information statements, and other information regarding companies that file electronically with the SEC. This information is available at www.sec.gov.a€<Lending Activitiesa€<«General. The
lending activity of the Bank is comprised of the origination of single-family, multi-family and commercial real estate loans and, to a lesser extent, construction, commercial business, consumer
and other mortgage loans to be held for investment. Additional lending activities have historically included originating saleable single-family loans, primarily fixed-rate first trust deed
mortgages. The Banka€™ s net loans held for investment were $1.05 billion at June 30, 2024, representing 83% of consolidated total assets. This compares to $1.08 billion, or 81% of
consolidated total assets, at June 30, 2023.4€<At June 30, 2024, the maximum amount that the Bank could have loaned to any one borrower and the borrowera€™s related entities under
applicable regulations was $20.1 million, or 15% of the Banka€™s unimpaired capital and surplus.A At June 30, 2024, the Bank had no loans or group of loans to related borrowers with
outstanding balances in excess of this amount. The Banka€™s five largest lending relationships at June 30, 2024 consisted of: four multi-family loans totaling $5.0 million to one group of
borrowers; eight single-family loans totaling $4.4 million to one group of borrowers; three multi-family loans totaling $4.1 million to one group of borrowers; one multi-family loan totaling $4.1
million to one group of borrowers; and one multi-family loan totaling $4.0 million to one group of borrowers. The real estate collateral for these loans are primarily located in Southern and
Northern California. At June 30, 2024, all of these loans were performing in accordance with their repayment terms.a€<3Table of ContentsLoans Held For Investment Analysis. The following
table sets forth the composition of the Banka€™ s loans held for investment at the dates indicated:a€<a€ A€ <A€ A€ A€ <AE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEALA JuneA 30,A 4€a€<20244€2023a€<«(Dollars In
Thousands)A A A A AmountA A A A PercentA A A A AmountA A A A PercentA A A A 4€<4€<2€A€<A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAE A€ Mortgage loans:A 4€AAAAAAG€AAAAAA Single-familya€<s
518,091A 49.30%A A $ 518,821A 48.30%A A Multi- famllya€<A 445,182A 42.36a€<A 461,113A 42.934€< Commercial real estatea€<A 83,349A 7.93a€<A 90,558A 8.434€< Constructiona€<A
2,692A 0.26a€<A 1,936A 0.184€< Othera€«A 95A 0.014€<A 106A 0.01&€<Total mortgage loansa€«A 1,049,409A 99.86a€<A 1,072,534A

99.854€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE«Commercial business loansa€<A 1,372A 0.134€<A 1,565A 0.14a€<Consumer loansa€<A 65A 0.014€<A 65A 0.01&€<Total loans held for
investment, grossa€<A 1,050,846A 100.00%A A A 1,074,164A 100.00%A A 4€<A€<A€<A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAdvance payments of escrowsa€«A 102A A A a€<A 148A A A a€<Deferred
loan costs, neta€<A 9,096A A A a€<A 9,263A A A 4€<ACL(1) on loansa€<A (7,065)A A A a€<A (5,946)A A A 4€<Total loans held for investment, neta€«$ 1,052,979A A A a€<$

1,077,629A A A a€<a€<(1)Allowance for credit losses (A€0eACLA€)a€Maturity of Loans Held for Investment. The following table sets forth information at June 30, 2024 regarding the dollar
amount of principal payments becoming contractually due during the periods indicated for loans held for investment. Demand loans, loans having no stated schedule of principal payments,
loans having no stated maturity, and overdrafts are reported as becoming due within one year. The table does not include any estimate of prepayments, which can significantly shorten the
average life of loans held for investment and may cause the Banka€™ s actual principal payment experience to differ materially from that shown

below:4€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEA AAAAEAEA A A A AfterA A A A AfterA A A A 3€<A€<A A A A A€<A€AE<AEAEAEAEOneA Yeara€«5A Yearsa€«a€ A€ a€«a€ «a€a€
Thousands)&€<OneA Yeara€<5A Yearsa€<15A Yearsa€<«15A Yearsa€<T0ta1a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<Mortgage loans:A 4€<A A A a6<A A A a6<A A A a6<A A A a€A A Single-
familya€<$ 15a€<$ 1,5238€<$ 25,6914€<$ 490,862a€<$ 518,091 Multi-familya€«A a€”a€<A 16,0558€<A 9,149a€<A 419,9784€<A 445,182Commercial real estated€<A 4,100a€<A 18,490a€<A
53,8514€<A 6,9084€<A 83,349Constructiond€«A 228a€<A 1,480a6<A 4€"4€A 9B4AEA 2,6920therd€A 954€<A A€7AEA AE"A€<A A€"A€<A 95Commercial business loansa€<A 1,239a€<A
1334€<A a€”a€<A a€”a€«A 1,372Consumer loansa€«A 654€<A A€”a€<A a4€”a€«A 4€”4€«A 65Total loans held for investment, grossa€«<$ 5,742a€<$ 37,6814€<$ 88,6914€<$ 918,732a€<$

1 050, 84Ga€<4Table of ContentSThe followmg table sets forth the dollar amount of all loans held for investment due after one year from June 30 2024 Wthh have fixed and floating or adjustable

fam11ya€<A 94A a€"%A A A 445,088A 100%Commercial real estatea€<A 387A a€"%A A A 78 862A 100%Constructiona€«A a€”A a€ "%AAA 2, 464A 100%Commer01a1 business loansa€<A
a€”A a€"%A A A 133A 100%Total loans held for investment, grossa€<$ 109,235A 10%A A $ 935,869A 90%4a€<(1)As a percentage of each category.&€<Scheduled contractual principal

payments of loans do not reflect the actual life of such assets. The average life of loans is generally substantially less than their contractual terms because of prepayments. In addition, due-on-
sale clauses generally give the Bank the right to declare loans immediately due and payable in the event, among other things, the borrower sells the real property that secures the loan. The
average life of mortgage loans tends to increase, however, when current market interest rates are substantially higher than the interest rates on existing loans held for investment and,
conversely, decrease when the interest rates on existing loans held for investment are substantially higher than current market interest rates, as borrowers are generally less inclined to
refinance their loans when market rates increase and more inclined to refinance their loans when market rates decrease.a€<The table below describes the geographic dispersion of real estate
secured loans held for investment (gross) at June 30, 2024 and 2023, as a percentage of the total dollar amount outstanding (dollars in thousands):a€<As of June 30,

2024:2€ A€ AEAEAEAE AL AL AEAEAE AL AL AL AEAEAE AL AL AL AEAEAE AL AL AL AEaE«at A€ dnlanda€<Southerna€«Othera€«Othera€ A€ A€ «a€<a€A a€<a€<Emp1re(1)a€<Cahforn1a(2)é€<Ca

Categorya€<Balancea€<%a€<Balancea€<%a€<Balancea€<%a€<Balancea€<%a€<Balancea€<%A Single-: famllyA AAA$146,003AAAA 28%AA$175127AAAA 34%A A $196,707AAA A

38%A A $254AAAA a€"%A A $518,091AAAA 100%Multi-familya€<A 56,693A 13%A A A 256,692A 58%A A A 131,797A 29%A A A a€”A a€"%A A A 445,182A 100%Commercial real
estated€<A 13,583A 16%A A A 44,574A 54%A A A 25,192A 30%A A A a€”A a€”%A A A 83,349A 100%Constructiona€<A 228A 8%A A A 1,480A 55%A A A 984A 37%A A A a€”A
a€"%A A A 2,692A 100%Othera€«A a€”A a€"%A AA 95A 100%A A A a€”A 4€"%A A A a€”A 4€"%A A A 95A 100%Totala€«$ 216,507A 21%A A $ 477,968A 45%A A $ 354,680A 34%A A $
254A a€”"%A A $ 1,049,409A 100%a€<(1)Comprised of Riverside and San Bernardino counties.(2)Other than the Inland Empire.a€<5Table of ContentsAs of June 30,

2023:4€ A€ <a€<a€<A€<A€ A€ A€ AL <AL <AL AE AL AL AL <AL AL AL AL AL AE<AE«AE AL AL aEatat«

a€<a€<Inlanda€«Southerna€«Othera€«Othera€ A€ «a€<«a€<a€<A a€<a€<Emp1re(1)a€<Cahf0rma(2)a€<Cahforn1aa€<Statesa€<TotalA Loan
Categorya€<Ba1ancea€<%a€<Ba1ancea€<%a€<Balancea€<%a€<Balancea€<%a€<Balancea€<%A Single-: famllyA AAA$149,569AAAA 29%A A $174,421AAAA 34%A A $ 194,570AAA A
37%A A $ 261AAAA 4€"%A A $518,821AAA A 100%Multi- fam11ya€<A 61,672A 13%A A A 272,178A 59%A A A 127,263A 28%A AA a€”A 4€"%A A A 461,113A 100%Commercial real

estatea€<A 16,586A 18%A A A 49,183A 54%A A A 24,789A 28%A A A a€”A a€"%A A A 90,558A 100%Constructiond€<A 590A 30%A A A 1,116A 58%A AA 230A 12%AAA a€”A
a€”"%A A A 1,936A 100%Othera€«A a€”A a€”"%A A A 106A 100%A A A a€”A a€"%A A A a€”A a€"%A A A 106A 100%Totala€«$ 228,417A 21%A A $ 497,004A 47%A A $ 346,852A

32%A A $ 261A 4€"%A A $ 1,072,534A 100%&a€<(1)Comprised of Riverside and San Bernardino counties.(2)Other than the Inland Empire.a€<Single-Family Mortgage Loans. One of the
Banka€™s primary lending activities is the origination and purchase of adjustable and fixed rate mortgage loans to be held for investment, secured by first trust deed mortgages on owner-
occupied, single-family (one to four units) residences in the communities where the Banka€™s branches are located and surrounding areas in Southern and Northern California. During fiscal
2024, the Bank originated $40.9 million of A single-family loans to be held for investment, all of which were underwritten in accordance with the Banka€™s origination guidelines, and did not
purchase any single-family loans. This compares to single-family loan originations of $165.9 million and no loan purchases during fiscal 2023. At June 30, 2024, total single-family loans held for
investment decreased slightly to $518.1 million, or 49% of the total loans held for investment, from $518.8 million, or 48% of the total loans held for investment, at June 30, 2023. The decrease
in the single-family loans in fiscal 2024 was primarily attributable to loan principal payments that exceeded new loans originated for investment. During fiscal 2024, the Bank did not have any
recovery from non-performing single-family loans, as compared to net recoveries of $8,000 during fiscal 2023. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, total non-performing single-family loans were $2.6
million and $1.3 million, respectively, net of allowances and charge-offs, andA there were no loans past due 30 to 89 days at both dates.4€<The Bank has underwriting standards that generally



conform with the standards of the government sponsored entities (4€ceGSE&€) which include Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. Mortgage insurance is usually required for all loans exceeding 80%
loan-to-value (4€eLTVa€) based on the lower of the purchase price or appraised value at the time of loan origination. The Bank is not currently offering loans with LTV ratios greater than 90%.
The ratio is derived by dividing the original loan balance by the lower of the original appraised value or purchase price of the real estate collateral. Currently, the maximum LTV ratio is 90% for
new purchases and limited cash-out refinances and 75% for cash-out refinances.A The maximum loan amount offered on single-family homes is $1.5 million. A limited cash-out refinance
transaction limits cash back to the borrower to the lesser of 2% of the new loan amount or $2,000. The lowest FICO score currently offered for a purchase or no cash-out refinance transaction is
700, while the lowest FICO score for a cash-out refinance transaction is 720. The FICO score represents the creditworthiness of a borrower based on the borrowerd€™ s credit history, as
reported by an independent third party.A A higher FICO score indicates a greater degree of creditworthiness.A Bank regulators have issued guidance stating that a FICO score of 660 and below
is indicative of a &€cesubprimea€ borrower. 4€<The Bank currently lends on residential properties classified as single-family units, planned unit developments and condominiums.A Underwriting
standards and guidelines may change at any time, based on shifts in real estate market conditions or changes to GSE policies and guidelines. To enhance protection, the Bank purchases lender-
paid mortgage insurance for certain single-family mortgage loans. As of June 30, 2024, a total of approximately $141.8 million of single-family mortgage loans, with a 79% weighted average LTV
at the time of origination have lender-paid mortgage insurance. This insurance provides a weighted average coverage ratio of approximately 11% of the original loan amount.a€<Prior to fiscal
2009, many of the loans we originated for investment consisted of non-traditional single-family residential loans that do not conform to Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac underwriting guidelines as a
result of the characteristics of the borrower or property, the loan terms, loan size or exceptions from agency underwriting guidelines. In exchange for the additional risk to us associated with
these loans, these borrowers generally are required to pay a higher interest rate, and 6Table of Contentsdepending on the credit history, a lower loan-to-value ratio was generally required than
for a conforming loan. Our non-traditional single-family residential loans include loans to borrowers who provided limited or no documentation of their income or stated income loans, negative
amortization loans (a loan in which accrued interest exceeding the required monthly loan payment is added to loan principal up to 115% of the original loan amount), more than 30-year
amortization loans, and loans to borrowers with a FICO score below 660 (these loans are considered subprime by the OCC).As of June 30, 2024, these non-traditional loans totaled $17.7 million,
comprising 3% of total single-family residential loans held for investment and 2% of total loans held for investment, with a weighted average seasoning of 16.1 years. At that date, stated income
loans totaled $13.0 million, more than 30-year amortization loans totaled $6.0 million, low FICO score loans totaled $1.7 million, and negative amortization loans totaled $402,000 (the
outstanding balances described may overlap more than one category).The Bank currently offers fixed-rate loans in Riverside and San Bernardino counties, along with adjustable-rate mortgage
(&€eARMA€) loans throughout California. Substantially all the loans originated by the Bank comply with GSE underwriting standards concerning credit and collateral. The Bank's ARM products
offer various options, with interest rates adjusting every six months after an initial fixed period of five to ten years. These adjustments are limited by caps on semi-annual and lifetime rate
changes. 4€<«Currently, the ARM programs have a rate consisting of an Index tied to the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (4€ceSOFRA€), plus a margin. The programs are limited to a
maximum semi-annual increase or decrease of one percentage point with a maximum lifetime increase of five percentage points and the rate may not fall below the margin. The portfolio
currently consists of the following indices, plus a margin of between 2.00% and 3.25%, which are used to calculate the periodic interest rate changes: SOFR, the 12-month average U.S.
Treasury (a&€cel12 MATA€) or the weekly average yield on one-year U.S. Treasury securities adjusted to a constant maturity of one year (&4€ceCMTa€). Loans based on the SOFR index constitute a
majority of the Banka€™s loans held for investment. The majority of the ARM loans held for investment have five, seven, orA 10-year fixed periods prior to the first adjustment and provide for
fully amortizing loan payments throughout the term of the loan. Loans of this type have embedded interest rate risk if interest rates should rise during the initial fixed rate period or if rates
should rise beyond the periodic or lifetime caps.a€<Borrower demand for ARM loans versus fixed-rate mortgage loans is a function of the level of interest rates, the expectations of changes in
the level of interest rates and the difference between the initial interest rates and fees charged for each type of loan. The relative amount of fixed-rate mortgage loans and ARM loans that can
be originated at any time is largely determined by the demand for each product in a given interest rate and competitive environment.4€<The retention of ARM loans, rather than fixed-rate loans,
helps to reduce the Banka€™ s exposure to changes in interest rates. There is, however, unquantifiable credit risk resulting from the potential of increased interest charges to be paid by the
borrower as a result of increases in interest rates. It is possible that, during periods of rising interest rates, the risk of default on ARM loans may increase as a result of the increase in the
required payment from the borrower. Further, the risk of default may increase because ARM loans originated by the Bank occasionally provide, as a marketing incentive, for initial rates of
interest below those rates that would apply if the adjustment index plus the applicable margin were initially used for pricing. Because of these characteristics, ARM loans are subject to
increased risks of default or delinquency. Additionally, while ARM loans allow the Bank to increase the sensitivity of its assets as a result of changes in interest rates, the extent of this interest
rate sensitivity is limited by the periodic and lifetime interest rate adjustment limits.A Furthermore, because loan indexes may not respond perfectly to changes in market interest rates, upward
adjustments on loans may occur more slowly than increases in the Banka€™s cost of interest-bearing liabilities, especially during periods of rapidly increasing interest rates.A Conversely,
downward adjustments on the Banka€™s cost of funds typically lag adjustments on ARM loans which may occur more rapidly during periods of declining interest rates. For additional
information concerning the effect of interest rates on our loan portfolio, see Item 7A, &€ceQuantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Riska€ of this Form 10-K.a€<The Dodd-Frank
Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the a€ceDodd-Frank Acta€) requires lenders to make a reasonable, good faith determination of a borrowera€™ s ability to repay any consumer
closed-end credit transaction secured by a dwelling and to limit prepayment penalties. Increased risks of legal challenge, private right of action and regulatory enforcement actions result from
these rules. The Bank may originate loans that do not meet the definition of a &€cequalified mortgagea€ (&€0eQMa€). To mitigate the risks involved with non-QM loans, the Bank has
implemented systems, processes, 7Table of Contentsprocedural and product changes, and maintains its underwriting standards, to ensure that the &€ceability-to-repaya€ requirements are
adequately addressed.a€<A decline in real estate values subsequent to the time of origination of real estate secured loans could result in higher loan delinquency levels, foreclosures, provisions
for credit losses and net charge-offs. Real estate values and real estate markets are beyond the Banka€™s control and are generally affected by changes in national, regional or local economic
conditions and other factors. These factors include fluctuations in interest rates and the availability of loans to potential purchasers, housing supply and demand, changes in tax laws and other
governmental statutes, regulations and policies and acts of nature, such as earthquakes, fires, droughts and other natural disasters particular to California where substantially all of our real
estate collateral is located. If real estate values decline from the levels at the time of loan origination, the value of our real estate collateral securing the loans could be significantly reduced. The
Banka€™s ability to recover on defaulted loans by foreclosing and selling the real estate collateral would then be diminished and it would be more likely that the Bank could suffer losses on
defaulted loans.a€<Multi-Family and Commercial Real Estate Loans. At June 30, 2024, multi-family loans were $445.2 million and commercial real estate loans were $83.3 million, or 42% and
8%, respectively, of loans held for investment. This compares to multi-family loans of $461.1 million and commercial real estate loans of $90.6 million, or 43% and 8%, respectively, of loans held
for investment at June 30, 2023. Consistent with its strategy to diversify the composition of loans held for investment, the Bank has emphasized the origination and purchase of multi-family and
commercial real estate loans. During fiscal 2024, the Bank originated $31.9 million in multi-family and commercial real estate loans but did not purchase any. This is a decrease from fiscal
2023, when $69.3 million of such loans were originated and none were purchased. As of June 30, 2024, the average outstanding loan balance was approximately $724,000 for multi-family loans
and approximately $731,000 for commercial real estate loans.&€<The multi-family loans originated by the Bank are predominately adjustable-rate loans, including hybrid ARM loans, with terms
ranging from 10 to 30 years and amortization schedules of 25 to 30 years. Similarly, the Banka€™s commercial real estate loans are mainly adjustable-rate loans, also including hybrid ARM
loans, with the same maturity terms and amortization schedules. The interest rates on multi-family and commercial real estate ARM loans generally adjust monthly, quarterly, semi-annually, or
annually, based on a specific margin over the relevant interest rate index and are subject to periodic and lifetime interest rate caps. At June 30, 2024, $428.4 million, or 96%, of the Banka€™s
multi-family loans were secured by projects with five to 36 units. The Banka€™s commercial real estate loan portfolio primarily consists of loans secured by small office buildings, light industrial
buildings, warehouses, and small retail centers. The properties securing these loans are mainly located in the counties of Alameda, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, San Diego,
San Francisco, and Santa Clara. The Bank typically originates multi-family and commercial real estate loans in amounts ranging from $350,000 to $6.0 million. At June 30, 2024, the Bank had
57 commercial real estate and multi-family loans with principal balances greater than $1.5 million, totaling $125.7 million. Appraisals are obtained for all properties securing multi-family and
commercial real estate loans. The underwriting process for these loans includes a thorough analysis of the property's cash flows to ensure adequate debt service coverage, as well as an
evaluation of the financial resources, experience, and income levels of the borrowers and guarantors.a€«Multi-family and commercial real estate loans afford the Bank an opportunity to price
the loans with higher interest rates than those generally available from single-family mortgage loans. However, loans secured by such properties are generally greater in amount, more difficult
to evaluate and monitor and are more susceptible to default as a result of general economic conditions and, therefore, involve a greater degree of risk than single-family residential mortgage
loans. Because payments on loans secured by multi-family and commercial real estate properties are often dependent on the successful operation and management of the properties, repayment
of such loans may be impacted by adverse conditions in the real estate market or the economy. During both fiscal 2024 and 2023, the Bank had no charge-offs or recoveries on multi-family and
commercial real estate loans.A At June 30, 2024 and 2023, there were no non-performing or 30 to 89 days delinquent multi-family and commercial real estate loans.A Non-performing loans
and/or delinquent loans may increase if there is a general decline in California real estate markets and in the event poor general economic conditions prevail.&€<Construction Loans. The Bank
originates from time to time two types of construction loans: short-term construction loans and construction/permanent loans. During fiscal 2024 and 2023, the Bank originated a total of $1.5
million and $1.6 million of construction loans (including undisbursed loan funds), respectively. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Bank had construction loans totaling $2.7 million and $1.9
million, net of undisbursed loan funds of $435,000 and $1.9 million, 8Table of Contentsrespectively. On these dates, the loans consisted of bridge loans totaling $1.5 million and $0, short-term
construction loans totaling $228,000 and $1.7 million, and construction/permanent loans totaling $984,000 and $230,000 respectively.a€<Short-term construction loans include three types of
loans: custom construction, tract construction, and speculative construction. The Bank provides construction financing for single-family, multi-family and commercial real estate properties.
Custom construction loans are made to individuals who, at the time of application, have a contract executed with a builder to construct their residence. Custom construction loans are generally
originated for a term of 12 to 18 months, with adjustable or fixed interest rates at the prime lending rate plus a margin and with loan-to-value ratios of up to 75% of the appraised value of the
completed property. The owner secures long-term permanent financing at the completion of construction. At June 30, 2024, there were no custom short-term single-family construction loans.
This compares to June 30, 2023 when the Bank had one custom short-term single-family construction loan totaling $496,000, net of undisbursed loan funds of $49,000.4€<From time to time the
Bank makes lot loans to individuals to finance land acquisition prior to the start of construction or tract construction loans to subdivision builders. These subdivisions are usually financed and
built in phases. A thorough analysis of market trends and demand within the area are reviewed for feasibility. Tract construction may include the building and financing of model homes under a
separate loan.A At June 30, 2024, there was one land loan of $95,000 (reported as other mortgage loans) and no tract construction loans; as compared to one land loan for $106,000 (reported as
other mortgage loans) and one tract construction loan for $1.1 million, net of undisbursed loan funds of $567,000 at June 30, 2023.4€<Speculative construction loans are made to home builders
and are termed a€cespeculatived€ because the home builder does not have, at the time of loan origination, a signed sale contract with a home buyer who has a commitment for permanent
financing with either the Bank or another lender for the finished home. The home buyer may be identified during or after the construction period. The builder may be required to debt service
the speculative construction loan for a significant period of time after the completion of construction until the homebuyer is identified. At June 30, 2024, the Bank had one speculative
construction loan of $228,000, net of undisbursed loan funds of $32,000, as compared to one construction loan of $94,000, net of undisbursed loan funds of $166,000 at June 30,
2023.4€<Construction/permanent loans automatically roll from the construction to the permanent phase. The construction phase generally lasts 12 to 18 months and the interest rate charged is
generally fixed at a margin above prime rate and with a loan-to-value ratio of up to 75% of the appraised value of the completed property.A At June 30, 2024, there were $984,000 of custom
construction/permanent loans, net of undisbursed loan funds of $403,000 as compared to $230,000 of custom construction/permanent loans, net of undisbursed loan funds of $1.2 million at June
30, 2023.a€<Construction loans under $1.0 million are approved by Bank personnel specifically designated to approve construction loans. The Banka€™s Loan Committee, comprised of the
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Lending Officer, Senior Vice President &€“ Single-Family Division and Vice President - Loan Administration, approves all construction loans over $1.0 million. Prior
to approval of any construction loan, an independent fee appraiser inspects the site and the Bank reviews the existing or proposed improvements, identifies the market for the proposed project,
and analyzes the pro-forma data and assumptions on the project. In the case of a tract or speculative construction loan, the Bank also reviews the experience and expertise of the builder. The
Bank obtains credit reports, financial statements and tax returns on the borrowers and guarantors, an independent appraisal of the project, and any other expert report necessary to evaluate
the proposed project. In the event of cost overruns, the Bank requires the borrower to deposit their own funds into a loan-in-process account, which the Bank disburses consistent with the
completion of the subject property pursuant to a revised disbursement schedule.4€<The construction loan documents require that construction loan proceeds be disbursed in increments as
construction progresses. Disbursements are based on periodic on-site inspections by independent inspectors and/or Bank personnel.A At inception, the Bank also requires borrowers to deposit
funds into a loan-in-process account covering the difference between the actual cost of construction and the loan amount. The Bank regularly monitors the construction loan portfolio, economic
conditions and housing inventory.A The Banka€™s property inspectors perform periodic inspections.A The Bank believes that the internal monitoring system helps reduce many of the risks
inherent in its construction loans.a€<9Table of ContentsConstruction loans afford the Bank the opportunity to achieve higher interest rates and fees with shorter terms to maturity than its
single-family mortgage loans.A Construction loans, however, are generally considered to involve a higher degree of risk than single-family mortgage loans because of the inherent difficulty in
estimating both a propertya€™s value at completion of the project and the cost of the project. The nature of these loans is such that they are generally more difficult to evaluate and monitor. If
the estimate of construction costs proves to be inaccurate, the Bank may be required to advance funds beyond the amount originally committed to permit completion of the project.A If the
estimate of value upon completion proves to be inaccurate, the Bank may be confronted with a project whose value is insufficient to assure full repayment. Projects may also be jeopardized by
disagreements between borrowers and builders and by the failure of builders to pay subcontractors. Loans to builders to construct homes for which no purchaser has been identified carry
additional risk because the payoff for the loan depends on the buildera€™s ability to sell the property prior to the time that the construction loan matures.A The Bank has sought to address
these risks by adhering to strict underwriting policies, disbursement procedures and monitoring practices. In addition, because the Banka€™s construction lending is in its primary market area,
changes in the local or regional economy and real estate market could adversely affect the Banka€™ s construction loans held for investment. During fiscal 2024 and 2023, the Bank had no
charge-offs or recoveries on construction loans, and no construction loans were non-performing or 30-89 days delinquent at both June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023.4€<Participation Loan
Purchases and Sales. To expand production and diversify risk, the Bank purchases loans and loan participations, primarily with collateral located in California, which allows for greater
geographic distribution outside of the Banka€™ s primary lending areas. The Bank typically purchases between 50% and 100% of the total loan amount. When purchasing a participation loan,
the lead lender usually retains a servicing fee, which reduces the loan yield to approximately the cost the Bank would incur if it serviced the loan itself. All properties serving as collateral for
these loan participations are inspected by either a Bank employee or a third-party inspection service before being approved by the Loan Committee. The Bank uses the same underwriting
criteria for these purchases as it does for loans it originates. The Bank did not purchase any loans to be held for investment in fiscal 2024 and 2023, due primarily to concerns over asset quality
in light of the current economic climate and fewer loans available for purchase. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, there were $1.8 million and $10.6 million of loans serviced by other financial
institutions, respectively.A As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, all loans serviced by others were performing according to their original contractual payment terms, except for one loan totaling
$362,000 that was classified as non-performing as of June 30, 2024. 4€<The Bank also sells participating interests in loans when it has been determined that it is beneficial to diversify the
Banka€™s risk. Participation sales enable the Bank to maintain acceptable loan concentrations and comply with the Banka€™s loans to one borrower policy. Generally, selling a participating



interest in a loan increases the yield to the Bank on the portion of the loan that is retained. The Bank did not sell any participation loans in fiscal 2024 or fiscal 2023.a€<Commercial Business
Loans. The Bank has a Business Banking Department that primarily serves businesses located within the Inland Empire. Commercial business loans allow the Bank to diversify its lending and
increase the average loan yield. As of June 30, 2024, commercial business loans were $1.4 million, down from $1.6 million at June 30, 2023. These loans represent secured and unsecured lines
of credit and term loans secured by business assets.a€<Commercial business loans are generally made to customers who are well known to the Bank and are generally secured by accounts
receivable, inventory, business equipment and/or other assets. The Banka€™ s commercial business loans may be structured as term loans or as lines of credit. Lines of credit are made at
variable rates of interest equal to a negotiated margin above the prime rate and term loans are at a fixed or variable rate. The Bank may also require personal guarantees from financially
capable parties associated with the business based on a review of personal financial statements. Commercial business term loans are generally made to finance the purchase of assets and have
maturities of five years or less. Commercial lines of credit are typically made for the purpose of providing working capital and are typically approved with a term of one year or
less.a€<«Commercial business loans involve greater risk than residential mortgage loans and involve risks that are different from those associated with residential and commercial real estate
loans. Real estate loans are generally considered to be collateral based lending with loan amounts based on predetermined loan to collateral value and liquidation of the underlying real estate
collateral is viewed as the primary source of repayment in the event of borrower default. Although commercial business loans are often collateralized by equipment, inventory, accounts
receivable or other business assets including real estate, the liquidation of collateral in the event of a borrower default is often an insufficient source of repayment because accounts receivable
may not be collectible and inventories and equipment may be obsolete or of limited 10Table of Contentsuse. Accordingly, the repayment of a commercial business loan depends primarily on the
creditworthiness of the borrower (and any guarantors), while liquidation of collateral is secondary and oftentimes an insufficient source of repayment. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, there were no
non-performing commercial business loans.A During fiscal 2024 and 2023, the Bank had no charge-offs or recoveries on commercial business loans.a€<Consumer Loans. At June 30, 2024, the
Banka€™s consumer loans were $65,000, unchanged from June 30, 2023. The Bank offers open-ended lines of credit on an unsecured basis, primarily deposit overdraft lines of
credit.a€<«Consumer loans potentially have a greater risk than residential mortgage loans, particularly in the case of loans that are unsecured. Consumer loan collections are dependent on the
borrowera€™s ongoing financial stability, and thus are more likely to be adversely affected by job loss, illness or personal bankruptcy. Furthermore, the application of various federal and state
laws, including federal and state bankruptcy and insolvency laws, may limit the amount that can be recovered on such loans. The Bank had no non-performing consumer loans at both June 30,
2024 and 2023. During fiscal 2024 and 2023, the Bank had no charge-offs or recoveries on consumer loans.a€<Loans Originations, Purchases, Sales and Repaymentsa€<«Mortgage loans are
primarily originated for investment. Prior to scaling back originations of saleable single-family fixed-rate mortgage loans during fiscal 2019, a large amount of single-family fixed-rate mortgage
loans were originated for sale to institutional investors. Mortgage loans sold to investors generally were sold without recourse other than standard representations and warranties.A Generally,
mortgage loans sold to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac were sold on a non-recourse basis and foreclosure losses are generally the responsibility of the purchaser and not the Bank, except in the
case of Federal Housing Administration (4€ceFHA&€) and Veteransa€™ Administration (4€eVA4€) loans used to form Government National Mortgage Association pools, which are subject to
limitations on the FHA4€™s and VA&€™s loan guarantees.a€<11Table of ContentsThe following table shows the Banka€™s loan originations, purchases, sales and principal repayments during
the periods indicated. No loans were purchased during the periods indicated:A€<a€<a€ a€<a€ A€ <a€<a€« a€«a€<Year Ended JuneA 30,A (In

Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 20234€a€<a€<a€<A€<a€a€<Loans originated for sale: A 4€<A A A a€<A A Wholesale 0r1gmat10nsa€<$ 5,605a€<$ 512Total loans originated for salea€<A 5,605a€<A
5124€4€A€<A€<A€a€A€Loans sold:a€<A A A 4€<A A A Servicing retaineda€<A (5,605)a€<A (512)Total loans solda€<A (5,605)4€<A (512)a€<4€<A€<A€A€<a€a€ Loans originated for
investment:4€<A A A 4€<A A A Mortgage loans: &€<A A A a€<A A A Single-familya€<A 40,9204€<A 165,942Multi-familya€<A 22,112a€<A 50,323Commercial real estated€<A 9,757a€<A
18,979Constructiona€<«A 1,4804€<A 1,648Commercial business loansa€<a€« 1,250a€<4€« 190Total loans originated for investmenta€<A 75,519a€<A 237,082a€<A€<A€<A€<A€<a€<a€<Loan principal
repaymentsa€<A (99,91 5)é€<A (102,288)(Decrease) increase in other items, net (1)a€<A (254)a€<A 2,843Net (decrease) increase in loans held for investmenta€<$ (24,650)4€<$
137,637a€<(1)Includes net changes in undisbursed loan funds, deferred loan fees or costs, ACL, fair value of loans held for investment and advance payments of escrows.a€<Loan
Servicingé€<The Bank receives fees from a variety of investors in return for performing the traditional services of collecting individual loan payments on loans sold by the Bank to such investors.
At June 30, 2024, the Bank was servicing $34.6 million of loans for others, a 6% increase from $32.6 million at June 30, 2023. The increase was primarily attributable to new loans A sold with
servicing retained, partly offset by scheduled principal payments and prepayments. Loan servicing includes processing payments, accounting for loan funds and collecting and paying real estate
taxes, hazard insurance and other loan-related items such as private mortgage insurance. After the Bank receives the gross mortgage payment from individual borrowers, it remits to the
investor a predetermined net amount based on the loan sale agreement for that mortgage.a€<Servicing assets are amortized in proportion to and over the period of the estimated net servicing
income and are carried at the lower of cost or fair value. The fair value of servicing assets is determined by calculating the present value of the estimated net future cash flows consistent with
contractually specified servicing fees. The Bank periodically evaluates servicing assets for impairment, which is measured as the excess of cost over fair value. This review is performed on a
disaggregated basis, based on loan type and interest rate. Generally, loan servicing becomes more valuable when interest rates rise (as prepayments typically decrease) and less valuable when
interest rates decline (as prepayments typically increase). In estimating fair values at June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Bank used a weighted average Constant Prepayment Rate (a€ceCPRa€) of
9.59% and 7.44%, and a weighted average discount rate of 9.06% and 9.05%, respectively.A The required impairment reserve against servicing assets at June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $170,000
and $165,000, respectively.A In aggregate, servicing assets had a carrying value of $272,000 and a fair value of $102,000 at June 30, 2024, compared to a carrying value of $256,000 and a fair
value of $91,000 at June 30, 2023.4€<12Table of ContentsAsset Qualitya€<Delinquent Loans. When a mortgage loan borrower fails to make a required payment when due, the Bank initiates
collection procedures. In most cases, delinquencies are cured promptly; however, if the loan remains delinquent on the 120th day for single-family loans or the 90th day for other loans, or
sooner if the borrower is chronically delinquent, and after all reasonable means of obtaining the payment have been exhausted, foreclosure proceedings, according to the terms of the security
instrument and applicable law, are initiated. Interest income is reduced by the full amount of accrued and uncollected interest on such loans.a€<As of June 30, 2024, total non-performing assets,
net of the ACL and fair value adjustments, were $2.6 million, or 0.20% of total assets, which was comprised of 10 single-family loans.A As of June 30, 2024, $1.1 million or 43% of the total non-
performing loans had a current payment status. In comparison, as of June 30, 2023, total non-performing assets, net of the ACL and fair value adjustments, were $1.3 million, or 0.10% of total
assets, consisting of six single-family loans, with $175,000 or 13% having a current payment status. The Bank had no real estate owned (4€eREO&€) both at June 30, 2024 and 2023.4€<The
following table sets forth information with respect to the Bank&€™s non-performing assets, net of the ACL and fair value adjustments, at the dates indicated:a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€a€a€a€«

A€ <AEALA ]uneA 30,A (Dollars In Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 2023A A A A 4€<4€<4€<4€<4€<4€<4€<a€<Loans on non-performing status:A A A A 46<AAA A A A a€<A A A A A A Mortgage

loans:A 4€<A A A a€<A A A Single-familya€<$ 2,596a€<$ 1,300a€<Totala€«A 2,596a€<A 1,300a€<A€A€<A€AEAEAEAEAa€Accruing loans past due 90 days or morea€«A a€”a€A

4€"4€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ <a€<Total non-performing loansa€<«A 2,5964€<A 1,3004€<A€<A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ Real estate owned, netd€<A 4€”a€<A a€”a€<Total non-performing assetsa€«$
2,596a€<$ 1,300a€<A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ «a€<a€Non-performing loans as a percentage of loans held for investment, neta€<A 0.25%A A A 0.12%A A A€<A€ A€ A€ A€«a€<a€a€Non-performing loans
as a percentage of total assetsa€<A 0.20%A A A 0.10%A A 4€<4€<A€<A€<A€<A€<a€<a€<Non-performing assets as a percentage of total assetsa€<A 0.20%A A A 0.10%A A 4€<The Bank assesses
loans individually and classifies the loans as non-performing and substandard in accordance with regulatory requirements when the accrual of interest has been discontinued, loans have been
modified or management has serious doubts about the future collectability of principal and interest, even though the loans may be currently performing. Factors considered in determining
classification include, but are not limited to, expected future cash flows, collateral value, the financial condition of the borrower and/or guarantor and current economic conditions. The Bank
measures each non-performing loan based on Accounting Standards Codification (4€0eASCAa€) 326, 4€eFinancial Instruments 4€“ Credit Losses,a€ establishes a collectively evaluated or
individually evaluated allowance, and charges off those loans or portions of loans deemed uncollectible.a€<Modified Loans to Borrowers Experiencing Financial Difficulty. We occasionally
modify loans to alleviate temporary difficulties in the borrowera€™ s financial condition and/or constraints on the borrowera€™s ability to repay the loan, and to minimize our potential losses.
We refer to these modifications as modified loans to troubled borrowers. Modifications may include changes in the amortization terms of the loan, reductions in interest rates, acceptance of
interest only payments, and, in very limited cases, reductions to the outstanding loan balance. Such loans are typically placed on nonaccrual status 13Table of Contentswhen there is doubt
concerning the full repayment of principal and interest or the loan has been past due for a period of 120th day for single-family loans or the 90th day for other loans or sooner if other activities
have taken place such as a notice of default has been issued, or if the borrower is chronically delinquent. Such loans may be returned to accrual status when all contractual amounts past due
have been brought current, and the borrowera€™s performance under the modified terms of the loan agreement and the ultimate collectability of all contractual amounts due under the
modified terms is no longer in doubt. a€<In March 2022, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (a€ceFASBa€) issued Accounting Standards Update (a€ceASU&€) 2022-02, a€ceFinancial
Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326) Troubled Debt Restructurings and Vintage Disclosures.a€ This ASU provides new guidance on the treatment of troubled debt restructurings (24€ceTDRA€)
in relation to the adoption of the current expected credit loss methodology, or CECL model, for the accounting for credit losses (discussed below). Previous accounting guidance related to TDRs
is eliminated and new disclosure requirements are adopted in regards to loan modifications made to borrowers experiencing financial difficulties under the assumption that the CECL model will
capture credit losses related to TDRs. The required disclosures regarding gross write-offs for financing receivables by year of origination and loan modifications are presented under Note 3 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Subsequent to the adoption of ASC 326, the Bank no longer reports TDRs or classifies loans as TDRs given those loans previously recognized as
TDRs have been incorporated into the CECL methodology in regard to credit loss reserves as of July 1, 2023. As of June 30, 2024, there were no loan modifications for borrowers experiencing
financial difficulties. &€<Foreclosed Real Estate. Real estate acquired by the Bank as a result of foreclosure or by deed-in-lieu of foreclosure is classified as REO until it is sold. When a property
is acquired, it is recorded at its fair market value less the estimated cost of sale. Subsequent declines in value are charged to operations. As of both June 30, 2024 and 2023, there was no REO
property.A In managing the real estate owned properties for quick disposition, the Bank completes the necessary repairs and maintenance to the individual properties before listing for sale,
obtains new appraisals and broker price opinions (4€eBPO4€) to determine current market listing prices, and engages local realtors who are most familiar with real estate sub-markets, among
other techniques, which generally results in the quick disposition of real estate owned.a€<Asset Classification. The OCC has adopted various regulations regarding the problem assets of savings
institutions. The regulations require that each institution review and classify its assets on a regular basis. In addition, in connection with examinations of institutions, OCC examiners have the
authority to identify problem assets and, if appropriate, require them to be classified. There are three classifications for problem assets: substandard, doubtful and loss. Substandard assets have
one or more defined weaknesses and are characterized by the distinct possibility that the institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Doubtful assets have the
weaknesses of substandard assets with the additional characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions and values
questionable, and there is a high possibility of loss. An asset classified as a loss is considered uncollectible and of such little value that continuance as an asset of the institution is not warranted.
If an asset or portion thereof is classified as loss, the institution establishes an individually evaluated allowance and may subsequently charge-off the amount of the asset classified as loss. A
portion of the ACL established to cover probable losses related to assets classified substandard or doubtful may be included in determining an institutiona€™s regulatory capital. Assets that do
not currently expose the institution to sufficient risk to warrant classification in one of the aforementioned categories but possess weaknesses are designated as special mention and are closely
monitored by the Bank.a€<14Table of ContentsThe following table summarizes classified assets, which is comprised of classified loans located in California, including loans classified by the Bank
as special mention, net of the ACL, and REO at the dates indicated:a€<a€<a€<a€<a€ A€ € GE«AEGEGEGE a€<a€<AtA JuneA 30,A 20244€<AtA ]uneA 30,A 2023(Dollars In

1a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<Substandard loans: a€<A AAAAAEAAAAA A Mortgage loans:a€<A AAA A A a€<AAAAAA Single- fam11ya€<A 2, 596A 104€<A 1,300A 6Multi-
familya€<a€« 2,0664€<« 34€<&€« 4€”4€« 4€”Commercial real estatea€ &€« 4€”4€« 4€”4€&€« 5474€« 1Total substandard loansa€<A 4,662A 13a€<A 1,847A

746 AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE<AEAETotal classified loansa€<A 5,761A 144€A 2,357A BAEAEAE-AEAEAEAEAEAEAEEEReal estate owned:46AAAAAAGEAAAAAA Single-familya€<«A
4€”A A€”4€<A A€”A a€”Total real estate owneda€<A 4€”A A€”4€<A A€”A A€”A€<AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAETotal classified assetsa€«$ 5,761A 144€<$ 2,357A

BAE A€ AL AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAETotal classified assets as a percentage of total assetsa€<«A 0.45%A A A A 4€<A 0.18%A A A A a€<Not all of the Banka€™s classified assets are delinquent or
non-performing. In determining whether the Banka€™ s assets expose the Bank to sufficient risk to warrant classification, the Bank may consider various factors, including the payment history
of the borrower, the loan-to-value ratio, the reserves of the borrower and guarantors, and the debt coverage ratio of the property securing the loan, among other factors. After consideration of
these and other factors, the Bank may determine that the asset in question, though not currently delinquent, presents a risk of loss that requires it to be classified or designated as special
mention. In addition, the Banka€™s loans held for investment may include single-family, commercial and multi-family real estate loans with a balance exceeding the current market value of the
collateral which are not classified because they are performing and have borrowers and/or guarantor who have sufficient resources to support the repayment of the loan.a€<Allowance for Credit
Losses. On July 1, 2023, the Corporation adopted ASC 326 that replaced the incurred loss methodology with the current expected credit loss or CECL methodology. CECL requires an estimate
of expected credit losses for the remaining estimated life of the financial asset using historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts and applies to financial
assets measured at amortized cost, including loans held for investment, held-to-maturity investment securities and some off-balance sheet credit exposures such as unfunded loan commitments
to extend credit. Financial assets measured at amortized cost are presented at the net amount expected to be collected by using an ACL. The responsibility for the review of the Banka€™s
assets and the determination of the adequacy of the ACL lies with the Internal Asset Review Committee (24€eIAR Committeea€). The Bank adjusts its ACL by charging (crediting) its provision
for (recovery of) credit losses against the Banka€™s operations.a€<The Bank has established a methodology for the determination of the provision for credit losses. The methodology is set forth
in a formal policy and takes into consideration the need for a collectively evaluated allowance for groups of homogeneous loans and an individually evaluated allowance that is tied to individual
problem loans. The Banka€™s methodology for assessing the appropriateness of the ACL consists of several key elements.a€<15Table of ContentsUnder ASC 326,A the ACL is a valuation
account that is deducted from the related loana€™ s amortized cost basis to present the net amount expected to be collected on the loans. The measurement of expected credit losses is based on
relevant information about past events, including historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the collectability of the reported amount. The
Banké&€™s ACL is calculated quarterly, with any difference in the calculated ACL and the recorded ACL trued-up through an entry to the provision for credit losses. Management calculates the
quantitative portion of the collectively evaluated allowance for all loan categories using an average charge-off or loss rate methodology and generally evaluates collectively evaluated loans by
Call Report code in order to group and determine portfolio loan segments with similar risk characteristics. The Bank primarily utilizes historical loss rates for the CECL calculation based on its
own specific historical losses and/or with peer loss history where applicable. &€<The expected loss rates are applied to expected monthly loan balances estimated through the consideration of
contractual repayment terms and expected prepayments. The prepayment assumptions applied to expected cash flow over the contractual life of the loans are estimated based on historical and
bank-specific experience and the consideration of current and expected conditions and circumstances including the level of interest rates. The prepayment assumptionsA mayA be updated by
management in the event that changing conditions impact managementa€™ s estimate or additional historical data gathered has resulted in the need for a reevaluation.a€<For its reasonable and
supportable forecasting of current expected credit losses, the Bank utilizes a regression model using forecasted economic metrics and historical loss data. The regression model utilized upon
implementation of CECL onA July 1, 2023,A and as ofA June 30, 2024,A relied upon reasonable and supportable 12-month forecasts of the National Unemployment Rate and change in the Real



Gross Domestic Product, after which it reverts to a historical loss rate. Management selected the National Unemployment Rate and the Real Gross Domestic Product as the drivers of the
forward look component of the collectively evaluated allowance, primarily as a result of high correlation coefficients identified in regression modeling, the availability of forecasts, including the
quarterly Federal Open Market Committee (4€0eFOMC&€) forecast, and the widespread familiarity of these economic metrics.a€<Management recognizes that there are additional factors
impacting risk of loss in the loan portfolio beyond what is captured in the quantitative portion of allowance on collectively evaluated loans. As current and expected conditionsA mayA vary
compared with conditions over the historical lookback period, which is utilized in the calculation of the quantitative allowance, management considers whether additional or reduced allowance
levels on collectively evaluated loansA mayA be warranted, given the consideration of a variety of qualitative factors. The following qualitative factors (4€ceQ-factorsa€) considered by
management reflect the regulatory guidance on the Q-factors:a€<«a—Changes in the experience, ability, and depth of lending management and other relevant staff.a—Changes in the value of
underlying collateral for collateral-dependent loans.&—The existence and effect of any concentrations of credit, and changes in the level of such concentrations.&—Changes in international,
national, regional, and local economic and business conditions and developments that affect the collectability of the portfolio, including the condition of various market segments.a—The effect of
other external factors such as competition and legal and regulatory requirements on the level of estimated credit losses in the institution's existing portfolio.a—Changes in the volume and
severity of past due loans, the volume of non-performing loans, and the volume and severity of adversely classified or graded loans.d—Changes in the quality of the Banka€™ s loan review
system.a—Changes in the nature, volume and terms of loans in the portfolio.a&—Changes in lending policies and procedures, including changes in underwriting standards and collection, charge-
off, and recovery practices not considered elsewhere in estimating credit losses.A The qualitative portion of the Banka€™s allowance on collectively evaluated loans are calculated using
management judgment, to determine risk categorizations in each of the Q-factors presented above. The amount of qualitative allowance is also contingent upon the relative weighting of the Q-
factors according to managementa€™s judgment.A Loans that do not share similar risk characteristics are evaluated on an individual basis. When management determines that foreclosure is
probable and the borrower is experiencing financial difficulty, the expected credit losses are based on the fair value of collateral at the reporting date, less selling costs. 16Table of
Contentsa€«Accrued interest receivable for loans is included in the accrued interest receivable line item on the Corporationa€™s Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.A The Bank
electedA notA to measure an allowance for accrued interest receivable and instead elected to reverse accrued interest income on loans that are placed on non-performing status.A A loan is
deemed non-performing when the Bank has stopped accruing interest income, or it is 90 days or more delinquent. Any outstanding interest receivable that has not been collected is reversed,
disclosed accordingly; and therefore, no allowance is established. The Bank believes this policy results in the timely reversal of potentially uncollectible interest.a€<Management believes the
ACL on loans held for investment is maintained at a level sufficient to provide for expected losses on the Corporationa€™s loans held for investment based on historical loss experience, current
conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The provision for (recovery of) credit losses is charged (credited) against operations on a quarterly basis, as necessary, to maintain the
ACL at appropriate levels. Future adjustments to the ACL may be necessary and results of operations could be significantly and adversely affected as a result of economic, operating, regulatory,
and other conditions beyond the Corporationa€™s control.Non-performing loans are charged-off to their fair market values in the period the loans, or portion thereof, are deemed uncollectible,
generally after the loan becomes 150 days delinquent for real estate secured first trust deed loans and 120 days delinquent for commercial business or real estate secured second trust deed
loans. For loans that were previously modified from their original terms, were re-underwritten and identified as modified loans, the charge-off occurs when the loan becomes 90 days delinquent;
and where borrowers file bankruptcy, the charge-off occurs when the loan becomes 60 days delinquent. The amount of the charge-off is determined by comparing the loan balance to the
estimated fair value of the underlying collateral, less disposition costs, with the loan balance in excess of the estimated fair value charged-off against the ACL. For modified loans that are less
than 90 days delinquent, the ACL is segregated into (a) individually evaluated allowances for those loans with applicable discounted cash flow calculations still in their modification period,
classified lower than pass, and containing an embedded loss component or (b) collectively evaluated allowances based on the aggregated pooling method. For non-performing loans less than 60
days delinquent where the borrower has filed bankruptcy, the collectively evaluated allowances are assigned based on the aggregated pooling method. For non-performing commercial real
estate loans, an individually evaluated allowance is derived based on the loan's discounted cash flow fair value (for modified loans) or collateral fair value less estimated selling costs and if the
fair value is higher than the loan balance, no allowance is required.&€<17Table of ContentsThe following table shows certain credit ratios at and for the periods indicated and each component of
the ratiod€™ s calculations:a€<a€ A€ <A€<A€ A€ A€ A€ A€« AEAEALA orA ForA TheA YearA EndedA JuneA 30,a€<«(Dollars In Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 20234€<A€<A€<A€<A€AEAEAEAEACL
on loans as a percentage of total gross loans held for investment at period enda€<a€< 0.67%A A &€« 0.55%A A ACL on loansa€<$ 7,065a€<$ 5,946a€<Total gross loans held for investmenta€<$
1,050,8464€<$ 1,074,1644€<A€<AE<AE<AEAE<AE<AE<aE<Non-performing loans as a percentage of net loans held for investment at period enda€<a€< 0.25%A A 4€< 0.12%A A Total non-performing
loans, neta€«<$ 2,596a€<$ 1,300a€<Total loans held for investment, neta€<$ 1,052,979a€<$ 1,077,629a€<a€<a€<a€«a€<a€<a€«a€<a€<ACL on loans as a percentage of gross non-performing loans at
period enda€<a€« 264.71%A A 4€< 418.14%A A ACL on loansa€<$ 7,0654€<$ 5,946a€<Total gross non-performing loansa€«$ 2,669a€<$ 1,4224€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ <a€<a€Net recoveries (charge-
offs) to average loans receivable during the period:a€<a€<a€<a€<A€<A€a€Mortgage loans:4€<A€<A€<AE A€ A€ AE AL AE AL AE A€ A€ A€ A€ Single-family:4€<&€< -%A A €< -%A A Net
recoveriesa€«<$ -4€<$ 8a€<Average loans receivabled€«$ 520,0714€<$ 471,3474€ A€ <AE<AE<AE<AE<AE<AE<AEMulti-family:A€<4€< -%A A 4€< -%A A Net charge-offsa€«$ -a€<$ -a€<Average loans
receivablea€<$ 459,0254€<$ 464,511a€ A€ <A€A€<AEAEAEA€AE«Commercial real estate:a€«A€< -%A A 4€< -%A A Net charge-offsa€«$ -a€<$ -4€<«Average loans receivablea€«$ 86,4253€<$
89,0604€ <A€ <A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ <AE«Construction:A€<A€« -%A A 4€< -%A A Net charge-offsa€«$ -a€<$ -a€<Average loans receivabled€«$ 2,3404€<$ 2,6064€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAE<Other:A€<A€« -
%A A &€« -%A A Net charge-offsa€«$ -a€<$ -4€<Average loans receivablea€«$ 994€<$ 1114€<A€<AE<AEAEAEAEAE A€ «Commercial business loans:a€<4€< -%A A €< -%A A Net charge-offsa€«<$
-4€<$ -a€<Average loans receivablea€«$ 1,5924€<$ 1,2904€ A€ A€ <AE<AE<AE<AE<AE<AE«Consumer loans:A€<4€< -%A A 4€< -%A A Net charge-offsa€«$ -a€<$ -4€<Average loans receivablea€«$ 643€<$
75a€<A€ A€ <AE A€ AE<AEAE«AETotal loans:a€<a€« -%A A €<« -%A A Total net recoveriesa€«$ -a€<$ 8a€<Total average loans receivablea€«$ 1,069,616a€<$ 1,029,0004€<18Table of ContentsThe
distribution of the ACL on loans at the dates indicated is summarized as

follows:A€ <A€<A€ A€ AL A€ AEAE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEALA JuneA 30,A A€A€<20244€<20234€ A€ A€ AEAEAEHA 0fA€AEAEAEHA 0fa€AEAEAEAEaE«LoansA ina€ a€«a€«a€«LoansA ina€«a€<at
In Thousands)a€<Amounta€«Loansa€<Amounta€<Loansa€ A€ <a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€« Mortgage loans:AAAAaEAAAAAAAAAAAAaECAAAAAAAAAAAA Single-
familya€<$ 6,295A 49.30%A A $ 1,720A 48.30%A A Multi-familya€<A 595A 42.36a€<A 3,270A 42.93a€<« Commercial real estatea€<A 66A 7.93a€<A 868A 8.43a€< Constructiona€«A 97A
0.264€<A 15A 0.184€< Other&d€<A 1A 0.014€<A 2A 0.014€< Commercial business loansa€<A 11A 0.138€<A 67A 0.144€< Consumer loansa€<A a€”A 0.014€<A 4A 0.014€« Total ACLA€<$
7,065A 100.00%A A $ 5,946A 100.00%A A a€<a€<Investment Securities Activitiesa€<Federally chartered savings institutions are permitted under federal and state laws to invest in various
types of liquid assets, including U.S. Treasury obligations, securities of various federal agencies and government sponsored enterprises and of state and municipal governments, deposits at the
FHLB, certificates of deposit of federally insured institutions, certain bankersa€™ acceptances, mortgage-backed securities and federal funds. Subject to various restrictions, federally chartered
savings institutions may also invest a portion of their assets in commercial paper and corporate debt securities.A 4€<The investment policy of the Bank, established by the Board of Directors and
implemented by the Banka€™ s Asset-Liability Committee, seeks to provide and maintain adequate liquidity, complement the Banka€™ s lending activities, and generate a favorable return on
investment without incurring undue interest rate risk or credit risk. Investments are made based on certain considerations, such as credit quality, yield, maturity, liquidity and marketability.
The Bank also considers the effect that the proposed investment would have on the Banka€™s risk-based capital requirements and interest rate risk sensitivity.a€<At June 30, 2024 and 2023,
the Banka€™s investment securities portfolio was $131.9 million and $156.6 million, respectively, which primarily consisted of federal agency and GSE obligations. The Bank did not purchase
any investment securities during fiscal 2024 and 2023. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Banka€™s securities portfolio did not contain securities of any issuer with an aggregate book value in
excess of 10% of our equity capital, excluding those issued by the United States government or its agencies or a GSE.4€<19Table of ContentsThe following table sets forth the composition of the
Banka€ ™s mvestment portfoho at the dates 1nd1cated a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€< a€<a€<AtA JuneA 30 A

Thousands)a€<«Costa€ Valuea€ Percenta€«Costa€ Valuea€ <Percenta€«a€ a€a€«a€«a€a€«a€ A€ A€ A€ «a€ A€ «a€«a€«a€a€«a€«éa€«Held to maturity

securities:A 4€AAA a€AAAAAAae<AAAaecAAAAAAU.S. government sponsored enterprise MBS(1)a€<$ 125,8834a€<$ 110,478A 95.04%A A $ 149,8034€<$ 131,344A 95.39%A A U.S.
government sponsored enterprise CMO(2)a€<a€« 3,7134€<4€« 3,4604€<« 2.974€<4€« 3,8834€<A€« 3,5474€« 2.584€<U.S. SBA securities(3)a€<A 455a€<A 455A 0.39a€<A 6514€<A 650A
0.474€<Total investment securities - held to maturitya€<$ 130,051a€<$ 114,393A 98.40%A A § 154,3374€<$ 135,541A

08.44%A A AEAE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE Available for sale securities:a€AAA A AAAAAAACAAAGEAAAAAAAEUS. government agency MBS(1)a€<$
1,22246<$ 1,208A 1.04%A A $ 1,4174€<$ 1,370A 0.99%A A U.S. government sponsored enterprise MBS(1)a€<A 548a€<A 553A 0.48a€<A 697a€<A 683A 0.50a€<Private issue CMO(2)a€<A
014€<A 88A 0.084€<A 1034€<A 102A 0.074€<Total investment securities - available for salea€«$ 1,8614€<$ 1,849A 1.60%A A $ 2,217a€<$ 2,155A 1.56%A A Total investment securitiesa€<$
131,9124€<$ 116,242A 100.00%A A $ 156,5544€<$ 137,696A 100.00%A A a€<(1)Mortgage-backed securities (d€ceMBS&€)(2)Collateralized mortgage obligations (&€0eCMO&€)(3)Small Business
Administration ("SBA")a€<The following table sets forth the outstanding balance, maturity and weighted average yield of the investment securities at June 30, 2024. The weighted average yields
were calculated by multiplying each carrying value by its yield and dividing the sum of these results by the total carrying

values.a€<a€ A€ A€ € <a€<a€ <AL A€ AL A€ <AL <AL <AL AL AL <AL <AL <AL AL AL AL <AL <AE <AL AL Ak at«

a€<«a€<DueA ind€<Duea€<a€a€«Dueaf A€ a€Dueaf A€ Aa€a€a€«A 4€«A€«OneA Yeara€«AfterA OneA toa€<a€a€«AfterA FiveA toa€«a€ A€ Aftera€<a€a€«a€«a€«A 4€«a€«orA Lessa€«FiveA Yearsa€«at
in Thousands)a€<Amounta€«Yield 4€<Amounta€«Yield 4€<Amounta€<Yield 4€<Amounta€«Yield 4€<Amounta€«Yield A Held to maturity
securities:AAAAaEAAAAAAAAAAAAGEAAAAAAAAAAAAGEAAAAAAAAAAAAGECAAAAAAAAAAAAGEAAAAAAAAAEU.S. government sponsored enterprise
MBSa€<$ 349A 2.52%A A $ 3,390A 2.95%A A $ 49,331A 1.27%A A $ 72,813A 1.67%A A $ 125,883A 1.55%U.S. government sponsored enterprise CMOAa€<«a€« 4€”a€<« a€”a€<a€« 938a€«
2.704€<A€<« A€"a€< A€”A€AE« 2,775a€¢« 1.974€a€<« 3,7134€« 2.16a€<U.S. SBA securitiesa€<A a€”A a€"aA ae”A a€”a€A ae”’A a€”"atA 455A 5.85a€«A 455A 5.85a€Total investment
securities - held to maturityd€<$ 349A 2.52%A A $ 4,328A 2.89%A A $ 49,331A 1.27%A A $ 76,043A 1.71%A A $ 130,051A

1.58%Aa€<A€<A€ A€ <A€<AE A€ A€ <AE A€ A€ <AL AL AE<AE<AL AL <AL <AL A€ A€ <Ak af«a€<a€«af«a€<Available for sale

securities:a€ AAAAAAGCAAAAAACAAAAAAGECAAAAAAGEAAAAAASEU.S. government agency MBSa€«$ 4€"A 4€”%A A $ 4€”A 4€"%A A $ 466A 4.13%A A $ 742A

3.75%A A $ 1,208A 3.89%U.S. government sponsored enterprise MBSa€<A a€”A a€”a€<A a€”A a€”a€<A 499A 6.50a€<A 54A 7.444€<A 553A 6.59a€<Private issue CMOA€A 4€”A a€”a€A
4€”A a€"a€<A BBA 6.17a€<A 4€"A a€"€<«A BBA 6.174€<Total investment securities - available for salea€«$ AE"A A€"%A A $ A€"A A€"%A A $ 1,053A 5.42%A A $ 796A 4.00%A A § 1,849A
4.81%Total investment securitiesa€<$ 349A 2.52%A A $ 4,328A 2.89%A A $ 50,384A 1.36%A A $ 76,839A 1.73%A A $ 131,900A 1.63%a€<The actual maturity and yield for MBS and CMO
may differ from the stated maturity and stated yield due to scheduled amortization, prepayments and acceleration of premium amortization or discount accretion.a€<20Table of

Contentsa€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAs of JuneA 30,A 20244€<Unrealized Holding Lossesa€«Unrealized Holding Lossesa€«Unrealized Holding Losses(In
Thousands)a€<Less Than 12 Monthsa€<12 Months or Morea€<T0ta1a€<a€<Fa1ra€<Unreahzeda€<Fa1ra€<Unreahzeda€<Falra€<UnreahzedDescr1pt10n of

SecuritiesA A A A ValueA A A A LossesA A A A ValueA A A A LossesA A A A ValueA A A A LossesHeld to maturitya€ <a€ A€ <a€<a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEWU.S. government
sponsored enterprise MBSa€«$ a€”a€<«$ 4€”a€<$ 105,5308€<$ 15,4814€<$ 105,5304€<$ 15,481U.S. government sponsored enterprise CMO&€<a€« 4€”4€ A€« A€”a€<a€« 3,460a€<4€« 253a€<a€«
3,460a€@€« 253U.S. SBA securitiesa€«@a€« 455a€«$ a€”a€<a€« 4€”a€«a€« a€"a€«a€« 455a€<a€« a€"Total investment securities - held to maturitya€<«a€< 455a€<«a€<« a€”a€<a€« 108,990a€a€«
15,7344€<4€< 109,4458€<a€<« 15,7344€ A€ <A€ A€ A€ AEAEAE AL AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEa€«Available for saleA€«a€<A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEaEaEa€«a€<U.S government
agency MBSa€<«a€« 91a€<«a€« a€”a€<a€« 1,117a€<a€« 14a€<a€« 1,208a€a€<« 14U.S. government sponsored enterprise MBSa€<«a€« a€”"a€«a€« a€”a€<a€« 8a€«a€« a€”a€«a€« Ba€«a€« a€”Private issue
CMOA&£<a€« a€”a€<a€« a€”a€<a€« 88a€<«a€« 3a€<a€« 88a€<«a€« 3Total investment securities - available for salea€<a€<« 91a€<a€<« 4€7a€<a€« 1,213a€<a€<« 17a€<a€<« 1,3044€<a€<« 17Total investment
securitiesa€«$ 546a€<$ a€”a€«$ 110,203a€<$ 15,751a€<$ 110,749a€<$ 15,751a€<The Bank evaluates individual investment securities quarterly for impairment based on ASC 326 since the
adoption on July 1, 2023.A At June 30, 2024, the Bank reported $15.8 million of unrealized holding losses, which were in a loss position for 12 months or more. The unrealized losses on
investment securities were attributable to changes in interest rates relative to when the investment securities were purchased and not due to the credit quality of the investment securities,
which are predominately GSE securities that are either explicitly or implicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and have a long history of no credit losses. Therefore, the Corporation has
determined that the unrealized losses are due to the fluctuating nature of interest rates, and not related to any potential credit risks within the investment portfolio. The Bank does not currently
intend to sell any investment securities classified as held to maturity or available for sale and as such, records the investment security at book value or fair market value as prescribed by
accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. ("U.S. GAAP."). As a part of the Banka€™ s monthly risk assessment, it runs a number of stressed liquidity scenarios to determine if it is
more likely than not that the Bank will be required to sell the investment security before the recovery of its amortized costs basis. These liquidity scenarios support the Banka€™s assessment
that it has the ability to hold these held to maturity securities until maturity or available for sale securities until recovery of the amortized costs is realized and it is not more likely than not that
the Bank will be required to sell the securities prior to recovery of the amortized costs. There were no ACL on investment securities held to maturity and there was no impairment on investment
securities available for sale at the adoption date of ASC 326 on July 1, 2023 and at June 30, 2024.4€<At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Corporation did not hold any investment securities held to
maturity or investment securities available for sale with the intent to sell and determined it had the ability to hold these investment securities until maturity. As previously discussed, it also
determined that it was more likely than not that the Bank would not be required to sell the securities prior to recovery of the amortized cost basis; therefore, no impairment losses were
recorded on investment securities available for sale and investment securities held to maturity for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.4€<a€<Deposit Activities and Other Sources of
Fundsa€<General. Deposits and loan repayments are the major sources of the Banka€™ s funds for lending and other investment purposes. Scheduled loan repayments are a relatively stable
source of funds, while deposit inflows and outflows are influenced significantly by general interest rates and money market conditions. Borrowings through the FHLB 4€“ San 21Table of
ContentsFrancisco, Federal Reserve Bank (&4€0eFRBA€) of San Francisco and the correspondent bank may be used to compensate for declines in the availability of funds from other
sources.a€<Deposit Accounts. Substantially all of the Banka€™s depositors are residents of the State of California. Deposits are attracted from within the Banka€™ s market area by offering a
broad selection of deposit instruments, including checking, savings, money market and time deposit accounts.A Deposit account terms vary, differentiated by the minimum balance required, the
time periods that the funds must remain on deposit and the interest rate, among other factors. In determining the terms of its deposit accounts, the Bank considers current interest rates,
profitability to the Bank, interest rate risk characteristics, competition and its customersa€™ preferences and concerns. Generally, the Banka€™ s deposit rates are commensurate with the
median rates of its competitors within a given market. The Bank may occasionally pay above-market interest rates to attract or retain deposits when less expensive sources of funds are not
available.A The Bank may also pay above-market interest rates in specific markets in order to increase the deposit base of a particular office or group of offices. The Bank reviews its deposit
composition and pricing on a weekly basis.a€<The Bank generally offers time deposits for terms not exceeding seven years.A As illustrated in the following table, time deposits represented
approximately 31% of the Banka€™ s deposit portfolio at June 30, 2024, compared to approximately 23% at June 30, 2023.A The time deposits included $131.8 million and $106.4 million of
brokered certificates of deposit at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.A At June 30, 2024, the Bank had related party deposits of approximately $6.3 million, compared to $8.1 million at June
30, 2023. For additional information, see Item 7, &€ceManagementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsa€ in this Form 10-K.4€<The following table sets



a€”a€A 254 624A 28.66a€<0.18%Aa€<N/AA Savings accountsa§<$ a€”a€«A 238,878A 26 894€<0.50%A€<N/AA Money market accour}tsa€<$ 4€”a€<A 25,324A . .

2.854€ A€ <A€<A€ A€ <AE<AE A€ AEAEAEAE QLA A€ aE<a€a€ <A Time deposits:a€<«a€ A€ a€«a€ A€ a€<a€«a€4.55%4a€<30 days or lessA Fixed-term, fixed ratea€«$ 1a€<A 1,713A
0.194€<2.34%4a€<31 to 90 daysA Fixed-term, fixed ratea€<$ 14€<A 2,856A 0.324€<4.08%4a€<91 to 180 daysA Fixed-term, fixed rated€<$ 1a€<A 24,572A 2.774€<3.81%4a€<181 to 365 daysA Fixed-
term, flxed ratea€<$ 1a€<A 71,688A 8. 07a€<4 61%a€<0ver 1to2 yearsA leed term, ﬁxed ratea€<$ 1a€<A 144,636A 16. 28a€<0 65%a€<Over 2to3 yearsA leed term, fixed ratea€<$ 1a€<A

dollar amount of deposits in the various types of accounts offered by the Bank at and between the dates

indicated:A€<A€<A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAE AEAEAEAEAEALAEAEAEAEALA JuneA 30,A 4€<A€<20244€<20234€ A€ AE<AEAE«Percenta€ A€ <A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ Percenta€ A€ A€ «a€ A€ A€ A€ A€«ofa€
In Thousands)a€<Amounta€«Totala€«(Decrease)a€ Amounta€Totala€«(Decrease)a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ <AL <AL <AE<AE<AE<aE«Checking accounts &€ noninterest-bearingA A A A §
95,627AAAA 10.77%A A $ (7,379)AAA A $ 103,006A AAA 10.84%A A $ (22,083)Checking accounts 4€“ interest-bearinga€<A 254,624A 28.664€<A (48,248)a€<A 302,872A 31.86a€<A
(32,916)Savings accountsa€<A 238,878A 26.894€<A (51,326)a€<A 290,204A 30.534€<A (43,377)Money market accountsa€<A 25,324A 2.854€<A (8,227)a€<A 33,551A 3.534€<A (6,346)Time
deposits:(1)a€<AAAA A A a€AAAa€AAAAAA&€EA A A Fixed-term, fixed rate which mature:4€<AAAAAA a€<AAAa€AAAAAAa€A A A Within one yeard€<A 245,713A 27.664€<A
79,2124€<A 166,501A 17.514€<A 87,8570ver one to two yearsa€<A 19,604A 2.213€<A (17,458)a€<A 37,062A 3.904€<A 16,4620ver two to five yearsa€<A 7,324A 0.82a€<A (8,245)a€<A
15,569A 1.644€<A (5,059)Over five yearsa€<A 1,254A 0.144€<A (552)a€<A 1,806A 0.194€<A 529Total(2)a€<«$ 888,348A 100.00%A A $ (62,223)a€<$ 950,571A 100.00%A A $
(4,933)a€«(1)Includes brokered certificates of deposit of $131.8 million and $106.4 million at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.(2)Includes uninsured deposits of approximately $122.7
million and $140.1 million at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The amounts of uninsured deposits are based on estimated amounts of uninsured deposits as of the reported period. Such
estimates are based on the same methodologies and assumptions used for regulatory reporting requirements.a€<Time Deposits by Rates. The following table sets forth the aggregate balance of
time deposits categorized by interest rates at the dates indicated:a€<a€ A€ A€ A€ <A€ A€ A€« AEAE<ALA JuneA 30,A (Dollars In Thousands)a€«20244€<20234€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ <a€<Below 1.00%A4€<$
54,668AAAA$71,2111.00 to 1.99%a€<A 6,1908€<A 12,4092.00 to 2.99%4€A 4244€<A 14,5723.00 to 3.99%4€<A 6,4474€<A 13,4454.00 to 4.99%4&€<a€<« 111,9964€<4€< 57,4375.00 to
5.99%a€<a€<« 94,170a€<a€« 51,864 Totala€<$ 273,895a€<$ 220,938a€<23Table of ContentsTime Deposits by Remaining Maturity. The following table sets forth the aggregate dollar amount of
time deposits at June 30, 2024, differentiated by interest rates and remaining

maturity:A€<a€ A€ A€ <A€ A€ A€ A€ AL A€ AEAE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE@AEA A A A 4€a€A A A A OverA OneA A A A OverA TwoA A A A OverA ThreeA A A A AfterA A A A 4€<4€<a€<a€<OneA Year
In Thousands)a€<orA Lessa€<TwoA Yearsa€<ThreeA Yearsa€<FourA Yearsa€<Yearsa€<Totala€ A€ A€ A€<AE€<AE€<AE A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE@AEBelow 1.00 %a€<$ 33,1304€<$ 13,2044€<$
3,6284€<$ 1,896a€<$ 2,8108€<$ 54,6681.00 to 1.99 %A€<A 4,8374€<A 1,109a€<A 151a€<A 4€”a€<A 93a€<A 6,1902.00 to 2.99 %A€<A 356a€<A 68a€<A A€"a€«A A€”AE<A a€”a€A 4243.00 to
3.99%8a€<a€< 6,4474€<A€« A€"A€ A€« 4€" €A« A€"AE<AE<« 4€"a€<E€< 6,4474.00 to 4.99%4a€<a€< 111,7738€<a€« 2234€<a€< A€"4€<a€< A€"A€ A€« 4€"A€<A€< 111,9965.00 to 5.99%Aa€ €<« 89,170a€a€«
5,0008€<a€« A€"4€ A€« 4€"AE<AE« AE"A€@€« 94,170Totala€«$ 245,713a€<«$ 19,6044€<$ 3,7794€<$ 1,896a€<$ 2,9034€<$ 273,8954€<Time Deposits Insurance Coverage by the FDIC. The following
tables set forth the time deposit FDIC insurance coverage by account and remaining maturity at the dates indicated: &€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEALA JuneA 30,A 2024Maturity

PeriodA AA A InsuredUninsuredTotal(In Thousands)A a€<A A a€<A A a€<A A Three months or lessa€<$ 58,386$ 8,470$ 66,8560ver three to six monthsa€«A 72,995A 8,576A 81,5710ver six to
twelve monthsa€<A 93,014A 4,272A 97,2860ver twelve monthsa€<A 25,715A 2,467A 28,182Totala€<$ 250,110$ 23,785%

273,8954€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEALA JuneA 30,A 2023Maturity PeriodA A A A InsuredUninsuredTotal(In Thousands)A a€<A A 4€<A A 4€<A A Three months or less&€<$ 55,317 1,849$
57,1660ver three to six monthsa€<A 52,583A 4,292A 56,8750ver six to twelve monthsa€<A 49,829A 2,631A 52,4600ver twelve monthsa€<A 49,669A 4,768A 54 437T0ta1a€<$ 207,398%
13,540% 220, 938a€<Dep031tA Activity. The following table sets forth the deposit activity of the Bank at and for the periods indicated: A€<AE<A€ AE<AEAEAEAE« AE«AEALA orA ForA theA Year
Ended JuneA 30,A (In Thousands)A A A A 2024AAAA 2023a€«a€<a€<a€«a€«a€<a€«Beginning balancea€<$ 950, 571a€<$ 955,5044€<a€«a€«a€<a€«a€«a€<Net deposits before interest crediteda€<A
(71,889)a€<A (8,079)Interest crediteda€<A 9,666a€<A 3,146Net (decrease) increase in deposits 4€<A (62,223)a€<A (4,933)4€<A€<A€<A€A€4€<A€Ending balancea€«$ 888,3484€<$
950,571a€<a€<a€<«24Table of ContentsBorrowings. The FHLB &€“ San Francisco functions as a central reserve bank providing credit for member financial institutions. As a member, the Bank is
required to own capital stock in the FHLB a€“ San Francisco and is authorized to apply for advances using such stock and certain of its mortgage loans and other assets (principally investment
securities) as collateral, provided certain creditworthiness standards have been met. Advances are made pursuant to several different credit programs. Each credit program has its own interest
rate, maturity, terms and conditions. Depending on the program, limitations on the amount of advances are based on the financial condition of the member institution and the adequacy of
collateral pledged to secure the credit. The Bank utilizes advances from the FHLB a4€“ San Francisco as an alternative to deposits to supplement its supply of lendable funds, to meet deposit
withdrawal requirements and to help manage interest rate risk. The FHLB 4€“ San Francisco has served as the Banka€™ s primary borrowing source. a€<As of June 30, 2024, the FHLB a€“ San
Francisco borrowing capacity was limited to 40% of the Banka€™s total assets, amounting to $516.0 million, as compared to $534.1 million at June 30, 2023.A Advances from the FHLB 4€“ San
Francisco are typically secured by the Banka€™ s single-family residential, multi-family and commercial real estate mortgage loans. Total mortgage loans pledged to the FHLB &€“ San Francisco
were $774.1 million at June 30, 2024 as compared to $967.6 million at June 30, 2023.A In addition, the Bank pledged investment securities totaling $3.9 million and $4.2 million at June 30, 2024
and 2023, respectively, to collateralize its FHLB &€“ San Francisco advances under the Securities-Backed Credit (4€eSBCa€) facility.A At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Bank had $238.5 million
and $235.0 million of outstanding borrowings from the FHLB &€“ San Francisco with a weighted average interest rate of 4.88% and 4.34%, respectively. At June 30, 2024, the outstanding
borrowings mature between 2024 and 2028 with a weighted average maturity of 13 months. 4€<In addition to the total borrowings mentioned above, the Bank utilized its borrowing facility for
letters of credit and credit enhancement for loans previously sold to the FHLB &€“ San Francisco under the Mortgage Partnership Finance (a€ceMPFa€) program which have a recourse liability.
The letters of credit are used to collateralize the local agency deposits. The outstanding letters of credit were $16.0 million and $11.0 million at June 30, 2024 and 2023; while the outstanding
MPF credit enhancement was $216,000 at both June 30, 2024 and 2023.A As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the remaining financing availability through the FHLB 4€“ San Francisco was $261.3
million and $287.9 million, with remaining available collateral of $367.4 million and $468.6 million, respectively. 4€<As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Bank also had secured a discount window
facility of $208.6 million and $139.0 million at the FRB of San Francisco, respectively. As of June 30, 2024, the Bank collateralized $126.6 million of investment securities and $178.6 million of
loans held for investment. This compared to a total of $150.3 million of investment securities collateralized under the discount window facility at June 30, 2023. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023,
there were no outstanding borrowings under the discount window facility at both dates.a€<At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Bank also has a federal funds facility with its correspondent bank for
$50.0 million, which matures annually on June 30th. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, there were no outstanding borrowings under the federal funds facility with the correspondent bank at both
dates.a€<As a member of the FHLB 4€“ San Francisco, the Bank is required to maintain a minimum investment in FHLB 4€“ San Francisco stock. The Bank held the required investment in stock
at June 30, 2024 and 2023 of $9.6 million and $9.5 million with no excess investment, respectively.a€<During fiscal 2024 and 2023, the Bank purchased FHLB &€“ San Francisco capital stock
totaling $63,000 and $1.3 million, respectively, and did not redeem any of the capital stock during both periods. In fiscal 2024 and 2023, the FHLB &€“ San Francisco distributed cash dividends
to the Bank totaling $793,000 and $556,000, respectively.a€<a€<Subsidiary Activitiesa€<Federal savings institutions generally may invest up to 3% of their assets in service corporations,
provided that at least one-half of any amount in excess of 1% is used primarily for community, inner-city and community development projects. The Banka€™ s investment in its service
corporations did not exceed these limits at June 30, 2024 and 2023.4€<25Table of ContentsThe Bank has three wholly owned subsidiaries: PFC, Profed Mortgage, Inc., and First Service
Corporation. PFCa€™s current activities include: (i) acting as trustee for the Bank&€™s real estate transactions and (ii) holding real estate for investment, if any. Profed Mortgage, Inc and First
Service Corporation are currently inactive. In fiscal 2024 and 2023, the Bank contributed capital of $0 and $10,000 to PFC, respectively. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Banka€™s investment in
all its combined subsidiaries totaled $8,000 and $13,000, respectively.a€<«a€<REGULATION&€The following is a brief description of certain laws and regulations which are applicable to the
Corporation and the Bank. The description of these laws and regulations, as well as descriptions of laws and regulations contained elsewhere herein, does not purport to be complete and is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the applicable laws and regulations. Legislation is introduced from time to time in the United States Congress (a&€ceCongressa€) that may affect the
Corporationa€™s and the Banka€™s operations. In addition, the regulations governing the Corporation and the Bank may be amended from time to time by the OCC, FDIC, FRB and SEC, as
appropriate. Any such legislation or regulatory changes in the future could adversely affect the operations and financial condition of the Corporation and the Bank. The Bank cannot predict
whether any such changes may occur.a€<Generala€<The Bank, as a federally chartered savings institution, is subject to extensive regulation, examination and supervision by the OCC, as its
primary federal regulator, and the FDIC, as its insurer of deposits. The Bank's relationship with its depositors and borrowers is regulated by federal consumer protection laws, which must be
complied with by the Bank. The Bank is a member of the FHLB System and its deposits are insured up to applicable limits by the FDIC. The Bank must file reports with the OCC concerning its
activities and financial condition in addition to obtaining regulatory approvals prior to entering into certain transactions such as mergers with, or acquisitions of, other financial institutions.
There are periodic examinations by the OCC to evaluate the Banka€™ s safety and soundness and compliance with various regulatory requirements.A This regulatory structure establishes a
comprehensive framework of activities in which the Bank may engage and is intended primarily for the protection of the insurance fund and depositors. The regulatory structure also gives the
regulatory authorities extensive discretion in connection with their supervisory and enforcement activities and examination policies, including policies with respect to the classification of assets
and the establishment of adequate allowance for credit loss for regulatory purposes. Any change in such policies, whether by the OCC, the FRB, the FDIC or Congress, could have a material
adverse impact on the Corporation and the Bank and their operations. The Corporation, as a savings and loan holding company, is required to file certain reports with, is subject to examination
by, and otherwise must comply with the rules and regulations of the FRB, its primary regulator. The Corporation is also subject to the rules and regulations of the SEC under the federal
securities laws. For additional information, see 4&€aeSavings and Loan Holding Company Regulationsa€ below in this Form 10-K.a€<Set forth below is a brief description of material regulatory
requirements that are applicable to the Bank and the Corporation. The description is limited to certain material aspects of the statutes and regulations addressed, and is not intended to be a
complete description of such statutes and regulations and their effects on the Bank and the Corporation.a€<Federal Regulation of Savings Institutionsa€<Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency. The OCC has extensive authority over the operations of federal savings institutions. As part of this authority, the Bank is required to file periodic reports with the OCC and is subject
to periodic examinations by the OCC. The OCC also has extensive enforcement authority over all federal savings institutions, including the Bank. This enforcement authority includes, among
other things, the ability to assess civil money penalties, issue cease-and-desist or removal orders and initiate prompt corrective action orders. In general, these enforcement actions may be
initiated for violations of laws and regulations and unsafe or unsound practices. Other actions or inactions may provide the basis for enforcement action, including misleading or untimely
reports filed with the OCC. Except under certain circumstances, public disclosure of final enforcement actions by the OCC is required by law.a€<All federal savings institutions must pay
assessments to the OCC, to fund the agencya€™s operations. The general assessments, paid on a semi-annual basis, are determined based on the savings institutiona€™s total assets, including
26Table of Contentsconsolidated subsidiaries. The Banka€™s OCC annual assessments for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were $179,000 and $198,000, respectively.a€<The
Bank's general permissible lending limit for loans to one borrower is equal to the greater of $500,000 or 15% of unimpaired capital and surplus (except for loans fully secured by certain readily
marketable collateral, in which case this limit is increased to 25% of unimpaired capital and surplus).A The Banka€™s limits on loans to one borrower or group of related borrowers at June 30,
2024 and 2023 were $20.1 million and $19.8 million, respectively. At June 30, 2024, the Banka€™s largest lending relationship to a single borrower or group of borrowers consisted of four
multi-family loans totaling $5.0 million, which were performing according to their original payment terms.a€<Effective July 1, 2019, the OCC issued a final rule implementing a section of the
Economic Growth, Regulatory Relief and Consumer Protection Act (4€ceEGRRCPA&€) which permits an eligible federal savings bank with assets of $20.0 billion or less as of December 31, 2017
to elect to operate with the business powers of a national bank, generally subject to the same limitations and restrictions, without converting to a national bank charter. A federal savings bank
that makes the so-called a€cecovered savings associationa€ election must divest any activities or investments that are not permitted for a national bank. The Bank had not made such an election
as of June 30, 2024.4€<Federal Home Loan Bank System. The Bank is a member of the FHLB a4€“ San Francisco, which is one of 11 regional FHLBs,A each of which serves as a reserve or central
bank for its members within its assigned region. The FHLB - San Francisco is funded primarily from proceeds derived from the sale of consolidated obligations of the FHLB System. It makes
loans or advances to members in accordance with policies and procedures, established by the Board of Directors of the FHLB, which are subject to the oversight of the Federal Housing Finance
Agency. All advances from the FHLB are required to be fully secured by sufficient collateral as determined by the FHLB - San Francisco. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Bank had $238.5 million
and $235.0 million of outstanding advances, respectively, from the FHLB &€“ San Francisco with a remaining available credit facility of $261.3 million and $287.9 million, respectively, based on
40% of total assets for both dates, which is limited to available collateral. For additional information, see &€ceBusiness a€“ Deposit Activities and Other Sources of Funds &€“ Borrowingsa€
above in this Form 10-K.4€<As a member of the FHLB - San Francisco, the Bank is required to purchase and maintain stock in the FHLB 4€“ San Francisco. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Bank
held $9.6 million and $9.5 million of FHLB - San Francisco stock, respectively, which were in compliance with this membership requirement. During fiscal 2024 and 2023, the Bank was required
to purchase $63,000 and $1.3 million of FHLB 4€“ San Francisco capital stock, respectively, and the Bank did not redeem any capital stock during both periods.A In fiscal 2024 and 2023, the
FHLB &€“ San Francisco distributed cash dividends to the Bank totaling $793,000 and $556,000, respectively. There is no guarantee in the future that the FHLB 4€“ San Francisco will pay cash
dividends or redeem excess capital stock held by its members.a€<Under federal law, the FHLB - San Francisco is required to contribute to low and moderately priced housing programs through
direct loans or interest subsidies on advances targeted for community investment and low and moderate income housing projects. These contributions have in the past adversely affected the
level of dividends paid by the FHLB - San Francisco and could continue to do so in the future. These contributions also could have an adverse effect on the value of FHLB - San Francisco stock
in the future. A reduction in value of the Banka€™s FHLB - San Francisco stock may result in a corresponding reduction in the Banka€™ s capital.a€<Insurance of Accounts and Regulation by
the FDIC. The Deposit Insurance Fund (a€ceDIFa€) of the FDIC insures deposits up to $250,000 per account owner as defined by the FDIC, backed by the full faith and credit of the United
States. As an insurer, the FDIC imposes deposit insurance premiums in the form of assessments to maintain the DIF and is authorized to conduct examinations of and to require reporting by
FDIC insured institutions. On October 18, 2022, the FDIC adopted a final rule to increase its initial base insurance assessment rate schedules by two basis points to improve the likelihood that
the reserve ratio of the DIF would be restored to at least 1.35% by September 30, 2028. The revised assessment rate schedules became effective January 1, 2023, with the first invoice payment
date of June 30, 2023 for the assessment period of January 1, 2023 through March 31, 2023. The Banka€™s FDIC annual assessments for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were
$601,000 and $459,000, respectively.a€<«27Table of ContentsUnder the FDICA€™ s risk-based assessment system, institutions deemed less likely to fail pay lower assessments. Assessments for
institutions of less than $10 billion in assets are based on financial measures and supervisory ratings derived from statistical modeling estimating the probability of an institutiona€™ s failure
within three years.4€<The FDIC has authority to increase insurance assessments. Any significant increases would have an adverse effect on the operating expenses and results of operations of



the Bank. We cannot predict what assessment rates will be in the future.d€<Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the FDIC upon a finding that an institution has engaged in unsafe or
unsound practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations, or has violated any applicable law, regulation, rule, order or condition imposed by the FDIC. We do not know of
any practice, condition or violation that may lead to termination of the Banka€™s deposit insurance.a€«Qualified Thrift Lender Test. Like all savings institutions (subject to a narrow exception
not applicable to the Bank), the Bank is required to meet a qualified thrift lender (4€eQTLA€) test to avoid certain restrictions on its operations. This test requires a savings institution to have
at least 65% of its total assets as defined by regulation, in qualified thrift investments on a monthly average for nine out of every 12 months on a rolling basis. As an alternative, a savings
institution may maintain 60% of its assets in those assets specified in Section 7701(a)(19) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (4€Codeé€), as amended. Under either test, such assets
primarily consist of residential housing related loans and investments.a€<Any savings institution that fails to meet the QTL test is subject to certain operating restrictions and may be required to
convert to a national bank charter, and a savings and loan holding company of such an institution may become regulated as a bank holding company. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Bank
maintained 92.3% and 92.1% of its portfolio assets in qualified thrift investments, respectively, and therefore, met the qualified thrift lender test at both dates. During fiscal 2024 and 2023, the
Bank was in compliance with the QTL test as of each month end.&€<Capital Requirements.A Federally insured savings institutions, such as the Bank, are required by the OCC to maintain
minimum levels of regulatory capital, including a Tier 1 capital to adjusted average assets leverage ratio, a common equity Tier 1 (2€eCET14a€) to risk-based assets ratio, a Tier 1 capital to risk-
based assets ratio and a total capital to risk-based assets ratio. The capital standards require the maintenance of the following minimum capital ratios: (i) a Tier 1 leverage ratio of 4%, (ii) a
CET1 capital ratio of 4.5%; (iii) a Tier 1 capital ratio of 6%; and (iv) a total capital ratio of 8%.a€<Mortgage servicing assets and deferred tax assets over designated percentages of CET1 are also
deducted from capital. In addition, Tier 1 capital includes accumulated other comprehensive income, which includes all unrealized gains and losses on available for sale debt securities and
interest-only strips. Because of the Banka€™ s asset size, the Bank was given a one-time option to permanently opt-out of the inclusion of unrealized gains and losses on available for sale debt
securities and interest-only strips in its capital calculations. The Bank elected to exercise this option to opt-out in order to reduce the impact of market volatility on its regulatory capital
levels.a€<The Bank also must maintain a capital conservation buffer consisting of additional CET1 capital greater than 2.5% of risk-weighted assets above the required minimum risk-based
capital levels in order to avoid limitations on paying dividends, engaging in share repurchases, and paying discretionary bonuses. If the Bank does not have the ability to pay dividends to the
Corporation, the Corporation may be limited in its ability to pay dividends to its stockholders.a€<In order to be considered well-capitalized under the prompt corrective action regulations, the
Bank must maintain a minimum Tier 1 leverage capital ratio of 5%, a CET1 risk-based capital ratio of 6.5%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 8% and a total risk-based capital ratio of 10% and
the Bank must not be subject to certain mandates by the OCC requiring it as an individual institution to meet any specified capital level. 4€<EGRRCPA required the federal banking agencies,
including the OCC, to establish a &€cecommunity bank leverage ratioa€ of between 8% and 10% for institutions with assets of less than $10.0 billion. Institutions with a capital level at or
exceeding the ratio and otherwise meeting the specified requirements, and electing the alternative framework, are considered to comply with the applicable regulatory capital requirements,
including the risk-based requirements. Final rules issued by the agencies established the community bank leverage ratio at 9% of Tier 1 capital to adjusted average assets, effective January 1,
2020. A qualifying institution may opt in or out of the community bank leverage ratio framework on its quarterly Call Report. An institution that temporarily ceases to meet any qualifying
criteria is provided with a two quarter grace 28Table of Contentsperiod to regain compliance. Failure to meet the qualifying criteria within the grace period or maintain a leverage ratio of 8% or
greater requires the institution to comply with the generally applicable regulatory capital requirements. The Corporation did not opt in to the community bank leverage ratio framework for the
year ended June 30, 2024.a€<The FASB has issued a new accounting standard, ASC 326, for U.S. GAAP that was adopted by the Corporation on July 1, 2023. This standard, referred to as
Current Expected Credit Loss or CECL requires all entities holding leases that are not accounted for at fair value to recognize credit losses expected over the life of certain financial assets.
CECL covers a broader range of assets than the previous method of recognizing credit losses and generally results in earlier recognition of credit losses. Upon adoption of CECL, a banking
organization must record a one-time adjustment to its credit loss allowances as of the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption equal to the difference, if any, between the amount of credit loss
allowances under the current methodology and the amount required under CECL. For a banking organization, implementation of CECL is generally likely to reduce retained earnings, and to
affect other items, in a manner that reduces its regulatory capital. The federal banking regulators (the FRB, the OCC and the FDIC) have adopted a rule that gives a banking organization the
option to phase in over a three-year period the day-one adverse effects of CECL on its regulatory capital. The Bank elected to recognize the full $824,000 adjustment to retained earnings
resulting from the adoption of CECL on July 1, 2023, instead of over the permitted three-year phase-in option.4€<Prompt Corrective Action. An institution is considered adequately capitalized if
it meets the minimum capital ratios described above. The OCC is required to take certain supervisory actions against undercapitalized savings institutions, the severity of which depends upon
the institution's degree of undercapitalization. Subject to a narrow exception, the OCC is required to appoint a receiver or conservator for a savings institution that is "critically
undercapitalized." OCC regulations also require that a capital restoration plan be filed with the OCC within 45 days of the date a savings institution receives notice that it is "undercapitalized,"
"significantly undercapitalized" or "critically undercapitalized." Numerous mandatory supervisory actions become immediately applicable to an undercapitalized institution, including, but not
limited to, increased monitoring by regulators and restrictions on growth, capital distributions and expansion. In addition, 4€cesignificantly undercapitalizeda€ and a€cecritically
undercapitalizeda€ institutions are subject to even more extensive mandatory regulatory actions. The OCC also may take any one of a number of discretionary supervisory actions, including the
issuance of a capital directive and the replacement of senior executive officers and directors.a€<As of June 30, 2024, the most recent notification from the OCC categorized the Bank as a€cewell
capitalizeda€ under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. See Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.a€<Limitations on
Capital Distributions. OCC regulations impose various restrictions on savings institutions and on their ability to make distributions of capital, which include dividends, stock redemptions or
repurchases, cash-out mergers and other transactions charged to the capital account. Generally, savings institutions, such as the Bank, that before and after the proposed distribution are well-
capitalized, may make capital distributions during any calendar year up to 100% of net income for the year-to-date plus retained net income for the two preceding years, without regulatory
approval. However, an institution deemed to be in need of more than normal supervision or in troubled condition by the OCC may have its dividend authority restricted by the OCC. If the Bank,
however, proposes to make a capital distribution when it does not meet its capital requirements (or will not following the proposed capital distribution) or that will exceed these net income-
based limitations, it must obtain the OCC's approval prior to making such distribution. In addition, the Bank must file a prior written notice of a dividend with the FRB.A The FRB or the OCC
may object to a capital distribution based on safety and soundness concerns. Further restrictions on Banka€™s dividends may apply if the Bank fails the QTL test. In addition, as noted above, if
the Bank does not have the required capital conservation buffer, its ability to pay dividends to the Corporation will be limited, which may limit the ability of the Corporation to pay dividends to
its stockholders.a€«Activities of Savings Associations and Their Subsidiaries. When a savings institution establishes or acquires a subsidiary or elects to conduct any new activity through a
subsidiary that the savings institution controls, the savings institution must file a notice or application with the OCC and in certain circumstances with the FDIC and receive regulatory approval
or non-objection.A Savings institutions also must conduct the activities of subsidiaries in accordance with existing regulations and orders. With respect to subsidiaries generally, the OCC may
determine that investment by a savings institution in, or the activities of, a subsidiary must be restricted or eliminated based on safety and soundness or legal reasons.29Table of
Contentsa€«Transactions with Affiliates. The Banka€™ s authority to engage in transactions with &€ceaffiliatesa€ is limited by Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act as implemented
by the FRBa€™s Regulation W. The term a€ceaffiliatesa€ for these purposes generally mean any company that controls or is under common control with an institution except subsidiaries of the
institution. The Corporation and its non-savings institution subsidiaries are affiliates of the Bank. In general, transactions with affiliates must be on terms that are as favorable to the institution
as comparable transactions with non-affiliates. In addition, certain types of transactions are restricted to an aggregate percentage of the institutiona€™s capital. Institutions are prohibited from
lending to any affiliate that is engaged in activities that are not permissible for bank holding companies and no savings institution may purchase the securities of any affiliate other than a
subsidiary.A FDIC-insured institutions are subject, with certain exceptions, to certain restrictions on extensions of credit to their parent holding companies or other affiliates, on investments in
the stock or other securities of affiliates and on the taking of such stock or securities as collateral from any borrower. Collateral in specified amounts must be provided by affiliates in order to
receive loans from an institution. In addition, these institutions are prohibited from engaging in certain tying arrangements in connection with any extension of credit or the providing of any
property or service.4€<«Community Reinvestment Act. Under the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977 (4€ceCRA&€), every FDIC-insured institution has a continuing and affirmative obligation
consistent with safe and sound banking practices to help meet the credit needs of its entire community, including low and moderate income neighborhoods.A The CRA requires that the OCC
assess the Bank's record in meeting the credit needs of the communities it serves, especially low and moderate income neighborhoods. While CRA modernization is underway and scheduled for
implementation by 2026, the current evaluation system focuses on three tests: (1) a lending test, to evaluate the institution's record of making loans in its assessment areas; (2) an investment
test, to evaluate the institution's record of investing in community development projects, affordable housing and programs benefiting low or moderate income individuals and businesses; and (3)
a service test, to evaluate the institution's delivery of banking services through its branches, ATM centers and other offices. A Institutions are assigned a rating of "outstanding," "satisfactory,"
"needs to improve," or "substantial non-compliance." The Bank received a rating of satisfactory when it was last examined for CRA compliance. On October 24, 2023, the federal banking
agencies, including the OCC, issued a final rule designed to strengthen and modernize regulations implementing the CRA. The changes are designed to encourage banks to expand access to
credit, investment and banking services in low- and moderate-income communities, adapt to changes in the banking industry including mobile and internet banking, provide greater clarity and
consistency in the application of the CRA regulations and tailor CRA evaluations and data collection to bank size and type. The applicability date for the majority of the provisions in the CRA
regulations is January 1, 2026, and additional requirements will be applicable on January 1, 2027. The Bank cannot predict the impact the changes to the CRA will have on its operations at this
time. &€<Anti-Money Laundering and Customer Identification. The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001
(USA Patriot Act) was signed into law on October 26, 2001. The USA Patriot Act and the Bank Secrecy Act requires financial institutions to develop programs to prevent financial institutions
from being used for money laundering and terrorist activities. If such activities are detected, financial institutions are obligated to file suspicious activity reports with the U.S. Treasurya€™s
Office of Financial Crimes Enforcement Network. These rules require financial institutions to establish procedures for identifying and verifying the identity of customers seeking to open new
financial accounts, and, effective in 2018, the beneficial owners of accounts. Bank regulators are directed to consider a holding companya€™s effectiveness in combating money laundering
when reviewing mergers and acquisitions.a€<Regulatory and Criminal Enforcement Provisions. The OCC has primary enforcement responsibility over federally chartered savings institutions and
has the authority to bring action against all 4€ceinstitution-affiliated parties,a€ including stockholders, attorneys, appraisers and accountants who knowingly or recklessly participate in wrongful
action likely to have an adverse effect on an insured institution. Formal enforcement action may range from the issuance of a capital directive or cease-and-desist order to removal of officers or
directors, receivership, conservatorship or termination of deposit insurance. Civil penalties cover a wide range of violations and can be nearly $2.0 million per day per violation in especially
egregious cases. The FDIC has the authority to recommend to the OCC that enforcement action be taken with respect to a particular savings institution. If the OCC does not take action, the
FDIC has authority to take such action under certain circumstances. Federal law also establishes criminal penalties for certain violations.a€<30Table of ContentsStandards for Safety and
Soundness. As required by statute, the federal banking agencies have adopted interagency guidelines prescribing standards for safety and soundness. The guidelines set forth the safety and
soundness standards that the federal banking agencies use to identify and address problems at insured depository institutions before capital becomes impaired. If the OCC determines that a
savings institution fails to meet any standard prescribed by the guidelines, the OCC may require the institution to submit an acceptable plan to achieve compliance with the standard.a€<Federal
Reserve System. The FRB requires that all depository institutions maintain reserves on transaction accounts or non-personal time deposits. These reserves may be in the form of cash or
noninterest-bearing deposits with the regional FRB. Interest-bearing checking accounts and other types of accounts that permit payments or transfers to third parties fall within the definition of
transaction accounts and are subject to Regulation D reserve requirements, as are any non-personal time deposits at a bank. Effective March 26, 2020, the FRB reduced reserve requirement
ratios to 0%, which eliminated reserve requirements for all depository institutions.a€<Environmental Issues Associated with Real Estate Lending. The Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act (4€ceCERCLA&€), is a federal statute, that generally imposes strict liability on all prior and present "owners and operators" of sites containing hazardous waste.
However, Congress acted to protect secured creditors by providing that the term "owner and operator" excludes a person whose ownership is limited to protecting its security interest in the
site. Since the enactment of the CERCLA, this a€cesecured creditor exemptiona€ has been the subject of judicial interpretations which have left open the possibility that lenders could be liable
for cleanup costs on contaminated property that they hold as collateral for a loan.a€<To the extent that legal uncertainty exists in this area, all creditors, including the Bank, that have made
loans secured by properties with potentially hazardous waste contamination (such as petroleum contamination) could be subject to liability for cleanup costs, which often substantially exceed
the value of the collateral property.a€<Privacy and Cybersecurity Regulations. Federal regulations generally require that the Bank disclose its privacy policy, including identifying with whom it
shares a customera€™ s a€cenon-public personal information,a€ to customers at the time of establishing the customer relationship and annually thereafter. In addition, the Bank is required to
provide its customers with the ability to &€ceopt-outa€ of having their personal information shared with unaffiliated third parties and not to disclose account numbers or access codes to non-
affiliated third parties for marketing purposes. In addition, the California Consumer Privacy Act of 2018 (the "CCPA"), which became effective on January 1, 2020, gives California residents the
right to request disclosure of information collected about them, and whether that information has been sold or shared with others, the right to request deletion of personal information (subject
to certain exceptions), the right to opt out of the sale of personal information, and the right not to be discriminated against for exercising these rights. The CCPA also created a private right of
action with statutory damages for data security breaches, thereby increasing potential liability associated with a data breach, which has triggered a number of class actions against other
companies since January 1, 2020. Although the Bank may enjoy several fairly broad exemptions from the CCPA's privacy requirements, those exemptions do not extend to the private right of
action for a data security breach. The CCPA, including any amendments thereto or final regulations implemented thereunder, as well as other similar state data privacy laws and regulations,
may require the establishment by the Bank of certain regulatory compliance and risk management controls. In addition, on November 18, 2021, the federal banking agencies announced the
adoption of a final rule providing for new notification requirements for banking organizations and their service providers for significant cybersecurity incidents. Specifically, the new rule
requires a banking organization to notify its primary federal regulator as soon as possible, and no later than 36 hours after, the banking organization determines that a &€cecomputer-security
incidenta€ rising to the level of a &€cenotification incidenta€ has occurred. A Notification is required for incidents that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the
viability of a banking organizationa€™s operations, its ability to deliver banking products and services, or the stability of the financial sector. A Service providers are required under the rule to
notify affected banking organization customers as soon as possible when the provider determines that it has experienced a computer-security incident that has materially affected or is
reasonably likely to materially affect the banking organizationa€™s customers for four or more hours. Compliance with the new rule was required by May 1, 2022. A &4€<In July 2023, the SEC
adopted rules requiring registrants to disclose material cybersecurity incidents they experience and to disclose on an annual basis material information regarding their cybersecurity risk
management, strategy, and governance. The new rules require registrants to disclose on Form 8-K any cybersecurity incident they determine to be material and to describe the material aspects
of the incident's nature, scope, and timing, as well as its material impact or 31Table of Contentsreasonably likely material impact on the registrant. The Corporation provided disclosures on its
cybersecurity risk management and governance on this Form 10-K for fiscal years ended June 20, 2024 (See Part I, Item 1C - Cybersecurity). Non-compliance with federal or similar state privacy
and cybersecurity laws and regulations could lead to substantial regulatory imposed fines and penalties, damages from private causes of action and/or reputational harm. The Bank currently
has a privacy protection policy in place and believes that such policy is in compliance with the regulations.a€<Other Consumer Protection Laws and Regulations. The Consumer Financial
Protection Bureau (a€ceCFPB&€) exercises broad regulatory, supervisory and enforcement authority with respect to both new and existing consumer financial protection laws. The Bank is



subject to consumer protection regulations issued by the CFPB, but as a financial institution with assets of less than $10.0 billion in assets, the Bank is generally subject to supervision and
enforcement by the OCC with respect to compliance with consumer financial protection laws and CFPB regulations.&€<The Bank is subject to a broad array of federal and state consumer
protection laws and regulations that govern almost every aspect of its business relationships with consumers.A While not exhaustive, these laws and regulations include the Truth-in-Lending
Act, the Truth in Savings Act, the Electronic Fund Transfer Act, the Expedited Funds Availability Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Fair Housing Act, the Real Estate Settlement
Procedures Act, the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, the Right to Financial Privacy Act, the Home Ownership and Equity
Protection Act, the Consumer Leasing Act, the Fair Credit Billing Act, the Homeowners Protection Act, the Check Clearing for the 21st Century Act, laws governing flood insurance, laws
governing consumer protections in connection with the sale of insurance, federal and state laws prohibiting unfair and deceptive business practices and various regulations that implement some
or all of the foregoing.A These laws and regulations mandate certain disclosure requirements and regulate the manner in which financial institutions must deal with customers when taking
deposits, making loans, collecting loans and providing other services.A Failure to comply with these laws and regulations can subject the Bank to various penalties, including but not limited to,
enforcement actions, injunctions, fines, civil liability, criminal penalties, punitive damages and the loss of certain contractual rights.a€<Savings and Loan Holding Company
Regulationa€«General. The Corporation is a unitary savings and loan holding company, subject to the regulatory oversight of the FRB. Accordingly, the Corporation is required to register and
file reports with the FRB and is subject to regulation and examination by the FRB. In addition, the FRB has enforcement authority over the Corporation and its non-savings institution
subsidiaries, which also permits the FRB to restrict or prohibit activities that are determined to present a serious risk to the Bank. The FRB has promulgated regulations implementing the
a€cesource of strengthd€ doctrine that require holding companies, including savings and loan holding companies, to act as a source of financial and managerial strength to their subsidiary
depository institutions by providing capital, liquidity and other support in times of financial stress. These and other FRB policies, as well as the capital conservation buffer may restrict the
Corporationa€™s ability to pay dividends.a€<«Capital Requirements. For a savings and loan holding company with less than $3.0 billion in consolidated assets that qualifies as a small bank
holding company under the FRB4€™s Small Bank Holding Company Policy Statement, such as the Corporation, the capital regulations apply to its savings institution subsidiaries, but not the
Corporation, unless the FRB determines otherwise in particular cases. For a description of the capital regulations, see a€ceFederal Regulation of Savings Institutions - Capital Requirementsa€
above.a€«Activities Restrictions. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (&€eGLBA4€) provides that no company may acquire control of a savings association after May 4, 1999 unless it engages
only in the financial activities permitted for financial holding companies under the law or for multiple savings and loan holding companies. The GLBA also specifies, subject to a grandfather
provision, that existing savings and loan holding companies may only engage in such activities. The Corporation qualifies for the grandfathering and is therefore not restricted in terms of its
activities. Upon any non-supervisory acquisition by the Corporation of another savings association as a separate subsidiary, the Corporation would become a multiple savings and loan holding
company and would be limited to those activities permitted by FRB regulation. Multiple savings and loan holding companies may engage in activities permitted for financial holding companies,
and certain other activities including acting as a trustee under a deed of trust and real estate investments.a€<«32Table of ContentsIf the Bank were to fail the QTL test, the Corporation must,
within one year of that failure, register as, and become subject to the restrictions applicable to bank holding companies. For additional information, see &€ceFederal Regulation of Savings
Institutions 4€“ Qualified Thrift Lender Test&€ in this Form 10-K.a€<Mergers and Acquisitions. The Corporation must obtain approval from the FRB before acquiring more than 5% of the voting
stock of another savings institution or savings and loan holding company or acquiring such an institution or holding company by merger, consolidation or purchase of its assets. In evaluating an
application for the Corporation to acquire control of a savings institution, the FRB would consider the financial and managerial resources and future prospects of the Corporation and the target
institution, the effect of the acquisition on the risk to the DIF, the convenience and the needs of the community, including performance under the CRA and competitive factors.4€<The FRB may
not approve any acquisition that would result in a multiple savings and loan holding company controlling savings institutions in more than one state, subject to two exceptions; (i) supervisory
acquisitions and (ii) the acquisition of a savings institution in another state if the laws of the state of the target savings institution specifically permit such acquisitions. The states vary in the
extent to which they permit interstate savings and loan holding company acquisitions.a€<Acquisition of the Corporation. Any company, except a bank holding company, that acquires control of a
savings association or savings and loan holding company becomes a 4€cesavings and loan holding companya€ subject to registration, examination and regulation by the FRB and must obtain the
prior approval of the FRB under the Savings and Loan Holding Company Act before obtaining control of a savings association or savings and loan holding company. A bank holding company
must obtain the prior approval of the FRB under the Bank Holding Company Act before obtaining control or more than 5% of a class of voting stock of a savings association or savings and loan
holding company and remains subject to regulation under the Bank Holding Company Act. The term a€cecompanya€ includes corporations, partnerships, associations, and certain trusts and
other entities. &€aeControla€ of a savings association or savings and loan holding company is deemed to exist if a company has voting control, directly or indirectly of more than 25% of any class
of the savings associationa€™s voting stock or controls in any manner the election of a majority of the directors of the savings association or savings and loan holding company, and may be
presumed under other circumstances, including, but not limited to, holding in certain cases 10% or more of a class of voting securities. Control may be direct or indirect and may occur through
acting in concert with one or more other persons. In addition, a savings and loan holding company must obtain FRB approval prior to acquiring voting control of more than 5% of any class of
voting stock of another savings association or another savings association holding company. A similar provision limiting the acquisition by a bank holding company of 5% or more of a class of
voting stock of any company is included in the Bank Holding Company Act.a€<Accordingly, the prior approval of the FRB would be required:a€<@—before any savings and loan holding company
or bank holding company could acquire 5% or more of the common stock of the Corporation; andd—before any other company could acquire 25% or more of the common stock of the
Corporation, and may be required for an acquisition of as little as 10% of such stock.a€<In addition, persons that are not companies are subject to the same or similar definitions of control with
respect to savings and loan holding companies and savings associations and requirements for prior regulatory approval by the FRB in the case of control of a savings and loan holding company
or by the OCC in the case of control of a savings association not obtained through control of a holding company of such savings association.a€<Federal Securities Laws. Provident Financial
Holdings, Inc.4€™s common stock is registered with the SEC under Section 12(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (&€ceExchange Acta€). The Corporation is subject to
information, proxy solicitation, insider trading restrictions and other requirements under the Exchange Act.a€<Dividends and Stock Repurchases. The FRBa€™ s policy statement on the payment
of cash dividends applicable to savings and loan holding companies expresses its view that a savings and loan holding company must maintain an adequate capital position and generally should
not pay cash dividends unless the companya€™s net income for the past year is sufficient to fully fund the cash dividends and that the prospective rate of earnings appears consistent with the
companya€™s capital needs, asset quality, and overall financial condition. The FRB policy statement also indicates that it would be inappropriate for a company experiencing serious financial
problems to borrow funds to pay dividends.33Table of Contentsa€«In addition, a savings and loan holding company is required to give the FRB prior written notice of any purchase or
redemption of its outstanding equity securities if the gross consideration for the purchase or redemption, when combined with the net consideration paid for all such purchases or redemptions
during the preceding 12 months, is equal to 10% or more of its consolidated net worth. The FRB may disapprove such a purchase or redemption if it determines that the proposal would
constitute an unsafe or unsound practice or would violate any law, regulation, FRB order or any condition imposed by, or written agreement with, the FRB. As discussed above, the capital
conservation buffer requirements may also limit or preclude dividends payable by the Corporation.a€<a€<TAXATION&€<Federal Taxationa€<«General. The Corporation reports its income on a
fiscal year basis using the accrual method of accounting and is subject to federal income taxation in the same manner as other corporations with some exceptions, including particularly the
Banka€™s reserve for bad debts discussed below. The following discussion of tax matters is intended only as a summary and does not purport to be a comprehensive description of the tax rules
applicable to the Corporation.a€<Tax Bad Debt Reserves. As a result of legislation enacted in 1996, the reserve method of accounting for bad debt reserves was repealed for tax years beginning
after December 31, 1995. Due to such repeal, the Bank is no longer able to calculate its deduction for bad debts using the percentage-of-taxable-income or the experience method. Instead, the
Bank is permitted to deduct as bad debt expense its specific charge-offs during the taxable year. In addition, the legislation required savings institutions to recapture into taxable income, over a
six-year period, their post 1987 additions to their bad debt tax reserves. As of the effective date of the legislation, the Bank had no post 1987 additions to its bad debt tax reserves. As of June 30,
2024, the Banka€™ s total pre-1988 bad debt reserve for tax purposes was approximately $9.0 million. Under current law, a savings institution will not be required to recapture its pre-1988 bad
debt reserve unless the Bank makes a 4€cenon-dividend distributiona€ as defined below. Currently, the Bank uses the specific charge-off method to account for bad debt deductions for income
tax purposes.a€«Distributions. In the event that the Bank makes a€cenon-dividend distributionsa€ to Provident that are considered as made from the reserve for losses on qualifying real estate
property loans, to the extent the reserve for such losses exceeds the amount that would have been allowed under the experience method or from the supplemental reserve for losses on loans
(a€oeExcess Distributionsé€), then an amount based on the amount distributed will be included in the Banka€™ s taxable income. Non-dividend distributions include distributions in excess of the
Banka€™s current and accumulated earnings and profits, distributions in redemption of stock, and distributions in partial or complete liquidation. However, dividends paid out of the Banka€™s
current or accumulated earnings and profits, as calculated for federal income tax purposes, will not be considered to result in a distribution from the Banka€™s bad debt reserve. Thus, any
dividends to Provident that would reduce amounts appropriated to the Banka€™s bad debt reserve and deducted for federal income tax purposes would create a tax liability for the Bank. The
amount of additional taxable income attributable to an Excess Distribution is an amount that, when reduced by the tax attributable to the income, is equal to the amount of the distribution.
Thus, if the Bank makes a &€cenon-dividend distribution,&a€ then approximately one and one-half times the amount distributed will be included in taxable income for federal income tax purposes.
For additional information, see "Regulation - Federal Regulation of Savings Institutions - Limitations on Capital Distributionsa€ in this Form 10-K for limits on the payment of dividends by the
Bank. The Bank does not intend to pay dividends that would result in a recapture of any portion of its tax bad debt reserve. During fiscal 2024, the Bank declared and paid $7.0 million of cash
dividends to Provident, while Provident declared and paid $3.9 million of cash dividends to shareholders.a€<Excise Tax on Stock Repurchases. The Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 imposed a one
percent excise tax on the value of corporate share repurchases (net of issuance). On December 27, 2022, the Internal Revenue Services issued Note 2023-2 which provides interim guidance on
the implementation of the excise tax on stock repurchases. The excise tax is a non-deductible tax of one percent of the fair market value of the Corporationa€™s stock repurchases, net of
restricted stock distributions, stock option exercises, ESOP repurchases and contributions and other qualified activities, occurring after December 31, 2022 in excess of $1.0 million. The excise
tax on the stock repurchases in fiscal 2024 was $26,000. A a€<34Table of ContentsTax Effect from Stock-Based Compensation. During fiscal 2024, there were no shares of restricted common
stock vested and distributed to employees but there were 2,000 shares of restricted stock distributed to non-employee members of the Corporationd€™s Board of Directors. Also, there were no
non-qualified stock options exercised and no incentive stock options exercised as disqualifying dispositions, but there were 39,220 shares of non-qualified stock options that expired and/or were
forfeited and 3,350 shares of restricted stock that were forfeited. As a result, there was a $38,000 adjustment to federal tax expense from stock-based compensation in fiscal 2024.a4€<Other
Matters.A The Internal Revenue Service has audited the Banka€™s income tax returns through 1996 and the California Franchise Tax Board has audited the Bank through 1990. Also, the
Internal Revenue Service completed a review of the Corporationa€™s income tax returns for fiscal 2006 and 2007; and the California Franchise Tax Board completed a review of the
Corporationd€™s income tax returns for fiscal 2009 and 2010. Fiscal 2022 and fiscal years thereafter remain subject to federal examination, while the California state tax returns for fiscal 2021
and fiscal years thereafter are subject to examination by state taxing authorities.a€<State Taxationa€<California. The California franchise tax rate applicable to the Bank, equals the franchise tax
rate applicable to corporations generally, plus an &€cein lieud€ rate of 2%, which is approximately equal to personal property taxes and business license taxes paid by such corporations (but not
generally paid by banks or financial corporations such as the Corporation). At June 30, 2024, the Corporationa€™s net state tax rate was 8.5%. Bad debt deductions are available in computing
California franchise taxes using the specific charge-off method. The Bank and its California subsidiaries file California franchise tax returns on a combined basis. The Corporation will be treated
as a general corporation subject to the general corporate tax rate. There was $22,000 adjustment to state tax expense from stock-based compensation in fiscal 2024.4€<Delaware. As a Delaware
holding company not earning income in Delaware, the Corporation is exempted from Delaware corporate income tax, but is required to file an annual report with and pay an annual franchise
tax to the State of Delaware.A During fiscal 2024, the Corporation paid franchise taxes of $200,000.4€<4€<Employees and Human Capitala€<As of June 30, 2024, the Bank had 160 full-time
equivalent employees, which consisted of 94 full-time, 66 prime-time and no part-time employees. The employees are not represented by a collective bargaining unit and management believes
that its relationship with employees is good.a€<To facilitate talent attraction and retention, we strive to make the Bank an inclusive, safe and healthy workplace, with opportunities for our
employees to grow and develop in their careers, supported by market-based compensation, benefits, health and welfare programs. At June 30, 2024, approximately 73.0% of our workforce was
female and 27.0% male, and our average employee tenure was approximately 8.3 years, down slightly from an average employee tenure of 8.5 years at June 30, 2023. The ethnicity of our
workforce was 40.5% White, 42.2% Hispanic or Latino, 6.5% African American or Black, 6.0% Asian, 2.7% two or more races, 0.5% American Indian or Alaskan Native and 1.6% Not Specified.
As part of our compensation philosophy, we offer and maintain market competitive compensation programs for our employees in order to attract and retain superior talent. In addition to strong
base wages, additional programs include quarterly or annual bonus opportunities, an Employee Stock Ownership Plan, a Corporation-matched 401(k) Plan, healthcare and insurance benefits,
flexible spending accounts, accrued vacation and sick time, family leave, and an employee assistance program. The success of our business is fundamentally connected to the well-being of our
people. Accordingly, we are committed to the health, safety, and wellness of our employees. In support of our commitment, we provide our employees and their families with access to a variety
of flexible and convenient health and welfare programs, including benefits that support their physical and mental health by providing tools and resources to help them improve or maintain their
health status; and that offer choice, where possible, so they can customize their benefits to meet their needs and the needs of their families. A core value of our talent management approach is
to both develop talent from within and supplement with external hires. This approach has yielded loyalty and dedication in our employee base which in turn grows our business, our commitment
to our communities, and our customers, while adding new employees and external ideas supports a continuous 35Table of Contentsimprovement mindset. We believe that our average employee
tenure of over eight years reflects the engagement of our employees in this talent management philosophy. Turnover for employees, as measured by terminated employees to the average total
employees, was 23.3% in fiscal 2024, down from 41.4% in fiscal 2023.4€a€<EXECUTIVE OFFICERS&€<The following table sets forth information with respect to the executive officers of the
Provident and the Bank:a€<a€<a€<A€<A€<A€<AE<AE« 4€<AE<AE<aE<PositionNameA A A A Age(1)A A A A ProvidentA A A A Bank 4€<A€<A€<A€<a€<a€<a€<Donavon P. TernesA 64A President

andA President anda€<a€<a€<A Chief Executive OfficerA Chief Executive Officera€<a€<a€«a€«a€<«a€«a€<Tam B. NguyenA 46A Senior Vice President andA Senior Vice President

anda€<4€<4€<A Chief Financial OfficerA Chief Financial Officera€«a€<«a€<«A Corporate SecretaryA Corporate Secretarya€<a€<a€<a€<a€ &€ &€ Robert "Scott" RitterA 55A &€”A Senior Vice

Presidenta€«&€<a€<A A A A Single-Family Divisiona€<4€<4€<A A A A A A David S. WeiantA 65A &€”A Senior Vice Presidenta€<4€<a€<A A A A Chief Lending

below is certain information regarding the executive officers of the Corporation and the Bank. There are no family relationships among or between the executive officers.a€<Tam B. Nguyen was
appointed Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary of Provident and the Bank effective January 2, 2024. Ms. Nguyen's previous position was Vice President, Chief
Accounting Officer, and Controller of the Bank since September 2022. A Prior to that, Ms. Nguyen served the Bank as Vice President and Controller from her first employment date in October
2016 to September 2022. Ms. Nguyena€™ s professional designations include Certified Public Accountant, Chartered Global Management Accountant, and Certified Management Accountant.
Her educational background includes a Master of Business Administration from California State University, San Marcos, and a Bachelor of Arts in Economics and a Bachelor of Science in
Biochemistry/Cell Biology both from the University of California, San Diego. A Ms. Nguyen is also a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of
Management Accountants, and the Financial Managers Society.a€<Robert "Scott" Ritter joined the Bank as Senior Vice President on September 26, 2016 and currently oversees the single-family
mortgage operations. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Ritter was the Chief Operating Officer at California Mortgage Advisors since November 2011 where he was responsible for overseeing all of



California Mortgage Advisors' operations, including product development, underwriting, loan processing and information technology. Prior to that, he held positions with increasing
responsibilities at mortgage banking firms such as Green Point Financial and its predecessor Headlands Mortgage Company, among others.4€<Donavon P. Ternes was appointed President and
Chief Executive Officer of Provident and the Bank effective January 2, 2024. Donavon P. Ternes joined Provident and the Bank as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer on November
1, 2000 and was appointed Secretary in April 2003. Effective January 1, 2008, Mr. Ternes was appointed Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, while continuing to serve as the
Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary 36Table of Contentsof Provident and the Bank. Effective June 27, 2011, the Boards of Directors of Provident and the promoted Mr. Ternes to
serve as President of Provident and the Bank, while continuing to serve as Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Ternes was
the President, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Director of Mission Savings and Loan Association, located in Riverside, California, holding those positions for over 11
years.a€<David S. Weiant joined the Bank as Senior Vice President and Chief Lending Officer on June 29, 2007. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Weiant was a Senior Vice President of Professional
Business Bank (June 2006 to June 2007) where he was responsible for commercial lending in the Los Angeles and Inland Empire regions of Southern California.a€<Gwendolyn L. Wertz joined
the Bank as Senior Vice President of Retail Banking on February 3, 2014. Prior to joining the Bank, Ms. Wertz was with CommerceWest Bank where she was responsible for the management of
commercial banking activities, treasury management and specialty banking. Prior to that she was with Opportunity Bank, N.A. where she was responsible for the commercial treasury sales and
service team. Ms. Wertz has more than 35 years of experience with financial institutions including the last 20 years in senior management roles. Her experience includes depository growth
initiatives, operations, compliance and deposit acquisition management.a€<«a€<Item 1A. Risk Factorsa€<We assume and manage a certain degree of risk in order to conduct our business. In
addition to the risk factors described below, other risks and uncertainties not specifically mentioned, or that are currently known to, or deemed by, management to be immaterial also may
materially and adversely affect our financial position, results of operation and/or cash flows. Before making an investment decision, you should carefully consider the risks described below
together with all of the other information included in this Form 10-K. If any of the circumstances described in the following risk factors actually occur, the value of our common stock could
decline and you could lose all or part of your investment.a€«Risks Related to Macroeconomic Conditionsa€<Our business may be adversely affected by downturns in the national economy and
the regional economies on which we depend.a€<As of June 30, 2024, approximately 66% of our real estate loans were secured by collateral and made to borrowers located in Southern California
with the balance located predominantly throughout the rest of California.A A return of recessionary conditions or adverse economic conditions in California may reduce our rate of growth,
affect our customers' ability to repay loans and adversely impact our capital, liquidity, financial condition and earnings. General economic conditions, including inflation, unemployment and
money supply fluctuations, may also adversely affect our profitability. Weakness in the global economy and global supply chain issues have adversely affected many businesses operating in our
markets that are dependent upon international trade. Changes in agreements or relationships between the United States and other countries may also affect these businesses.a€<A deterioration
in economic conditions in our market areas could result in the following consequences, any of which could have a materially adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of
operations:a€<«a—an increase in loan delinquencies, problem assets and foreclosures;a—an increase in our ACL;a—the slowing of sales of foreclosed assets;a—a decline in demand for our
products and services;a—a decline in the value of collateral for loans may in turn reduce customers' borrowing power, and the value of assets and collateral associated with existing loans;a—the
net worth and liquidity of loan guarantors may decline, impairing their ability to honor commitments to us; andd—a decrease in the amount of our low cost or noninterest-bearing
deposits.a€<37Table of ContentsA decline in California economic conditions may have a greater effect on our earnings and capital than on the earnings and capital of larger financial institutions
whose real estate loan portfolios are more geographically diverse. Many of the loans in our portfolio are secured by real estate. Deterioration in the real estate markets where collateral for a
mortgage loan is located could negatively affect the borrowera€™ s ability to repay the loan and the value of the collateral securing the loan. Real estate values are affected by various other
factors, including changes in general or regional economic conditions, governmental rules or policies and natural disasters such as fires, droughts and earthquakes. If we are required to
liquidate a significant amount of collateral during a period of reduced real estate values, our financial condition and profitability could be adversely affected.a€<External economic factors, such
as changes in monetary policy and inflation and deflation, may have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.Our financial condition and results of
operations are affected by credit policies of monetary authorities, particularly the FRB. Actions by monetary and fiscal authorities, including the FRB, could lead to inflation, deflation, or other
economic phenomena that could adversely affect our financial performance. Inflation has risen sharply since the end of 2021 and, while dissipating, remains elevated. Small to medium-sized
businesses may be impacted more during periods of high inflation as they are not able to leverage economies of scale to mitigate cost pressures compared to larger businesses. Consequently,
the ability of our business customers to repay their loans may deteriorate, and in some cases this deterioration may occur quickly, which would adversely impact our results of operations and
financial condition. Furthermore, a prolonged period of inflation could cause wages and other costs to the Corporation to increase, which could adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition. A Virtually all of our assets and liabilities are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates tend to have a more significant impact on our performance than general levels of
inflation or deflation. Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or by the same magnitude as the prices of goods and services.Risks Related to our Lending Activitiesa€<«Our
business may be adversely affected by credit risk associated with residential property.a€<At June 30, 2024, $518.1 million, or 49% of our loans held for investment, were secured by single-family
residential real property.A This type of lending is generally sensitive to regional and local economic conditions that may significantly impact the ability of borrowers to meet their loan payment
obligations, making loss levels difficult to predict. Jumbo single-family loans which do not conform to secondary market mortgage requirements for our market areas are not immediately
saleable in the secondary market and may expose us to increased risk because of their larger balances. Higher market interest rates, recessionary conditions or declines in the volume of single-
family real estate sales and/or the sales prices as well as elevated unemployment rates, may result in higher than expected loan delinquencies or problem assets, and a decline in demand for our
products and services. These potential negative events may cause us to incur losses, adversely affect our capital and liquidity and damage our financial condition and business operations.a€<A
few of our legacy residential mortgage loans are secured by properties in which the borrowers have little or no equity because either we originated a first mortgage with an 80% loan-to-value
ratio and a concurrent second mortgage for a combined loan-to-value ratio of up to 100% or because of a decline in home values in our market areas. Residential loans with high loan-to-value
ratios will be more sensitive to declining property values than those with lower combined loan-to-value ratios and therefore may experience a higher incidence of default and severity of
losses.a€<«0ur multi-family and commercial real estate loans involve higher principal amounts than other loans and repayment of these loans may be dependent on factors outside our control or
the control of our borrowers.a€<We originate multi-family and commercial real estate loans for individuals and businesses for various purposes, which are secured by residential and non-
residential properties. At June 30, 2024, we had $528.5 million or 50% of total loans held for investment in multi-family and commercial real estate loans. These loans typically involve higher
principal amounts than other types of loans and some of our commercial borrowers have more than one loan outstanding with us. Consequently, an adverse development with respect to one
loan or one credit relationship can expose us to a significantly greater risk of loss compared to an adverse development with respect to a single-family residential loan. Repayment on these loans
typically is dependent upon income generated, or expected to be generated, by the property securing the loan 38Table of Contentsin amounts sufficient to cover operating expenses and debt
service, which may be adversely affected by changes in the economy or local market conditions. For example, if the cash flow from the borrower's project is reduced as a result of leases not
being obtained or renewed, the borrower's ability to repay the loan may be impaired. Multi-family and commercial real estate loans also expose a lender to greater credit risk than loans secured
by single-family residential real estate because the collateral securing these loans typically cannot be sold as easily as single-family residential real estate. In addition, many of our multi-family
and commercial real estate loans are not fully amortizing and contain large balloon payments upon maturity, which would require the borrower to either sell or refinance the underlying
property to make the balloon payment at maturity, thus increasing the risk of default or non-payment. a€<A secondary market for many types of multi-family and commercial real estate loans is
not readily liquid, so we have less opportunity to mitigate credit risk by selling part or all of our interest in these loans. As a result of these characteristics, if we foreclose on a multi-family or
commercial real estate loan, our holding period for the collateral typically is longer than for a single-family residential mortgage loan because there are fewer potential purchasers of the
collateral. Accordingly, charge-offs on multi-family and commercial real estate loans may be larger on a per loan basis than those incurred within the single-family residential loan
portfolio.a€«We occasionally purchase loans in bulk or 4€cepools.a€ We may experience lower yields or losses on loan &€cepoolsa€ because the assumptions we use when purchasing loans in
bulk may not prove correct.&€<In order to achieve our loan growth objectives and/or improve earnings, we may purchase loans, either individually, through participations, or in bulk. We did not
purchase any loans in fiscal 2024 and 2023. When we determine the purchase price we are willing to pay to purchase loans in bulk, management makes certain assumptions about, among other
things, how fast borrowers will prepay their loans, the real estate market, our ability to collect on loans successfully and, if necessary, our ability to dispose of any real estate that may be
acquired through foreclosure. In addition, when we purchase loans, we perform certain due diligence procedures and typically require customary limited indemnities. To the extent that our
underlying assumptions prove to be inaccurate or the basis for those assumptions change, the purchase price paid for 4€cepoolsa€ of loans may prove to have been excessive, resulting in a
lower yield or a loss of some or all of the loan principal. For example, if we purchase pools of loans at a premium and some of the loans are prepaid before we modeled, we will earn less interest
income on the purchase than expected. Our success in growing our loan portfolio through purchases of loan &€cepoolsa€ depends on our ability to price loan a€cepoolsa€ properly and on the
general economic conditions within the geographic areas where the underlying properties of the purchased loans are located.a€<Acquiring loans through bulk purchases may involve acquiring
loans of a type or in geographic areas where management may not have substantial prior experience. We may be exposed to a greater risk of loss to the extent that bulk purchases contain such
loans.a€<Our allowance for credit losses may not be sufficient to absorb losses in our loan portfolio.&€<Our business relies significantly on the creditworthiness of our customers. To account for
potential defaults and nonperformance in our loan portfolio, we maintain an ACL on loans using the CECL methodology. This allowance represents management's best estimate of the lifetime
expected credit losses in our loan portfolio. The amount of this allowance is determined by management through periodic reviews and consideration of several factors, including, but not limited
to:a—our collective allowance, for loans evaluated on a pool basis with similar risk characteristics based on our and peer life of loan historical loss experience, certain qualitative factors
consisting of macroeconomic conditions and external factors as regulatory requirements, and reasonable and supportable forecasts relating to managementa€™s expectations of future events;
anda—our individual allowance, for evaluation of individual loans that do not share similar risk characteristics based on the present value of the expected future cash flows or the fair value of
the underlying collateral.&€<The determination of the appropriate ACL involves a significant degree of subjectivity, relying on substantial estimates of both current credit risks and future trends,
all of which are subject to potential material changes. Inaccuracies in our estimations could lead to an insufficient ACL, necessitating increases through provisions for credit losses, adversely
impacting our recorded income. A 4€<39Table of ContentsFurther, included in our single-family residential loan portfolio, which comprised 49% of our total loan portfolio at June 30, 2024, were
$17.7 million or 2% of total loans held for investment that were non-traditional single-family loans, which include negative amortization and more than 30-year amortization loans, stated income
loans and low FICO score loans, all of which have a higher risk of default and loss than conforming residential mortgage loans. Additionally, as we acknowledge the potential impact of
significant portfolio growth, new loan products, and refinancing activities, these actions may result in portfolios consisting of unseasoned loans that may not perform as anticipated, elevating
the risk of an inadequate allowance to absorb losses without additional provisions. A material decrease in the credit quality of our loan portfolio, significant changes in the risk profile of
markets, industries, or customer groups, or inadequacy in the ACL could have a materially adverse impact on our business, financial condition, liquidity, capital, and results of
operations.a€<Bank regulatory agencies also periodically review our ACL and may require an increase in the provision for credit losses or the recognition of further loan charge-offs, based on
their judgment about information available to them at the time of their examination. A 4€<If charge-offs in future periods exceed the ACL, we may need additional provisions to increase the ACL.
A Any increases in the ACL will result in a decrease in net income and, most likely, capital, and may have a material negative effect on our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity and
capital.a€<Non-performing assets take significant time to resolve and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition and could result in further losses in the future.a€<Non-
performing assets, consisting of non-performing loans and real estate acquired through foreclosure, adversely affect our earnings in various ways. We reverse accrued interest on non-
performing loans and do not record interest income on foreclosed assets. Additionally, non-performing loans increase our loan administration costs and costs also increase due to the
improvement, maintenance and repairs of the foreclosed assets. Upon foreclosure or similar proceedings, we record the repossessed asset at the estimated fair value, less costs to sell, which
may result in a write-down or loss. A significant increase in the level of non-performing assets from current levels would also increase our risk profile and may impact the capital levels our
regulators believe are appropriate in light of the increased risk profile. While we attempt to reduce problem assets through various means such as collection efforts, asset sales, workouts and
modifications, a decline in the value of the underlying collateral or in the borrowera€™s performance or financial condition could adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition. In addition, the resolution of non-performing assets often requires a significant time commitment from management, diverting their attention from other aspects of our
operations.a€<Risks Related to Market and Interest Rate Changesa€<Fluctuating interest rates can adversely affect our profitability.a€<Our earnings and cash flows are largely dependent upon
our net interest income. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors that are beyond our control, including general economic conditions and policies of various governmental and
regulatory agencies and, in particular, the FRB. Beginning in March 2022, in response to high inflation, the FOMC commenced increasing the target range for the federal funds rates by
implementing multiple increases. As of June 30, 2024, the FOMC target range for the federal funds rate was 5.25% to 5.50% as economic conditions remained relatively resilient and inflation
remained elevated. As inflation eases, the FOMC has indicated rate decreases may be expected during the second half of 2024, although to date that has not been the case. However, if the
FOMC further increases the targeted federal funds rate, overall interest rates will likely continue to rise, which will negatively impact our net interest income and may negatively impact both
the housing market, by reducing refinancing activity and new home purchases, and the U.S. economy.We principally manage interest rate risk by managing our volume and mix of our earning
assets and funding liabilities. If we are unable to manage interest rate risk effectively, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially affected.a€<A sustained
increase in market interest rates could adversely affect our earnings. As is the case with many financial institutions, we attempt to increase our proportion of deposits comprising either no or
relatively low-interest-bearing accounts, which has been challenging over the last couple of years. At June 30, 2024, we had $245.7 million in time 40Table of Contentsdeposits that mature
within one year, $95.6 million in noninterest-bearing checking accounts and $518.8 million in interest-bearing checking, savings and money market accounts. We would incur a higher cost of
funds to retain these deposits in a rising interest rate environment. Earnings could also be adversely affected if the interest rates received on loans and other investments fall more quickly than
the interest rates paid on deposits and other borrowings. &€<In addition, most of our mortgage loans have adjustable interest rates. As a result, these loans may experience a higher rate of
default in a rising interest rate environment.a€<«Changes in interest rates also affect the value of our securities portfolio available for sale. Generally, the fair value of fixed-rate securities
fluctuates inversely with changes in interest rates. Unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale are reported as a separate component of stockholdersa€™ equity, net of tax.
Decreases in the fair value of securities available for sale resulting from increases in interest rates could have an adverse effect on stockholdersa€™ equity.a€<Although management believes it
has implemented effective asset and liability management strategies to reduce the potential effects of changes in interest rates on our results of operations, any substantial, unexpected or
prolonged change in market interest rates could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Also, our interest rate risk modeling techniques and
assumptions likely may not fully predict or capture the impact of actual interest rate changes on our consolidated balance sheet or projected operating results. For additional information
concerning the effect of interest rates on our loan portfolio, see Item 7A, a€ceQuantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Riska€ of this Form 10-K.a€<Certain hedging strategies that
we may use to manage investment in mortgage servicing assets, mortgage loans held for sale and interest rate lock commitments may be ineffective to offset any adverse changes in the fair
value of these assets due to changes in interest rates and market liquidity. We may use derivative instruments to economically hedge mortgage servicing assets, mortgage loans held for sale and
interest rate lock commitments to offset changes in fair value resulting from changing interest rate environments. Our hedging strategies are susceptible to prepayment risk, basis risk, market



volatility and changes in the shape of the yield curve, among other factors. In addition, hedging strategies rely on assumptions and projections regarding assets and general market factors. If
these assumptions and projections prove to be incorrect or our hedging strategies do not adequately mitigate the impact of changes in interest rates, we may incur losses that would adversely
impact earnings.a€<We may incur losses on our securities portfolio as a result of changes in interest rates.Factors beyond our control can significantly impact the fair value of securities within
our portfolio, potentially leading to adverse changes in their value. These factors include, but are not limited to, actions taken by rating agencies regarding the securities, defaults by the issuer,
adverse events affecting either the issuer or the underlying securities, and shifts in market interest rates along with continued instability in the capital markets. These influences could result in
impairments that are not just temporary, leading to realized and/or unrealized losses in future periods. Such developments could also lead to declines in other comprehensive income, thereby
potentially affecting our business, financial condition, and results of operations in a significant manner. A We evaluate individual investment securities quarterly for expected credit losses based
on Accounting Standards Codification (4€eASCa€) 326, a€ceFinancial Instruments 4€“ Credit Losses,a€ since the adoption on July 1, 2023. The process usually requires complex, subjective
judgments about the future financial performance and liquidity of the issuer and any collateral underlying the security to assess the probability of receiving all contractual principal and interest
payments on the security. Despite our efforts to evaluate these factors, there can be no assurance that the declines in market value will not result in credit losses on these assets. A Such credit
losses could lead to accounting charges that might materially impact our net income and capital levels. There were no ACL on investment securities held to maturity at adoption of ASC 326 or at
June 30, 2024 and there were no impairment on investment securities available for sale at June 30, 2024.a€<41Table of ContentsRisks Related to Regulatory, Legal and Compliance
Mattersa€«We are subject to an extensive body of accounting rules and best practices. Periodic changes to such rules may change the treatment and recognition of critical financial line items
and affect our profitability. &4€<Our business operations are significantly influenced by the extensive body of accounting regulations in the United States. Regulatory bodies periodically issue new
guidance, altering accounting rules and reporting requirements, which can substantially affect the preparation and reporting of our financial statements. These changes might necessitate
retrospective application, potentially leading to restatements of prior period financial statements.d€<One such significant change in fiscal 2024 was the implementation of the CECL model,
which we adopted on July 1, 2023. A Under the CECL model, financial assets carried at amortized cost, such as loans and held-to-maturity debt securities, are presented at the net amount
expected to be collected. This forward-looking approach in estimating expected credit losses contrasts starkly with the prior, "incurred loss" model, which delays recognition until a loss is
probable. CECL mandates considering historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable forecasts affecting collectability, leading to periodic adjustments of financial asset values.
However, this forward-looking methodology, reliant on macroeconomic variables, introduces the potential for increased earnings volatility due to unexpected changes in these indicators
between periods. An additional consequence of CECL is an accounting asymmetry between loan-related income, recognized periodically based on the effective interest method, and credit
losses, recognized upfront at origination. This asymmetry might create the perception of reduced profitability during loan expansion periods due to the immediate recognition of expected credit
losses. Conversely, periods with stable or declining loan levels might seem relatively more profitable as income accrues gradually for loans where losses had been previously recognized.a€<As a
result of the change in methodology from the incurred loss model to the CECL model, on July 1, 2024, the Corporation recorded a one-time, net of tax charge of $824,000 to retained earnings, a
$1.2 million increase to the ACL for credit losses for loans, and no change to the ACL on unfunded loan commitments.a€<Non-compliance with the USA Patriot Act, Bank Secrecy Act, or other
laws and regulations could result in fines or sanctions and limit our ability to get regulatory approval of acquisitions.a€<The USA Patriot and Bank Secrecy Acts require financial institutions to
develop programs to prevent financial institutions from being used for money laundering and terrorist activities. If such activities are detected, financial institutions are obligated to file
suspicious activity reports with the U.S. Treasurya€™s Office of Financial Crimes Enforcement Network. These rules require financial institutions to establish procedures for identifying and
verifying the identity of customers seeking to open new financial accounts. Failure to comply with these regulations could result in fines or sanctions and limit our ability to get regulatory
approval of acquisitions. While we have developed policies and procedures designed to assist in compliance with these laws and regulations, no assurance can be given that these policies and
procedures will be effective in preventing violations of these laws and regulations.a€<If our enterprise risk management framework is not effective at mitigating risk and loss to us, we could
suffer unexpected losses and our results of operations could be materially adversely affected.a€<Our enterprise risk management framework seeks to achieve an appropriate balance between
risk and return, which is critical to optimizing stockholder value. We have established processes and procedures intended to identify, measure, monitor, report, analyze, and control the types of
risk to which we are subject to. These risks include, among others, liquidity, credit, market, interest rate, operational, legal and compliance, and reputational risk. Our framework also includes
financial or other modeling methodologies that involve management assumptions and judgment. We also maintain a compliance program to identify, measure, assess, and report on our
adherence to applicable laws, policies, and procedures.A While we assess and improve these programs on an ongoing basis, there can be no assurance that our risk management or compliance
programs, along with other related controls, will effectively mitigate risk under all circumstances,A or that it will adequately mitigate any risk or loss to us. However, as with any risk
management framework, there are inherent limitations to our risk management strategies as they may exist, or develop in the future, including risks that we have not appropriately anticipated
or identified. If our risk management framework proves ineffective, we could suffer unexpected losses and our business, financial condition, results of operations or growth prospects could be
materially adversely affected. We may also be subject to potentially adverse regulatory consequences.42Table of Contentsa€<Climate change and related legislative and regulatory initiatives
may materially affect our business and results of operations.Climate change continues to be a pressing concern, prompting heightened awareness and action on a global scale. Efforts include
international agreements such as the Paris Agreement, with the United States rejoining, and ongoing initiatives at various governmental levels to address climate-related issues. Under the
current administration, additional measures are anticipated, potentially impacting banks' risk management practices, stress testing, credit portfolio concentrations, and investment strategies.
The lack of empirical data makes it challenging to predict the precise financial impact of climate change, though its physical effects, such as more frequent weather disasters, could directly
affect our real estate collateral and loan portfolios. Inadequate insurance coverage for borrowers may compound these risks, impacting our financial condition. Furthermore, climate change's
broader economic effects could adversely affect our customers and the communities we serve, potentially impacting our financial performance.On March 6, 2024, the SEC implemented new
climate-related disclosure rules for U.S. public companies and foreign private issuers. These rules introduce extensive disclosure requirements, increasing reporting costs, risks, and complexity.
Challenges include short compliance timelines, interpretive issues, legal liabilities, and global regulatory overlaps. Lawsuits contesting these rules add further uncertainty. However, on March
15, 2024, the Fifth Circuit granted an administrative stay, temporarily halting the implementation of the SEC's climate rules.Our litigation related costs may increase.a€<We are subject to a
variety of legal proceedings that have arisen in the ordinary course of the Bank's business. Our involvement in litigation may increase significantly. The expenses of some legal proceedings will
adversely affect our results of operations until they are resolved. Further, there can be no assurance that loan workouts and other activities will not expose us to additional legal actions,
including lender liability or environmental claims. &€<Risks Related to Cybersecurity, Data and Frauda€<We are subject to certain risks in connection with our use of technology.a€<Our security
measures may not be sufficient to mitigate the risk of a cyber attack. Communications and information systems are essential to the conduct of our business, as we use such systems to manage
our customer relationships, our general ledger and virtually all other aspects of our business. Our operations rely on the secure processing, storage, and transmission of confidential and other
information in our computer systems and networks. Although we take protective measures and endeavor to modify them as circumstances warrant, the security of our computer systems,
software, and networks may be vulnerable to breaches, fraudulent or unauthorized access, denial or degradation of service attacks, misuse, computer viruses, malware or other malicious code
and cyber-attacks that could have a security impact. If one or more of these events occur, this could jeopardize our or our customers' confidential and other information processed and stored in,
and transmitted through, our computer systems and networks, or otherwise cause interruptions or malfunctions in our operations or the operations of our customers or counterparties. We may
be required to expend significant additional resources to modify our protective measures or to investigate and remediate vulnerabilities or other exposures, and we may be subject to litigation
and financial losses that are either not insured against or not fully covered through any insurance maintained by us. We could also suffer significant reputational damage.a€<Further, our
cardholders use their debit and credit cards to make purchases from third parties or through third party processing services. As such, we are subject to risk from data breaches of such third
partya€™s information systems or their payment processors. Such a data security breach could compromise our customera€™s account information. The payment methods that we offer also
subject us to potential fraud and theft by criminals, who are becoming increasingly more sophisticated, seeking to obtain unauthorized access to or exploit weaknesses that may exist in the
payment systems. If we fail to comply with applicable rules or requirements for the payment methods we accept, or if payment-related data is compromised due to a breach or misuse of data,
we may be liable for losses associated with reimbursing our customers for such fraudulent transactions on customersa€™ card accounts, as well as costs incurred by payment card issuing banks
and other third parties or may be subject to fines and higher transaction fees, or our ability to accept or facilitate certain types of payments may be impaired. We may also incur other costs
related to data security breaches, such as replacing cards 43Table of Contentsassociated with compromised card accounts or credit monitoring services. In addition, our customers could lose
confidence in certain payment types, which may result in a shift to other payment types or potential changes to our payment systems that may result in higher costs.a€<Breaches of information
security may also occur through intentional or unintentional acts by those having access to our systems, our customersa€™ or counterpartiesa€™ confidential information, including employees.
We are continuously working to install new, and upgrade our existing, information technology systems and provide employee awareness training around ransomware, phishing, malware, and
other cyber risks to further protect the Corporation against cyber risks and security breaches.a€<There continues to be a rise in electronic fraudulent activity, security breaches and cyber-
attacks within the financial services industry, especially in the commercial banking sector due to cyber criminals targeting commercial bank accounts. We are regularly the target of attempted
cyber and other security threats and must continuously monitor and develop our information technology networks and infrastructure to prevent, detect, address and mitigate the risk of
unauthorized access, misuse, computer viruses and other events that could have a security impact. Insider or employee cyber and security threats are increasingly a concern for companies,
including ours. We are not aware that we have experienced any material misappropriation, loss or other unauthorized disclosure of confidential or personally identifiable information as a result
of a cyber-security breach or other act, however, some of our customers may have been affected by these breaches, which could increase their risks of identity theft, debit and card fraud and
other fraudulent activity that could involve their accounts with us.a€<Security breaches in our internet banking activities could further expose us to possible liability and damage our reputation.
Increases in criminal activity levels and sophistication, advances in computer capabilities, new discoveries, vulnerabilities in third party technologies (including browsers and operating systems)
or other developments could result in a compromise or breach of the technology, processes and controls that we use to prevent fraudulent transactions and to protect data about us, our
customers and underlying transactions. Any compromise of our security could deter customers from using our internet banking services that involve the transmission of confidential information.
We rely on internet security systems to provide the security and authentication necessary to effect secure transmission of data. Although we have developed and continue to invest in systems
and processes that are designed to detect and prevent security breaches and cyber-attacks and periodically test our security, these precautions may not protect our systems from compromises
or breaches of our security measures, and could result in losses to us or our customers, our loss of business and/or customers, damage to our reputation, the incurrence of additional expenses,
disruption to our business, our inability to grow our online services or other businesses, additional regulatory scrutiny or penalties, or our exposure to civil litigation and possible financial
liability, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.a€<Our security measures may not protect us from system failures or
interruptions. While we have established policies and procedures to prevent or limit the impact of systems failures and interruptions, there can be no assurance that such events will not occur
or that they will be adequately addressed if they do. In addition, we outsource certain aspects of our data processing and other operational functions to certain third-party providers. While we
select our third-party vendors carefully, we do not control their actions. If our third-party providers encounter difficulties including those resulting from breakdowns or other disruptions in
communication services provided by a vendor, failure of a vendor to handle current or higher transaction volumes, cyber-attacks and security breaches or if we otherwise have difficulty in
communicating with them, our ability to adequately process and account for transactions could be affected, and our ability to deliver products and services to our customers and otherwise
conduct business operations could be adversely impacted. Replacing these third-party vendors could also entail significant delay and expense. Threats to information security also exist in the
processing of customer information through various other vendors and their personnel. We cannot ensure that such breaches, failures or interruptions will not occur or, if they do occur, that
they will be adequately addressed by us or the third parties on which we rely. We may not be insured against all types of losses as a result of third party failures and insurance coverage may be
inadequate to cover all losses resulting from breaches, system failures or other disruptions. If any of our third-party service providers experience financial, operational or technological
difficulties, or if there is any other disruption in our relationships with them, we may be required to identify alternative sources of such services, and we cannot assure that we could negotiate
terms that are as favorable to us, or could obtain services with similar functionality as found in our existing systems without the need to expend substantial resources, if at all. Further, the
occurrence of any systems failure or interruption could damage our reputation and result in a loss of customers and 44Table of Contentsbusiness, could subject us to additional regulatory
scrutiny, or could expose us to legal liability. Any of these occurrences could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.&€<Our business may be adversely
affected by an increasing prevalence of fraud and other financial crimes.a€<We are susceptible to fraudulent activity that may be committed against us or our customers, which may result in
financial losses or increased costs to us or our customers, disclosure or misuse of our information or our customera€™s information, misappropriation of assets, privacy breaches against our
customers, litigation or damage to our reputation. Such fraudulent activity may take many forms, including check fraud, electronic fraud, wire fraud, phishing, social engineering and other
dishonest acts. Nationally, reported incidents of fraud and other financial crimes have increased. We have also experienced losses due to apparent fraud and other financial crimes. While we
have policies and procedures designed to prevent such losses, there can be no assurance that such losses will not occur.a€<Risks Related to Our Business and Industry Generallya€<Ineffective
liquidity management could adversely affect our financial results and condition.a€<Liquidity is essential to our business. We rely on a number of different sources in order to meet our potential
liquidity demands. Our primary sources of liquidity are increases in deposit accounts, cash flows from loan payments and our securities portfolio. Borrowings also provide us with a source of
funds to meet liquidity demands. An inability to raise funds through deposits, borrowings or other sources could have a substantial negative effect on our liquidity. Our access to funding sources
in amounts adequate to finance our activities on terms acceptable to us could be impaired by factors that affect us specifically, or the financial services industry or economy in general. Factors
that could detrimentally impact our access to liquidity sources include a decrease in the level of our business activity as a result of a downturn in the California markets in which our loans are
concentrated, negative operating results, or adverse regulatory action against us. Our ability to borrow could also be impaired by factors that are not specific to us, such as a disruption in the
financial markets or negative views and expectations about the prospects for the financial services industry or deterioration in credit markets. Any decline in available funding in amounts
adequate to finance our activities on acceptable terms could adversely impact our ability to originate loans, invest in securities, meet our expenses, or fulfill obligations such as repaying our
borrowings or meeting deposit withdrawal demands, any of which could, in turn, have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. See d€celtem 7.
Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 4€” Liquidity and Capital Resourcesa€ of this Form 10-K.a€<We rely on other companies to provide
key components of our business infrastructure.4€<We rely on numerous external vendors to provide us with products and services necessary to maintain our day-to-day operations. Accordingly,
our operations are exposed to the risk that these vendors will not perform in accordance with the contracted arrangements under service level agreements. The failure of an external vendor to
perform in accordance with the contracted arrangements under service level agreements because of changes in the vendora€™s organizational structure, financial condition, support for
existing products and services, strategic focus or for any other reason, could be disruptive to our operations, which in turn could have a material negative impact on our financial condition and
results of operations. We also could be adversely affected to the extent such an agreement is not renewed by a third party vendor or is renewed on terms less favorable to us. Additionally, the
bank regulatory agencies expect financial institutions to be responsible for all aspects of our vendorsa€™ performance, including aspects which they delegate to third parties. Disruptions or
failures in the physical infrastructure or operating systems that support our business and customers, or cyber-attacks or security breaches of the networks, systems or devices that our



customers use to access our products and services could result in customer attrition, regulatory fines, penalties or intervention, reputational damage, reimbursement or other compensation
costs, and/or additional compliance costs, any of which could materially adversely affect our results of operations or financial condition.&€<Managing reputational risk is important to attracting
and maintaining customers, investors and employees.a€<Threats to our reputation can come from many sources, including adverse sentiment about financial institutions generally, unethical
practices, employee misconduct, failure to deliver minimum standards of service or quality, compliance deficiencies, and questionable or fraudulent activities of our customers. We have policies
and procedures in place to protect 45Table of Contentsour reputation and promote ethical conduct, but these policies and procedures may not be fully effective. Negative publicity regarding our
business, employees, or customers, with or without merit, may result in the loss of customers, investors and employees, costly litigation, a decline in revenues and increased governmental
regulation.a€<«Our growth or future losses may require us to raise additional capital in the future, but that capital may not be available when it is needed or the cost of that capital may be
exceedingly high.4€<We are required by federal regulatory authorities to maintain adequate levels of capital to support our operations. Our ability to raise additional capital, if needed, will
depend on conditions in the capital markets at that time, which are outside of our control, and on our financial condition and performance. Accordingly, we cannot make assurances that we will
be able to raise additional capital if needed on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all. If we cannot raise additional capital when needed, our ability to further expand our operations could be
materially impaired and our financial condition and liquidity could be materially and adversely affected. In addition, any additional capital we obtain may dilute the interests of existing holders
of our common stock. Further, if we are unable to raise additional capital when required by our bank regulators, we may be subject to adverse regulatory action.a€<The financial services market
is undergoing rapid technological changes, and if we are unable to stay current with those changes, we will not be able to effectively compete.a€<The financial services market is undergoing
rapid changes with frequent introductions of new technology-driven products and services. Our future success will depend, in part, on our ability to keep pace with the technological changes
and to use technology to satisfy and grow customer demand for our products and services and to create additional efficiencies in our operations. We expect that we will need to make substantial
investments in our technology and information systems to compete effectively and to stay current with technological changes. Some of our competitors have substantially greater resources to
invest in technological improvements and will be able to invest more heavily in developing and adopting new technologies, which may put us at a competitive disadvantage. We may not be able
to effectively implement new technology-driven products and services or be successful in marketing these products and services to our customers. As a result, our ability to effectively compete
to retain or acquire new business may be impaired, and our business, financial condition or results of operations may be adversely affected.a€<Earthquakes, fires, mudslides and other natural
disasters in our primary market area may result in material losses because of damage to collateral properties and borrowers' inability to repay loans.a€<Since our geographic concentration is in
California, we are subject to earthquakes, fires, mudslides, droughts and other natural disasters. A major earthquake or other natural disaster may disrupt our business operations for an
indefinite period of time and could result in material losses, although we have not experienced any losses in many years as a result of earthquake damage or other natural disaster. Although we
are in an earthquake prone area, we and other lenders in the market area may not require earthquake insurance as a condition of making a loan. In addition to possibly sustaining damage to
our own properties, if there is a major earthquake, fire, mudslide, or other natural disaster, we face the risk that many of our borrowers may experience uninsured property losses, or sustained
job interruption and/or loss which may materially impair their ability to meet the terms of their loan obligations.a€<Any breach of representations and warranties made by us to our loan
purchasers or credit default on our loan sales may require us to repurchase or substitute such loans we have sold.&€<We have previously engaged in bulk loan sales pursuant to agreements that
generally require us to repurchase or substitute loans in the event of a breach of a representation or warranty made by us to the loan purchaser. Any misrepresentation during the mortgage
loan origination process or, in some cases, upon any fraud or early payment default on such mortgage loans, may require us to repurchase or substitute loans. Any claims asserted against us in
the future by one of our loan purchasers may result in liabilities or legal expenses that could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. During fiscal
2024 and 2023, the Bank did not repurchase any loans. Additionally, the Bank did not have any claims or settlements for previously sold loans during fiscal 2024 and 2023. &€<a€<46Table of
ContentsOur assets as of June 30, 2024 include a deferred tax asset, the full value of which we may not be able to realize.&€<We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities based on differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. At June 30, 2024, the net deferred tax asset was approximately $606,000, an A increase from
$218,000 at the prior fiscal year end. The net deferred tax asset results primarily from (1) deferred loan costs, (2) provisions for credit losses recorded for financial reporting purposes, which
were in the past significantly larger than net loan charge-offs deducted for tax reporting proposes and (3) deferred compensation, among others.a€<«We regularly review our deferred tax assets
for recoverability based on our history of earnings, expectations for future earnings and expected timing of reversals of temporary differences. Realization of deferred tax assets ultimately
depends on the existence of sufficient taxable income, including taxable income in prior carryback years, as well as future taxable income. We believe the recorded net deferred tax asset at June
30, 2024 is fully realizable based on our expected future earnings; however, expected future earnings may not be realized, which could impact our deferred tax assets.a€<Increasing scrutiny and
evolving expectations from customers, regulators, investors, and other stakeholders with respect to our environmental, social and governance practices may impose additional costs on us or
expose us to new or additional risks.a€<Companies are facing increasing scrutiny from customers, regulators, investors, and other stakeholders related to their environmental, social and
governance (a€0eESGa€) practices and disclosure. Investor advocacy groups, investment funds and influential investors are also increasingly focused on these practices, especially as they relate
to the environment, health and safety, diversity, labor conditions and human rights. Increased ESG related compliance costs could result in increases to our overall operational costs. Failure to
adapt to or comply with regulatory requirements or investor or stakeholder expectations and standards could negatively impact our reputation, ability to do business with certain partners, and
our stock price. New government regulations could also result in new or more stringent forms of ESG oversight and expanding mandatory and voluntary reporting, due diligence, and
disclosure.a€<«We rely on dividends from the Bank for substantially all of our revenue at the holding company level.&€<We are an entity separate and distinct from our principal subsidiary, the
Bank, and derive substantially all of our revenue at the holding company level in the form of dividends from that subsidiary. Accordingly, we are, and will continue to be, dependent upon
dividends from the Bank to pay the principal of and interest on our indebtedness, to satisfy our other cash needs, to pay for share buybacks and to pay dividends on our common stock. The
Bank's ability to pay dividends is subject to its ability to earn net income and to meet certain regulatory requirements. In the event the Bank is unable to pay dividends to us, we may not be able
to pay dividends on our common stock nor share buybacks. Also, our right to participate in a distribution of assets upon a subsidiary's liquidation or reorganization is subject to the prior claims
of the subsidiary's creditors. In fiscal 2024 and 2023, the Bank paid cash dividends to its holding company totaling $7.0 million and $9.5 million, respectively.a€<a€<Item 1B. Unresolved Staff
Commentsa€<None.a€«a€<Item 1C. Cybersecurityd€<Managing technology risks, including cybersecurity risks, is a fundamental part of the Corporationad€™ s risk management framework and
processes. The Corporation employs a variety of processes, risk assessments, and controls to assess, identify, and manage these risks. This includes estimating the likelihood and potential
impact of cybersecurity incidents. To manage these risks, the Corporation designs, documents, and implements controls, which are then tested through compliance assessments and internal
and external audits. In some cases, the Corporation also transfers risk, either wholly or partially, through insurance and other methods. When an incident occurs, the Corporation responds by
remediating the incident while complying with regulatory obligations, and then evaluates the remediationa€™s effectiveness. Communication about risk management matters is conducted
through documented policies and procedures, management and Board 47Table of Contentscommittee reporting, and employee training and communications. For a detailed description of how
cybersecurity risks may materially affect the Corporation&€™ s business strategy or results, see "Item 1A. Risk Factors.a4€a€<The Corporationd€™s information technology risk management
department consists of professionals with experience and expertise in cybersecurity, including specialists in identity and access management, cyber defense operations, security engineering,
and information technology governance, risk, and compliance. This department is led by the Chief Information Officer (4€ceCIO4€), who has over 27 years of experience in technology risk
management, and the Information Security Officer (&€aeISOa€), who has a bachelor in computer science and has over 18 years of experience in cybersecurity risk management. The ISO reports
to the CIO, and the CIO reports directly to the President and Chief Executive Officer. Additionally, the Corporation engages third-party experts as needed to assess, manage, and respond to
cybersecurity risks through various methods, including risk assessments, IT audits based on different frameworks, penetration and vulnerability testing, social engineering, incident response,
threat intelligence, education, and managed security services.a€<The Corporation also monitors risks from third parties, such as service providers, through efforts like monitoring, information
sharing, risk assessments, audits, contractual due diligence, and adherence to third-party security standards. Senior management governs risk management and is informed about and monitors
the prevention, detection, mitigation, and mediation of cybersecurity incidents. This is facilitated through working review committees, on which the ISO and/or CIO serve. These committees
receive risk management reports appropriate to their scope of review, covering assessment results, risk ratings, and critical issues. They report significant matters to enterprise-wide risk
committees, which oversee the broader scope of risk management for the enterprise. Through these efforts, senior management makes decisions and sets priorities for allocating resources to
address risk management issues.a€<The Corporationa€™ s Board of Directors, including the Audit Committee, oversees all risk management policies, procedures, and practices, including those
related to cybersecurity. Senior management generally reports quarterly, or more frequently as necessary, to the Enterprise Risk Committee on technology risks, including those from
cybersecurity threats. The Boarda€™ s Audit Committee and the Board of Directors receive these reports as part of their risk management oversight responsibilities. Board members have direct
access to senior management and other relevant personnel and may direct questions and request further information as needed to fulfill their oversight responsibilities.a€<a€<Item 2.
Propertiesa€<At June 30, 2024, the net book value of the Corporation&€™s properties (including land and buildings) and its furniture, fixtures and equipment was $8.0 million.A The
Corporationa€™s home office is located in Riverside, California. Including the home office, the Corporation has 13 retail banking offices, 12 of which are located in Riverside County in the cities
of Riverside (5), Moreno Valley, Hemet, Sun City, Rancho Mirage, Corona, Temecula and Blythe. One office is located in Redlands, San Bernardino County, California.A The Corporation owns six
of the retail banking offices and has seven leased retail banking offices. The lease term maturity dates range from 2024 to 2029, some of which has remaining extension options. In the opinion
of management, all properties are adequately covered by insurance, are in a good state of repair and are appropriately designed for their present and future use.a€<a€<tem 3. Legal
Proceedingsa€<Periodically, there have been various claims and lawsuits involving the Corporation, such as claims to enforce liens, condemnation proceedings on properties in which the
Corporation holds security interests, claims involving the making and servicing of real property loans, employment matters and other issues in the ordinary course of and incidental to the
Corporationa€™s business. These proceedings and the associated legal claims are often contested and the outcome of individual matters is not always predictable. Additionally, in some actions,
it is difficult to assess potential exposure because the Corporation is still in the early stages of the litigation. The Corporation is not a party to any pending legal proceedings that it believes
would have a material adverse effect on its financial condition, operations or cash flows.a€<a€<«48Table of Contentsltem 4. Mine Safety Disclosuresa€«Not applicable.a€<PART II&a€<Item 5.
Market for Registranta€™s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securitiesa€<Market Information and Holdersa€<The common stock of Provident
Financial Holdings, Inc. is listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol 4€ePROV.A€A At August 15, 2024, there were 400 shareholders of record, and there were
approximately 1,917 persons or entities that hold stock in nominee or a4€cestreet namea€ accounts with brokers.a€<Dividendsa€<The Corporationa€™s cash dividend payout policy is reviewed
regularly by management and the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has declared quarterly cash dividends on the Corporationa€™s common stock for consecutive quarters since
September 30, 2002. On April 25, 2024, the Corporation declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.14 per share withA a record date of May 16, 2024 and the dividend was paid on June 6, 2024.
Future declarations or payments of dividends will be subject to the consideration of the Corporationa€™s Board of Directors, which will take into account the Corporationa€™s financial
condition, results of operations, tax considerations, capital requirements, industry standards, legal restrictions, economic conditions and other factors, including the regulatory restrictions
which affect the payment of dividends by the Bank to the Corporation. Under Delaware law, dividends may be paid either out of surplus or, if there is no surplus, out of net profits for the current
fiscal year and/or the preceding fiscal year in which the dividend is declared. No assurances can be given that any dividends will be paid or that, if paid, will not be reduced or eliminated in
future periods. A Dividends on common stock from Provident depend substantially upon receipt of dividends from the Bank, which is Providenta€™s predominant source of income.
Managementa€™ s projections show an expectation that cash dividends will continue for the foreseeable future.a€<Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasersa€<On
September 28, 2023, the Board approved a stock repurchase plan, authorizing the purchase of up to 350,353 shares of the Corporationa€™ s outstanding common stock over a one-year period.
Simultaneously, the Board canceled the remaining 25,428 shares available for purchase under the prior repurchase plan. The Corporation may purchase the shares from time to time in the open
market or through privately negotiated transactions depending on market conditions, the capital requirements of the Corporation, and available cash that can be allocated to the stock
repurchase program, among other considerations. The September 2023 stock repurchase plan terminates on September 28, 2024, unless completed sooner or extended.a€<The table below sets
forth information regarding the Corporationd€™s purchases of its common stock during the fourth quarter of fiscal

2024.5€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAtAAAA a€A AAAa€éacAAAAAaEAAA A Maximuma€ a€ae«a€«ag«ae«ae«TotalA NumberA ofa€«NumberA ofA Sharesa€a€<a€<«a€«a€<«a€<«a€«Shares
1, 2024 a€“ April 30, 2024A 18,3514€<$ 13.52A 18,351A 219,241May 1, 2024 4€“ May 31, 2024A 18,4944€<$ 12.71A 18,494A 200,747June 1, 2024 4€“ June 30, 2024A 11,6314€<$ 12.64A
11,631A 189,116TotalA 48,476a€<$ 13.00A 48,476A 189,116a€«(1)Represents the remaining shares available for future purchases under the September 2023 stock repurchase
plan.a€<«49Table of ContentsPerformance Grapha€<The following graph compares the cumulative total shareholder return on the Corporationd€™s common stock with the cumulative total
return of the Nasdaq Stock Index (U.S. Stock) and Nasdaq Bank Index. Total return assumes the reinvestment of all dividends.a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€«a€<a€<a€ a€<a€<a€«a€«a€<a€«a€«a€<a€«af«a€«
a€A A AA6/30/2019A A A A 6/30/2020A A A A 6/30/2021A A A A 6/30/2022A A A A 6/30/2023A A A A 6/30/2024PROVA€<$ 100.00a€<$ 65.882€<$ 88.158€<$ 78.334€<$ 70.14a€<$
71.83NASDAQA Stock Indexa€<«$ 100.004€<$ 106.96a€<$ 154.52a€<$ 132.544€<$ 157.834€<$ 195.09NASDAQ Bank Indexa€<$ 100.00a€<$ 77.27a€<$ 133.594€<$ 109.094€<$ 105.72a€<$
144.54a€<(1)Assumes that the value of the investment in the Corporationd€™s common stock and each index was $100 on June 30, 2019 and that all dividends were reinvested.a€<Securities
Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plansa€<See Part III, Item 12 of this Form 10-K for information regarding the Corporationa€™s Equity Compensation Plans, which is
incorporated into this Item 5 by reference.a€<a€<Item 6. [Reserved]a€<a€<50Table of Contentsltem 7. Managementa€™ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operationsa€«Safe-Harbor Statementa€«Certain matters discussed in this Form 10-K constitute a€ceforward-looking statementsa€ within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995. These statements relate to the Corporationd€™ s financial condition, liquidity, results of operations, plans, objectives, future performance or business. You should not place undue
reliance on these statements as they are subject to various risks and uncertainties. When considering these forward-looking statements, you should keep in mind these risks and uncertainties,
as well as any cautionary statements the Corporation may make. Moreover, you should treat these statements as speaking only as of the date they are made and based only on information then
actually known to the Corporation. There are a number of important factors that could cause future results to differ materially from historical performance and these forward-looking
statements. Factors which could cause actual results to differ materially from the results anticipated or implied by our forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:a—adverse
economic conditions in our local market areas or other markets where we have lending relationshipsa—effects of employment levels, labor shortages, inflation, a recession or slowed economic
growth; &—changes in the interest rate environment, including the past increases in the Federal Reserve benchmark rate and the duration of such increased levels, which could adversely affect
our revenues and expenses, the value of assets and obligations, and the availability and cost of capital and liquidity;a—the impact of inflation and the Federal Reserve monetary policy;a—the
effects of any Federal government shutdown;4—credit risks of lending activities, including loan delinquencies, write-offs, changes in our ACL, and provision for credit losses;A—increased
competitive pressures; a—quality and composition of our securities portfolio and the impact of adverse changes in the securities markets;a—quality and composition of our securities portfolio
and the impact of adverse changes in the securities markets;a—fluctuations in deposits; &—secondary market conditions for loans and our ability to sell loans in the secondary market;a—
liquidity issues, including our ability to borrow funds or raise additional capital, if necessary;d—expectations regarding key growth initiatives and strategic priorities;a—the impact of bank
failures or adverse developments at other banks and related negative press about the banking industry in general on investor and depositor sentiment;a—results of examinations of us by



regulatory authorities, which may the possibility that any such regulatory authority may, among other things, institute a formal or informal enforcement action against us or our bank subsidiary
which could require us to increase our ACL, write-down assets, change our regulatory capital position or affect our ability to borrow funds or maintain or increase deposits or impose additional
requirements or restrictions on us, any of which could adversely affect our liquidity and earnings;a—legislative and regulatory changes, including changes in banking, securities and tax law, in
regulatory policies and principles, or the interpretation of regulatory capital or other rules;A—use of estimates in determining the fair value of assets, which may prove incorrect;a—disruptions
or security breaches, or other adverse events, failures or interruptions in or attacks on our information technology systems or on the our third-party vendors;a—staffing fluctuations in response
to product demand or corporate implementation strategies;ad—our ability to pay dividends on our common stock;a—environmental, social and governance goals;a—effects of climate change,
severe weather events, natural disasters, pandemics, epidemics and other public health crises, acts of war or terrorism, civil unrest and other external events;d—and other factors described in
this Form 10-K and in Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and other reports filed with and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission (4€ceSECA€), which are available on our website at
www.myprovident.com and on the SECa€™ s website at www.sec.gov. a€<51Table of ContentsForward-looking statements are based upon managementa€™s beliefs and assumptions at the time
they are made. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements included in this document or to update the reasons why actual results could differ from
those contained in such statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking statements
discussed in this document might not occur, and you should not put undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. These factors could cause our actual results for the fiscal 2025 and
beyond to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements by, or on behalf of, us and could negatively affect the Corporationa€™s consolidated financial condition and
consolidated results of operations as well as its stock price performance.a€<Generala€<Provident, a Delaware corporation, was organized in January 1996 for the purpose of becoming the
holding company of the Bank upon the Banka€™s conversion completed on June 27, 1996. Provident is regulated by the FRB. At June 30, 2024, the Corporation, on a consolidated basis, had
total assets of $1.27 billion, total deposits of $888.3 million and total stockholdersa€™ equity of $129.9 million. A Provident has not engaged in any significant activity other than holding the
stock of the Bank. Accordingly, the information set forth in this report, including financial statements and related data, relates primarily to the Bank and its subsidiaries.a€<The Bank, founded in
1956, is a federally chartered stock savings bank headquartered in Riverside, California. The Bank is regulated by the OCC, its primary federal regulator, and the FDIC, the insurer of its
deposits. The Banka€™ s deposits are federally insured up to applicable limits by the FDIC. The Bank has been a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System since 1956.4€<The Corporation
operates in a single business segment through the Bank. The Bank's activities include attracting deposits, offering banking services and originating and purchasing single-family, multi-family,
commercial real estate, construction and, to a lesser extent, other mortgage (generally land loans), commercial business and consumer loans. Deposits are collected primarily from 13 banking
locations located in Riverside and San Bernardino counties in California.A Loans are primarily originated and purchased in Southern and Northern California to be held for investment.A There
are various risks inherent in the Corporationa€™s business including, among others, the general business environment, interest rates, the California real estate market, the demand for loans,
the prepayment of loans, the repurchase of loans previously sold to investors, the secondary market conditions to sell loans, competitive conditions, legislative and regulatory changes, fraud and
other risks.4€<Managementa€™ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is intended to assist in understanding the financial condition and results of operations
of the Corporation. The information contained in this section should be read in conjunction with the audited Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying selected Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.4€<Critical Accounting Estimatesa€<The discussion and analysis of the Corporationd€™ s financial condition and results of
operations is based upon the Corporationa€™s consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make difficult, subjective or complex judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
revenues and expenses, and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and, therefore, management considers the following to be
critical accounting estimates. These estimates involve a significant level of uncertainty at the time they are made, and changes in these estimates that are reasonably likely to occur from period
to period, or use of different estimates that we reasonably could have used in the current period, would have a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations. A Accordingly,
actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. We base our estimates on past experience and other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under
the circumstances, and we evaluate these estimates on an ongoing basis. We have reviewed our critical accounting estimates with the audit committee of our Board of Directors. See Note 1 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a summary of significant accounting policies and the effect on our financial
statements.a€<52Table of Contentsa€<Allowance for Credit Losses. The ACL involves significant judgment and assumptions by management, which has a material impact on the carrying value of
financial assets. The Corporation adopted ASC 326 using the prospective transition approach for all financial assets measured at amortized cost and off-balance sheet credit exposures. Results
for reporting periods beginning after July 1, 2023 are presented under CECL while prior period amounts continue to be reported in accordance with previously applicable accounting
standards.a€<As required by ASC 326,A onA July 1, 2023A the Corporation implemented CECL and recognized a $1.2 million one-time increase to its ACL, which was recorded directly to
retained earnings. Under ASC 326,A the ACL is a valuation account that is deducted from the related loana€™s amortized cost basis to present the net amount expected to be collected on the
loans. The measurement of expected credit losses is based on relevant information about past events, including historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable
forecasts that affect the collectability of the reported amount.a€<Management believes the ACL on loans held for investment is maintained at a level sufficient to provide for expected losses on
the Corporationd€™ s loans held for investment based on historical loss experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The provision for (recovery of) credit losses is
charged (credited) against operations on a quarterly basis, as necessary, to maintain the ACL at appropriate levels. Future adjustments to the ACL may be necessary and results of operations
could be significantly and adversely affected as a result of economic, operating, regulatory, and other conditions beyond the Corporationa€™s control.Provision for Income Taxes. Management
accounts for income taxes by estimating future tax effects of temporary differences between the tax and book basis of assets and liabilities considering the provisions of enacted tax laws. These
differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included in the Corporationd€™s Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. The application of income tax law is
inherently complex. Laws and regulations in this area are voluminous and are often ambiguous. As such, management is required to make many subjective assumptions and judgments
regarding the Corporationd€™s income tax exposures, including judgments in determining the amount and timing of recognition of the resulting deferred tax assets and liabilities, including
projections of future taxable income. Interpretations of and guidance surrounding income tax laws and regulations change over time. As such, changes in managementa€™s subjective
assumptions and judgments can materially affect amounts recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition and Consolidated Statements of Operations.a€<Executive Summary
and Operating Strategya€<Provident Savings Bank, F.S.B., established in 1956, is a financial services company committed to serving consumers and small to mid-sized businesses in the Inland
Empire region of Southern California. The Bank conducts its business operations as Provident Bank and through its subsidiary, PFC. The business activities of the Corporation, primarily through
the Bank, consist of community banking and, to a lesser degree, investment services for customers and trustee services on behalf of the Bank.a€<Community banking operations primarily
consist of accepting deposits from customers within the communities surrounding the Banka€™s full service offices and investing those funds in single-family, multi-family and commercial real
estate loans. Also, to a lesser extent, the Bank originates construction, commercial business, consumer and other mortgage loans. The primary source of income in community banking is net
interest income, which is the difference between the interest income earned on loans and investment securities, and the interest expense paid on interest-bearing deposits and borrowed funds.
Additionally, certain fees are collected from depositors, such as returned check fees, deposit account service charges, ATM fees, IRA/KEOGH fees, safe deposit box fees, wire transfer fees and
overdraft protection fees, among others.a€<The Corporation plans to enhance its community banking business by moderately increasing its total assets, focusing on expanding single-family,
multi-family, commercial real estate, construction, and commercial business loans. Additionally, the Corporation aims to reduce the percentage of retail time deposits in its deposit base while
increasing the proportion of lower-cost checking and savings accounts. To diversify its deposit instruments, the Corporation will consider utilizing brokered certificates of deposit and the State
of Californiad€™s time deposits, subject to market conditions and its funding 53Table of Contentsneeds. A This strategy is designed to improve core revenue by achieving a higher net interest
margin and, combined with the Corporationa€™s growth, ultimately increase net interest income. While the Corporationa€™ s long-term strategy targets moderate growth, management
acknowledges that this growth may be influenced by general economic conditions and other factors.a€<Investment services operations primarily consist of selling alternative investment
products such as annuities and mutual funds to the Banka€™s depositors. Investment services and trustee services contribute a very small percentage of gross revenue.a€<PFC performs trustee
services for the Banka€™ s real estate secured loan transactions and has in the past held, and may in the future hold, real estate for investment.a€<There are a number of risks associated with
the business activities of the Corporation, many of which are beyond the Corporationa€™s control, including: changes in accounting principles, laws, regulation, interest rates and the economy,
among others. The Corporation attempts to mitigate many of these risks through prudent banking practices, such as interest rate risk management, credit risk management, operational risk
management, and liquidity risk management. The California economic environment presents heightened risk for the Corporation primarily with respect to real estate values and loan
delinquencies. Since the majority of the Corporationa€™ s loans are secured by real estate located within California, significant declines in the value of California real estate may also inhibit the
Corporation&€™s ability to recover on defaulted loans by selling the underlying real estate.A For further details on risk factors and uncertainties, see 4€ceSafe-Harbor Statementa€ included
above in this Item 7, and Item 1A, "Risk Factors.a€a€<Comparison of Financial Condition at June 30, 2024 and 2023&€«Total assets decreased $60.7 million, or 5%, to $1.27 billion at June 30,
2024 from $1.33 billion at June 30, 2023. The decrease was primarily attributable to decreases in loans held for investment, investment securities and cash and cash equivalents.&€<Total cash
and cash equivalents, primarily excess cash deposited with the FRB of San Francisco, decreased $14.4 million, or 22%, to $51.4 million at June 30, 2024 from $65.8 million at June 30,

2023.A The decrease was consistent with the Corporationa€™s strategy of adequately managing credit and liquidity risk.4€<Total investment securities (held to maturity and available for sale)
decreased $24.6 million, or 16%, to $131.9 million at June 30, 2024 from $156.5 million at June 30, 2023. The decrease was the result of scheduled and accelerated principal payments on
investment securities.A During fiscal 2024 and 2023, the Bank did not purchase or sell any investment securities. For additional information on investment securities, see Note 2 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.a4€<Loans held for investment, net decreased $24.7 million, or 2%, to $1.05 billion at June 30, 2024 from $1.08 billion at
June 30, 2023. In fiscal 2024, the Bank originated $75.5 million of loans held for investment, down 68% from $237.1 million during fiscal 2023. In both years these loans consisted primarily of
single-family, multi-family and commercial real estate loans. The Bank did not purchase any loans in fiscal 2024 or 2023. Management attributes the decrease in loan originations to the higher
interest rate environment and overall uncertainty in the economy. Total loan principal payments in fiscal 2024 were $99.9 million, down 2% from $102.3 million in fiscal 2023. There was no
REO in both fiscal 2024 and 2023. The balance of multi-family, commercial real estate, construction and commercial business loans, net of undisbursed loan funds, decreased $22.6 million, or
4%, to $532.6 million at June 30, 2024 from $555.2 million at June 30, 2023, and represented 51% and 52% of loans held for investment, respectively. The balance of single-family loans held for
investment decreased slightly to $518.1 million at June 30, 2024, from $518.8 million at June 30, 2023. For additional information on loans held for investment, see Note 3 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.4€<FHLB 4€“ San Francisco and other equity investments increased $603,000, or 6%, to $10.1 million at June 30, 2024
from $9.5 million at June 30, 2023. The increase was due to a VISA stock conversion and the purchase of additional FHLB stock. In May 2024, the Bank converted its Class B1 VISA stock to
Class B2 VISA stock and Class C VISA stock. Subsequently, the Bank recorded the Class C VISA stock at its fair value on its Consolidated Statements of Condition. As 54Table of Contentsof June
30, 2024, the fair value of the Class C VISA stock was $540,000. A The Bank also purchased $63,000 of required additional FHLB - San Francisco stock during the year.4€<Total deposits
decreased $62.3 million, or 7%, to $888.3 million at June 30, 2024 from $950.6 million at June 30, 2023. Transaction accounts decreased $115.1 million, or 16%, to $614.5 million at June 30,
2024 from $729.6 million at June 30, 2023, while time deposits increased $53.0 million, or 24%, to $273.9 million at June 30, 2024 from $220.9 million at June 30, 2023. The increase in time
deposits includes the increased utilization of brokered certificates of deposit. Brokered certificates of deposit increased $25.4 million, or 24%, to $131.8 million at June 30, 2024 from $106.4
million at June 30, 2023. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the percentage of transaction accounts to total deposits was 69% and 77%, respectively. Total retail deposits, defined as total deposits
excluding brokered certificates of deposit, decreased by $87.7 million, or 10% to $756.5 million at June 30, 2024 from $844.2 million at June 30, 2023, due primarily to the decline of transaction
account balances related to some customers seeking higher interest rates elsewhere. For additional information on deposits, see Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.a€<Borrowings, consisting of FHLB 4€“ San Francisco advances increased $3.5 million, or 1%, to $238.5 million at June 30, 2024 from $235.0 million at June
30, 2023. The increase was primarily due to new advances to augment the decrease in deposits. The weighted average maturity of the Corporationa€™s FHLB &€“ San Francisco advances was
approximately 13 months at June 30, 2024, up from 12 months at June 30, 2023. For additional information on borrowings, see Note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.a€<Total stockholdersa€™ equity increased slightly to $129.9 million at June 30, 2024 from $129.7 million at June 30, 2023, primarily as a result of net
income and the amortization of stock-based compensation in fiscal 2024, partly offset by stock repurchases (see Part II, Item 5, &€ceMarket for Registrantd€™s Common Equity, Related
Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securitiesa€ of this Form 10-K) and quarterly cash dividends paid to shareholders.a€<«a€<Comparison of Operating Results for the Fiscal
Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023&€<General. The Corporation recorded net income of $7.4 million, or $1.06 per diluted share, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, down $1.2 million, or
14%, from $8.6 million, or $1.19 per diluted share, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. The decrease in net income was primarily attributable to a $2.1 million decrease in net interest
income, a $270,000 increase in non-interest expense and a $134,000 decrease in non-interest income, partly offset by a $437,000 change in the provision for credit losses resulting from a
$63,000 recovery of credit losses recorded during fiscal 2024 compared to a $374,000 provision for credit losses during fiscal 2023. The Corporation's efficiency ratio, defined as non-interest
expense divided by the sum of net interest income and non-interest income, increased to 73% in fiscal 2024 from 69% in fiscal 2023 due to both an increase in non-interest expenses and a
decline in revenues. Return on average assets in fiscal 2024 decreased to 0.57% from 0.68% in fiscal 2023 and return on average stockholders' equity in fiscal 2024 decreased to 5.62% from
6.58% in fiscal 2023.4€<Net Interest Income. Net interest income decreased $2.1 million, or 6%, to $34.9 million in fiscal 2024 from $37.0 million in fiscal 2023. This decrease resulted from
interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities increasing at a faster pace than interest income earned on interest-earning assets. Net interest margin decreased 21 basis points to 2.78% in fiscal
2024 from 2.99% in fiscal 2023, due to the decline in net interest income coupled with an increase in average interest earning assets. A The average balance of interest-earning assets increased
$18.6 million, or 2%, to $1.25 billion in fiscal 2024 from $1.24 billion in fiscal 2023. The average balance of interest-bearing liabilities increased $16.8 million, or 2%, to $1.13 billion during
fiscal 2024 as compared to $1.12 billion during fiscal 2023.4€<Interest Income. Total interest income increased $8.7 million, or 19%, to $54.7 million for fiscal 2024 from $46.0 million for fiscal
2023. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase of interest income from loans receivable.a€<Interest income on loans receivable increased $8.0 million, or 19%, to $50.2 million in
fiscal 2024 from $42.2 million in fiscal 2023. The increase was attributable to a higher average loan yield and, to a lesser extent, a higher average loan balance. The weighted average loan yield
during fiscal 2024 increased 59 basis points to 4.69% from 4.10% in fiscal 2023, reflecting new loans being originated at higher interest rates and adjustable rate loans repricing higher due to
overall higher market interest rates resulting from the FOMC increases in the targeted federal funds rate during the latter half of fiscal 55Table of Contents2023. The average balance of loans
receivable increased $40.6 million, or 4%, to $1.07 billion during fiscal 2024 from $1.03 billion during fiscal 2023. &€<Interest income on investment securities decreased $109,000, or 5%, to
$2.1 million in fiscal 2024 from $2.2 million in fiscal 2023, due to a decrease in the average balance, partly offset by an increase in the average yield.. The average balance of investment
securities decreased $27.5 million, or 16%, to $144.5 million in fiscal 2024 from $172.0 million in fiscal 2023 as a result of scheduled and accelerated principal payments on mortgage-backed
securities. The average yield on investment securities increased 17 basis points to 1.43% for fiscal 2024 from 1.26% for fiscal 2023. The increase in the average yield of investment securities
was primarily attributable to a lower premium amortization resulting from lower principal payments. Total premium amortization in fiscal 2024 was $532,000, down $259,000, or 33%, from



$791,000 in fiscal 2023.a€<During fiscal 2024, the Bank received $802,000 of cash dividends from the FHLB - San Francisco and other equity investments, an increase of $246,000 or 44% from
the $556,000 of cash dividends received in fiscal 2023, resulting in an average yield of 8.35% during fiscal 2024 compared to 6.55% during fiscal 2023. &€<Interest income on interest-earning
deposits, primarily cash deposited at the FRB of San Francisco, increased $598,000, or 56%, to $1.7 million in fiscal 2024 from $1.1 million in fiscal 2023, due to a higher average yield and, to a
lesser extent, a higher average balance. The average yield increased 133 basis points to 5.38% in fiscal 2024 from 4.05% in fiscal 2023, resulting from increases in the targeted federal funds
interest rate since March 2022 to July 2023. The average balance of interest-earning deposits increased $4.4 million, or 17%, to $30.6 million in fiscal 2024 from $26.2 million in fiscal
2023.4€<Interest Expense. Total interest expense for fiscal 2024 was $19.8 million compared to $9.0 million for fiscal 2023, an increase of $10.8 million or 120%.A This increase was primarily
attributable to a higher interest expense on deposits, particularly time deposits and, to a lesser extent, a higher interest expense on borrowings. The average cost of interest-bearing liabilities
was 1.74% during fiscal 2024, up 94 basis points from 0.80% during fiscal 2023, and the average balance of interest-bearing liabilities was $1.14 billion during fiscal 2024, up $16.8 million or
2% from $1.12 billion during fiscal 2023. &€<Interest expense on deposits for fiscal 2024 was $9.7 million compared to $3.1 million for fiscal 2023, an increase of $6.6 million or 213%. The
increase was primarily attributable to a higher average cost for time deposits and, to a lesser extent, a higher average balance of such deposit. The average cost of time deposits in fiscal 2024
was 3.66%, up 196 basis points, from 1.70% in fiscal 2023, while the average cost of transaction accounts was 0.09% in fiscal 2024, up four basis points from 0.05% in fiscal 2023. The average
cost of all deposits increased 73 basis points to 1.06% in fiscal 2024 from 0.33% in fiscal 2023. The average balance of time deposits increased $85.8 million, or 53%, to $247.9 million in fiscal
2024 from $162.1 million in fiscal 2023, which as partly offset a decrease in the average balance of transaction accounts which decreased $130.5 million, or 16%, to $668 2 million in fiscal 2024
from $798.7 million in fiscal 2023. The increase of time deposits included increased brokered certificates of deposit. The average balance of brokered certificates of deposit in fiscal 2024 was
$118.8 million with the average cost of 5.17% compared to the average balance of $48.7 million with the average cost of 3.97% in fiscal 2023. 4€<Interest expense on borrowings, consisting of
FHLB - San Francisco advances, for fiscal 2024 increased $4.2 million, or 71%, to $10.1 million as compared to $5.9 million in fiscal 2023.A The increase in interest expense on borrowings was
due to a higher average balance and, to a lesser extent, a higher average cost. The average balance of borrowings increased $61.7 million, or 39%, to $221.4 million during fiscal 2024 from
$159.7 million during fiscal 2023 and the average cost of borrowings was 4.58% in fiscal 2024, up 91 basis points from 3.67% in fiscal 2023.&€<Provision for (Recovery of) Credit Losses. During
fiscal 2024, the Corporation recorded a recovery of credit losses of $63,000, compared to a provision for credit losses of $374,000 during fiscal 2023. The recovery of credit losses reflected in
fiscal 2024 was primarily due to a $23.5 million decrease in loans held for investment at June 30, 2024 from June 30, 2023 and a slightly shorter estimated life of the single-family loan portfolio
resulting from higher loan prepayment estimates, partly offset by higher unfunded loan commitments resulting from a higher outstanding balance at June 30, 2024 as compared to the prior
fiscal year end. The provision for credit losses in fiscal 2023 was primarily due to a higher outstanding balance of loans held for investment.a€<56Table of ContentsAt June 30, 2024, the ACL on
loans held for investment was $7.1 million, comprised of collectively evaluated allowances of $7.1 million and individually evaluated allowances of $37,000; up 20% from $5.9 million at June 30,
2023. The ACL on loans as a percentage of gross loans held for investment was 0.67% at June 30, 2024, compared to 0.55% at June 30, 2023. The increase in the ACL on loans was due primarily
to the adoption of the CECL methodology ($1.2 million), partly offset by the recovery of credit losses in fiscal 2024 ($63,000, net of a $15,000 provision for unfunded loan commitment reserves).
The ACL on loans as a percentage of gross loans held for investment was 0.67% at June 30, 2024, compared to 0.55% at June 30, 2023.The following chart quantifies the factors contributing to
the changes in the ACL on loans held for investment (4€0ceLHFIA€) for the year ended June 30, 2024 subsequent to the adoption of the CECL methodology on July 1, 2023.4€<a€<Management
believes, based on currently available information, the ACL is sufficient to absorb expected losses inherent in loans held for investment at June 30, 2024 under the CECL methodology adopted
since July 1, 2023. For additional information, see Item 1, &€ceBusiness - &€meAsset Qualitya€ in this Form 10-K.4€<Non-Interest Income. Total non-interest income was $3.9 million in fiscal
2024, a decrease of $134,000 or 3% from $4.1 million in fiscal 2023.4€<Loan servicing and other fees decreased $77,000, or 19%, to $337,000 for fiscal 2024 from $414,000 in fiscal 2023, due
primarily to lower loan prepayment fees, attributable to lower loan payoffs.a€<Deposit account fees decreased $142,000, or 11%, to $1.2 million for fiscal 2024 from $1.3 million in fiscal 2023,
due primarily to lower non-sufficient funds account fees, attributable to lower transactions and lower transaction account balances.a€<«Card and processing fees decreased $141,000, or 9%, to
$1.4 million for fiscal 2024 from $1.5 million in fiscal 2023, due primarily to lower debit card transactions.&€<Other fees increased $226,000, or 27%, to $1.1 million for fiscal 2024 from
$840,000 in fiscal 2023, due primarily to a $540,000 net unrealized gain on other equity investments resulting from the VISA share conversion, partly offset by a net change of $190,000 on the
losses on sale of loans (a net loss of $64,000 on sale of loans in fiscal 2024 compared to a net gain of $124,000 on sale of loans in the prior fiscal year). In May 2024, the Bank converted its VISA
Class B1 shares into VISA Class B2 shares and VISA Class C shares and recorded the VISA Class C shares at fair value subsequent to the conversion.a€<57Table of ContentsNon-Interest
Expense. Total non-interest expense was $28.5 million in fiscal 2024, an increase of $270,000 or 1% from $28.3 million in fiscal 2023. The increase in non-interest expense was primarily
attributable to increases in premises and occupancy expenses, equipment expense, deposit insurance premiums and regulatory assessments, partly offset by decreases in salaries and employee
benefits and other operating expenses.a€<Salaries and employee benefits expense decreased $95,000, or 1%, to $17.6 million in fiscal 2024 from $17.7 million in fiscal 2023. The decrease in
salaries and employee benefits expense was primarily attributable to a decrease in incentive compensation, partly offset by increases in the supplemental executive retirement plans and
compensation costs. &€<Premises and occupancy expense increased $139,000, or 4%, to $3.6 million in fiscal 2024 from $3.4 million in fiscal 2023. The increase was primarily attributable to
increases in building maintenance and fixture depreciation costs, resulting primarily from the relocation of one of our banking offices and ATM upgrades, partly offset by lower on-line service
expenses. a€<Equipment expense increased $157,000, or 14%, to $1.3 million in fiscal 2024 from $1.2 million in fiscal 2023, due primarily to the upgrades of computer hardware and software
and an increase of equipment lease expenses. a€<«Deposit insurance premiums and regulatory assessments increased $123,000, or 19%, to $780,000 in fiscal 2024 from $657,000 in fiscal 2023,
primarily attributable to the increase in FDIC insurance assessments. a€<Provision for Income Taxes. The income tax provision reflects accruals for taxes at the applicable rates for federal
income tax and California franchise tax based upon reported pre-tax income, adjusted for the effect of all permanent differences between income for tax and financial reporting purposes, such
as non-deductible stock-based compensation and bank-owned life insurance policies, among others.A Therefore, there are fluctuations in the effective income tax rate from period to period
based on the relationship of net permanent differences to income before tax.4€<The provision for income taxes was $3.0 million for fiscal 2024, representing an effective tax rate of 29.2%, down
$788,000 or 21% from $3.8 million in fiscal 2023, representing an effective tax rate of 30.8%. The lower effective tax rate in fiscal 2024 was attributable primarily to the decreased tax benefit in
fiscal 2023 from the equity incentive awards with the share price lower at vesting and distribution than the fair value estimated at the grant date, which was not replicated in fiscal 2024.4€<The
Corporationa€™s effective tax rate may differ from the estimated tax rates described above due to discrete items such as further adjustments to net deferred tax assets, excess tax benefits
derived from stock option exercises and non-taxable earnings from bank owned life insurance, among other items. The Corporation determined that the above tax rates meet its estimated
income tax obligations. For additional information, see Note 8, "Income Taxes," of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. 4€<58Table of
ContentsAverage Balances, Interest and Average Yields/Costsa€<The following table sets forth certain information for the periods regarding average balances of assets and liabilities as well as
the total dollar amounts of interest income from average interest-earning assets and interest expense on average interest-bearing liabilities and average yields and costs thereof. A Yields and
costs for the periods indicated are derived by dividing income or expense by the average monthly balance of assets or liabilities, respectively, for the periods

presented.A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEYear Ended JuneA 30,A 4€4€20244€<20234€ A€ A€ Averageat A€ A€ «a€Yield/a€Averageas a€«a€<«a€«Yield/
a€<(D011ars In Thousands)a€ Balancea€<Interesta€«Costa€Balancea€<Interesta€«Costa€Interest-earning
assetssAAAAa€AAAAAAGCAAAAAAAAAAAACAAAAAAGEAAAAAAAAAAAALoans receivable, net(1)a€<$ 1,069,616a€<$ 50,194A 4.69%A A $ 1,029,0004€<$ 42,191A
4.10%A A Investment securitiesd€<A 144,466a€<A 2,060A 1.43%A A A 172,0054€<A 2,169A 1.26%A A FHLB - San Francisco and other equity investmentsa€<A 9,6014€<A 802A 8.35%A A A
8,488a€<A 556A 6.55%A A Interest-earning depositsé€<A 30,610a€<A 1,674A 5.38%A A A 26,2143€<A 1,076A 4.05%A A 4€<A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE@AETotal
interest-earning assetsa€<A 1,254, 293a€<A 54, 730A 4. 36%AAA 1,235, 707a€<A 45, 992A 3. 72%AA a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<Noninterest-earning assetsa€ A

market accqunts(Z)a€<$ 407, 9383§<A 290/{ Q Q7%AA $ 479A921a€<AA 227A OAOAS%AA Savmgs accountsa€<«A 260 249a€<A 313A 0.12%A A A 318,7954€<A 1§8A 0.05%A Aﬁune .
depositsa€<A 247,8633€<A 9,063A 3.66%A A A 162,1448€A 2,751A 1.70%A A A€ AEAEAE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAETotal deposits(3)a€A 916,0504€<A 9,666A
1.06%A A A 960,8604€<A 3,146A 0.33%A A a€<4€a€<a€<a€<a€ Q€A <a€ A€ A€ a€t«at«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€Borrowingsa€<A 221,368a€<A 10,141A 4.58%A A A 159,742a€<A 5,861A
3.67%A A a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<T0tal interest- bearmg hablhtlesa€<A 1, 137 418a€<A 19, 807A 1.74%A A A 1,120,6024€<A 9,007A

34,923A A A a€AAA a€<$ 36, 985A AA a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<1nterest rate spread(4)a€<A AAaeAAAA 2.62%AAAAAaEAAAA 2.92%A A Net

interest margm(S)a€<A AAacAAAA 2.78%AAAAAa€EAAAA 2.99%A A Ratio of average interest- earning assets to average interest-bearing liabilitiesa€<A A A 4€<A A A A

110.28%A AAAA a€AAAA 110.27%A A 4€<(1)Includes the average balance of non-performing loans of $2.1 million and $1.1 million, as well as net deferred loan costs of $955 thousand and
$959 thousand for the fiscal years endedA June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.(2)Includes the average balance of noninterest-bearing checking accounts of $97.3 million and $112.9 million in
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.(3)Includes the average balance of uninsured deposits of $135.7 million and $170.2 million in the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024
and 2023, respectively.(4)Represents the difference between the weighted average yield on all interest-earning assets and the weighted average rate on all interest-bearingA liabilities.
(5)Represents net interest income as a percentage of average interest-earning assets.&€<59Table of ContentsRate/Volume Variancea€<The following table sets forth the effects of changing rates
and volumes on interest income and expense of the Corporation for the period presented. Information is provided with respect to the effects attributable to changes in volume (changes in
volume multiplied by prior rate), the effects attributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume) and the effects attributable to changes that cannot be allocated between
rate and volume.4€<3€<4€<A€<A€<A€A€AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEYear Ended JuneA 30,A 2024A ComparedA 4€<4€<ToA Year Ended JuneA 30,A 2023a€<a€IncreaseA (Decrease)A DueA to(In
Thousands)&€<Ratea€ Volumeé&€<Rate/Volumea€«NetInterest-earning assets:A A A A A6AAAAAAACAAAAAAAEAAAAAA AEA A Loans receivable(1)a€<$ 6,0984€<$ 1,6654€<$ 240a€$
8,003Investment securitiesa€<A 285a€<A (347)a€<A (47)a€<A (109)FHLB 4€“ San Francisco and other equity investmentsa€<«A 153a€<A 73a€<A 20a€<A 246Interest-bearing depositsa€<A
362a€<A 178a€<A 584€<A 598Total net change in income on interest-earning assetsa€<A 6,898a€<A 1,569a€<A 271a€<A 8,7384€A€AE€AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEInterest-bearing
liabilities:a€<A A A 4€<A A A 4€<A A A 4€<A A A Checking and money market accountsa€<A 1134€<A (36)a€<A (14)a€<A 63 Savings accountsa€«A 2154€<A (29)a€<A (41)a€A 145 Time
dep081tsa€<A 3,1758€<A 1,4574€<A 1,6804€<A 6,312 Borrowingsa€<A 1,4574€<A 2,262a€<A 5614€<A 4,280Total net change in expense on interest-bearing liabilitiesd€<A 4,9608€<A
3,6548€<A 2,1864€<A 10,800Net increase (decrease) in net interest incomea€<$ 1,9384€<$ (2,085)a€<$ (1,915)a€<$ (2,062)a€<«(1)Includes non-performing loans. For purposes of calculating
volume, rate and rate/volume variances, non-performing loansA were included in the weighted average balance outstanding.a€<Liquidity and Capital Resourcesa€<The Banka€™s primary
sources of funds are deposits, proceeds from principal and interest payments on loans, proceeds from the maturity and sale of investment securities, proceeds from FHLB - San Francisco
advances, access to the discount window facility at the FRB of San Francisco and access to the correspondent banka€™ s federal funds facility. While maturities and scheduled amortization of
loans and investment securities are a relatively predictable source of funds, deposit flows and mortgage prepayments are greatly influenced by general interest rates, economic conditions and
competition.a€<The primary investing activity of the Bank has been the origination and, to a lesser extent, purchase of loans held for investment. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, the Bank originated loans held for investment of $75.5 million and $237.1 million, respectively.A The Bank did not purchase any loans held for investment from other financial institutions
in fiscal 2024 or 2023. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Bank had loan origination commitments totaling $9.4 million and $2.4 million, with undisbursed loan funds of $435,000 and $2.0 million,
respectively. The Bank anticipates that it will have sufficient funds available to meet its current loan origination commitments.a€<The Bank's primary financing activity is gathering deposits,
which include both retail and brokered deposits. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the net decrease in deposits was $62.2 million and $4.9 million, respectively. On June 30,
2024, time deposits scheduled to mature in one year or less were $245.7 million.A Historically, the Bank has been able to retain a significant percentage of its time deposits as they mature by
adjusting deposit rates based upon the current interest rate environment.a€<The Bank must maintain an adequate level of liquidity to ensure the availability of sufficient funds to support loan
growth and deposit withdrawals, to satisfy financial commitments and to take advantage of investment opportunities. The Bank generally maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet
short-term liquidity needs. At June 30, 2024, total cash and cash equivalents were $51.4 million, or 4.0% of total assets. Depending on market conditions and the pricing of deposit products and
FHLB - San Francisco advances, the Bank may continue to rely on FHLB - San Francisco advances for part 60Table of Contentsof its liquidity needs. As of June 30, 2024, the remaining financing
availability at the FHLB - San Francisco was $261.3 million and the remaining available collateral was $367.4 million.A In addition, the Bank has secured a $208.6 million discount window
facility at the FRB of San Francisco, collateralized by $126.6 million of investment securities and $178.6 million of loans held for investment.A The Bank also has a federal funds facility with its
correspondent bank for $50.0 million which matures on June 30, 2025.A As of June 30, 2024, there were no outstanding borrowings under the discount window facility or the federal funds
facility with its correspondent bank. The total available borrowing capacity across all sources totals approximately $519.9 million at June 30, 2024.4€<Regulations require the Bank to maintain
adequate liquidity to assure safe and sound operations. The Bank's average liquidity ratio (defined as the ratio of average qualifying liquid assets to average deposits and borrowings) for the
quarter ended June 30, 2024 decreased to 16.6% from 18.1% during the same quarter ended June 30, 2023.A The decrease in the liquidity ratio was due primarily to the decrease in average
qualifying liquid assets which exceeded the decrease in average deposits and borrowings during the quarter ended June 30, 2024 in comparison to the quarter ended June 30, 2023.A The Bank
augments its liquidity by maintaining sufficient borrowing capacity at the FHLB - San Francisco, FRB of San Francisco and its correspondent bank.a€<We incur capital expenditures on an
ongoing basis to expand and improve our product offerings, enhance and modernize our technology infrastructure, and to introduce new technology-based products to compete effectively in our
markets. We evaluate capital expenditure projects based on a variety of factors, including expected strategic impacts (such as forecasted impact on revenue growth, productivity, expenses,
service levels and customer retention) and our expected return on investment. The amount of capital investment is influenced by, among other things, current and projected demand for our
services and products, cash flow generated by operating activities, cash required for other purposes and regulatory considerations.a€<Based on our current capital allocation objectives, during
fiscal 2025 we project expenditures of ranging from $270,000 to $1.5 million for capital investment in premises and equipment. For additional information regarding our commitments, see Note
13, "Commitments and Contingencies," of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.4€<Provident is a separate legal entity from the Bank and, on a
stand-alone level, must provide for its own liquidity and pay its own operating expenses, cash dividends and stock repurchases. Providenta€™s primary sources of funds consist of capital raised
through dividends or capital distributions from the Bank, although there are regulatory restrictions on the ability of the Bank to pay dividends. During fiscal 2024, the Corporation purchased
197,349 shares of the Corporationa€™s common stock with a weighted average cost of $13.05 per share. As of June 30, 2024, there are 189,116 shares available for purchase under the
Corporationd€™ s existing stock repurchase plan. The Corporation purchases the shares from time to time in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions depending on market



conditions, the capital requirements of the Corporation, and available cash that can be allocated to the stock repurchase program, among other considerations. In addition, we currently expect
to continue our current practice of paying quarterly cash dividends on our common stock subject to our Board of Directors' discretion to modify or terminate this practice at any time and for any
reason without prior notice. Our current quarterly common stock dividend rate is $0.14 per share, as approved by our Board of Directors, which we believe is a dividend rate per share which
enables us to balance our multiple objectives of managing and investing in the Bank, and returning a substantial portion of our cash to our shareholders. Assuming continued payment during
fiscal 2025 at this rate of $0.14 per share, our average total dividend paid each quarter would be approximately $959,000 based on the number of our current outstanding shares as of June 30,
2024. At June 30, 2024, Provident (on an unconsolidated basis) had liquid assets of approximately $3.4 million. 4€<The Bank, as a federally-chartered, federally insured savings bank, is subject
to the capital requirements established by the OCC. Under the OCC's capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific
capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Banka€™ s assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Banka€™s
capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weighting and other factors. In addition, Provident Financial Holdings, Inc.,
as a savings and loan holding company registered with the FRB, is required by the FRB to maintain capital adequacy that generally parallels the OCC requirements. Since the holding company
has less than $3.0 billion in assets, the capital guidelines apply on a bank only basis, and the FRB expects the holding companya€™s subsidiary bank to be well capitalized under the prompt
corrective action regulations.61Table of Contentsa€<At June 30, 2024, the Bank exceeded all regulatory capital requirements. Under the prompt corrective action provisions, minimum ratios of
5.0% for Tier 1 Leverage Capital, 6.5% for CET1 Capital, 8.0% for Tier 1 Risk-based Capital and 10.0% for Total Risk-based Capital are required to be deemed d€cewell capitalized.a€ As of June
30, 2024, the Bank exceeded the capital ratios needed to be considered well capitalized with Tier 1 Leverage Capital, CET1 Capital, Tier 1 Risk-based Capital and Total Risk-based Capital ratios
of 10.0%, 19.3%, 19.3% and 20.4%, respectively. See also, &€ceRegulation a€“ Federal Regulation of Savings Institutions 4€“ Capital Requirementsa€ and Note 9, "Capital" of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Items 1 and 8 of this Form 10-K, respectively.a€<Impact of New Accounting Pronouncementsa€<Various elements of the Corporation's
accounting policies, by their nature, are inherently subject to estimation techniques, valuation assumptions and other subjective assessments. In particular, management has identified several
accounting policies that, as a result of the judgments, estimates and assumptions inherent in those policies, are important to gain an understanding of the financial statements of the
Corporation. These policies relate to the methodology for the recognition of interest income, determination of the provision for credit losses and the ACL, the estimated fair value of derivative
financial instruments, the valuation of mortgage servicing assets and real estate owned and the provision for income taxes. These policies and judgments, estimates and assumptions are
described in greater detail in this Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and in the section entitled &€ceOrganization and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policiesa€ contained in Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. Management believes that the judgments,
estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are appropriate based on the factual circumstances at the time. However, because of the sensitivity of the
financial statements to these accounting policies, changes to the judgments, estimates and assumptions used could result in material differences in the results of operations or financial
condition.a€<«a€<Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Riska€<Quantitative Aspects of Market Risk. The Corporation does not maintain a trading account for any class
of financial instrument nor does it purchase high-risk derivative financial instruments. Furthermore, the Corporation is not subject to foreign currency exchange rate risk or commodity price
risk. The primary market risk that the Corporation faces is interest rate risk. For information regarding the sensitivity to interest rate risk of the Corporation's interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities, see a€celnterest Rate Riska€ below and Item 1, &€ceBusiness - Lending Activities - Maturity of Loans Held for Investment,a€ a€ce- Investment Securities Activities,a€
and a€ce- Deposit Activities and Other Sources of Funds - Time Deposits by Remaining Maturitya€A in this Form 10-K.&€<Interest Rate Risk. One of the Corporation's principal financial
objectives is to achieve long-term profitability while reducing its exposure to fluctuating interest rates. The Corporation, through the Corporation's Asset-Liability Committee, has sought to
reduce the exposure of its earnings to changes in interest rates by attempting to manage the repricing mismatch between interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The principal
element in achieving this objective is to increase the interest rate sensitivity of the Corporation's interest-earning assets by retaining for its portfolio new loan originations with interest rates
subject to periodic adjustment to market conditions. In addition, the Corporation maintains an investment portfolio, which is largely comprised of U.S. government agency MBS and U.S.
government sponsored enterprise MBS and CMO with contractual maturities of up to 30 years that reprice frequently or have a relatively short-average life. The Corporation relies on retail
deposits as its primary source of funds while utilizing brokered certificates of deposit and FHLB - San Francisco advances as secondary sources of funding. Management believes retail deposits,
unlike brokered certificates of deposit, reduce the effects of interest rate fluctuations because they generally represent a more stable source of funds. As part of its interest rate risk
management strategy, the Corporation promotes transaction accounts and time deposits with terms up to seven years. For additional information, see Item 7, &€ceManagement's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsa€ in this Form 10-K.&€<Through the use of an internal interest rate risk model, the Corporation is able to analyze its interest rate risk
exposure by measuring the change in net portfolio value (4€ceNPVa€) over a variety of interest rate scenarios. NPV is defined as the net present value of expected future cash flows from assets,
liabilities and off-balance sheet contracts. The calculation is intended to illustrate the change in NPV that would occur in the event of an immediate change in interest rates of -300, -62Table of
Contents200, -100, +100, +200 and +300 basis points (d€cebpa€) with no effect given to steps that management might take to counter the effect of the interest rate movement. As of June 30,
2024, the targeted federal funds rate range was 5.25% to 5.50%.4€<The following table sets forth as of June 30, 2024 the estimated changes in NPV based on the indicated interest rate
environment (dollars in thousands):a€<A€ <A€<A€<A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEA AAA NetA A A A a€4€<A A A A PortfolioA A A A NPVA asA PercentageA A A A a€<4€<Basis Points
("bp")a€<Portfoliod€<NPVa€ValueA ofa€«ofA PortfolioA Valuea€<Sensitivityd€« Change in Ratesa€<Valuea€<Change(1)a€ Assetsa€ Assets(2)a€<Measure(3)a€<+300 bpa€«$ 99,797a€<$
(29,127)a€<$ 1,233,560A 8.09%A A (203)bp+200 bpa€«$ 114,8404€<$ (14,084)a€<$ 1,252,262A 9.17%A A (95)bp+100 bpa€«$ 124,386a€<$ (4,538)a€<$ 1,265,538A 9.83%A A (29)bp-a€<$
128,9244€<$ 4€"a€<$ 1,273,858A 10.12%A A 4€”8€<-100 bpa€«$ 136,297a€<$ 7,3734€<$ 1,285,088A 10.61%A A 49bp-200 bpa€«$ 128,436a€<$ (488)a€<$ 1,281,017A 10.03%A A (9)bp-300
bpa€«$ 129,4384€<$ 5144€<$ 1,286,155a€< 10.06%A A (6)bpa€«(1)Represents the (decrease) increase of the NPV at the indicated interest rate change in comparison to the NPV at June 30, 2024
(&€ebase casea€).(2)Calculated as the NPV divided by the portfolio value of total assets.(3)Calculated as the change in the NPV ratio (NPV as a Percentage of Portfolio Value Assets) from the
base case amount assuming the indicated change in interest rates (expressed in basis points).a€<The following table is derived from the internal interest rate risk model and represents the
change in the NPV at a +200 bp rate shock at June 30, 2024 and -200 bp rate shock at June 30, 2023 which has been determined to be the most detrimental to the interest rate risk of the
Corporation in a -200, -100, +100 and +200 bp rate shock scenario:a€ a€<a€a€<«a€<a€a€<a€a€<a€«A A A A AtA JuneA 30,A 2024A A A A AtA JuneA 30,A 2023A a€<A (+200 bp rate shock)A (-200
bp rate shock)a€<Pre-Shock NPV Ratio: NPV as a % of PV AssetsA 10.12%4a€<9.29%4€Post-Shock NPV Ratio: NPV as a % of PV AssetsA 9.17%&€<8.37%4a€<Sensitivity Measure: Change in NPV
RatioA -95bpA -92bpa€<a€<The pre-shock NPV ratio increased 83 basis points to 10.12% at June 30, 2024 from 9.29% A at June 30, 2023, and the post-shock NPV ratio increased 80 basis points
to 9.17% (+200 basis point rate shock) at June 30, 2024 from 8.37% (-200 basis point rate shock) at June 30, 2023. The increase of the NPV ratios was primarily attributable to the net income in
fiscal 2024 and amortization of stock-based compensation, partly offset by a $7.0 million cash dividend distribution from the Bank to the Corporation in September 2023, an $824,000 CECL
adoption charged to equity, and increases in market interest rates. The sensitivity measure increased to 95 basis points at June 30, 2024 from 92 basis points at June 30, 2023.4€<As with any
method of measuring interest rate risk, certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the foregoing tables. For example, although certain assets and liabilities may
have similar maturities or periods to repricing, they may react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates. Also, the interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may
fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types of assets and liabilities may lag behind changes in market interest rates. Additionally, certain assets,
such as ARM loans, have features that restrict changes in interest rates on a short-term basis and over the life of the asset. Further, in the event of a change in interest rates, expected rates of
prepayments on loans and early withdrawals from time deposits could likely deviate significantly from those assumed when calculating the results described in the tables above. It is also
possible that, as a result of an interest rate increase, the higher mortgage payments required from ARM borrowers could result in an increase in delinquencies and defaults. Accordingly, the
data presented in the tables in this section should not be relied upon as indicative of actual results in the event of changes in interest rates. Furthermore, the NPV presented in the foregoing
tables is not intended to present the fair market value of the Corporation, nor does it represent amounts that would be available for distribution to shareholders in the event of the liquidation of
the Corporation.a€<63Table of ContentsThe Corporation measures and evaluates the potential effects of interest rate movements through an interest rate sensitivity "gap" analysis. Interest rate
sensitivity reflects the potential effect on net interest income when there is movement in interest rates. For loans, securities and liabilities with contractual maturities, the table presents
contractual repricing or scheduled maturity. For transaction accounts (checking, money market and savings deposits) that have no contractual maturity, the table presents estimated principal
cash flows and, as applicable, the Corporation's historical experience, management's judgment and statistical analysis concerning their most likely withdrawal behaviors.a€<The following table
represents the interest rate gap analysis of the Corporation's assets and liabilities as of June 30,

2024:4€ A€ <A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAETermA toA ContractualA Repricing,A EstimatedA Repricing,A orA ContractualA a€<a€<Matunty(1)A 4€<a€<AsA ofA JuneA 30,/

thanA A A A Greater thanA A A A Greater thanA A A A 4€<4€<A 4€<4€<12 months ora€<1 year to 34€<3 years toa€<5 years Ora€<a€<a€A (Dollars In Thousands)a€«lessA yearsA 5 yearsA non-
sen51t1vea€<T0tala€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<Reprlcmg Assets:A €A A A a€<A A A a€<A A A a€<A A A a€<A A a€<Cash and cash equlvalentsa€<$ 45, 058a€<$ a€”a€<$
4€74€<$ 6,318a€<$ 51,376a€Investment securitiesd€<A 7,176a€<A a€”a€<A 4€”a€<A 124,7244€<A 131,9004€<Loans held for investmenta€<«A 273,678a€<A 199,276a€<A 245,5574€<A
334,4686€<A 1,052,9794€<FHLB - San Francisco and other equity investmentsa€<A 10,108a€<A a€”a€<A a€”a€<A 4€”a€<A 10,108a€<Other assetsa€<«A 4,287a€<A A€”a€«A a€"a€A
21,550a€<A 25,837a€<Total assetsa€<A 340,3074€<A 199,276a€<A 245,557a€<A 487,0608€<A 1,272,2008€A€A€AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAERepricing Liabilities and
Equity:a€<A A AaeAAAACAAAGEAAAAEAAA a€<Checking deposits - noninterest-bearinga€<A 4€”a4€<A 4€”4€<A 4€"a€<A 95,627a€<A 95,627a€<Checking deposits - interest
bearinga€<A 38,1944€<A 76,387a€<A 76,3874€<A 63,656a€<A 254,6244€Savings depositsa€«A 47,776a4€<A 95,5514€<A 95,5514€<A 4€”a€<A 238,878a€<Money market depositsa€<A
12,662a€<A 12,662&€<A a€73EA AE"AEA 25,3244€<Time depositsé€<A 245,7134€<A 23,383a€A 3,5456€<A 1,254é€<A 273,895&€<Borr0wingsé€<f\ 145,5004€<A 78,0004€<A 15,0004€<A
a€”a€«A 238,5004€<Other liabilitiesa€<A 1,783a€<A 4€”a€<A a€”A4€<A 13,6284€<A 15,4114€<Stockholders’ equitya€<A 4€”a€<A A4€"AE€<A A€”AE<A 129,9414€<A 129,9414€<Total liabilities and
stockholders' equitya€<A 491,628a€<A 285,983a€<A 190,4834€<A 304,1064€<A 1,272,2004€<A€ A€ AE<AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEa€aERepricing gap positive (negative)a€<s
(151,321)a€<$ (86,707)a€<$ 55,0744€<$ 182,9544€<$ 4€”a€«Cumulative repricing gap:a€<A A A 4€<A A A a€<A A A a€<A A A a€<A A A a€<Dollar amounta€<$ (151,321)a€<$ (238,028)a€<$
(182,954)a€<$ a€”a€<$ a€”a€Percent of total assetsa€A (12)%A AA (19)%AAA (14)%A AA a€”"%A A A a€”"%a€<«(1)Cash and cash equivalents are presented as estimated repricing;
investment securities and loans held for investment are presented as contractual maturities or contractual repricing (without consideration for prepayments); FHLB - San Francisco and other
equity investments are presented as contractual repricing; transaction accounts (checking, savings and money market deposits) are presented as estimated repricing; and time deposits (without
consideration for early withdrawals) and borrowings are presented as contractual maturities.a€<The static gap analysis under 4€ce12 months or lessa€ duration, &€ceGreater than 1 year to 3
yearsa€ duration and a€ceGreater than 3 years to 5 yearsa€ duration A show negative positions in the "Cumulative repricing gap - dollar amount” category, indicating more liabilities are
sensitive to repricing than assets in the short and intermediate terms. Management views noninterest-bearing deposits to be the least sensitive to changes in market interest rates and these
accounts are therefore characterized as long-term funding. Interest-bearing checking deposits are considered more sensitive, followed by increased sensitivity 64Table of Contentsfor savings
and money market deposits. For the purpose of calculating gap, a portion of these interest-bearing deposit balances are assumed to be subject to estimated repricing as follows: interest-bearing
checking deposits at 15% per year, savings deposits at 20% per year and money market deposits at 50% in the first and second years.a€<The gap results presented above could vary
substantially if different assumptions are used or if actual experience differs from the assumptions used in the preparation of the gap analysis. Furthermore, the gap analysis provides a static
view of interest rate risk exposure at a specific point in time without taking into account redirection of cash flows activity and deposit fluctuations.a€<The extent to which the net interest margin
will be impacted by changes in prevailing interest rates will depend on a number of factors, including how quickly interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities react to interest rate
changes. It is not uncommon for rates on certain assets or liabilities to lag behind changes in the market rates of interest. Additionally, prepayments of loans and early withdrawals of time
deposits could cause interest sensitivities to vary. As a result, the relationship between interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, as shown in the previous table, is only a general
indicator of interest rate sensitivity and the effect of changing interest rates on net interest income. Results are likely to be different from that predicted solely on the basis of the interest rate
sensitivity analysis set forth in the previous table.a€<The Corporation also models the sensitivity of net interest income for the 12-month period subsequent to any given month-end assuming a
dynamic balance sheet accounting for, among other items:a€<«4—The Corporationd€™ s current balance sheet and repricing characteristics;a—Forecasted balance sheet growth consistent with
the business plan;a—Current interest rates and yield curves and management estimates of projected interest rates;a—Embedded options, interest rate floors, periodic caps and lifetime caps;a—
Repricing characteristics for market rate sensitive instruments;d—Loan, investment security, deposit and borrowing cash flows;a—Loan prepayment estimates for each type of loan; anda—
Immediate, permanent and parallel movements in interest rates of +300, +200 +100, and -100, -200 and -300 bp.a€<The following table describes the results of the analysis at June 30, 2024
and 2023:4€<A€<a€<a€Q€<A€<a€ A€ @€ At JuneA 30,A 20244€<At JuneA 30,A 2023A Basis Point (bp)a€<ChangeA in&€<BasisA PointA (bp)a€<ChangeA inA Change in

Ratesa€<NetA InterestA Incomea€<ChangeA inA Ratesa€<NetA InterestA IncomeA +300 bpA A A A -8.12%4a€<+300 bpA A A A -10.56%a€<+200 bpA -3.45%4€<+200 bpA -5.26%a€<+100

bpA -0.51%4€<+100 bpA -1.95%4&€<«100 bpA -0.67%4a€<-100 bpA 1.25%4&€<-200 bpA -1.15%4&€<-200 bpA -0.59%4a€<-300 bpa€«-1.86%a€<-300 bpa€«-3.33%Aa€<a€<At June 30, 2024, the Corporation
was close to neutral with regard to the sensitivity of net interest income as projected net interest income declines slightly under rising or declining interest rates during the subsequent 12-
month period.&€<At June 30, 2023, the Corporation was liability sensitive as its interest-bearing liabilities are expected to reprice more quickly than its interest-earning assets during the
subsequent 12-month period. Therefore, in a rising interest rate environment, the model projects a decrease in net interest income over the subsequent 12-month period. In a falling interest
rate environment, the results project an increase in net interest income over the subsequent 12-month period at the -100 basis point scenario and a decrease in net interest income over the
subsequent 12-month period for the -200 and -300 basis point scenarios.a€<Management believes that the assumptions used to complete the analysis described in the table above are
reasonable. However, past experience has shown that immediate, permanent and parallel movements in interest rates will not 65Table of Contentsnecessarily occur. Additionally, while the
analysis provides a tool to evaluate the projected net interest income to changes in interest rates, actual results may be substantially different if actual experience differs from the assumptions
used to complete the analysis, particularly with respect to the 12-month business plan when asset growth is forecast. Therefore, the model results that the Corporation discloses should be
thought of as a risk management tool to compare the trends of the Corporationa€™ s current disclosure to previous disclosures, over time, within the context of the actual performance of the
treasury yield curve.a€<«a€<tem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dataa€<Please refer to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in
this Form 10-K and incorporated into this Item 8 by reference.a€<«a€<Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosurea€None.a€<a€Jtem 9A.
Controls and Proceduresa€«a)An evaluation of the Corporationa€™ s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Section 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
a€mActa€)) was carried out under the supervision and with the participation of the Corporationa€™s Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer), Chief Financial Officer (principal
financial officer) and the Corporationd€™s Disclosure Committee as of the end of the period covered by this report. In designing and evaluating the Corporationa€™ s disclosure controls and
procedures, management recognizes that disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the
objectives of the disclosure controls and procedures are met. Also, because of the inherent limitations in all control procedures, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all



control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Corporation have been detected. Additionally, in designing disclosure controls and procedures, management necessarily was required to
apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible disclosure controls and procedures. The design of any disclosure controls and procedures is also based in part upon
certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Based on
their evaluation, the Corporationd€™s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Corporationa€™s disclosure controls and procedures as of June 30, 2024 are
effective, at the reasonable assurance level, in ensuring that the information required to be disclosed by the Corporation in the reports it files or submits under the Act is (i) accumulated and
communicated to the Corporationa€™s management (including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer) in a timely manner, and (ii) recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the SECa€™s rules and forms.a€<b)There have been no changes in the Corporationa€™ s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule
13a-15(f) of the Act) that occurred during the quarter year ended June 30, 2024, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Corporationa€™s internal control
over financial reporting. The Corporation does not expect that its internal control over financial reporting will prevent all error and all fraud. A control procedure, no matter how well conceived
and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control procedure are met. Because of the inherent limitations in all control procedures, no
evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Corporation have been detected. These inherent limitations include the
realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of
some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control. The design of any control procedure is also based in part upon certain assumptions about the
likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance 66Table of Contentswith the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-
effective control procedure, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.a€<Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reportinga€<This management report
includes the subsidiary institution of Provident Financial Holdings, Inc. (the "Corporation"), Provident Savings Bank, F.S.B. which is subject to Part 363 in the statement of management's
responsibilities; the report on management's assessment of compliance with the Federal laws and regulations pertaining to insider loans and the Federal and, if applicable, State laws and
regulations pertaining to dividend restrictions; and the report on management's assessment of internal control over financial reporting.a€<Management of the Corporation is responsible for
preparing the Corporationa€™s annual consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; for establishing and maintaining an adequate internal
control structure and procedures for financial reporting, including controls over the preparation of regulatory financial statements in accordance with the instructions for the Parent Company
Only Financial Statements for Small Holding Companies (Form FR Y-9SP); and for complying with the Federal laws and regulations pertaining to insider loans and the Federal and, if applicable,
State laws and regulations pertaining to dividend restrictions. The Corporation's internal control over financial reporting was designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.a€<To comply with the requirements of
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Corporation designed and implemented a structured and comprehensive assessment process to evaluate its internal control over financial
reporting across the enterprise. The assessment of the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control over financial reporting was based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Management's assessment of the Corporation's internal control over financial reporting
was also conducted to meet the reporting requirements of Section 112 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act (FDICIA), which include controls over the preparation of
the schedules equivalent to the basic financial statements in accordance with the instructions for the Parent Company Only Financial Statements for Small Holding Companies (Form FR Y-
9SP).a€<Because of its inherent limitations, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention of overriding controls, a system of internal control over financial reporting can
provide only reasonable assurance and may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Based on its assessment, management has concluded
that, as of June 30, 2024, the Corporation's internal control over financial reporting, including controls over the preparation of regulatory financial statements in accordance with the
instructions for the Parent Company Only Financial Statements for Small Holding Companies (Form FR Y-9SP), is effective based on the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework (2013).4€<Management of the Corporation has assessed the Corporation's compliance with the Federal laws and regulations pertaining to insider loans and the Federal and, if
applicable, State laws and regulations pertaining to dividend restrictions during the fiscal year ended on June 30, 2024. Management has concluded that the Corporation complied with the
Federal laws and regulations pertaining to insider loans and the Federal and, if applicable, State laws and regulations pertaining to dividend restrictions during the fiscal year ended on June 30,
2024.67Table of Contentsa€<a€<Date: August 30, 20244€<A a€<A /s/ Donavon P. TernesA Donavon P. TernesA President and Chief Executive OfficerA A A A A A /s/ Tam B. NguyenA Tam B.
NguyenA Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OfficerA 4€<4€<Item 9B. Other Information&€<(a) A Nonea€«(b) A Trading Plans. During the quarter ended June 30, 2024, no director or
officer (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) under the Exchange Act) of the Corporation adopted or terminated a 4€ceRule 10b5-1 trading arrangementa€ or a&€cenon-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement,a€
as each term is defined in Item 408(a) of Regulation S-K.a€<&€<Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspectionsa€<a€«Not Applicable.a€<a€<«PART IIla€<Item 10.
Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governancea€«Directors and Executive Officersa€<The information required by this item regarding the Corporationa€™s Board of Directors is
incorporated herein by reference from the section captioned &€ceProposal I &€ Election of Directorsa€ in the Corporationa€™s Proxy Statement, a copy of which will be filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission no later than 120 days after the Corporationa€™s fiscal year end.a€<The executive officers of the Corporation and the Bank are elected annually and hold office until
their respective successors have been elected and qualified or until death, resignation or removal by the Board of Directors. For information regarding the Corporationa€™s executive officers,
see Item 1, 4€ceBusiness - Executive Officersa€ in this Form 10-K, which is incorporated herein by reference.a€<Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officersa€<The Corporation has adopted a
Code of Ethics, which applies to all directors, officers, and employees of the Corporation. The Code of Ethics is publicly available as Exhibit 14 to the Corporationa€™s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year June 30, 2007, and is available on the Corporationa€™s website, www.myprovident.com. If the Corporation makes any substantial amendments to the Code of Ethics or
grants any waiver, including any implicit waiver, from a provision of the Code of Ethics to the Corporationa€™ s principal executive officer, principal financial and accounting officer, controller,
or person performing similar functions, the Corporation will disclose the nature of such amendment or waiver on the Corporationa€™s website and in a report on Form 8-K.4€<68Table of
ContentsAudit Committee and Audit Committee Financial Experta€<The Corporation has a separately-designated standing audit committee established in accordance with section 3(a)(58)(A) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The audit committee consists of three independent directors of the Corporation: Judy A. Carpenter, Kathy M. Michalak and Matthew E. Webb.
The Corporation has designated Judy A. Carpenter, Audit Committee Chair, as its audit committee financial expert. Ms. Carpenter is independent, as independence for audit committee members
is defined under the listing standards of the NASDAQ Stock Market, is a Certified Public Accountant in California (inactive), has been in public accounting, and has extensive business
knowledge, financial expertise and familiarity with our local market and communities.a€<Nominating Proceduresa€<There have been no material changes to the procedures by which
shareholders may recommend nominees to its Board of Directors since last disclosed to shareholders.a€<«a€<Item 11. Executive Compensationa€«The information required by this item is
incorporated herein by reference from the sections captioned a€ceExecutive Compensationa€ and a€ceDirectorsa€™ Compensationa€ in the Proxy Statement, a copy of which will be filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than 120 days after the Corporationa€™s fiscal year end.a€<«a€<Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
and Related Stockholder Mattersa€«a)Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners.a€<The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the section captioned
4€ceSecurity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managementa€ in the Corporationad€™s Proxy Statement, a copy of which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
no later than 120 days after the Corporationa€™s fiscal year end.a€<b)Security Ownership of Management.a€<The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the
sections captioned 4€eSecurity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managementa€ in the Corporationd€™s Proxy Statement, a copy of which will be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission no later than 120 days after the Corporationa€™s fiscal year end.a€«c)Changes in Control.a€<The Corporation is not aware of any arrangements, including any pledge by
any person of securities of the Corporation, the operation of which may at a subsequent date result in a change in control of the Corporation.a€<a€<«69Table of Contentsd)Equity Compensation
Plan Information.a€<a€<The following table summarizes share and exercise price information regarding the Corporation's equity compensation plans as of June 30,
2024:4€<4€<A€AEAEAEAEAEAEHEAEA AA A a€A AA A &€4a€A AA A NumberA ofA SecuritiesA 4€<2€<4€<4€<a€<a€<a€RemainingA AvailableA forA 4€<a€<NumberA ofA Securitiesa€<a€<a€<a¢
Averagea€<Equ1tyA CompensatlonA a€<a€<Exerc1seA ofa€<Exer01seA PrlceA ofa€<PlansA (ExcludlngA a€<a€ OutstandmgA Optlons &€<«OutstandingA Optlons a€<Secur1t1esA ReflectedA 1nA Plan

Equity Incentive Plan A A A aeA AAAA A a€Stock OptionsA 213 000a€<$ 16 39A a€”a€«Restricted StockA 47, 650a€<A N/AA a€”4€<2022 Equity Incentive
Plan:a€<a€<a€<A€<a€<a€<a€<a€<Stock Optionsa€« 98,0004€<$ 12.44A 77,000a€<Restricted Stocka€« 129,0004€<A N/AA 69,0004€ A€ <A€<A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holdersA N/Aa€<A N/AA N/Aé€<T0talA 656,6504€<$ 15.35a€< 146,0003€<a€a€<a€<a€Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director
Independenceé€<«Certain Relationships and Related Transactions. The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the section captioned a€ceBoard of
Directorsa€™ Meetings, Board Committees and Corporate Governance Matters - Corporate Governance - Certain Relationships and Related Transactionsa€ in the Corporationa€™s Proxy
Statement, a copy of which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than 120 days after the Corporationa€™s fiscal year end.a€<Director Independence. The
information contained in the section captioned d€ceBoard of Directorsa€™ Meetings, Board Committees and Corporate Governance Matters - Corporate Governance - Director Independencea€
is incorporated herein by reference in the Corporationa€™ s Proxy Statement, a copy of which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than 120 days after the
Corporationa€™s fiscal year end.a€<a€<Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servicesa€<The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the section captioned
4€ceProposal 3 - Ratification of Appointment of Independent Auditora€ in the Corporationa€™s Proxy Statement, a copy of which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no
later than 120 days after the Corporationa€™s fiscal year end.a€<70Table of ContentsPART IVa€<Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.a€<«(a)A A 1. Financial StatementsA See
Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page 78 of this Form 10-K.4€<A AA A A A A A 2. Financial Statement Schedules Schedules to the Consolidated Financial Statements have been
omitted as the required information is inapplicable.a€«(b)A A ExhibitsExhibits are available from the Corporation by written request.4€<3.1Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of
Provident Financial Holdings, Inc. as filed with the Delaware Secretary of State on November 24, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Corporationd€™s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed on November 9, 2010)A A 3.2Amended and Restated Bylaws of Provident Financial Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Corporationa€™s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on November 30, 2022)A A 4.1Form of Certificate of Provident's Common Stock (incorporated by reference to the Corporationa€™s Registration Statement on Form S-
1 (333-2230) filed on March 11, 1996))A A 4. 2Description of Capital Stock of Provident Financial Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Corporationa€™s AnnualA
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2019)A A 10.1Transition Agreement with Craig G. Blunden (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Corporation&€™s Form 8-K dated
October 31, 2023)A A 10.2Post-Retirement Compensation Agreement with Craig G. Blunden (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Corporationa€™s Form 8-K dated December 19,
2005)a€<a€<10.3Employment Agreement with Donavon P. Ternes (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Corporationd€™s Form 8-K dated October 31, 2023)a€<a€<10.4Post-
Retirement Compensation Agreement with Donavon P. Ternes (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Corporationa€™s Form 8-K dated July 7, 2009)A A 10.5Form of Amended
Severance Agreement with Tam B. Nguyen, Robert "Scott" Ritter, Lilian Salter, David S. Weiant and Gwendolyn L. Wertz (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Corporationa€™ s
Form 10-Q dated May 8, 2024)A A 10.62006 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the Corporationa€™s proxy statement dated October 12, 2006)A A 10.7Form of
Incentive Stock Option Agreement for options granted under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 in the Corporationa€™s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended December 31, 2006)A A 10.82010 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the Corporationa€™s proxy statement dated October 28, 2010)A A 10.9Form of
Incentive Stock Option Agreement for options granted under the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 in the Corporationa€™s Form 8-K dated November 30,
2010)A A 71Table of Contents10.10Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for options granted under the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 in the
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Registration Statement on Form S-8 (333-192727) dated December 9, 2013)A A 10.13Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for options granted under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan
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December 9, 2013)A A 10.152022 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the Corporationa€™s proxy statement dated October 27, 2022)4€<4€<10.16Form of Incentive
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Form S-8 dated December 16, 2022)a€<a€<10.18Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for restricted shares awarded under the 2022 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.4 in the Corporationa€™s Form S-8 dated December 16, 2022)a€<a€<132024 Annual Report to Stockholdersa€«a€<14.0Code of Ethics for the Corporationa€™s directors, officers and
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Financial Statements83a€<a€<a€«75Table of ContentsReport of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firma€«To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Provident Financial
Holdings, Inc.4€<«Opinion on the Financial Statements&a€<We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Provident Financial Holdings, Inc. and subsidiary
(the &€ceCorporationa€) as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, stockholdersa€™ equity, and cash flows, for each of the two
years in the period ended June 30, 2024, and the related (collectively referred to as the a€cefinancial statementsa€). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Corporation as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended June 30, 2024,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.a€<Basis for Opiniona€«These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporationa€™s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Corporationa€™s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Corporation in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.&€<We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Corporation is not
required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporationa€™ s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion.&€<Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.a€<Critical Audit Mattera€<The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that was
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially
challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not,
by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.a€<Allowance for Credit Losses
related to Qualitative Factors for Single Family Mortgage, Multifamily Mortgage, and Commercial Real Estate - Refer to Notes 1 and 3 to the Financial Statementsa€«Critical Audit Matter
Descriptiond€<Management estimates the Corporationa€™s allowance for credit losses (4€eACLa€) Management calculates the quantitative portion of the collectively evaluated allowance for
all loan categories using an average charge-off methodology. The Corporation primarily utilizes historical loss rates for the ACL based on its own specific historical losses and/or with peer loss
history where applicable. Management considers whether additional or reduced allowance levels on collectively evaluated loans may be warranted, given the consideration of a variety of
qualitative factors. &€<76Table of ContentsThe qualitative portion of the Corporationad€™s allowance on collectively evaluated loans are calculated using management judgment, to determine
risk categorizations in each of the qualitative factors. The amount of qualitative allowance is also contingent upon the relative weighting of the qualitative factors according to managementa€™s
judgment.a€<Auditing the collectively evaluated loans of the Corporationa€™s ACL, specifically managementa€™s qualitative loss factors for certain single-family, multi-family and commercial
real estate loans, involved significant judgment. Given the management judgments required for the determination of risk categorization and relative weighting of qualitative factors, performing
audit procedures to evaluate the Qualitative Factors in the ACL requires a high degree of auditor judgment and an increased extent of effort, including the need to involve our credit
specialists.d€<How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audita€<Our audit procedures related to the ACL included the following, among others:4—We performed inquiries and
examined documentation to understand managementa€™s methodology and process in determining the qualitative factors in the ACL, including the key assumptions and relevant data
utilized.a€<a—We involved our credit specialists to assist us in evaluating the reasonableness and conceptual soundness of the qualitative and methodologies applied by management.a€<a—We
tested the design and implementation of controls over the (i) selection of the risk categorizations and relative weighting in each of the qualitative factors used as an input to the model and (ii)
overall calculation and disclosure.a€<a—We evaluated the reasonableness of the ACL inputs, including managementa€™ s judgments and assumptions used in the development of the qualitative
factors, including the directional consistency and magnitude of the qualitative factors applied, and the reasonableness of the period selected for the forecast and the associated economic factors
identified by management.a€<«a—We compared the Corporationa€™s ACL with benchmark data obtained independently to assess whether the ACL is within a reasonable range for specific loan
categories.a€«a€«/s/Deloitte & Touche LLPa€«Costa Mesa, CaliforniaAugust 30, 2024a€<We have served as the Corporation's auditor since 2001.4€<a€<&€<77Table of ContentsPROVIDENT
FINANCIAL HOLDINGS,A INC.Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditiona€<a€<a€<a€<a€a€<a€a€<«a€<a€JuneA 30,A 4€JuneA 30,A (In Thousands, Except Share and Per Share
Information)a€<2024A A A A 2023Assetsa€«a€«a€«a€<«a€«a€«Cash and cash equivalentsa€«$ 51,376a€<$ 65,849Investment securities - held to maturity, at cost with no allowance for credit
lossesa€<A 130,051a€<A 154,337Investment securities - available for sale, at fair value with no allowance for credit lossesa€<A 1,8494€<A 2,155Loans held for investment, net of allowance for
credit losses of $7,065 and $5,946, respectively; includes $1,047 and $1,312 of loans held at fair value, respectively; $861.1 million and $967.6 million pledged to Federal Home Loan Bank
("FHLB") - San Francisco, respectively; $178.6 million and $0 pledged to Federal Reserve Bank ("FRB") - San Francisco, respectivelyé€<A 1,052,979a€<A 1,077,629Accrued interest
receivablea€<A 4,287a€<A 3,711FHLB - San Francisco and other equity investments, includes $540 and $0 of other equity investments at fair value, respectivelya€<A 10,108a€<A
9,505Premises and equipment, neta€<A 9,313a€<A 9,231Prepaid expenses and other assetsa€<A 12,237a€<A 10,5314€<a€<A a€<a€<A a€<Total assetsa€«$ 1,272,2004€<$ 1,332,9484€4€A
4€<4€<A a€<Liabilities and Stockholdersa€™ Equitya€<A &€<4€<A A€<4€4€A 4€<4€<A a€Liabilities:a€<A 4€<4€<A a€<Noninterest-bearing depositsa€«$ 95,6274€<$ 103,007Interest-bearing
depositsa€<A 792,721a€<A 847,564Total depositsa€<A 888,3484€<A 950,571a€<a€<A a€«a€<A a€Borrowingsa€«A 238,500a€<A 235,009Accounts payable, accrued interest and other
liabilitiesa€<A 15,4114€<A 17,681Total liabilitiesd€<A 1,142,2594€<A 1,203,2614€<4€<A a€<a€<A &€<«Commitments and Contingencies (Note 13)a€<A 2€<4€<A 4€A€A€A 4€aEA
a€«Stockholdersa€™ equity:a€<A a€<«a€<«A a€<Preferred stock, $0.01 par value (2,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and 0utstand1ng)a€<A a€”a€<A a€”Common stock, $0.01 par value;
(40,000,000 shares authorized; 18,229,615 and 18,229,615 shares issued; 6,847,821 and 7,043,170 shares outstanding, respectively)a€<A 1834€<A 183Additional paid-in capitala€<A
98,532a€<A 99,505Retained earningsa€<A 209,914a€<A 207,274Treasury stock at cost (11,381,794 and 11,186,445 shares, respectively)a€«A (178,685)a€<A (177,237)Accumulated other
comprehensive loss, net of taxa€<A (3)a€<A (38)é€<é€<A A€<A€<A A€<Total stockholdersa€™ equityé€<A 129,94lé€<A 129,6874€a€<A a€<a€<A a€<Total liabilities and stockholdersa€™
equitya€<$ 1,272,200a€<$ 1,332,948a€<The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.a€<78Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL

HOLDINGS,A INC.Consolidated Statements of Operationsa€<a€<a€<a€<a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ a€a€Fiscal Year Ended JuneA 30,A (In Thousands, Except Per Share

Information)A A A A 20244€<2023Interest income:a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<A A Loans receivable, neta€«$ 50,194A A $ 42,191Investment securitiesd€<A 2,060A A A 2,169FHLB - San Francisco and
other equity investmentsa€<A 802A A A 556Interest-earning depositsa€<A 1,674A A A 1,076Total interest income&€<A 54,730A A A 45,9928€<4€<4€<4€<A€<A €<Interest

expense: a€<A€<a€«a€<A a€<Depositsa€«A 9,666A A A 3, 146Borrow1ngsa€<A 10,141A A A 5,861Total interest expensea€«A 19,807A A A 9,007a€<A€a€<A€<A€<A a€Net interest incomea€A
34,923A A A 36, 985(Recovery of) provision for credit lossesa€<A (63)A A A 374Net interest income, after (recovery of) provision for credit lossesa€<A 34,986A A A

36,6114€4€<A€A€A€A A€<Non-interest income:a€<a€<a€<A€<A a€<Loan servicing and other feesa€<A 337A A A 414Deposit account feesa€<A 1,154A A A 1,296Card and processing feesa€<A
1,384A A A 1,5250thera€<A 1,066A A A 840Total non-interest income&€<A 3,941A A A 4,0754€<4€<4€<a€<4€<A a€<Non-interest expense:4€<a€<a€<a€<A a€<Salaries and employee benefitsa€<A
17,642A A A 17,737Premises and occupancya€<A 3,586A A A 3, 447Equ1pmenta€<A 1,309A A A 1,152Professionala€<A 1,530A A A 1,517Sales and marketinga€«A 709A A A 622Deposit
insurance premium and regulatory assessmentsa€<A 780A A A 6570thera€<«A 2,984A A A 3,138Total non-interest expensea€<A 28, 540A A A 28,2704€<4€<A€<AE<AE<A &€<Income before
income taxesa€<A 10,387A A A 12,416Provision for income taxesa€<A 3,036A A A 3,824Net income&€«$ 7,351A A $ 8,5924€<4€A€<A€<A€<A &€<Basic earnings per sharea€«$ 1.06A A §
1.20Diluted earnings per sharea€<$ 1.06A A $ 1.194€<a€<The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.a€<79Table of ContentsPROVIDENT
FINANCIAL HOLDINGS,A INC.Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomea€ &€ <a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€«a€«a€«a€Fiscal Year Ended JuneA 30,A (In Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 2023Net
incomea€«$ 7,351A A $ 8,5924€ A€ AE<AEAEA a€<Change in unrealized holdlng gains (losses) on securities available for sale and interest-only strlpsa€<A 50A A A (57)Less: Income tax expense
(benefit)a€<A 15A A A (17)Other comprehensive income (loss)a€<A 35A A A (40)Total comprehensive incomea€<$ 7,386A A $ 8,552a€<The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.a€<4€<80Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS,A INC.Consolidated Statements of Stockholdersa€™

Equitya€<a€ a€<a€<a€<a€«a€«a€<a€«a€ Q€ A€ <a€«a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ <AE A€ A€ A€ <AE(AE AL A€ AEAEAE<AE<AE(AE A€ a«af«a€«Accumulatedi€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ QA€ <AEAEAEaEat
Thousands, Except Share Information)A A A A SharesA A A A AmountA A A A Paid-InA CapitalA A A A RetainedA EarningsA A A A TreasuryA StockA A A A NetA ofA TaxA A A A a€<TotalBalance
at JuneA 30,A 20224€< 7,285,184A A $ 183A $ 98,826A A $ 202,680A A $ (173,041)A A $ 2A A $ 128,6504€<A€A€AE€A A A 4€A€AE€AEA A A 4€4€A€AEA A A 4€<a€<aENet
INCOmMEAEAEAEA A A ACAE<AEAEA 8,592a€<A A A 46<AEAEAEA 8,5920ther comprehensive lossa€<a€<«a€<«A A A 4€<A€<A€«AE<A a€<a€A A A a€<A (40)A A A (40)Purchase of treasury
stock(1)a€< (335,764)A A A€<A€<A€<A A A A€A€<AEAEA (4 648)a€A A A a€A (4, 648)Awards for restricted stocka€« 93,7504€ A€ <A€<A€<A€« (479)A€ A€ AEAEAE« 47IAE<AE<AEAE AL«

a€”Forfeiture of restricted stocka€<«a€<«a€<A A A €A 27A A a€<«a€<a€A (27)a€<a€<a€<a€<A a€”Amortization of restricted stock, net of taxa€<a€<a€<a€<«a€«a€<a€«

1,1094€ <€ A€ <A€ A€ <AE<AE<AE<AE<AE<AE« 1,109Stock options expense, net of taxa€<a€<a€<A A A 4€<A 76A A 4€<a€<a€<A A A 4€<A€<A€<AE<A 76Tax effect from stock-based
compensatlona€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€< (54)a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€< (54)Cash d1v1dends(2)a€<a€<a€<A A A a€<a€<a€a€A (3, 998)a€<A A A a€<a€<a€<a€<A (3,998)Balance at

JuneA 30,A 20234€< 7,043,170A A $ 183A $ 99,505A A $ 207,274A A $ (177,237)A A $ (38)A A $ 129,6874€AE<AEAEA A A 4€AEAEAEA A A 4€A€AEAEA A A 4€4€AENet
incomea€a€<«a€<A A A a€<a€AaEA€A 7, 3512€<A A A A€A€AEAEA 7,3510ther comprehensive incomea€<a€<«a€«A A A 4€<A€<a€«A€<A a€<a€«A A A a€<A 35A A A 35Purchase of treasury
stocka€< (197,349)A A A€<A€<A€<A A A A€A€<AEAEA (2,601)a€<A A A 4€<A (2,601)Distribution of restricted stocka€« 2,0004€<A€<A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE« A€”Awards for
restricted stockA€ AE<AEAEAEAEAE« (1,183)A6<AEAEAEAE« 1,183a€AEAEAEAE« 46 Forfeiture of restricted Stocka€<A€<AE<A A A 46<A 30A A A€AEAEA (30)a€<AEAEAEA 4€"Amortization
of restricted stock, net of taxa€<a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€« 203A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAE« 203Stock options expense, net of taxa€<a€<a€<A A A 4€<A 37A A 4€<a€<A€<A A A 4€<A€<AE<AEA 37Tax
effect from stock-based compensationa€«a€<«a€<a€<«a€«a€<a€« (60)A€<aA€ A€ <A€<A€<a€<a€<a€«a€«a€<a€« (60)Cash d1v1dends(2)a€<a€<a€<A A A a€<a€<a€aeA (3, 887)a€<A A A a4€<a€<a€@aEA
(3,887)Adoption of CECL standarda€<a€<a€a€«a€«a€<a€«a€«a€«a€« (824)a€ A€ «a€<a€<a€a€«a€<a€« (824)Balance at ]uneA 30,A 20244€<6,847,821A A $ 183A $ 98,532A A $ 209,914A A $
(178,685)A A $ (3)A A $ 129,9414€<(1)Includes the purchase of 33,045 shares of distributed restricted stock in fiscal 2023 in settlement of employees' withholding tax obligations.(2)Cash
dividends of $0.56 per share were paid in both fiscal 2024 and 2023.4€<The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.a€<a€<81Table of
ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS,A INC.Consolidated Statements of Cash Flowsa€«a€<a€<a€<«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€Fiscal Year Ended JuneA 30,A (In

Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 2023Cash flows from operating activities:A€<4€<4€<&€<&€<A A Net incomea€<$ 7,351A $ 8,592Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:a€<4€<4€<a€<A &€Depreciation and amortizationa€<A 3,155A A 3,188(Recovery of) provision for credit losses&€<A (63)A A 374Net unrealized gain on other equity
investmentsa€<a€« (540)a€<«a€« a€”Stock-based compensatlona€<A 240A A 1,185(Benefit) provision for deferred income taxesa€«A (58)A A 1,231(Decrease) increase in accounts payable
accrued interest and other liabilitiesa€<A (2,399)A A 121(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assetsa€<«a€« (2,001)a€<a€< 1,634Net cash provided by operating activitiesa€<«A
5,685A A 16,3254€<4€<A€<A€A€<A 4€<Cash flows from investing activities: 4€<4€<A€<A€<A 4€<Decrease (increase) in loans held for investment, neta€<A 22,604A A (138, 970)Maturity of
investment securities - held to maturitya€<A 4€”A A 400Principal payments from investment securities - held to maturitya€<A 23,754A A 30,217Principal payments from investment securities -
available for saled€<A 356A A 464Purchase of FHLB - San Francisco stocka€<a€« (63)a€<a€« (1,266)Purchase of premises and equipmenta€<«A (1,589)A A (741)Net cash provided by (used for)
investing activitiesa€<a€<« 45,062A a€< (109,896)a€<A€<A€<A€<A€<a€<a€«Cash flows from financing activities:A€ A€ <&€<a€<a€<a€Decrease in deposits, netd€<«a€« (62,223)A &€« (4,933)Proceeds
from long-term borrowingsa€<a€< 85,500A a€< 65,000Repayments of long-term borrowingsa€<a€« (30,009)A &€« (30,000)(Repayment of) proceeds from short-term borrowings, neta€<a€«
(52,000)A 4€< 115, 009Treasury stock purchasesa€<a€« (2, 601)A a€«< (4,648)Withholding taxes on stock-based compensationa€<a€« a€”A a€< (424)Cash dividendsa€«a€« (3 887)A a€« (3,998)Net
cash (used for) provided by financing activitiesa€<«a€« (65, 220)A a€< 136,006a€a€<a€<a€a€a€<a€<Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalentsa€«a€« (14 473)A a4€< 42,435Cash and
cash equivalents at beginning of yeara€<a€« 65,849A &€« 23,414Cash and cash equivalents at end of yeara€«$ 51,3764€<$ 65,849Supplemental information:a€<A A A 4€<A A A Cash paid for
interesta€<$ 19,762a€<$ 7,480Cash paid for income taxesa€«$ 3,090a€<$ 2,725a€<The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.a€<a€<82Table of
ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsNoteA 1: Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policiesa€<Basis of
presentationThe consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Provident Financial Holdings,A Inc., and its wholly owned subsidiary, Provident Savings Bank, F.S.B. (collectively, the
4€ceCorporationa€). All inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated.a€<Provident Savings Bank, F.S.B. (the &€eBanka€) converted from a federally chartered mutual savings
bank to a federally chartered stock savings bank effective JuneA 27, 1996. Provident Financial Holdings,A Inc., a Delaware corporation organized by the Bank, acquired all of the capital stock of
the Bank issued in the conversion; the transaction was recorded on a book value basis.d€<The Corporation has determined that it operates in one business segment through the Bank. The
Bank's activities include attracting deposits, offering banking services and originating and purchasing single-family, multi-family, commercial real estate, construction and other mortgage loans
and, to a lesser extent, commercial business and consumer loans held for investment. Deposits are collected primarily from 13 banking locations located in Riverside and San Bernardino
counties in California. Additional activities may include originating saleable single-family loans, primarily fixed-rate first mortgages. Loans are primarily originated and purchased in
California.&€<Use of estimatesThe accounting and reporting policies of the Corporation conform to generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (4€ceGAAPA€). The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for credit
losses, the valuation of investment securities, the valuation of loans held for investment at fair value, deferred tax assets, mortgage servicing assets, real estate owned and deferred
compensation costs.a€<The following accounting policies, together with those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, represent the significant accounting policies of
Provident Financial Holdings,A Inc. and the Bank.a€<Cash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and due from banks, as well as overnight deposits placed at the
FRB a€“ San Francisco and correspondent banks.a€<Investment securitiesThe Corporation classifies its qualifying investments as available for sale or held to maturity. The Corporation
classifies investments as held to maturity when it has the ability and it is managementa€ ™s positive intent to hold such securities to maturity. Securities held to maturity are carried at



amortized historical cost. All other securities are classified as available for sale and are carried at fair value. Fair value generally is determined based upon quoted market prices. Changes in net
unrealized gains (losses) on debt securities available for sale are included in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax. Gains and losses on sale or dispositions of investment
securities are included in non-interest income and are determined using the specific identification method. Purchase premiums and discounts are amortized over the expected average life of the
securities using the effective interest method.a€<The Corporation evaluates individual investment securities quarterly for impairment based on Accounting Standards Codification (4€eASCa€)
326, a€ceFinancial Instruments 4€“ Credit Losses,a€ which was adopted on July 1, 2023. The Corporation does not currently intend to sell any investment securities classified as held to maturity
or available for sale and as such, records the investment security at book value or fair market value as prescribed by GAAP. As a part of the Corporationa€™ s monthly risk assessment, the
Corporation runs a number of stressed liquidity scenarios to determine if it is more likely than not that the Bank will be required to sell the investment security before the recovery of its
amortized costs basis. These liquidity scenarios support the Corporationa€™s assessment that the Corporation has the ability to hold these held to maturity securities until maturity or available
for sale securities until recovery of the amortized costs is realized and it is not more likely than not that the Corporation will be required to sell the securities prior to recovery of the amortized
costs.83Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsa€<Loans held for investmentLoans held for investment consist of long-term
single-family adjustable and fixed rate loans secured by single-family residences and multi-family and commercial real estate loans secured by commercial property, land and other residential
properties, which the Corporation intends to hold for the foreseeable future. These loans are generally offered to customers and businesses located in California.a€<Net loan origination fees and
certain direct origination expenses are deferred and amortized to interest income over the contractual life of the loan using the effective interest method. Amortization is discontinued for non-
performing loans. Interest receivable represents primarily the current montha€™s interest, which will be included as a part of the borrowera€™ s next monthly loan payment. Interest receivable
is accrued only if deemed collectible. Loans are placed on non-performing status when they become 90 days past due. When a loan is placed on non-performing status, interest accrued but not
received is reversed against interest income. Interest income on non-performing loans is subsequently recognized only to the extent that cash is received and the principal balance is deemed
collectible. If the principal balance is not deemed collectible, the entire payment received (principal and interest) is applied to the outstanding loan balance. Non-performing loans that become
current as to both principal and interest are returned to accrual status after demonstrating satisfactory payment history (usually six consecutive months) and when future payments are
expected to be collectible.a€<Allowance for credit lossesThe allowance for credit losses involves significant judgment and assumptions by management, which has a material impact on the
carrying value of financial assets. The Corporation adopted ASC 326 using the prospective transition approach for all financial assets measured at amortized cost and off-balance sheet credit
exposures. Results for reporting periods beginning after July 1, 2023 are presented under CECL while prior period amounts continue to be reported in accordance with previously applicable
accounting standards. a€<Non-performing loansThe Corporation assesses loans individually and classifies them as non-performing when the accrual of interest has been discontinued, loans have
been modified or management has serious doubts about the future collectability of principal and interest, even though the loans may currently be performing. Factors considered in determining
classification include, but are not limited to, expected future cash flows, the financial condition of the borrower and current economic conditions. The Corporation measures each non-
performing loan based on ASC 326, establishes a collectively evaluated or individually evaluated allowance, and charges off those loans or portions of loans deemed uncollectible. Loans
identified to be individually evaluated have an allowance that is based upon the appraised value of the collateral, less selling costs or discounted cash flow with an appropriate default
factor.4€<Real estate ownedReal estate acquired through foreclosure is initially recorded at the fair value of the real estate acquired, less estimated selling costs. Subsequent to foreclosure, the
Corporation charges current earnings for estimated losses if the carrying value of the property exceeds its fair value. Gains or losses on the sale of real estate are recognized upon disposition of
the property. Costs relating to improvement, maintenance and repairs of the property are expensed as incurred under gain (loss) on sale and operations of real estate owned acquired in the
settlement of loans in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.a€<Impairment of long-lived assetsThe Corporation reviews its long-lived assets for impairment annually or when events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable. Long-lived assets include buildings, land, fixtures, furniture and equipment. An asset is considered
impaired when the expected discounted cash flows over the remaining useful life are less than the net book value. When impairment is indicated for an asset, the amount of impairment loss is
the excess of the net book value over its fair value.4€<84Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsPremises and
equipmentPremises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is computed primarily on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
as follows:4€<4€<a€<a€<BuildingsA A A A 10 to 40 yearsFurniture and fixturesa€<3 to 10 yearsAutomobilesa€<3 to 5 yearsComputer equipmenta€<3 to 5 yearsa€«Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the lesser of their respective lease terms or the useful life of the improvement, which ranges from one to 10 years. Maintenance and repair costs are charged to operations as
incurred.a€<Income taxesThe Corporation accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC 740, &€ceIncome Taxes.4€A A ASC 740 requires the affirmative evaluation that it is more likely than
not, based on the technical merits of a tax position, that an enterprise is entitled to economic benefits resulting from positions taken in income tax returns. If a tax position does not meet the
more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the benefit of that position is not recognized in the financial statements.a€<ASC 740 requires that when determining the need for a valuation
allowance against a deferred tax asset, management must assess both positive and negative evidence with regard to the realizability of the tax losses represented by that asset. To the extent
available, if sources of taxable income are insufficient to absorb tax losses, a valuation allowance is necessary. Sources of taxable income for this analysis include priorA yearsa€™ tax returns,
the expected reversals of taxable temporary differences between book and tax income, prudent and feasible tax-planning strategies, and future taxable income. The deferred income tax asset
related to the allowance for credit losses will be realized when actual charge-offs are made against the allowance. Based on the availability of loss carry-backs and projected taxable income
during the periods for which loss carry-forwards are available, management believes it is more likely than not the Corporation will realize the deferred tax asset. The Corporation continues to
monitor the deferred tax asset on a quarterly basis for a valuation allowance. The future realization of these tax benefits primarily hinges on adequate future earnings to utilize the tax benefit.
Prospective earnings or losses, tax law changes or capital changes could prompt the Corporation to reevaluate the assumptions which may be used to establish a valuation allowance. As of June
30, 2024 and 2023, the estimated net deferred tax asset, which is included in prepaid expenses and other assets in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition, was $606,000 and
$218,000, respectively. The Corporation maintains net deferred tax assets for deductible temporary tax differences, such as loss reserves, deferred compensation, non-accrued interest and
unrealized gains (losses), among other items. The increase in the net deferred tax asset resulted primarily from higher loss reserves and a decrease in deferred tax liabilities from lower net
deferred loan costs. The Corporation did not have any liabilities for uncertain tax positions or any known unrecognized tax benefit at June 30, 2024 or 2023.4€<Bank owned life insurance
("BOLI")ASC 715-60-35, "Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Post-retirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements," requires an employer to
recognize obligations associated with endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangements that extend into the participanta€™ s post-employment benefit cost for the continuing life insurance
or based on the future death benefit depending on the contractual terms of the underlying agreement. The Corporation adopted ASC 715-60-35 using the latter option, i.e., based on the future
death benefit. The Bank purchases BOLI policies on the lives of certain executive officers while they are employed by the Bank and is the owner and beneficiary of the policies. The Bank invests
in BOLI to provide an efficient form of funding for long-term retirement and other employee benefits costs. The Bank records these BOLI policies within prepaid expenses and other assets in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition at each policya€™ s respective cash surrender value, with net changes recorded in other non-interest income in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.a€<Cash dividendA declaration or payment of dividends is at the discretion of the Corporationa€™s Board of Directors, who take into account the Corporationa€™s financial
condition, results of operations, tax considerations, capital requirements, industry standards, economic conditions and other factors, including the regulatory restrictions which affect the
payment of dividends by the Bank to the Corporation. Under Delaware law, dividends may be paid either out of surplus or, if there is no surplus, out of net profits for the current fiscalA year
and/or the preceding fiscalA year in which the dividend is declared. For additional 85Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statementsinformation, see NoteA 18 of the NotesA to Consolidated Financial Statements regarding the subsequent event related to the cash dividend.&€<Stock repurchasesThe Corporation
repurchased 197,349 shares of its common stock with an average cost of $13.05 per share during fiscal 2024 pursuant to its publicly announced stock repurchase plans. As of June 30, 2024, a
total of 189,116 shares or 54% of the shares authorized for repurchase under the Corporationa€™s existing stock repurchase plan remain available to purchase until the plan expires on
September 28, 2024.a€<Earnings per common share (d€ceEPSa€)Basic EPS represents net income divided by the weighted average common shares outstanding during the period excluding any
potential dilutive effects. Diluted EPS gives effect to any potential issuance of common stock that would have caused basic EPS to be lower as if the issuance had already occurred. Accordingly,
diluted EPS reflects an increase in the weighted average shares outstanding as a result of the assumed exercise of stock options and the vesting of restricted stock. The computation of diluted
EPS does not assume exercise of stock options and vesting of restricted stock that would have an anti-dilutive effect on EPS.&4€<Stock-based compensationASC 718, 4€ceCompensationA &4€“
Stock Compensation,a€ requires companies to recognize in the Consolidated Statements of Operations the grant-date fair value of stock options and other equity-based compensation issued to
employees and directors. Stock-based compensation, inclusive of restricted stock expense, recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for theA fiscal years ended June 30, 2024
and 2023 was $240,000 and $1.2 million, respectively.a€<Employee Stock Ownership Plan ("ESOP")The Corporation recognizes compensation expense when the Bank contributes funds to the
ESOP for the purchase of the Corporationa€™s common stock to be allocated to the ESOP participants. Since the contributions are discretionary, the benefits payable under the ESOP cannot be
estimated.a€<Restricted stockThe Corporation recognizes compensation expense over the vesting period of the shares awarded, equal to the fair value of the shares at the award date. A total of
$203,000 and $1.1 million of restricted stock expense was amortized during fiscal 2024 and 2023, respectively.a€<Post-retirement benefitsThe estimated obligation for post-retirement health
care and life insurance benefits is determined based on an actuarial computation of the cost of current and future benefits for the eligible (grandfathered) retirees and employees. The post
retirement benefit liability is included in accounts payable, accrued interest and other liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. Effective JulyA 1, 2003, the Corporation
discontinued the post-retirement health care and life insurance benefits to any employee not previously qualified (grandfathered) for these benefits, unless included within an employment
agreement. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the accrued liability for post-retirement benefits was $450,000 and $270,000, respectively.a€<Comprehensive incomeASC 220, 4€ceComprehensive
Income, &€ requires that realized revenues, expenses, gains and losses be included in net income (loss). Unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale securities and interest-only strips are
reported as a separate component of the stockholdersa€™ equity section of the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition and the change in the unrealized gains (losses) are reported on
the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income and Consolidated Statements of Stockholdersa€™ Equity.86Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to
Consolidated Financial StatementsAccounting Standard Updates (4€eASUA€)ASU 2023-09:In December 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (&€eFASBa€) issued ASU No. 2023-
09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. This ASU requires public business entities to annually (a) disclose specific categories in the rate reconciliation and (b)
provide additional information for reconciling items that meet a quantitative threshold of equal to or greater than five percent of the amount computed by multiplying pretax income or loss by
the applicable statutory income tax rate. This ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. The Corporation is in the process of reviewing
the impact of this ASU and has not yet determined the impact of the adoption of this ASU on its consolidated financial statements. 4€<ASU 2023-07:In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU No.
2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures. This ASU improves reportable segment disclosure requirements, primarily through enhanced
disclosures about significant segment expenses. The key amendments include: (a) introducing a new requirement to disclose significant segment expenses regularly provided to the chief
operating decision makera€ (&€ceCODMa€), (b) extending certain annual disclosures to interim periods, (c) clarifying that single reportable segment entities must apply ASC 280 in its entirety,
(d) permitting more than one measure of segment profit or loss to be reported under certain conditions, and (e) requiring disclosure of the title and position of the CODM. This ASU is effective
for public entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. The Corporation is
in the process of reviewing the impact of this ASU and has not yet determined the impact of the adoption of this ASU on its consolidated financial statements.a€<ASU 2020-04:In March 2020,
the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting. This ASU applies to contracts, hedging
relationships and other transactions that reference the London Interbank Offered Rate (a4€ceLIBOR&€) or other rate references expected to be discontinued as a result of reference rate reform.
The ASU permits an entity to make necessary modifications to eligible contracts or transactions without requiring contract remeasurement or reassessment of a previous accounting
determination. In January 2021, ASU 2021-01 clarified that certain optional expedients and exceptions in Topic 848 for contract modifications and hedge accounting apply to derivatives that are
affected by the changes in the interest rates used for margining, discounting, or contract price alignment for derivative instruments that are being implemented as part of the market-wide
transition to new reference rates (commonly referred to as the a€cediscounting transitiona€). In December 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-06, Deferral of the Sunset Date of Topic 848. The
FASB had originally included a sunset provision within Topic 848 based on expectations of when the LIBOR would cease being published. In March 2021, it was announced that the intended
cessation date of LIBOR was extended to June 30, 2023. As a result, the FASB issued ASU 2022-06 deferring the sunset date of Topic 848 from December 31, 2022 to December 31, 2024. This
ASU is effective for all entities as of March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2024. As of June 30, 2023, the Corporation had approximately $469.4 million in loans held for investment with LIBOR
indices. Beginning July 1, 2023, the Corporation started to transition these loans to Secured Overnight Financing Rate (4€ceSOFR&€) indices or other rate indices in accordance with the
government agency guidelines. As of September 30, 2023, all loans held for investment with LIBOR indices had been transitioned to SOFR or other rate indices. The Corporation determined
that the impact of the adoption of this ASU did not have a material impact to its consolidated financial statements.a€<ASU 2016-13:In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, a€ceFinancial
Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments,a€ and subsequent amendments to the initial guidance. On July 1, 2023, the Corporation
adopted this ASU that replaced the incurred loss methodology with the current expected credit loss (2€ceCECLa€) methodology. CECL requires an estimate of credit losses for the remaining
estimated life of the financial asset using historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts and applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost,
including loans held for investment, held-to-maturity investment securities and some off-balance sheet credit exposures such as unfunded commitments to extend credit. Financial assets
measured at amortized cost will be presented at the net amount expected to be collected by using an allowance for credit losses (4€eACLA€). 4€<87Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL
HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsIn addition, CECL made changes to the accounting for available for sale investment securities. One such change is to require credit
losses to be presented as an allowance rather than as a write-down on available for sale debt securities if management does not intend to sell and does not believe that it is more likely than not,
they will be required to sell.a€<The Corporation adopted ASC 326, &€ceFinancial Instruments a€“ Credit Losses,a€ and all related subsequent amendments using the prospective transition
approach for all financial assets measured at amortized cost and off-balance sheet credit exposures. The transition adjustment of the adoption of CECL included an $1.2 million increase in the
ACL, which is presented as a reduction to net loans held for investment. The Corporation recorded a net decrease to retained earnings of $824,000 as of July 1, 2023 for the cumulative effect of
adopting CECL, which reflects the transition adjustments noted above, net of the applicable deferred tax assets recorded. Results for reporting periods beginning after July 1, 2023 are
presented under CECL while prior period amounts continue to be reported in accordance with previously applicable accounting standards. &€<The Corporation adopted ASC 326 using the
prospective transition approach for debt securities for which other-than-temporary impairment had been recognized prior to July 1, 2023. As of June 30, 2023, the Corporation did not have any
other-than-temporary impaired investment securities. Therefore, upon adoption of ASC 326, the Corporation determined that an ACL on available for sale securities was not deemed
necessary.a€<The following table illustrates the impact on the ACL from the adoption of ASC 326:4€<a€<a€<a€<a€a€<a€<a€ a€«a€<a€<a€ Allowance forAllowancelmpact toa€«credit losses before
adoptionallowance after ASC&€<under ASC 3260f ASC 326326 adoption(In Thousands)(07/01/2023)(06/30/2023)(07/01/2023)Assets:4€<A A A 4€<A A A A 4€<A A Mortgage
loans:A€<A€<A€AEAEAEAEAEA A Single-family$ 6,325a€<$ 1, 720A $ 4,6053€<Multi- -familya€< 656a€<a€« 3,270a€<a€« (2,614)a€<Commercial real estatea€< 82a€<a€< 868a€«a€«



(786)a€<Constructiona€« 62a€<«a€« 15a€<a€<« 47a€<Otherd€« 5a€a€« 24€<a€<« 3a€«Commercial business loansa€« 134€<a€< 674€<a€< (54)a€<Consumer loansa€« a€"a€a€« 44€<a€« (4)a€<ACL on
loans$ 7,1434€<$ 5,9464€<$ 1,1974€<A€<A€<A€ A€ A€ AE<AE<AE<AE<A€Liabilities:A€ A€ A€ A€ «a€«a€<a€<a€éa€«Unfunded loan commitment reserve$ 424€<«$ 424€<«$ 4€”4€<a4€<In March 2022, FASB
issued ASU 2022-02, &€ceFinancial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326) Troubled Debt Restructurings and Vintage Disclosures.a€ This ASU eliminates the concept and treatment of troubled
debt restructurings (4€eTDRA€) in relation to the adoption of the CECL model for the accounting for credit losses (see note above regarding ASU 2016-13). The new disclosure requirements
are adopted in regards to loan modifications made to borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. The required disclosures regarding gross write-offs for financing receivables by year of
origination and loan modifications are presented under Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Subsequent to the adoption of ASC 326 on July 1, 2023, the Corporation did
have any loan modifications for borrowers experiencing financial difficulties during fiscal 2024. 4€<&4€<88Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated
Financial StatementsNoteA 2: Investment Securitiesa€<The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 were as

follows: A€ <AE A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAAAAAAAAAEAAAAGrossAAAA GrossA A A A EstimatedA A A A 4€<4€<a€<Amortizeda€Unrealizeda€<Unrealizeda€ Fairt
Thousands)A 4€<A A A 4€<A A A 4€<A A A 4€<A A A a€<A A Held to maturltyA a6AAAaEAAAaEAAAGEAAAGEAAUS. government sponsored enterprise MBS(l)a€<$ 125 883a€<$ 76a€<$
(15,481)a€<$ 110,4784€<$ 125,883U.S. government sponsored enterprise CMO(2)a€<a€« 3,7134€<A€« 4€”a€ A€« (253)a€<a€« 3,460a€<4€« 3,713U.S. SBA securities(3)a€<A 4553€<A a€”a€<A
a€”a€<A 455a€<«A 455Total investment securities - held to maturltya€<a€< 130,0514€<4€<« 76a€<a€« (15, 734)a€<a€< 114,3934€<a€<

130,0514€<a€<A A A A€<A€<A A 4€<a€<A A 4€<4€<A A 4€<A€<A A Available for saled€<A A A A€<A€<A A 4€<a€<A A 4€a€<A A a€4€<A A U.S. government agency MBS(1)a€<«a€« 1,2228€<a€« A€"4€ A€«
(14)a€<a€< 1,208a€<a€<« 1,208U.S. government sponsored enterprise MBS(1)a€<A 548a€<a€< 5a€<a€< 4€”a€<a€« 553a€<a€« 553Private issue CMO(2)a€<A 914€<A€« A€"AE€ A€« (3)a€<A€« 8BAE A€«
88Total investment securities - available for saled€<«a€« 1,861a€a€« 5a€<a€« (17)a€<a€« 1,849a€<4€<« 1,849Total investment securitiesa€<«$ 131,9124€<$ 814€<$ (15,751)a€<$ 116,2424€<$
131,900&€<(1)Mortgage-backed securities (&4€ceMBSa€).(2)Collateralized mortgage obhgatlons (a€eCMO04&€).(3)Small Business Administration

("SBA").4€<A€ (A€ A€ A€ AL AL AEAEAEAEAEQAEAEAEAEAcAEAAAAAAAAAEAAAAGrossA A A A GrossA A A A EstimatedA A A A 4€<4€<A€a€«Amortizeda€Unrealizeda€ <Unrealizeda€ <F
Thousands)A 4€<A A A 4€<A A A a€<A A A a€<A A A a€<A A Held to maturityA a€<A A A 4€<A A A a€<A A A a€<A A A 4€<A A U.S. government sponsored enterprise MBSa€<$ 149,8034€<$ a€"a€<$
(18,459)a€<$ 131,3444€<$ 149,803U.S. government sponsored enterprise CMOA€<a€« 3,883a€<a€« a€”a€<a€« (336)a€<«a€« 3,547a€<a€« 3,883U.S. SBA securitiesa€<A 6512€<A a€7a€A (1)a€A
650a€<A 651Total investment securities - held to maturitya€<a€« 154,337a€<«a€« 4€”a€«a€« (18,796)a€«a€« 135,5414€<a€«

154,3374€ AEAEA A AEAEA A AEAEA A AEAEA A A€AEA A Available for saleA€AEA A AEAEA A AEAEA A AEAEA A A€4EA A U.S. government agency MBS&€<a€« 1,4174€<4€< 4€”a€<a€«
(47)a€<a€< 1,370a€<a€< 1,370U.S. government sponsored enterprise MBSa€<«a€« 697a€<a€« a€”a€<a€« (14)a€«a€« 683a€<a€« 683Private issue CMOa€<«a€« 103a€<a€« a€”a€<a€« (1)a€<a€«
1024€<4€< 102Total investment securities - available for saled€<a€« 2,2174€a€« 4€”a€<a€<« (62)a€<a€<« 2,155a€<a€<« 2,155Total investment securitiesd€«$ 156,5544€<$ 4€”4€<$ (18,858)a€<$
137,6964€<$ 156,492a€<In fiscal 2024 and 2023, the Corporation received principal payments from its investment securities of $24.1 million and $30.7 million, respectively and did not sell any
investment securities. The Corporation did not purchase any investment securities in fiscal 2024 and 2023. 89Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated
Financial StatementsAs of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Corporation held investments with an unrealized loss position of $15.8 million and $18.9 million,

respectively.a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAs of JuneA 30,A 20244€<Unrealized Holding Lossesa€<Unrealized Holding Lossesa€<Unrealized Holding Losses(In
Thousands)a€<Less Than 12 Months&€<12 Months or Morea€<Totala€«a€<Faira€<Unrealizeda€«Faira€<Unrealizeda€«Faira€<UnrealizedDescription of

SecuritiesA A A A ValueA A A A LossesA A A A ValueA A A A LossesA A A A ValueA A A A LossesHeld to maturitya€ <€ <4€ <4€ &€ <4€ A€ <A€ A€ <AL <AL AEAEAEAEAEAEAEU.S. government
sponsored enterprise MBSa€«$ a€”a€«$ a€”a€«$ 105,530a€<$ 15,481a€<$ 105,530a€<$ 15,481U.S. government sponsored enterprise CMOa€<a€« a€"a€«a€« a€”a€<a€« 3,460a€<a€« 253a€<a€«
3,4604€<a€<« 253U.S. SBA securitiesa€«a€« 4553€«$ 4€”a€<a€« 4€”A€ A€« A€"a€<a€« 455a€<a€« a€”Total investment securities - held to maturitya€<«a€< 4553€<a€<« 4€”a€<a€« 108,990a€ €<
15,734a€<a€<« 109,445a€a€< 15,734a€ A€ <a€<a€<a€ A€ A€ <A€<a€ A€ A€ <a€<a€a€ a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«Available for saled€a€<a€<a€«a€a€«a€«a€«a€a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«@a€U.S government
agency MBSa€<a€« 914€<«a€« 4€74€<a€« 1,117a€<a€« 14a€<4€« 1,2084€A4€<« 14U.S. government sponsored enterprise MBSA€<a€« 4€”4€ A€« A€”A€<a€« BA€ A€« A€"a€<A€« Ba€<a€« a€”Private issue
CMO4&€<a€« a€"a€<a€<« a€"a€«a€« 8BaAE A€« 34€<a€« BBaE«a€« 3Total investment securities - available for saled€<«a€< 914€<4€« a€”a€a€« 1,2134€<a€<« 174€<a€< 1,3048€<a€< 17Total investment
securitiesa€«$ 546a€<«$ A€7A€<$ 110,2034€<$ 15,7518€<$ 110,7494€<$ 15,7514€<A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAs ofJuneA 30,A 20234€Unrealized Holding
Lossesa€<Unrealized Holding Lossesa€<Unrealized Holding Losses(In Thousands)a€<Less Than 12 Monthsa€<12 Months or
Moreéa€<Totala€«a€<Faira€«Unrealizeda€<Faira€«Unrealizeda€<Faira€<UnrealizedDescription of

SecuritiesA A A A ValueA A A A LossesA A A A ValueA A A A LossesA A A A ValueA A A A LossesHeld to maturitya€ <a€ <a€<a€<a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEW.S. government
sponsored enterprise MBSa€<$ 10,839a€<«$ 253a€<$ 120,506a€<$ 18,206a€<$ 131,3453€<$ 18,459U.S. government sponsored enterprise CMOAa€<a€« a€"”a€<a€« a€"a€<a€« 3,547a€<a€« 336a€<a€«
3,5474€<«@€« 336U.S. SBA securitiesa€ @€« 650a€a€« 1a€<a€« 4€”a€«a€<« a€”a€<a€« 650a€<a€« 1Total investment securities - held to maturitya€<a€« 11,489a€<a€<« 254a€<a€<« 124,053a€<a€«
18,542a€<a€< 135,542a€<a€< 18,796a€<A€<a€a€<a€<A€<a€<a€<a€«a€ A€ <A€<a€«a€<a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«Available for salea€<a€<a€«a€«a€<a€«a€«a€<a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€<«U.S government
agency MBSa€<«a€« 696a€<a€« 20a€<a€« 673a€<a€« 27a€a€« 1,369a€<a€<« 47U.S. government sponsored enterprise MBSa€<a€« 87a€<«a€« 2a€<a€« 558a€<a€« 124€a€« 645a€<a€« 14Private issue
CMOA£<«a€« A€"a€<a€« a€”a€<a€<« 102a€<a€« 1a€<a€<« 1024€<a€<« 1Total investment securities - available for saled€<a€« 783a€<a€« 22a€<a€« 1,333a€<a€<« 40a€<a€< 2,116a€<a€<« 62Total investment
securitiesa€«$ 12,272a€<«$ 276a€<$ 125,386a€«$ 18,582a€«$ 137,658a€<$ 18,858a€<The Corporation evaluates individual investment securities quarterly for impairment based on ASC 326 since
the adoption on July 1, 2023.A At June 30, 2024, all of the $15.8 million of unrealized holding losses were in a loss position for 12 months or more, while at June 30, 2023, $18.6 million of the
$18.9 million of unrealized holding losses were in a loss position for 12 months or more. The unrealized losses on investment securities were attributable to changes in interest rates relative to
when the investment securities were purchased and not due to the credit quality of the investment securities, 90Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statementswhich are predominately U.S. government sponsored enterprise (GSE) securities that are either explicitly or implicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and
have a long history of no credit losses. Therefore, the Corporation has determined that the unrealized losses are due to the fluctuating nature of interest rates, and not related to any potential
credit risks within the investment portfolio. The Bank does not currently intend to sell any investment securities classified as held to maturity or available for sale and as such, records the
investment security at amortized cost or fair market value as prescribed by GAAP. As a part of the Corporationa€™ s monthly risk assessment, the Corporation runs a number of stressed
liquidity scenarios to determine if it is more likely than not that the Bank will be required to sell the investment security before the recovery of its amortized costs basis. These liquidity
scenarios support the Corporationa€™s assessment that the Corporation has the ability to hold these held to maturity securities until maturity or available for sale securities until recovery of
the amortized costs is realized and it is not more likely than not that the Corporation will be required to sell the securities prior to recovery of the amortized costs. There were no ACL or
impairment on investment securities held to maturity and there was no impairment on investment securities available for sale at the adoption date of ASC 326 on July 1, 2023 and at June 30,
2024.4€<In order to maintain adequate liquidity, the Bank has established borrowing facilities with various counterparties. The Bank had a remaining borrowing capacity of $261.3 million as of
June 30, 2024 at the FHLB of San Francisco.A In addition, the Bank has secured an estimated $208.6 million discount window facility at the FRB of San Francisco collateralized by investment
securities totaling $126.6 million and loans held for investment totaling $178.6 million as of June 30, 2024.A As of June 30, 2024, the Bank also has an unsecured borrowing arrangement in the
form of a federal funds facility with its correspondent bank for $50.0 million. The Bank had no advances under the Federal Reserve discount window or correspondent bank facility as of June 30,
2024. The total available borrowing capacity across all sources totaled approximately $519.9 million at June 30, 2024.4€<At June 30, 2023, the Bank had a remaining borrowing capacity of
$287.9 million at the FHLB of San Francisco. In addition, the Bank had secured an estimated $139.0 million discount window facility at the FRB of San Francisco collateralized by investment
securities totaling $150.3 million at June 30, 2023. As of June 30, 2023, the Bank also had an unsecured borrowing arrangement in the form of a federal funds facility with its correspondent
bank for $50.0 million. The Bank had no advances under the Federal Reserve discount window or the correspondent bank facility as of June 30, 2023. The total available borrowing capacity
across all sources totaled approximately $476.9 million at June 30, 2023.4€<At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Corporation did not hold any investment securities held to maturity or investment
securities available for sale with the intent to sell and determined it had the ability to hold these investment securities until maturity. It also determined that it was more likely than not that the
Corporation would not be required to sell the securities prior to recovery of the amortized cost basis; therefore, no impairment losses were recorded on investment securities available for sale
for fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. In addition, no allowance for credit losses were recorded on investment securities held to maturity for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and
2023.4€<91Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContractual maturities of investment securities as of June 30, 2024 and 2023
were as

follows: A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEJuneA 30,A 20244€ JuneA 30,A 20234€<A A A A 4€<4€<A A A A EstimatedA A A A 4€<4€<A A A A Estimated&€<&4€<Amortizeda€<Faira€<«Am
Thousands)a€<Costa€<Valuea€<Costa€<ValueHeld to maturityA a€<A A A a€<A A A a€<A A A a€<A A Due in one year or 1essa€<$ 349a€<$ 343a€<$ 303a€«$ 300Due after one through five
yearsa€<«A 4,328a€<«A 4,167a€<A 7,686a€<A 7,365Due after five through ten yearsa€«A 49,3314€<A 44,8304€<A 61,0434€<A 54,686Due after ten yearsa€<A 76,0434€<A 65,053a€<A
85,3054€<A 73,190Total investment securities - held to maturitya€<a€<« 130,0514€<4€« 114,3934€<4€< 154,3374€<A€<« 135,5414€<a€<A€<A A 4€4€<A A a€<A€<A A 4€<A€<A A Available for
salea€<«a€<«A A A€<a€<A A A€<4€<A A a€<a€<A A Due in one year or lessa€<a€« 4€”a€<a€« a€"é€<a€< a€”a€<«a€« a€”Due after one through five yearsa€«a€« 4€”a€«a€« 4€”a€<«a€« a€"a€<«a€< a€"Due
after five through ten yearsa€<«a€« 1,055a€<a€<« 1,053a€<a€« 590a€<a€< 580Due after ten yearsa€«a€« 806a€«a€« 796a€<«a€« 1,627a€<«a€« 1,575Total investment securities - available for salea€<a€«
1,8614€<a€<« 1,849a€<a€<« 2,217a€<a€<« 2,155Total investment securitiesa€<$ 131,912a€<$ 116,2424€<$ 156,554a4€<$ 137,6966€<é€<é€<é€<N0teA 3: Loans Held for Investmenta€<Loans held for
investment consisted of the following at June 30, 2024 and 2023:4€<4€<A€<A€<A€ A€ <4€4€«(In Thousands)a€<JuneA 30,A 20244€<JuneA 30,A 2023Mortgage loans:a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<Single-
familyA A A A $ 518,091A A A A $ 518,821 Multi-familya€<a€« 445,182a€<4€< 461,113Commercial real estatea€<a€« 83,349a€<4€<« 90,558Constructiona€«a€« 2,692a€<a€<« 1,9360thera€a€«
953€<«4€<« 106Commercial business loansa€<a€« 1,372a€<«a€« 1,565Consumer loansa€<«a€« 65a€<a€« 65Total loans held for investment, grossa€<a€« 1,050,8464€«a€<
1,074,1644a€<a€<a€<a€a€<a€<a€«Advance payments of escrowsa€«a€« 102a€<«a€« 148Deferred loan costs, neta€<a€<« 9,096a€<a€<« 9,263ACL on loansa€«a€« (7,065)a€«a€« (5,946)Total loans held
for investment, neta€<$ 1,052,979a€<$ 1,077,6294€<a€<92Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsThe following table sets forth
information at June 30, 2024 regarding the dollar amount of loans held for investment that are contractually repricing during the periods indicated, segregated between adjustable rate loans
and fixed rate loans. Fixed-rate loans comprised 10% and 11% of loans held for investment at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Adjustable rate loans having no stated repricing date that
reprice when the index to which they are tied to reprices (e.g. prime rate index) and checking account overdrafts are reported as repricing within oneA year, subject to periodic and maximum
rate caps. The table does not include any estimate of prepayments which may cause the Corporationa€™s actual repricing experience to differ materially from that

Shown.A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AE A€ AE AL AE AL AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAdjustableA Ratea€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAftera€ Aftera€Aftera€ A€ a€ A€ A€ «a€«a€«a€Withind€«OneA Ye
Thousands)a€<OneA Yeara€<ThroughA 3A Yearsa€<ThroughA 5A Yearsa€<ThroughA 10A Yearsa€<FixedA Rate&€<TotalMortgage

loans:A€<A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEaESingle-familyA A A $ 54,686A A A $ 30,234A A A $104,979AA A $219,436A A A $108,756A A A $ 518,091 Multi-familya€<a€«
180,4644€<a€« 144,2274€<a€< 115,7854€<4€<« 4,612a€<a€< 944€<a€< 445,182Commercial real estated€<a€< 33,863a€<a€< 24,241a€<a€< 24,018a€<a€< 4€"a€<a€< 1,2274€4€«
83,349Constructiona€«a€« 2,692a€<a€<« 4€"4€<a€<« A€"4€<a€<« A€"A€ A€« A€"A€ A€« 2,6920thera€«a€« 4€"a€<a€<« 4€"4€<a€<« A€"4€<a€<« A€"4€4€<« 95a€a€« 95Commercial business loansa€<a€«
1,3724€<a€< A€"A€ A€« A€"AE<AE« A€"A€ A€« A€”a€<a€« 1,372Consumer loansa€«a€« 65a€<a€« A€ A€ A€« 4€"A€ A€« A€" A€ A€« 4€”a€<a€<« 65Total loans held for investment, grossa€«$ 273,142a€<$
198,702a€<$ 244,7824€«$ 224,048a€<$ 110,172a€<$ 1,050,846a€<The following tables present the Corporationd€™s commercial real estate loans by property type and LTV as of June 30, 2024
and 2023:4€<A€ A€ A€ A€ AE A€ AE AE AE GE G BEAEAEAEAEAEAEOWnera€ A€ <Non-Ownera€ A€ <a€<a€«% of Totala€ &€ Weighteda€ JuneA 30,A 20244€<Occupied Loana€«a€<«Occupied
Loané€<a€<Totala€« Commerciala€<a€<«Averagea€«(Dollars In Thousands)a€Balancea€«a€«Balancea€«a€<Balancea€« Real Estatea€«a€«LTV (1)a€<0ff1ceA AA$6690AAA $ 20, 084AAA$
26,774A A 32%A AA A 43%A A Mixed use (2)a€<a€<« 293a€<a€< 15,797a€<a€« 16,090a€<« 194€<a€<« 35%A A Retaila€<a€« 4€"4€a€< 12,5018€<a€« 12,5014€< 15a€<a€< 30%A A Warehousea€ a€«
2,0764€<4€< 9,8484€A€< 11,9244€« 144€<A€< 31%A A Medical/dental officea€ A€« 2,4394€A€« 4,6454€<A€« 7,0842€« 9A€<A€« 44%A A Mobile home parka€<a€« 4€"4€<A€« 6,9092€<A€« 6,909a€¢
84€<A€<« 38%A A Restaurant/fast fooda€<a€« 6904€<a€« 500a€A€« 1,190a€« 24€<A€< 46%A A Automotive - non gasolinea€«a€« 4€”A€<A€« 578A€<A€« 5784€« 14€<A€< 26%A A Live/worka€<«a€«
4€”8€<4€< 2994€ A€« 2994€« 4€”a€<A€<« 13%A A Total commercial real estated€<$ 12,1884€<$ 71,1614€<$ 83,3494€< 100%A A a€< 37%A A a€<(1)Current loan balance as a percentage of the
original appraised value.(2)Mixed use includes $6.9 million in Office/Retail, $4.7 million in Multi-family/Retail, $3.0 million in Other Mixed Use, $754,000 in Multi-family/Commercial and
$685,000 in Multi-family/Office.a€<93Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statementsa€ A€ A€ <A€ A€ A€ <AE A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAE AEAEAEAEAEOwnera€<Non-Ownera€ a€«a€«a€«% of Totala€«a€Weighteda€JuneA 30,A 20234€<Occupied Loané&€«Occupied
Loana€«&€<Totala€« Commerciala€<a€«Averagea€«(Dollars In Thousands)a€<Balancea€ Balance&€<a€Balancea€« Real Estatea€«a€<LTV (1)a€<0fﬁceA AA$9,283AAA$23915AAA%
33,198A A 37%A A A A 44%A A Mixed use (2)4€<a€< 3064€<a€< 17,6144€a€< 17,9204€« 204€<4€< 36%A A Retaila€«a€« 4€”a€<A€< 12,9914€<a€« 12,9914€« 144€<4€< 32%A A Warehousea€<a€«
2,1334€<4€< 8,5114€<4€< 10,6444€« 124€<A€< 31%A A Mobile home parka€<a€« A€”4€A€<« 7,0574€<A€« 7,0574€« 8a€<A€« 39%A A Medical/dental officeA€<a€« 1,1174€<A€« 5,5244€<A€« 6,6414€¢
74€<a€< 50%A A Restaurant/fast fooda€<a€« A€"a€<a€« 1,0144€a€< 1,0144€« 14€<A€< 24%A A Automotive - non gasolinea€<«a€« A€”A€ A€« 485a€ A€« 485a€« 14€<A€<« 19%A A Live/worka€a€«
4€"8€<4€« 3374€<A€« 3374€< 4€7a€<a€<« 15%A A Light industrial/manufacturinga€<a€« 4€”4€<a€<« 2714€<a€<« 2714€« 4€"4€<4€< 8%A A Total commercial real estatea€«$ 12,8394€<$ 77,7194€<$
90,558a€< 100%A A a4€< 38%A A &4€<(1)Current loan balance as a percentage of the original appraised value.(2)Mixed use includes $8.2 million in Office/Retail, $5.6 million in Multi-family/Retail,
$3.4 million in Other Mixed Use and $700,000 in Multi-family/Office.a€<The following tables present the Corporationa€™s commercial real estate loans by geographic concentration as of June
30, 2024 and

2023:4€ A€ A€ AE A AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE AL AE AL AE AL AE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEInlanda€«a€<Southerna€ 4€«Othera€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ a€ JuneA 30,A 20244€Empire(1)a€ &€ «Califor
in Thousands)a€<Ba1ancea€<%a€<a€<Balancea€<%a€<a€<Balancea€<%a€<a€<Balancea€<%a€<0wner AAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

100%AA Mixed usea€<«a€« A€"A€< A€"%A A A€<A€« A€"AE< A€ %A A A€AE< 2938€< 100%A A 4€<a€« 293a€< 100%A A Warehousea€<a€< 4€”A€< A€"%A A a€<A€< 1,6898€< 81%A A a€<a€< 387a€<
19%A A 4€<4€< 2,0764€< 100%A A Medical/dental officea€<a€< 2768€< 11%A A 4€<a€< 1,7914€< 74%A A 4€<4€< 3728€< 15%A A a€<A€« 2,4398€< 100%A A Restaurant/fast fooda€<a€« 4€”a€<
a€"%A A 4€a€< 690a€< 100%A A A€<A€« A€"aE< A€ %A A 4€<a€< 690a€< 100%A A Total owner occupieda€«a€« 1,816a€< 15%A A 4€<a€< 9,1298€« 75%A A 4€<4€« 1,2434€< 10%A A a€<a€«
12,1884€< 100%A A A€ A€ A€ A€ AE AE AE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAENon-owner

occupied:a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE AL AL AEBEOfficeat A€« 2,9514€<« 15%A A 4€<a€« 13,8374€< 69%A A 4€<a€« 3,2964€« 16%A A 4€<E€< 20,084a€¢
100%A A Mixed usea€<«a€« 505a4€« 3%A A 4€<4€« 6,2434€< 40%A A A€<A€« 9,0498€< 57%A A 4€<4€« 15,7974€< 100%A A Retaila€«a€< 1,0504€« 8%A A 4€<4€< 6,9964€« 56%A A 4€<A€« 4,4554€«
36%A A a€<a€< 12,5014€< 100%A A Warehousea€<a€« 605a€« 6%A A A€<a€« 4,7744€< 49%A A 4€<A€« 4,469a€« 45%A A A€<4€< 9,8484€<« 100%A A Mobile home parka€<a€« 4,859a€«

70%A A 4€<a€< 358a€< 5%A A 4€<4€< 1,6924€<« 25%A A 4€<4€< 6,9094€« 100%A A Medical/dental officea€<«a€« 1,7974€<« 39%A A 4€<4€< 2,1594€« 46%A A 4€<4€< 689a€« 15%A A 4€<a€« 4,6458€¢



100%A A Automotive - non gasolinea€<a€« a€"4€<« 4€"%A A 4€<a€« 5784€< 100%A A €<4€< A€”4€< 46" %A A 4€<4€< 5784€< 100%A A Restaurant/fast fooda€ <€« 4€"a€« A€"%A A 4€<a€« 500a€«
100%A A a€<a€< 4€7a€<« 4€"%A A §€<é€< 5008€< 100%A A Liyelworké€<é€< 4€”78€< 5?"'1/01* A 4€<a€« a€”4€< A€"%A A a€<a€« 2994€< 100%A A a€<a€« 2994€< 100%A A Total non-owner
occupieda€ &€« 11,7674€« 16%A A A€<A€« 35,4455€< 50%A A 4€A€« 23,9498€« 34%A A AEAE« 71,1614€« o o

100%A A A€ A€ <AEAE A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE AL AfaE A€ aEaE«a€«a€ Total commercial real estated€«$ 13,5834€« 16%A A 4€<$ 44,5744€« 54%A A a€<$ 25,1924€«

30%A A a€<$ 83,3494€< 100%4a€<(1)Inland Empire comprised of San Bernardino and Riverside counties.(2)Other than the Inland Empire.4€<94Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL
HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial R R

Statementsa€ A€ <a€<a€ A€ A€ <€ A€ A€ <AL AL Q<AL <AL AL AL AL AL <AE<AE AL <AE<AE«AfaE<aEa€Inlanda€«a€<Southernd€«a€«Othera€ A€ <a€<a€«a€<a€<a€<JuneA 30,A 2023a€<Empire(1)a€<«a€<Cali
in Thousands)a€<Balancea€«%Aa€a€Balancea€«%Aa€<a€Balancea€«%Aa€<a€Balancea€«%a€<«Owner

100%A A Mixed usea€<a€« 4€"4€< 4€"%A A 4€<A€« A€"4€« 4€"%A A 4€<A€< 306a€<« 100%A A 4€<a€< 3064€< 100%A A Warehousea€«a€« 4€”a€« 4€"%A A 4€<a€< 1,733a€« 81%A A 4€<a€< 4004€<
19%A A a€<a€« 2,133a€< 100%A A Medical/dental officea€<a€« 2814€« 25%A A 4€<A€< 453a€< 41%A A 2€<A€« 383a€« 34%A A 4€<a€< 1,1174€< 100%A A Total owner occupieda€<a€« 2,9304€«
23%A A 4€<a€< 8,6228€< 67%A A a€<a€< 1,2878€< 10%A A a€<a€< 12,839a€« 100%A A A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAE AL AEAEAE AL AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE«a€a€«Non-owner

occupied:a€<A€ A€ A€ A€ AE A€ AEAE AEAE AEAEAEAEAE AEAE AEAEAEAEAEGAEfficeat A€« 4,4204€« 18%A A 4€<a€< 14,767a€< 62%A A a€<a€« 4,728a€< 20%A A 4€<a€< 23,915a€¢
100%A A Mixed usea€<a€<« 660a€< 4%A A A€<A€< 7,2924€« 41%A A 4€<4€< 9,6628€< 55%A A a€<a€< 17,6144€< 100%A A Retaila€<a€« 1,076a€<« 8%A A a€<a€< 7,3534€« 57%A A 4€<4€« 4,562a€«
35%A A 4€<a€< 12,9914€< 100%A A Warehousea€<a€< 6238€< 7%A A 2€<a€< 5,6908€< 67%A A a€<a€<« 2,1982€< 26%A A 4€<a€< 8,511a€< 100%A A Mobile home parka€<a€« 4,9674€<

70%A A 4€<4€< 364a€< 5%A A €€« 1,7264€< 25%A A 4€<A€< 7,0574€<« 100%A A Medical/dental officea€<a€« 1,9104€<« 35%A A 4€<a€« 3,325a€< 60%A A a€a€< 289a€< 5%A A a€<a€« 5,5244€«
100%A A Restaurant/fast fooda€<a€« 4€”a€« 4€"%A A 4€<4€< 1,0144€< 100%A A A€<A€< A€”a€< 4€"%A A 4€4€< 1,0148€< 100%A A Automotive - non gasolinea€<a€< 4€”a€<« 4€" %A A a€<4€« 485a€¢
100%A A 4€<4€< 4€”a€< 4€" %A A A€<A€< 485a€< 100%A A Live/worka€a€« 4€”a€« A€ %A A 4€<4€« A€”a€< 4€"%A A 4€<A€< 3374€< 100%A A 4€<a€< 3374€< 100%A A Light industrial/
manufacturinga€«a€« 4€”a€< 4€"%A A 4€<A€< 2714€< 100%A A A€<A€< 4€"a€« A€ %A A 4€<4€< 2714€< 100%A A Total non-owner occupieda€<«a€« 13,656a€<« 18%A A 4€<4€< 40,5614€<

52%A A 4€<a€< 23,5028€<« 30%A A 4€<a€< 77,7194€< 100%A A A€<AEAE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAt«a€«aEa€<Total commercial real estatea€<$ 16,586a€«

18%A A a€<$ 49,1834€<« 54%A A a€<$ 24,7894€< 28%A A 4€<$ 90,5584€< 100%4€<(1)Other than the Inland Empire.a€<The Corporation has developed an internal loan grading system to evaluate
and quantify loans held for investment with respect to quality and risk. Management continually evaluates the credit quality of the loan portfolio and conducts a quarterly review of the adequacy
of the ACL. The Corporation has adopted an internal risk rating policy in which each loan is rated for credit quality with a rating of pass, special mention, substandard, doubtful or loss. The two
primary components that are used during the loan review process to determine the proper allowance levels are individually evaluated allowances and collectively evaluated allowances. The
collectively evaluated allowance is based on a pooling method for groups of homogeneous loans sharing similar loan characteristics to calculate an allowance which reflects an estimate of
lifetime expected credit losses using historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. Loans identified to be individually evaluated have an allowance that is
based upon the appraised value of the collateral, less selling costs or discounted cash flow with an appropriate default factor.The Corporation categorizes all loans held for investment into risk
categories based on relevant information about the ability of the borrower to service their debt such as current financial information, historical payment experience, credit documentation,
public information, and current economic trends, among other factors. A description of the general characteristics of the risk grades is as follows:a—PassA 4€“ A pass loan ranges from minimal
credit risk to average, but still acceptable, credit risk. The likelihood of loss is considered remote.A—Special MentionA - A special mention loan has potential weaknesses that may be temporary
or, if left uncorrected, may result in a loss. While concerns exist, the Corporation is currently protected and loss is considered unlikely and not imminent.A—SubstandardA - A substandard loan
is inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified must have a well-defined weakness, or
weaknesses, that may jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. A substandard loan is characterized by the distinct possibility that the Corporation will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not
corrected.A—DoubtfulA - A doubtful loan has all of the weaknesses inherent in one classified as substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in
full, on the basis of the currently existing facts, conditions and values, highly questionable and improbable.95Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statementsa—LossA - A loss loan is considered uncollectible and of such little value that continuance as an asset of the Corporation is not warranted.a€<The following table presents
the Corporationa€™s recorded investment in loans by risk categories and gross charge-offs by year of origination as of June 30,

2024:5€ A€ A€ A€ A AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE AL AL AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEJuneA 30,A 20244€<Term Loans by Year of Originationa€«Revolvinga€ «a€<«a€«(In
Thousands)a€<20244€<2023a€<2022a€<2021a€<2020a€<Priora€«Loansa€TotalMortgage loans:a€a€<a€<a€a€a€«a€<a€«a€a€«a€«a€«a€ac«at«a€«at€a€ac«at«at€@a€@€«a€<Single-

family:4€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE@EEPassAAAA $19,476AAAA $60,688AAAA$205817AAAA$149,084AAAA$19,606AAAAS
59,702A A $ 14A A A A $ 514,387 Special Mentiona€<a€« -a€4€« -a€<a€« -A€<A€<« -4€ A€« -A€<A€« 1,1118€4€« -4€<a€< 1,111 Substandarda€ a€« -4€<A€« -a€ A€« -A€ A€« -A€<AE<« -A€ A€« 2,593A€ A€«
-4€<a€« 2,593Total single-familya€<«a€< 19,476a€<a€<« 60,688a€<a€« 205,817a€«a€<« 149,084a€<a€<« 19,606a€<a€<« 63,406a€a€<« 144€<a€< 518,091 Current period gross charge-offa€«$ -a€<$ -a€<$
-a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -A€ A€ A€ <AE<AE<AE A€ A€ A€ <AL <AL <AL A€ A€ A€ <AE<AE <AL <A af A€ «af<a€<a€<a€Multi-

family:4€<a€<a€ Q€ <A€<A€ A€ A€ A€ <AEAE AL AEAEAEQAEAEAEAEAEAEAtaE«aE« Passa€«a€« 10,374a€«a€« 28,892a€<a€« 75,876a€<a€« 86,916a€<a€<« 60,938a€«a€<« 180,119a€<a€« -a€<a€«
443,115 Special Mentiona€«a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€ A€« -A€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« - Substandarda€ A€« -4€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« 478a€<a€« -a€<a€« 1,589a€«a€« -a€<a€<« 2,067 Total multi-
familya€<a€« 10,3744€<a€<« 28,892a€4€< 75,876a€<a€« 87,394a€<a€« 60,938a€<a€« 181,708a€<a€« -a€<a€<« 445,182Current period gross charge-offa€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$
-4€<a€<a€ <A <A€<af A€ <AE <AL Q<€ <AL AL <AE <AL af«aE<aE«af«a€<a€«af«a€«a€«a€«Commercial real estate:3€<a€«a€<a€<a€ A€ A€ <AE A€ A€ <AE <AL A€ <AE <AL A€ AL <AL Q<AL A€ <«a€<aE« Passa€at«
3,8744€<4€< 13,763a€<a€<« 23,298a€<4€< 4,018a€<a€< 5,4508€<a€« 32,946a€a€« -a€<a€« 83,349 Special Mentiona€«a€« -a€«a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€< -4€<a€<« -a€<a€< -a€<a€« -4€<a€« - Substandarda€ a€«
-8€<B€< -A€<A€< -A€ A€« -A€AE« -A€<AE« -a€<a€« -4€<a€« -Total commercial real estated€<«a€« 3,8744€<a€< 13,7634€<a€< 23,2984€<a€< 4,018a€<a€< 5,4504€<a€<« 32,9464€<a€< -4€<a€<« 83,349Current
period gross charge-offa€«$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$

-4€<A€ A€ <A <AE A A€ <AL AL Q<AL <AL AL AL <AL QAL <AEAEAE<AE AL A€ <aEa€«Construction: A€ <«4€<A€ <€ A€ A€ A€ A€ <AE<AE AL AL <AE QLA <AEAE A€ <AE AL Q<AL AL A« Passafa€«
1,4808€<A€< 228a€<A€< 9844€ A€« -A€<A€< -a€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« 2,692 Special Mentiond€«a€« -4€ A€« -4€<a€« -A€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€ A€« -a€<a€< - Substandarda€«a€« -a€«a€« -a4€ A€« -a4€<a€«
-4€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€«a€« -a€<a€« -Total constructiona€«a€« 1,480a€<«a€<« 228a€<a€« 984a€ <€« -a€«a€« -4€<a€« -a4€<a€« -a€<a€< 2,692Current period gross charge-offa€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$
-4€<$ -A€<$ -A€<AE<AEAE A AEAEAE<AE AL AL AEAEAE<AE AL AL A AE<AEAE AL ALAEAE«Other:a€ A€ A€ «AE<AE<AEAE AL AEAEAE<AEAE AL AL AE«AE<AE<at At Af«aE«aE«ak« Passa€ €«
-4€<8€< -4€<a€< -4€<a€« -a€ A€« 958€<a€« -a€<a€< -4€<a€<« 95 Special Mentiond€«a€« -4€<a€« -4€<a€<« -4€ A€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€< -4€<a€<« -4€<a€« - Substandarda€«a€« -4€<a€« -a€a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€«
-4€<A€« -A€ A€« -a€<a€« -Total othera€<a€« -a€<«a€« -a€«a€« -a€«a€« -4€<a€< 95a€<a€« -4€<a€« -4€<a€<« 95Current period gross charge-offa€<$ -4€«$ -4€<$ -4€<$ -8€<$ -4€<$ -a€<$ -4€<$

-84€<8€<A€ A€ A€ AL <AL <AL AL A€ AL AL <AL <AL AL AL AL <AL <aL AL Ak A€ «a€<at«a€«Commercial business loans:a€ a€ a€<a€<a€<a€ A€ A€ A€ <€ <A <AE A€ (A€ AL <AL <AL <AL A€ A€ <AL <AL ak«
Passa€«a€« -a€«a€« -a€<a€« 1334€<a€« -A€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« 1,2394€A€< 1,372 Special Mentiona€«a€« -4€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« -4€A€« -A€ A€« -A4€<a€« -a€<a€« - Substandarda€«a€« -4€ A€« -4€<a€«
-4€ @€« -a€«ak« -a€<ak« -a€<a€« -a€«a€« -Total commercial business loansa€«a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« 133a€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€«a€« -a€«a€« 1,239a€<a€« 1,372Current period gross charge-offa€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$
-A€<$ -A€<$ -AE<$ -AE<$ -AE<$ -A€ A€ AEAE<AEAEAEAEAEAEAE<AEAEAEAEAE<AE<AE<AE A AfaE«aE«aE<a€«Consumer
loans:a€<a€«a€«a€<a€a€ A€ a€«a€«a€«a€ A€ «a€«a€«a€ A€ «a€«a€a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€« Not gradeda€«a€« 234€ A€« -a€<«a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<«a€« -a€«a€« -a€«a€« 23 Passa€«a€« -a€«a€« -a€«a€«

-4€ A€« -A€ A€« -A€ <A« -a€<a€« 428€<4€« 42 Special Mentiona€ A€« -4€ A€« -4€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<A€« -4€ A€« -A€ A€« -a€<a€« - Substandarda€ A€« -4€ A€« -A€<a€« -A€<A€« -a€<A€« -4€ A€« -a€ A€«
-4€<a€« -Total consumer loansa€«a€« 23a€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€«a€« -a€«a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« 42a€«a€« 65Current period gross charge-offa€<$ -a€«$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$
-2€<a€<a€<«a€<a€<«af«a€<a€«af«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«ak«af«a€«ak«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€<«a€«a€«Total loans held for investment, grossa€«$ 35,227a€«$ 103,571a€<$ 306,108a€<$ 240,496a€<$ 86,089a€<$
278,060a€<«$ 1,295a€<$ 1,050,846Total current period gross charge-offsa€«$ a€”a€<$ 4€”a€<$ a€"4€«$ a€”a€«$ A€"a€<$ A€"a€<$ a€"a€«$ a€”a€<«96Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL
HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsThe following table presents the Corporationa€™s recorded investment in loans by risk categories by year of origination as of June
30, 2023:4€ A€ <AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE AL AE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEJuneA 30,A 20234€<Term Loans by Year of Originationa€<Revolvinga€«a€<a€«(In
Thousands)a€<2023a€<2022a€<2021a€<2020a€<2019a€«Priora€Loansa€TotalMortgage loans:a€a€<a€<a€a€a€«a€<a€«a€ag«a€«a€«a€ac«at«a€at€acac«at«at€@a€@€«a€«Single-

family:4€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE@EEPassAAAA $51,378AAAA $216989AAAA$157,015AAAA$20741AAAA$11,793AAAA S
59,451A A $ 32A A A A $ 517,399 Special Mentiona€<a€« -A€4€« -A€<A€< -AE€<A€« -AE€AE« -A€ A€« -A€<AE« -A€<A€« - Substandarda€ A€« -A€ A€« -A€ A€« -A€<A€« 251A€<A€« -A€ A€« 1,1712€ A€« -A€<AE<
1,422Total single-familya€<«a€< 51,3784€<«a€« 216,989a€<a€<« 157,015a€<a€« 20,992a€<a€« 11,793a€<a€< 60,6224€a€<« 32a€<a€« 518,821 Current period gross charge-offa€«$ -4€<$ -4€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$
-4€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -2€<A€ A€ <AE€<AE AL <AL <AE A Q<AL AL Q<AL <AL A€ <AL AL AL <AL A€ <Ak @€ Multi-family: A€ A€ <A€ <€ A€ A€ <AE A€ <A <AE <AL AL <AL <AE A€ <AL <AL AL <AE <AL af«ak<ak«ak«
Passa€«a€« 17,429a€<a€« 77,956a€<a€< 90,926a€<a€<« 65,127a€<a€< 59,709a€<a€< 149,456a€<a€« -a€<a€< 460,603 Special Mentiond€<a€« -a€<a€< -4€<a€< 510a€ A€« -a€<A€< -4€<a€<« -4€<a€< -a€ 4k«
510 Substandarda€a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€< -a€<a€< -4€<a€< -4€ A€« -A€<A€« -a€<a€« -Total multi-familya€<a€« 17,4294€<a€< 77,9564€<a€< 91,4364€<a€< 65,1274€<a€< 59,709a€<a€< 149,4564€ A€«
-4€<a€< 461,113Current period gross charge-offa€<$ -a€«$ -4€<$ -4€<$ -4€<$ -4€<$ -€<$ -4€<$ -A€<A€ A€ A€ A€ <AEAEAEAE<AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE<AE«aE A€ aE«at«a€«a€«@€«Commercial real
estate:a€<a€«a€«a€ A€ «a€«a€«a€a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€« Passa€«a€« 8,586a€<a€« 23,815a€<a€<« 5,527a€<a€« 6,525a€<a€<« 9,981a€<a€<« 35,577a€<a€<« -a€<a€< 90,011
Special Mentiona€<a€« -a€<«a€« -a€ A€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€«a€« -a4€<a4€< - Substandarda€«a€« -a€<«a€« -4€ A€« -4€ A€« -4€<a€« -a€<a€« 547a€<a€« -a€<a€« 547Total commercial real estatea€<«a€«
8,5864€<a€« 23,8153€<a€< 5,527a€<a€< 6,5258€<4€< 9,981a€<a€< 36,1248€<a€< -4€<a€< 90,558Current period gross charge-offa€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -4€<$ -4€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -4€<$

-4€ A€ <A€<AE<AE A€ AEAEAE AL AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE AL AEAEAEAEAEaE«Construction:a€«a€<a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ QLA AEAE AL AEAEAEQEAEAEAEAEAEAEaE« Passa€«a€« 944€a€«
7268€<a€< 1,1163€<a€< -a€<a€« -a€<a€< -a€«a€« -a€<a€« 1,936 Special Mentiona€<a€« -a€<«a€< -a€«a€« -a€<a€« -4€<a€< -a€<a€< -a€<a€« -a€<a€« - Substandarda€«a€« -a€<«a€« -a4€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€«
-4€<a€« -a€ <€« -a€<a€« -Total constructiond€<a€« 94a€<a€« 726a€<a€< 1,116a€<A€« -4€ A€« -A€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« 1,936Current period gross charge-offa€«$ -a€<$ -4€<$ -4€<$ -4€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$
-4€<$ -A€<A€<AE Q€A <AL AL AL AL QAL AL AE<AEAL AL AE <AL QAL <AL A <AL «Other:A€«a€ A€ A€ <AE AL Q<AL AL Q<AL A€ A€ <AE AL AE<AE<AL AL AL <AL Af<AE<aE« Passa€«af« -a€<a€«
-4€<8€< -4€<a€< 1068€<A€« -a€<A€< -a€<a€< -a€<a€< 106 Special Mentiona€ €« -a€ A€« -a€<A€< -4€<a€< -4€<a€< -a€ A€« -A€<A€« -4€<a€< - Substandarda€<«a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€«a€« -a€ 4k«
-4€<a€« -a€<«a€« -Total othera€<«a€« -a€<a€« -a€<«a€« -a€«a€« 106a€a€« -a€«a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« 106Current period gross charge-offa€«$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$ -a€<$

-4€ A€ A€ <AE<AE A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE<ataE«aEa€<a€«Commercial business loans:A€<a€ <€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEQEAEAEAEAEAEAtatat«
Passa€«a€« -a€<a€« 1718€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€< 1,394a€<a€< 1,565 Special Mentiona€«a€« -a€<a€« -4€<a€< -a€<a€< -a€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€< -a€<a€« - Substandarda€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€«
-4€ A€« -A€ A€« -A€ A€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« -Total commercial business loansa€«a€« -4€<a€« 1718€«A€« -4€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€« -4€<a€« 1,3944€<a€<« 1,565Current period gross charge-offa€«$ -a€<$ -a€<$
-8€<$ -A€<$ -A€<$ -A€<$ -A€<$ -A€ A€ A€ <AL <AEAEAEAE A AE<AE<AEAE AL A Af <AL <AL <ALt A af«ak«a€«a€<«Consumer

loans:4€<a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ <AE A€ A AEAEAE AL AEAEAEAEAEAEEE A€« Not gradeda€«a€« 153€ A€« -A€ A€« -A€ A€« -A€<AE« -a€<A€« -A€ A€« -A€ A€« 15 Passa€<«a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€«
-4€<a€« -a€<a€< -a€ <€« -a€<a€« 50a€<a€<« 50 Special Mentiona€<«a€« -a€<a€« -a4€<a€« -a€<A€< -A€ A€« -4€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<a€< - Substandarda€<«a€« -a€<a€« -a€<«a€« -a€<A€« -A€<a€« -a€<a€< -a€<a€«
-4€<4€« -Total consumer loansa€«a€« 158€<a€« -a€<a€« -a€<A€« -A€ A€« -a€ A€« -a€<a€« 50a€<a€« 65Current period gross charge-offa€<$ -a€<$ -4€<$ -a€<$ -4€<$ -4€<$ -4€<$ -a€<$

-4€ Q€ <a€<a€<a€ Q€A <at<a€ AL AL <At af A€ Ak «at«af«a€«at«at«at«ak«a€«a€«a€«Total loans held for investment, grossa€<$ 77,502a€<$ 319,657a€<$ 255,094a€<$ 92,750a€<$ 81,483a€<$
246,202a€<$ 1,476a€<$ 1,074,164 Total current period gross charge-offsa€«$ a€”a€«$ a€”a€«$ a€”a€«$ a€”a€«$ a€"a€«$ a€"a€«$ a€"a€«$ a€”a€«a€<97Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL
HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsAs required by ASC 326,A onA July 1, 2023A the Corporation implemented CECL and recognized a $1.2 million one-time increase to
its ACL. Under ASC 326,A the ACL is a valuation account that is deducted from the related loansa€™ amortized cost basis to present the net amount expected to be collected on the loans. The
measurement of expected credit losses is based on relevant information about past events, including historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts that
affect the collectability of the reported amount. The Corporationa€™s ACL is calculated quarterly, with any difference in the calculated ACL and the recorded ACL trued-up through an entry to
the provision for (recovery of) credit losses. Management calculates the quantitative portion of the collectively evaluated allowance for all loan categories using an average charge-off or loss
rate methodology and generally evaluates collectively evaluated loans by Call Report code in order to group and determine portfolio loan segments with similar risk characteristics. The
Corporation primarily utilizes historical loss rates for the CECL calculation based on its own specific historical losses and/or with peer loss history where applicable. &€<The expected loss rates
are applied to expected monthly loan balances estimated through the consideration of contractual repayment terms and expected prepayments. The prepayment assumptions applied to
expected cash flow over the contractual life of the loans are estimated based on historical and bank-specific experience and the consideration of current and expected conditions and
circumstances including the level of interest rates. The prepayment assumptionsA mayA be updated by management in the event that changing conditions impact managementa€™s estimate or
additional historical data gathered has resulted in the need for a reevaluation.a€<For its reasonable and supportable forecasting of current expected credit losses, the Corporation utilizes a
regression model using forecasted economic metrics and historical loss data. The regression model utilized upon implementation of CECL onA July 1, 2023,A and as ofA June 30, 2024,A relied
upon reasonable and supportable 12-month forecasts of the National Unemployment Rate and change in the Real Gross Domestic Product, after which it reverts to a historical loss rate.
Management selected the National Unemployment Rate and the Real Gross Domestic Product as the drivers of the forward look component of the collectively evaluated allowance, primarily as a
result of high correlation coefficients identified in regression modeling, the availability of forecasts, including the quarterly Federal Open Market Committee forecast, and the widespread
familiarity of these economic metrics.a€<Management recognizes that there are additional factors impacting risk of loss in the loan portfolio beyond what is captured in the quantitative portion
of allowance on collectively evaluated loans. As current and expected conditionsA mayA vary compared with conditions over the historical lookback period, which is utilized in the calculation of
the quantitative allowance, management considers whether additional or reduced allowance levels on collectively evaluated loansA mayA be warranted, given the consideration of a variety of
qualitative factors. The following qualitative factors (&€0eQ-factorsa€) considered by management reflect the regulatory guidance on the Q-factors:a€<a—Changes in the experience, ability, and
depth of lending management and other relevant staff.a—Changes in the value of underlying collateral for collateral-dependent loans.a—The existence and effect of any concentrations of credit,
and changes in the level of such concentrations.a—Changes in international, national, regional, and local economic and business conditions and developments that affect the collectability of the
portfolio, including the condition of various market segments.a—The effect of other external factors such as competition and legal and regulatory requirements on the level of estimated credit
losses in the institution's existing portfolio.A—Changes in the volume and severity of past due loans, the volume of non-performing loans, and the volume and severity of adversely classified or
graded loans.a—Changes in the quality of the Corporationd€™s loan review system.4—Changes in the nature, volume and terms of loans in the portfolio.&—Changes in lending policies and
procedures, including changes in underwriting standards and collection, charge-off, and recovery practices not considered elsewhere in estimating credit losses.A The qualitative portion of the
Corporationa€™s allowance on collectively evaluated loans are calculated using management judgment, to determine risk categorizations in each of the Q-factors presented above. The amount
of qualitative allowance is also contingent upon the relative weighting of the Q-factors according to managementa€™s judgment.A 98Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS,



INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsLoans that do not share similar risk characteristics are evaluated on an individual basis. When management determines that foreclosure is
probable or the borrower is experiencing financial difficulty, the expected credit losses are based on the fair value of collateral at the reporting date, less selling costs. 4€<Accrued interest
receivable for loans is included in accrued interest receivable in the A Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.A The Corporation electedA notA to measure an allowance for accrued
interest receivable and instead elected to reverse accrued interest income on loans that are placed on non-performing status.A A loan is deemed non-performing when it is 90 days or more
delinquent. The Corporation believes this policy results in the timely reversal of potentially uncollectible interest.a€<Pursuant to ASU 2022-02, a€ceTroubled Debt Restructurings and Vintage
Disclosures,a€ the CorporationA mayA agree to different types of modifications, including principal forgiveness, interest rate reductions, term extension, significant payment delay or any
combination of modifications noted above. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, there wereA noA loan modifications to borrowers experiencing financial difficulties.A€<Management
believes the ACL on loans held for investment is maintained at a level sufficient to provide for expected losses on the Corporationa€™ s loans held for investment based on historical loss
experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The provision for (recovery of) credit losses is charged (credited) against operations on a quarterly basis, as
necessary, to maintain the ACL at appropriate levels. Future adjustments to the ACL may be necessary and results of operations could be significantly and adversely affected as a result of
economic, operating, regulatory, and other conditions beyond the Corporationa€™s control.Non-performing loans are charged-off to their fair market values in the period the loans, or portion
thereof, are deemed uncollectible, generally after the loan becomes 150 days delinquent for real estate secured first trust deed loans and 120 days delinquent for commercial business or real
estate secured second trust deed loans. For loans that were previously modified from their original terms, were re-underwritten and identified as modified loans, the charge-off occurs when the
loan becomes 90 days delinquent; and where borrowers file bankruptcy, the charge-off occurs when the loan becomes 60 days delinquent. The amount of the charge-off is determined by
comparing the loan balance to the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral, less disposition costs, with the loan balance in excess of the estimated fair value charged-off against the ACL.
For modified loans that are less than 90 days delinquent, the ACL is segregated into (a) individually evaluated allowances for those loans with applicable discounted cash flow calculations still in
their modification period, classified lower than pass, and containing an embedded loss component or (b) collectively evaluated allowances based on the aggregated pooling method. For non-
performing loans less than 60 days delinquent where the borrower has filed bankruptcy, the collectively evaluated allowances are assigned based on the aggregated pooling method. For non-
performing commercial real estate loans, an individually evaluated allowance is derived based on the loan's discounted cash flow fair value (for modified loans) or collateral fair value less
estimated selling costs and if the fair value is higher than the loan balance, no allowance is required. A non-performing loan can be restored to accrual status when a borrower is current in
payments for six consecutive months. A 99Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsThe following tables summarize the
Corporationa€™s ACL and recorded investment in gross loans, by portfolio type, at the dates and for the years

indicated.&€<a€<a€<a€ A€ A€ <A€<AE<AE€AE A€ AE<AE<AE<AEAE AL AL <AL <AL <AL AL A€ <aE<aLt«aE«aka€a€«Year Ended

JuneA 30,A 20244€<a€<A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAE«Commerciala€a€ A€ «a€ A€ «a€<a€«Commerciala€ A€<«a€ A€ «a€<a€a€<«(In Thousands)a€<Single-familya€<Multi-

familya€<RealA Estatea€<Constructiona€«OtherA Mor‘tgagea€<Busmessa€<C0nsumera€<T0ta1a€<ACL A€ A€ <AE€<AEAEQEAEAEAEQEAEAEAE QLA At AEAEAEAEAEAEAE«aE@EACL,
beginning of periodAAAA $1,720AAAA$3270AAAA$868AAAA$15AAAA$2AAAA$67AAAA $4A A A A § 59464€<Adjustment to ACL for adoption of ASC 326&€<&€< 4,6058€ <€«
(2,614)a€<a€«< (786)a€<a€< 4748€<4€<« 34€<AE< (54)a€<a€< (4)a€<a€< 1, 197a€<(Recovery of) provision for credit lossesa€<A (30)a€<A (61)a€<A (16)a€<A 35a€A (4)a€<A (2) €A a€”a€A
(78)a€<Recoveriesa€«A a€”a€<A A€”aE€<A AE”AE<A AE”AE«A A4€"A€«A 4€"A€<A 4€”4€<A a€”a€<Charge-offsa€«A A4€"4€<A a€”a€<A A€”aE<A A€”AEA AE”AE<A a€”a€«A 4€"4€«A 4€"4€<ACL,
end of perioda€«$ 6,2958€<$ 595a€<$ 66a€<$ 974€<$ 14€<$ 114€<$ a€”a€<$

7,0658€<A€ A€ QE<AEAEQEAEAE QAL AEAEAEAEAEQEAEAEGEQEAEAEQEAEAE@QEACL:AEAEAE AL QEAEAEAEAEAE QL AEAEAEAEAEAEQEAEAE@EEAE<aE«aEa€Individually
evaluated for allowancesa€«$ 37a€«$ A€”a€<$ A€”A€<$ A€"A€<$ A€ A€« A€”a€<$ A€”a€<$ 37a€Collectively evaluated for allowancesa€«A 6,2584€<A 595a€<A 664€A 97a€A 1a€A 11a€A
a€”a€<A 7,028a€<ACL, end of perioda€«$ 6,295a4€<$ 595a€<$ 66a€<$ 974€<$ 1a€<$ 11a€<$ A€"AE<S

7,0658€<A€ A€ A€ AE<AE A€ AEAEAEAE A AEAEAE AL AEAEAEAEAEAEAEaEaE<a€a€Loans held for

investment:a€<4€ A€ <A€<AE A€ A€ AE AL QEAEAEAEAEAE AL AEAE AL AEaE«aE a€a€«a€dndividually evaluated for allowancesa€«$ 1,134a€<$ a€"4€<$ AE€"A€<$ 4€"AE<$ AE"AE<$ AE"AES
4€”74€<$ 1,134a€<Collectively evaluated for allowancesa€<A 516,9574€<A 445,1824€<A 83,3494€<A 2,6924€<A 954€<A 1,3724€<A 653€<A 1,049,7124€<Total loans held for investment,
grossé€«$ 518,0914€<$ 445,182a€<$ 83,3494€<$ 2,692a8€<$ 95a€<$ 1,372a€<$ 65a€<$ 1,050,846a€<ACL on loans as a percentage of gross loans held for investmenta€«a€« 1. 22%A A &€«

0.13%A A €< 0.08%A A 4€< 3.60%A A 4€< 1.05%A A 4€< 0.80%A A 4€< 4€”%A A 4€< 0.67%Net (recoveries) charge-offs to average loans receivable, net during the perioda€<a€« 4€”%A A a€<
A€"%A A 4€< €"%A A A€« AE"%A A A€« AE" %A A A€« A€"%A A A€« AE"%A A A€« AE"%AE AEAE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE@EYear Ended
JuneA 30,A 2023A 4€<4€<a€<A€<AEAEAE<AE«Commerciala€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ «Commerciala€ &€ &€ A€ «a€«a€«a€«(In Thousands)a€«Single-familya€ <Multi-familya€« Real
Estatea€<Constructiona€<Other Mortgagea€ Businessa€«Consumera€Totala€<ACL:A€ A€ <AE A€ A€ A€ AE A€ AE AE AE AE AE AL AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEA ACL, beginning of
periodAAAA$1,383AAAA$3,282AAAA$816AAAA$23AAAA$3AAAA$52AAAA$5AAAA$ 5,564a€Provision for (recovery of) credit lossesa€«A 329a€<A (12)a€A 52a€A
(8)a€<A (1)a€<A 15a€<A (1)a€<A 374&€<Recoveriesd€<A 8AE€<A AE€”AE<A A€”A€«A A4€"4€«A &4€"4€<A 4€"a€<A a€”3€<A 8a€<Charge-offsa€«A A4€”a€<A A€”"a€<A AE€”AE<A AE€”AEA A€”AEA
a€”a€A a€”a€<A a€”a€<ACL, end of perioda€«$ 1,7204€<$ 3,2704€<$ 8684€<$ 15a€<$ 2a€<$ 674€<$ 44€<$

5,9464€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AE AL AE AE AE AE AE AE A AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEACL:AEA A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE AL AEAEAEAEAEBEBEBEAEAEAEIndividually
evaluated for allowancesa€«$ 37a€<«$ A€"a€<$ A€ A€« A€"AE<$ A€"aE«$ AE”AE$ 4€”a€<$ 37a€<Collectively evaluated for allowancesa€<A 1,683a€<A 3,270a€<A 868a€<A 15a€<A 2a€<A 67a€A
44€<A 5,9094€<ACL, end of perioda€«$ 1,7204€<$ 3,2704€<$ 8684€<$ 154€<$ 24€<$ 674€<$ 42€<$

5,9464€ <€ A€ <A€<A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAE<AC A€ <AL AL <AL AL A€ <AL Ak «af«akak«a€«a€a€<Loans held for

investment:A€<A 4€<A€<AE<AE<AEAEAEAEAE AL AL AL AEAEAEAEAEAEBEAEAEAEaEIndividually evaluated for allowancesa€«$ 996A€<$ AE"AE<$ A€"AE€$ AE"AE<$ AE"AE<$ A€"AE$ AE"AE<S
9964a€<Collectively evaluated for allowancesa€<A 517,825a€<A 461,1134€<A 90,558a€<A 1,936a€<A 106a€<A 1,565a€<A 65a€<A 1,073,1684a€<Total loans held for investment, grossa€«<$
518,8214€<$ 461,1134€<$ 90,5584€<$ 1,9364€<$ 1064€<$ 1,565a€<$ 65a€<$ 1,074,1644€<ACL on loans as a percentage of gross loans held for investmenta€<4€< 0.33%A A 4€< 0.71%A A &€«
0.96%A A 4€< 0.77%A A a€< 1.89%A A a€< 4.28%A A 4€< 6.15%A A a€< 0.55%Net (recoveries) charge-offs to average loans receivable, net during the perioda€<a€« (0.00)%A A a€< 46" %A A a€«
A€"%A A 8€< A€"%A A 8€< 4€"%A A 4€< 8€"%A A 8€< 4€”%A A a€< (0.00)%4€<100Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsThe
following summarizes the components of the net change in the allowance for credit losses for the years indicated:a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€«a€«a€«Year Ended JuneA 30,A (In

Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 20234€<4€<4€<a€<a€<a€<a€<Balance, beginning of yeara€«$ 5,946a€<$ 5,564Adjustment to ACL for adoption of ASC 326a€<&€< 1,197a€<a€« a€”(Recovery of)
provision for credit lossesa€<A (78)a€<A 374Recoveriesa€«A a€”a€«A 8Charge-offsa€<A a€”a€<A a€”Balance, end of yeara€«$ 7,065a€<$ 5,946a€<The following tables identify the
Corporationd€™ s total recorded investment in non-performing loans by type at the dates and for the periods indicated. Generally, a loan is placed on non-performing status when it becomes
90A days past due as to principal or interest or after considering economic and business conditions and collection efforts, where the borrowera€™s financial condition is such that collection of
the contractual principal or interest on the loan is doubtful. In addition, interest income is not recognized on any loan where management has determined that collection is not reasonably
assured. A non-performing loan may be restored to accrual status when delinquent principal and interest payments are brought current, the borrower(s)A has demonstrated sustained payment
performance and futureA monthly principal and interest payments are expected to be collected on a timely basis. Loans with a related allowance have been (a) collectively evaluated using a
pooling method analysis or (b) individually evaluated using either a discounted cash flow analysis or, for collateral dependent loans, current appraisals less costs to sell, to establish realizable
value. This analysis may identify a specific allowance amount needed or may conclude that no allowance is

needed.A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEALA orA ForA the Year Ended

JuneA 30,A 20244€<a€<Unpaida€«a€<a€a€a€«a€«a€Neta€«Averagea€«Interesta€«a€Principala€«Relateda€<Recordeda€«a€<a€<Recordeda€«Recordeda€«Income(In

Thogsqug)A AAA Bala}ngeAA AAA Charge-
offsA A A A InvestmentA A A A ACL(1)A A A A InvestmentA A A A InvestmentA A A A Recognizeda€ a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€a€a€a€ a€ ae«atc«éa€«Mortgage

loans:A€<A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAESingle-family:A a€<A A A a€<A A A a€<A A A a€<A A A a€<A A A a€<A A A a€<A A With a related allowance&€<$ 2,267a€<$
a€”a€<$ 2,267a€<$ (73)a€<$ 2,1944€<$ 1,627a€<$ 96Without a related allowance(2)a€<A 427a€<A (25)a€<A 402a€<A a€”a€<A 402&€<A 4444€<A 23Total single-family loansa€<«A 2,6944€<A
(25)a€<A 2,6698€<A (73)a€<A 2,5964€<A 2,0714€<A 1194€<AE€AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE AL AL AEAEAEAEAEGAEBEBEAEHAETotal non-performing loansa€«$ 2,694a€<$ (25)a€<$ 2,6694€<$
(73)a€<$ 2,596a€<$ 2,071a€<$ 119a€<(1)ACL, specifically assigned to the individual loan.(2)There was no related ACL because the loans were charged-off to their fair value or the fair value of
the collateral was higher than the loan balance.a€<a€<A€<a€ A€ AE«AE A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEALA orA ForA the Year Ended

JuneA 30,A 20234€<a€<Unpaida€<a€<a€a€a€«a€«a€Neta€«Averagea€«Interesta€a€ Principala€«Relateda€<Recordeda€«a€<a€<Recordeda€«Recordeda€«Income(In

Thousands)A A A A BalanceA A A A Charge-

offsA A A A InvestmentA A A A ACL(1)A A A A InvestmentA A A A InvestmentA A A A Recognizeda€ A€ a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEMortgage

loans:A 4€<AAAa€AAAaeAAAaEAAAEAAAGEAAAGEAA Single-family: A aeAAAaEAAAaEAAAaGEAARAA-IEAAAAaEEAAA a€<A A With a related allowancea€«$ 1,1714€<$
a4€7a€<$ 1,171a€<$ (122)a€<$ 1,049a€<$ 996a€<$ 42Without a related allowance(2)a€<A 2764€<A (25)a€<A 251a€<A a4€”a€<A 251a€<A 112a€<A a€”Total single-family loansa€<A 1,447a€<A
(25)a€<A 1,4228€<A (122)a€<A 1,3004€<A 1,1082€<A 428€<AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAETotal non-performing loansa€«$ 1,4474€<$ (25)a€<$ 1,4228€<$
(122)a€<$ 1,300a€<$ 1,108a€<$ 42a€<(1)ACL, specifically assigned to the individual loan.(2)There was no related ACL because the loans were charged-off to their fair value or the fair value of
the collateral was higher than the loan balance.101Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsa€<At June 30, 2024 and 2023, there
were no commitments to lend additional funds to those borrowers whose loans were classified as non-performing.a€<During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Corporationa€™s
average investment in non-performing loans was $2.1 million and $1.1 million, respectively. The Corporation records payments on non-performing loans utilizing the cash basis or cost recovery
method of accounting during the periods when the loans are on non-performing status. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the Corporation received $119,000 in interest payments from
non-performing loans, all of which was recognized as interest income and none was applied to reduce the loan balances under the cost recovery method. In comparison, for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2023, the Bank received $49,000 in interest payments from non-performing loans, of which $42,000 was recognized as interest income. The remaining $7,000 was applied to reduce the
loan balances under the cost recovery method.As outlined in the implementation of ASC 326, the Bank includes the off-balance sheet reserve for unfunded loan commitments within the
provision for (recovery of) credit losses.a€<The following table provides information regarding the unfunded loan commitment reserve for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and

2023.8€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ Year Ended &4€<&€JuneA 30,A (In Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 2023Balance, beginning of the yeara€«$ 42&€<$ 130Impact of ASC 326 CECL
adoptiona€<a€« 4€”4€<a€« 4€”Provision for (recovery of) credit lossesa€<«A 15a€<A (88)Balance, end of the yeara€<$ 57a€<$ 42a€<The method for calculating the unfunded commitment reserve
is based on a historical funding rate applied to the undisbursed loan amount to estimate an average outstanding amount during the life of the loan commitment. The Corporation applies the
same assumptions and methodologies by loan groupings to these unfunded loan commitments as it does for its funded loans held for investment to determine the reserve rate and the allowance.
Assumptions are evaluated by management periodically as part of the CECL procedures. The unfunded loan commitment reserve is recorded in accounts payable, accrued interest and other
liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.a€<The following tables provide information on the past due status of the Corporationa€™s loans held for investment, gross, at
the dates indicated.4€<A€<A€ <€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEJuneA 30,A 20245€A€A€<A€<A€<30-89A DaysA Pasta€«a€«a€«a€<TotalA LoansA HeldA for(In

Thousands)A A A A CurrentA A A A DueA A A A Non-Accrual(1)A A A A Tnvestment,A Grossa€ a€ i€ <4€<a€a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ a€<a€a€Mortgage

loans: a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<Slngle famllya€<$ 515,498a€<$ a€7a€<$ 2,5934€<$ 518,091 Multi- farmlya€<A 445,1824€<A a€”4€<A a€”4€<A 445,182Commercial real estatea€<A
83,3494€<A A€"AE<A 4€"3E<A 83,349Constructiond€A 2,692a6<A 4€"AE<A 4€"AEA 2,6020thera€A 95aE<A 4€"3E<A 4€"A€<A 95Commercial business loansa€A 1,372a6<A 4€"a€A
a€”a€<A 1,372Consumer loansa€<A 64a€A 1a€<A a€”a€<A 65Total loans held for investment, grossa€«$ 1,048,252a€<«$ 1a€<$ 2,593a€<$ 1,050,846a€<(1)All loans 90 days or greater past due
are placed on non-accrual status.a€<102Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statementsa€ &€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAaEJuneA 30,A 2023a€<A A A A 4€<a4€<A A A A 30-89A DaysA PastA A A A 4€<a€<A A A A TotalA LoansA HeldA for(In
Thousands)a€«Currenta€«Due&€Non-Accrual(1)a€«Investment, A Grossa€«a€«a€<a€«a€«a€a€«a€«ae€a€a€«a€«a€«Mortgage loans:4€«a€ A€ <a€ A€ a€«a€«a€ a€<a€«a€«a€<Single-familya€«s

517, 399a€<$ a€"a€<$ 1,4224€<$ 518,821 Multi- farmlya€<A 461,1134€<A a€”a€<A a€”a€<A 461,113Commercial real estatea€<A 90,558a€<A A€”a€<A a€”a€<A 90,558Constructiona€<A
1,936a€<A a€”a€<A A€”4€<A 1,9360thera€«a€« 106a€<A A€”a€<A 4€”a€<A 106Commercial business loansa€«A 1,5658€<A 4€"4€<A 4€”a€<A 1,565Consumer loansa€<A 644€<A 14€<A
é€”é€<A 65Total loans held for investment, grossa€<$ 1,072,7414€<$ 1a€<$ 1,4224€<$ 1,074,1644€<(1)All loans 90 days or greater past due are placed on non-accrual status.a€<In the ordinary
course of business, the Bank may offer loans to its directors, officers and employees on substantially the same terms prevailing at the time of origination for comparable transactions with
unaffiliated borrowers. During fiscal 2024 and 2023, there were no related-party loan activities and as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, there were no outstanding related-party
loans.&€<a€<«a€<NoteA 4: Leasesa€<The Corporation accounts for its leases in accordance with ASC 842, which was implemented on July 1, 2019, and requires the Corporation to record liabilities
for future lease obligations as well as assets representing the right to use the underlying leased assets. The Corporationa€™s leases primarily represent future obligations to make payments for
the use of buildings, space or equipment for its operations. Liabilities to make future lease payments are recorded in accounts payable, accrued interest and other liabilities, while right-of-use
assets are recorded in premises and equipment in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. At June 30, 2024, all the Corporationa€™s leases were classified as operating leases and
the Corporation did not have any operating leases with an initial term of 12 months or less (a€ceshort-term leasesa€). a€<Liabilities to make future lease payments and right-of-use assets are
recorded for operating leases and do not include short-term leases. These liabilities and right-of-use assets are determined based on the total contractual base rents for each lease, which
include options to extend or renew each lease, where applicable, and where the Corporation believes it has an economic incentive to extend or renew the lease. Since lease extensions are not
reasonably certain, the Corporation generally does not recognize payments occurring during option periods in the calculation of its operating right-of-use lease assets and operating lease
liabilities. The Bank utilizes the FHLB - San Francisco interest rates as a discount rate for each of the remaining contractual terms at the adoption date as well as for future leases if the discount
rate is not stated in the lease. For leases that contain variable lease payments, the Corporation assumes future lease payment escalations based on a lease payment escalation rate specified in
the lease or the specified index rate observed at the time of lease commencement. Liabilities to make future lease payments are accounted for using the interest method, being reduced by
periodic contractual lease payments net of periodic interest accretion. Right-of-use assets for operating leases are amortized over the term of the associated lease by amounts that represent the
difference between periodic straight-line lease expense and periodic interest accretion in the related liability to make future lease payments.a€<For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, expenses associated with the Corporationa€™s leases totaled $927,000 and $882,000, respectively, and were recorded in premises and occupancy expenses and equipment expenses in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations.a€<a€<103Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsThe following table presents



supplemental information related to operating leases at the date and for the years indicated:&4€<4€<a€<4€<4€<a€<a€<a€<a€<A A A A As of JuneA 30,A (In A
Thousands)é€<2024é€<é€<2023C0nsolidated Statements of Condition:A a€A A A d€A A Premises and equipment - Operating lease right of use assetsa€<$ 1,356A $ 2,147Accounts payable,

from operatlng leases(1)a€<a€« 138A &€« 95Total lease expensed€«$ 9274€<$ 882a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<Consohdated Statements of Cash Flows:a€<A A A A A A A Operating cash flows from
operating leases, neta€<$ 884A $ 879a€«(1)Includes immaterial variable lease costs.The following table provides information related to remaining minimum contractual lease payments and
other information associated with the Corporationa€™s leases as of June 30, 2024: ;€ A€ <AEAEAEAE@EA A A A Amount(1)A Year Ending JuneA 30,A A (InA Thousands)a€<2025a€<$
6784€<20264€<A 3874€<20274€<A 192a€<20284€<A 1564€20294€<A 74a€<Thereaftera€<A a€”a€<Total contract lease paymentsa€«$ 1,4874€<A€<A€ A€ A€ 4€Total liability to make lease
paymentsa€«$ 1,407a€<Difference in undiscounted and discounted future lease paymentsa€«$ 80a€<Weighted average discount rateé€<A 3.34%Weighted average remaining lease term
(years)a€<A 3.04€<4€<(1)Contractual base rents do not include property taxes and other operating expenses due under respective lease agreements.a€<4€<104Table of ContentsPROVIDENT
FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsNoteA 5: Premises and Equipmenta€<Premises and equipment at June 30, 2024 and 2023 consisted of the

following:a€ <A€<A€<A€ A€ A€ AE<AE<a€«a€JuneA 30,A (In Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 2023Landa€<$ 2,8534€<$ 2,853Buildingsa€<A 10,136a€<«A 10,311Leasehold improvementsa€<A
4,065a€<A 3,135Furniture and equipmenta€<A 5,458a€<A 5,226Automobilesa€<A 149a€<A 1760perating lease 4€“ right of use assets (1)a€<4€<« 1,356a€<a€« 2,1474€A€<A 24,017a€<A
23,848Less accumulated depreciation and amortizationa€<A (14 704)a€<A (14,617)Total premises and equipment, neta€<$ 9,313a€<$ 9,231a€«(1)Net of accumulated
amortization.&€<Depreciation and amortization expense for theA fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 amounted to $1.6 million and $1.4 million, respectively. &€<a€NoteA 6:
Depositsa€Deposits at June 30, 2024 and 2023 consisted of the following: a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<JuneA 30,A 2024a€<JuneA 30,A 2023A (Dollars in

Thousands)A A A A InterestA RateA A A A AmountA A A A InterestA RateA A A A AmountA Checking deposits 4€“ noninterest-bearingA 4€”a€<$ 95,627A 4€”a€<$ 103,0064€<Checking deposits
a€“ interest-! bearmg(l)A 0.00% - 0.20%Aa€<A 254,624A 0.00% - 0.20%Aa€<A 302 ,872a€<Savings dep051ts(1)A 0.00% - 4.64%3a€<A 238,878A 0.00% - 0.70%Aa€<A 290, 204a€<M0ney market
deposits(1)A 0.00% - 4.64%4a€<A 25,324A 0.00% - 2.00%a€<A 33,5514€<Time deposits:A A A a€AAAA A A 4€<A A A a€< $250 and under(1)(2)A 0.00% - 5.35%&a€<A 226,110A 0.00% -
5.25%4€<A 192,1474€< Over $250A 0.10% - 5.12%Aa€<A 47,785A 0.10% - 5.35%4a€<A 28,791a€<Total deposits(3)a€<«a€«a€«$ 888, 348A a€<a€<$ 950, 5714€<Weighted average interest rate on
depositsA AEAEA 1.29%A A A€AEA 0.73%A A a€«(1)Certain interest-bearing checking, savings, money market and time deposits require a minimum balance to earn interest.(2)Includes
brokered certificates of deposit of $131.8 million and $106.4 million at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.(3)Includes uninsured deposits of approximately $122.7 million and $140.1 million
at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.a€<The aggregate annual maturities of time deposits at June 30, 2024 and 2023 were as follows: a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<_]uneA 30,A (In
Thousands)A A A A2024A A A A 20230ne year or lessa€<$ 245,713a€<$ 166,501 0ver one to two yearsa€<A 19,604a€<A 37,0620ver two to three yearsa€<«A 3,779a€<A 9,9220ver three to four
yearsa€<«A 1,896a€<A 3,0690ver four to five yearsa€<A 1,649a€<A 2,5780ver five yearsa€<«A 1,2544€<A 1,806Total time depositsa€«$ 273,895a€<$ 220,9384€<105Table of
ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsInterest expense on deposits for the years indicated is summarized as
follows:A€<A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ &€ Year Ended JuneA 30,A (In Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 2023Checking deposits 4€“ interest-bearinga€<$ 118a€<$ 140Savings depositsa€«A 3134€<A
168Money market depositsa€<A 172a€<A 87Time depositsa€<A 9,063a€<A 2,751Total interest expense on depositsa€«$ 9,666a€<$ 3,146a€<At June 30, 2024, the Bank had related party
deposits of approximately $6.3 million, compared to $8.1 million at June 30, 2023. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, deposits with negative balances (i.e. overdrafts) that were reclassified to loans
held for investment totaled $24,000 and $15,000, respectively. The Bank is required to maintain reserve balances with the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco. Effective March 26, 2020, the
FRB lowered the reserve ratios on transaction accounts maintained at a depository institution to zero percent so there was no required reserve balance at June 30, 2024 and

2023.4€<4€<NoteA 7: Borrowingsa€«As of June 30, 2024, the Banka€™s FHLB 4€“ San Francisco maximum borrowing capacity was approximately $516.0 million, which is limited to 40% of total
assets reported on the Banka€™s quarterly Call Report. This borrowing capacity was collateralized by pledges of certain real estate loans with an aggregate loan balance of $774.1 million and
investment securities of $3.9 million. As of June 30, 2024, the Banka€™s borrowings from the FHLB 4€“ San Francisco were $238.5 million, with varying maturity dates through the year 2028.
In addition, the Bank utilizes its borrowing facility for letters of credit and for the Mortgage Partnership Finance (4€ceMPFa€) program credit enhancement. The outstanding letters of credit
was $16.0 million and the outstanding MPF credit enhancement was $216,000 at June 30, 2024. As of June 30, 2024, the remaining borrowing capacity with the FHLB 4€“ San Francisco was
$261.3 million.a€<As of June 30, 2023, the Banka€™s FHLB a€“ San Francisco maximum borrowing capacity was approximately $534.1 million, which is limited to 40% of total assets reported
on the Banka€™ s quarterly Call Report. This borrowing capacity was collateralized by pledges of certain real estate loans with an aggregate loan balance of $967.6 million and investment
securities of $4.2 million. As of June 30, 2023, the Banka€™s borrowings from the FHLB a€“ San Francisco were $235.0 million, with varying maturity dates through the year 2028. In addition,
the Bank utilizes its borrowing facility for letters of credit and for the MPF program credit enhancement. The outstanding letters of credit were $11.0 million and the outstanding MPF credit
enhancement was $216,000 at June 30, 2023. As of June 30, 2023, the remaining borrowing capacity with FHLB a€“ San Francisco was $287.9 million.&€<In addition, as of June 30, 2024 and
2023, the Bank had $208.6 million and $139.0 million of borrowing capacity available from the discount window facility at the FRB of San Francisco, respectively, collateralized by investment
securities and loans held for investment at June 30, 2024 and collateralized by investment securities only at June 30, 2023. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Bank also had a borrowing
arrangement in the form of a federal funds facility with its correspondent bank for $50.0 million at both dates. The Bank intends to request a renewal of its borrowing arrangement with the
correspondent bank prior to maturity on June 30, 2025. As of both June 30, 2024 and 2023, there were no outstanding borrowings under the discount window facility or the federal funds
facility.4€<Borrowings at June 30, 2024 and 2023 consisted of the following:a€ A€ <A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ a€a€a€JuneA 30,A (In Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 20234€<4€<4€<4€A€A€AEFHLB -
San Francisco advancesa€«$ 238,500a€<$ 235,009a€<As a member of the FHLB 4€“ San Francisco, the Bank is required to maintain a minimum investment in FHLB 4€“ San Francisco capital
stock. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Bank held a stock investment of $9.6 million and $9.5 million, respectively, with no excess capital stock.106Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL
HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsa€<During fiscal 2024 and 2023, the Bank purchased $63,000 and $1.3 million of FHLB - San Francisco capital stock, respectively.
In fiscal 2024 and 2023, the FHLB &€“ San Francisco distributed $793,000 and $556,000 of cash dividends, respectively, to the Bank.4€<The following tables set forth certain information
regarding borrowings by the Bank at the dates and for theA years indicated:a€ <€ <€ <a€ A€ <AE<AE<AEAEAEAEALA orA ForA theA Year Ended JuneA 30,A 4€«(Dollars in

Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 2023A A A A a€<«4€<«a€<«a€<a€«a€«a€«d€<Balance outstanding at the end of year:a€<a€<«a€<«a€<a€<a€<«a€<«FHLB - San Francisco advancesa€<$ 238,500a8€<$

235,009a€ a€<a€«a€a€a€«a€«ag«a€Weighted average rate at the end of year:a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<«a€<«a€<«FHLB - San Francisco advancesa€<«A 4.88%A A A

4.34%A A 4€<4€<A€AEAEAEAEAEMaximum amount of borrowings outstanding at any month end:4€<a€<a€<a€<«a€<a€<a€<«FHLB - San Francisco advancesa€«$ 242,500a€<$

235,0094€ A€ <A€ A€ A€ A€ <A€<AE<AE<Average short-term borrowings during the year with respect to:(1)a€<A A A 4€<A A A 4€<FHLB - San Francisco advancesa€«$ 127,506a€<$
113,6884€<A€<AE<AE<AE<AE<AE<AEAEWeighted average short-term borrowing rate during the year with respect to:(1)a€<A A A 4€<A A A 4€<FHLB - San Francisco advancesa€<A 4.70%A A A
3.87%A A a€<(1)Borrowings with a remaining term of 12A months or less.4€<The aggregate annual contractual maturities of borrowings at June 30, 2024 and 2023 were as

follows: a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<]uneA 30,A A (Dollars in Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 2023A Within one yeara€«$ 145, 500a€<$ 150,0094€<Over one to two yearsa€<A 68,0008€<A
70,0004€<Over two to three yearsa€<A 10,000a€<A 10,000a€<Over three to four yearsa€<A 5,000a€<A a€”a€<Over four to five yearsa€<A 10,0004€<A 5,000a€<Over five yearsa€«A a€”a€<A
4€”a€<Total borrowingsa€«$ 238,5004€<$ 235,0094€Weighted average interest rated€<A 4.88%A A A 4.34%a€<a€<a€<NoteA 8: Income Taxesa€<ASC 740, a&€celncome Taxes,a€ requires the
affirmative evaluation that it is more likely than not, based on the technical merits of a tax position, that an enterprise is entitled to economic benefits resulting from positions taken in income
tax returns. If a tax position does not meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the benefit of that position is not recognized in the financial statements. Management has determined
that there were no unrecognized tax benefits to be reported in the Corporationa€™s consolidated financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.4€<Under generally
accepted accounting principles, the Corporation uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their 107Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL
HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsrespective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. 4€<The Corporationa€™s effective tax rate may differ from the estimated statutory tax rates described
above due to discrete items such as further adjustments to net deferred tax assets, excess tax benefits derived from stock option exercises and non-taxable earnings from bank owned life
insurance, among other items.a€<The Corporation utilizes the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary
differences and tax credit carryforwards and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of
the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effect of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment. 4€<The provision for income
taxes for the years indicated consisted of the following:4€<a€<a€<a€<«a€<a€<a€«a€<a€<a€«Year Ended JuneA 30,A (In

Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 20234€ <€ <€ <4€<4€<a€a€Current:A 4€<A A A 4€<A A Federala€<$ 2,1614€<$ 1,638Statea€<A 1,2784€<A 9554€<4€<A 3,4394€A

2,593Deferred:a€<A A A 4€<A A A Federala€<A (238)a€<A 783Statea€<A (165)a€<A 448a€<a€<A (403)a€<A 1,231Provision for income taxesa€«$ 3,036a€<$ 3,8244€<The Corporationd€™s tax
expense from non-qualified stock-based compensation recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in connection with the adoption of ASU 2016-09 for fiscal 2024 and 2023 was $0
and $186,000, respectively.a€<The provision for income taxes differs from the amount of income tax determined by applying the applicable U.S. statutory federal income tax rate to net income
before income taxes as a result of the following differences for the years indicated:a€<a€<«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€Year Ended JuneA 30,A 4€<4€<20244€<20234€<(In

Thousands)A A A A AmountA A A A TaxA RateA A A A AmountA A A A TaxA RateA A A A 4€<A€<A€<A€<A€<AEAEAEAEAEAEAEFederal income tax at statutory ratea€<$ 2,181A 21.00%A A $
2,607A 21.00%A A State income tax, net of federal income tax benefita€<A 880A 8.48%A A A 1,107A 8.92%A A Changes in taxes resulting from:4€<A A A A 4€<a€<A A A A a€<a€<Bank-owned
life insurancea€<A (39)A (0.38)%A A A (39)A (0.31)%A A Non-deductible expensesa€<A 12A 0.12%A A A 11A 0.09%A A Shortfall on stock-based compensatlona€<A a€”A a€"%A A A 132A
1.06%A A Return to provision adjustmenta€<a€« (1)a€« (0.01)%A A a€< 4a€< 0.03%A A Othera€<«A 3A 0.02%A A A 2A 0.01%A A Effective income taxa€<$ 3,036A 29.23%A A $ 3,824A

30.80%A A &4€<108Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsDeferred tax assets at June 30, 2024 and 2023 by jurisdiction were as
follows:A€ <A€<A€ A€ AE<A€ A€ A€ a€«a€JuneA 30,A (In Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 20233€A€4€<A€A€AEAEDeferred taxes - federala€«$ 404a€<$ 179Deferred taxes - statea€<A 202a€<A
39Total net deferred tax assetsa€«$ 606a€<$ 2184€<Net deferred tax assets at June 30, 2024 and 2023 were comprised of the following: a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<_]uneA 30,A (In
Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 20234€<&€<4€<2€<A€ A€ <A€Loss reservesa€«$ 2,387a€<$ 2,032Non-accrued interesta€<A 1754€<A 188Deferred compensationd€<A 2,3884€<A 2,339Accrued
vacationa€<A 187a€<A 194Depremat10na€<A 1748€<A 155State taxa€«A 2034€<A 199Unrealized loss on investment securitiesa€<A 4a€<A 19Lease liabilitya€ &€« 4484€<4€< 6910thera€«A
2084€<A 288Total deferred tax assetsa€«A 6,1744€<A 6,1054€ A€ A€ A€A€A€A€FHLB - San Francisco stock dividendsa€<A (645)a€<A (645)Prepaid expensesa€<A (39)a€<A (45)Unrealized
gain on interest-only stnpsa€<A (3)a€<A (3)Right-of-use asseta€<a€« (432)a€<«a€« (684)Deferred loan costs, neta€<A (4,449)a€<A (4,510)Total deferred tax liabilitiesa€<A (5,568)a€<A
(5,887)Net deferred tax assetsd€<«$ 6064€<$ 218a€<The net deferred tax assets were included in prepaid expenses and other assets in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. The
Corporation analyzes the deferred tax assets to determine whether a valuation allowance is required based on the more-likely-than-not criteria that such assets will be realized principally
through future taxable income. This criteria takes into account the actual earnings and the estimates of future profitability. The Corporation may carryback net federal tax losses to the
preceding five taxableA years and forward to the succeeding 20 taxableA years. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Corporation had no federal and state net tax loss carryforwards. Based on
managementa€™s consideration of historical and anticipated future income before income taxes, as well as the reversal period for the items giving rise to the deferred tax assets and liabilities,
a valuation allowance was not considered necessary at June 30, 2024 and 2023 and management believes it is more likely than not the Corporation will realize its deferred tax asset.a€<Retained
earnings at June 30, 2024 and 2023 include approximately $9.0 million (pre-1988 bad debt reserve for tax purposes) for which federal income tax of $3.1 million has not been provided. If the
amounts that qualify as deductions for federal income tax purposes are later used for purposes other than for bad debt losses, including distribution in liquidation, they will be subject to federal
income tax at the then-current corporate tax rate. If those amounts are not so used, they will not be subject to tax even in the event the Bank were to convert its charter from a thrift to a
bank.&€<«The Corporation files income tax returns for the United States and California jurisdictions. The Internal Revenue Service has audited the Banka€™s income tax returns through 1996
and the California Franchise Tax Board has audited the Bank through 1990. Also, the Internal Revenue Service completed a review of the Corporationa€™ s income tax returns for fiscal 2006
and 2007; and the California Franchise Tax Board completed a review of the Corporationa€™s income tax returns for 109Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statementsfiscal 2009 and 2010. Fiscal years 2022 and thereafter remain subject to federal examination, while the California state tax returns for fiscal years 2021 and
thereafter are subject to examination by state taxing authorities.a€«It is the Corporationa€™ s policy to record any penalties or interest charges arising from federal or state taxes as a
component of income tax expense. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, there were no tax penalties and no interest charges arising from federal or state taxes.a€<a€<NoteA 9:
Capitala€«The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain
mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Corporationd€™ s financial statements. Under capital
adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Banka€™s assets,
liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Banka€™ s capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by
the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.d€<For a bank holding company such as the Corporation with less than $3.0 billion in assets, the capital guidelines apply on a
bank only basis. The FRB expects the holding companya€™s subsidiary bank to be well capitalized under the prompt corrective action regulations. If the Corporation was subject to regulatory
guidelines for bank holding companies at June 30, 2024, it would have exceeded all regulatory capital requirements.a€<The Bank is subject to capital regulations which establish minimum
required capital ratios for Tier 1 leverage, common equity Tier 1 (4€0eCET14€), Tier 1 risk-based and total risk-based capital. Additionally, a capital conservation buffer is required over the
required minimum capital ratios, and capital regulations also defines what qualifies as capital for purposes of meeting the capital requirements. Failure to meet minimum requirements can
initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by bank regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Corporationa€™s financial statements.
4€dn addition to the minimum capital ratios, the Bank must maintain a capital conservation buffer consisting of additional CET1 capital greater than 2.5% above the required minimum levels in
order to avoid limitations on paying dividends, engaging in share repurchases, and paying discretionary bonuses based on percentages of eligible retained income that could be utilized for such
actions.a€<110Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsThe Banka€™ s actual and required minimum capital amounts and ratios
at the dates indicated are as follows (dollars in

thousands):A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAERegulatoryA RequirementsA A€<A€<AE<AE<AEAEAEMinimumA forA Capitala€<MinimumA toA BeA a€<a:
Savings Bank, F.S.B.:4€<a€<a€<a€<a€<«a€<a€<«a€«a€<a€<«a€«a€<a€<a€«a€«a€<a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€<«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€<a€«As of



JuneA 30,A 2024(2)4€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAETier 1 leverage capital (to adjusted average assets)a€«$ 126,601A 10.02%A A $ 50,555A 4.00%A A § 63,194A A
5.00%CET1 capital (to risk-weighted assets)a€<«$ 126,601A 19.29%A A $ 45,934A 7.00%A A $ 42,653A 6.50%Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets)a€«$ 126,601A 19.29%A A $ 55,777A

capital (to risk-weighted assets)a€<$ 125,979A 18.50%A A $ 47,674A 7.00%A A $ 44,269A 6.50%Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets)a€<$ 125,979A 18.50%A A $ 57,890A 8.50%A A $
54,485A 8.00%Total capital (to risk-weighted assets)a€<$ 131,967A 19.38%A A $ 71,511A 10.50%A A $ 68,106A 10.00%a€<(1)Inclusive of the conservation buffer of 2.50% for CET1 capital,
Tier 1 capital and Total capital ratios.(2)The Bank elected to recognize the full $824 thousand adjustment to retained earnings resulting from the adoption of CECL on July 1, 2023 instead of
over the permitted three-year phase-in option.a€<At June 30, 2024, the Bank exceeded all regulatory capital requirements. The Bank was categorized as "well-capitalized" at June 30, 2024 under
the regulations of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (&€ceOCCa€).a€<The ability of Provident Financial Holdings to pay dividends to stockholders depends primarily on the ability of
the Bank to pay dividends to Provident Financial Holdings. Provident Financial Holdings and the Bank may not declare or pay cash dividends on or repurchase any of its shares of common
stock, if the effect would cause stockholdersa€™ equity to be reduced below applicable regulatory capital maintenance requirements or if such declaration and payment would otherwise violate
regulatory requirements.a€<Generally, savings institutions, such as the Bank, that are well-capitalized before and after the proposed distribution may make capital distributions during any
calendarA year up to 100% of net income for theA year-to-date plus retained net income for the two precedingA years. However, an institution deemed to be in need of more than normal
supervision or classified as troubled condition by the OCC may have its dividend authority restricted by the OCC. If the Bank, however, proposes to make a capital distribution when it does not
meet its capital requirements (or will not following the proposed capital distribution) or that will exceed the net income-based limitations, it must obtain the OCC's approval prior to making such
distribution. In addition, the Bank must file a prior written notice of a dividend with the FRB. The FRB or the OCC may object to a capital distribution based on safety and soundness concerns.
Additional restrictions on Bank dividends may apply if the Bank fails the Qualified Thrift Lender test. In fiscal 2024 and 2023, the Bank declared and paid $7.0 million and $9.5 million of cash
dividends to its parent, Provident Financial Holdings, respectively.a€<4€<NoteA 10: Benefit Plansa€<The Corporation has a 401(k) defined-contribution plan covering all employees meeting
specific age and service requirements. Under the plan, employees may contribute to the plan from their pretax compensation up to the limits set by the Internal Revenue Service. The
Corporation makes matching contributions up to 3% of a participantsa€™ pretax compensation. Participants vest immediately in their own contributions with 100% vesting in the
Corporationd€™s 111Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementscontributions occurring after six years of credited service. The
Corporationa€™s expense for the plan was approximately $303,000 and $306,000 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.d€<The Corporation has a multi-year
employment agreement and a post-retirement compensation agreement with one executive officer. In addition, the Corporation has a transition agreement and a post-retirement compensation
agreement with the previous executive officer (currently the Chairman of the Board of Directors). At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the accrued liability of the post-retirement compensation
agreements was $5.7 million at both dates; any costs (recoveries) are being accrued and expensed quarterly. In fiscal 2024, the increase in the discount rate and a lower life expectancy was
offset by a higher current compensation. For fiscal 2024 and 2023, the accrued expense (recovery) for these liabilities was $85,000 and $(1.1 million), respectively. The current obligation for
these post-retirement benefits was fully funded consistent with contractual requirements and actuarially determined estimates of the total future obligation. The Corporation invests in BOLI to
provide sufficient funding for these post-retirement obligations. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the total outstanding cash surrender value of the BOLI was $8.6 million and $8.4 million,
respectively. For fiscal 2024 and 2023, total BOLI non-taxable income, net of mortality cost, was $186,000 for both periods.&€<Employee Stock Ownership PlanThe Corporation established an
ESOP on JuneA 27, 1996 for all employees who are age 21 or older and have completed oneA year of service with the Corporation during which they have served a minimum of 1,000
hours.&a€<The Corporation recognizes compensation expense when the Corporation contributes funds to the ESOP for the purchase of the Corporationa€™s common stock to be allocated to the
ESOP participants. The Corporation's contribution to the ESOP plan is discretionary. During fiscal 2024 and 2023, there were 40,000 shares for each year that were purchased in the open
market to fulfill the annual discretionary allocation. Since the annual contributions are discretionary, the benefits payable under the ESOP cannot be estimated.a€<Benefits generally become
100% vested after six years of credited service. Vesting accelerates upon retirement, death or disability of the participant or in the event of a change in control of the Corporation. Forfeitures
are reallocated among remaining participating employees in the same proportion as contributions. Benefits are payable upon death, retirement, early retirement, disability or separation from
service.a€<The net expense related to the ESOP for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $540,000 and $563,000, respectively. Available shares and cash contributions, if any, are
allocated every calendar year end. The total ESOP allocation for calendar 2023 was 40,000 shares, as compared to 20,000 shares and $317,000 of cash contributions for calendar
2022.4€<4€<NoteA 11: Incentive Plansa€<As of June 30, 2024, the Corporation had four share-based compensation plans: the 2022 Equity Incentive Plan (4€02022 Plana€); the 2013 Equity
Incentive Plan (a€0e2013 Plana€); the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (4€0e2010 Plana€); and the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (a&€0e2006 Plana€), collectively, the a&€cePlansa€. For the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the compensation cost for the Plans was $240,000 and $1.2 million, respectively.a€<Equity Incentive Plans. The Corporation established the Plans, which were all
approved by shareholders for directors, advisory directors, directors emeriti, officers and employees of the Corporation and its subsidiary. The 2022 Plan authorizes 175,000 stock options and
200,000 shares of restricted stock. The 2022 Plan also provides that no person may be granted more than 35,000 stock options or 30,000 shares of restricted stock in any one year. The 2013
Plan authorizes 300,000 stock options and 300,000 shares of restricted stock. The 2013 Plan also provides that no person may be granted more than 60,000 stock options or 45,000 shares of
restricted stock in any one year. The 2010 Plan authorized 586,250 stock options and 288,750 shares of restricted stock. The 2006 Plan authorized 365,000 stock options and 185,000 shares of
restricted stock. As of June 30, 2024, equity awards may be granted only from the 2022 Plan, while no new equity awards can be granted from the 2013 Plan, 2010 Plan and 2006 Plan.a€<Equity
Incentive Plans - Stock Options. Under the Plans, options may not be granted at a price less than the fair market value at the date of the grant. Options typically vest over a five-year or shorter
period as long as the director, advisory 112Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsdirector, director emeritus, officer or
employee remains in service to the Corporation. The options are exercisable after vesting for up to the remaining term of the original grant. The maximum term of the options granted is 10
years.a€<The fair value of each option grant is estimated using the Black-Scholes option valuation model with the following assumptions as of the grant date for the periods indicated. The
expected volatility is based on implied volatility from historical common stock closing prices for the prior 84 months. The expected dividend yield is based on the most recent quarterly dividend
on an annualized basis. The expected term is based on the historical experience of all fully vested stock option grants and is reviewed annually. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S.
Treasury note rate with a term similar to the underlying stock option on the particular grant date.a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<A A A A Fiscal 2024A A A A Fiscal 2023A A A A Expected

volatilityA 21.6% - 22.9%A A 20.3%A A Weighted average volatilityA 22.5%A A 20.3%A A Expected dividend yieldA 4.5%A A 3.9%A A Expected term (in years)A 7.4A 7.3A Risk-free interest
rateA 4.3%A A 2.9%A A 4€<As of June 30, 2024, there were 77,000 options available for future grants under the 2022 Plan. As of June 30, 2023, there were 175,000 options available for future
grants under the 2022 Plan and 21,000 options available for future grants under the 2013 Plan. 4€<The following tables summarize the stock option activity in the Plans during the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2024 and

2023:4€A€<AE<AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAAA A a€A A A A a€a€A A A A WeightedA A A A a€<A€<4€<a€<a€<a€Weighteda€«Averagea€Aggregated€a€<«a€«a€Averagea€«Remaininga€«ntr
at JuneA 30,A 2022A 431,0004€<$ 16.24A A A 4€<A A A GrantedA 30,0004€<$ 14.52A A A 4€<A A A ExercisedA &€”a€<$ 4€”A A A a€<A A A ForfeitedA (7,500)a€<$

20.19A A A a€<A A A Expireda€« (19,000)a€<$ 16.474€<4€<4€<4€A€«Outstanding at JuneA 30,A 2023A 434,5004€<$ 16.04A 3.014€<$ 4€”Vested and expected to vest at JuneA 30,A 2023A
425,7004€<$ 16.06A 2.894a€<$ a€”Exercisable at JuneA 30,A 2023A 390,5004€<$ 16.13A 2.344€<$ A€"AE€AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEOutstanding at JuneA 30,A 2023A 434,5004€<$
16.04A A A 4€<A A A GrantedA 98,000a€<$ 12.44A A A a€<A A A ExercisedA a€”&€<$ 4€”A A A 4€<A A A ForfeitedA (5,000)a€<$ 14.52A A A a€<A A A Expireda€< (47,500)4€<$
15.714€<A€<A€<A€<a€<Outstanding at JuneA 30,A 2024A 480,0004€<$ 15.35A 3.29a€<$ 4€”Vested and expected to vest at JuneA 30,A 2024A 475,9504€<$ 16.36A 3.25a€<$ 4€”Exercisable at
JuneA 30,A 2024A 355,0008€<$ 16.18A 1.144€<$ 4€”4€<As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, there was $231,000 and $72,000 of unrecognized compensation expense, respectively, related to
unvested share-based compensation arrangements with respect to stock options issued under the Plans. The expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 3.5 years
and 2.9 years, respectively. The forfeiture rate during fiscal 2024 and 2023 was 15% and 20%, respectively, and was calculated by using the historical forfeiture experience of all fully vested
stock option grants which is reviewed annually.d€<113Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsEquity Incentive Plans a€“
Restricted Stock. Awarded shares typically vest over a five-year or shorter period as long as the director, advisory director, director emeriti, officer or employee remains in service to the
Corporation. Once vested, a recipient of restricted stock will have all rights of a shareholder, including the power to vote and the right to receive dividends. The Corporation recognizes
compensation expense for the restricted stock awards based on the fair value of the shares at the award date.a€<As of June 30, 2024, there were 69,000 shares available for future awards under
the 2022 Plan. As of June 30, 2023, there were 200,000 shares available for future awards under the 2022 Plan and 18,250 shares available for future awards under the 2013 Plan. 4€<The
following table summarizes the restricted stock activity for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:4€<4€<4€<4€<4€a€a€a€A A A A 4€<A A A A Weighted

Averagea€<a€«a€«a€«AwardA DateUnvested Sharesa€<«SharesFairA ValueUnvested at JuneA 30,A 2022A 94,750a€<$ 18.57AwardedA 53,0004€<$ 12.95VestedA (93,750)a€<$ 18.57ForfeitedA
(3,000)4€<$ 14.82Unvested at JuneA 30,A 2023A 51,0004€<$ 12.95Expected to vest at JuneA 30,A 2023A 40,8004€<$ 12.953€<4€<a€<a€<a€<a€<Unvested at JuneA 30,A 2023A 51,000a€<$
12.95AwardedA 131,0004€<$ 11.08VestedA (2,000)a€<$ 12.09ForfeitedA (3,350)a€<$ 12.95Unvested at JuneA 30,A 2024A 176,650a€<$ 11.57Expected to vest at JuneA 30,A 2024A
150,1534€<$ 11.57a€<As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the unrecognized compensation expense was $1.8 million and $544,000, respectively, related to unvested share-based compensation
arrangements with respect to restricted stock issued under the Plans, and reported as a reduction to stockholdersa€™ equity. This expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted
average period of 3.5 years and 3.1 years, respectively. Similar to stock options, a forfeiture rate of 15% and 20% was applied to the restricted stock compensation expense calculations in fiscal
2024 and 2023, respectively. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the fair value of shares vested and distributed was $24,000 and $1.1 million, respectivelyAé€<é€<N0teA 12:
Earnings Per Sharea€«<Basic earnings per share (A4€®EPSA€) excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock or
resulted in the issuance of common stock that would then share in the earnings of the Corporation.a€<As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, there were outstanding options to purchase 480,000 shares
and 434,500 shares of the Corporationa€™s common stock, of which 382,000 shares and 434,500 shares, respectively, were excluded from the diluted EPS computation as their effect was anti-
dilutive. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, there were outstanding restricted stock awards of 176,650 shares and 51,000 shares, respectively.a€<114Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL
HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsThe following table provides the basic and diluted EPS computations for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,

respectively:&€ &€ &€ A€ A€ AL <AL AL AE<AE<aE<aE<ForA theA Year Ended JuneA 30,A 20244€<A A A A IncomeA A A A SharesA A A A Per-Share(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share

optionsa€<a€«a€«A 764€<4€<a€<Restricted stocka€«A€«a€<A 16,1494€<A€4€Diluted EPSA€<$ 7,351A 6,959,1434€<$ 1.064€<A€AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEForA theA Year Ended

JuneA 30,A 2023a€<A A A A IncomeA A A A SharesA A A A Per-Share(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share Amount)a€<«(Numerator)a€«(Denominator)a€<Amount&€ a€ A€ A€ &€ <a€ A€ A€ <€ Basic
7,191,685a€<$ 1.19a€<4€<4€<NoteA 13: Commitments and Contingenciesa€«Periodically, there have been various claims and lawsuits involving the Corporation, such as claims to enforce liens,
condemnation proceedings on properties in which the Corporation holds security interests, claims involving the making and servicing of real property loans, employment matters and other
issues in the ordinary course of and incidental to the Corporationa€™ s business. These proceedings and the associated legal claims are often contested and the outcome of individual matters is
not always predictable. Additionally, in some actions, it is difficult to assess potential exposure because the Corporation is still in the early stages of the litigation. The Corporation is not a party
to any pending legal proceedings that it believes would have a material adverse effect on its financial condition, operations or cash flows.a€<The Corporation conducts a portion of its operations
in leased facilities and has maintenance contracts under non-cancelable agreements classified as operating leases, which include leases recorded under ASC 842 on liabilities for future lease
obligations as well as assets representing the right-to-use the underlying leased assets (See Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). 4€<The following is a schedule of the
Corporationa€™ s lease and operating commitments:a€<a€<a€<a€<a€«a€<A A A A AmountYear Ending JuneA 30,A 4€<(InA Thousands)a€a€<«a€<a€«2025a€<$ 1,8372026a€<A 1,13920274€<A
35820284€<A 15620294€<A 74Thereaftera€<A a€”Total minimum payments requireda€«$ 3,5644€<For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the lease and operating commitment
expense was approximately $2.3 million and $1.9 million, respectively.115Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsa€<«The Bank
sold single-family mortgage loans to unrelated third parties with standard representation and warranty provisions in the ordinary course of its business activities. Under these provisions, the
Bank is required to repurchase any previously sold loan for which the representations or warranties of the Bank prove to be inaccurate, incomplete or misleading. In the event of a borrower
default or fraud, pursuant to a breached representation or warranty, the Bank may be required to reimburse the investor for any losses suffered. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Bank
maintained a non-contingent recourse liability related to these representations and warranties of $18,000 and $25,000, respectively. In addition, the Bank maintained a recourse liability of
$8,000 at both June 30, 2024 and 2023 for loans sold to the FHLB 4€“ San Francisco under the MPF program.&€<In the ordinary course of business, the Corporation enters into contracts with
third parties under which the third parties provide services on behalf of the Corporation. In many of these contracts, the Corporation agrees to indemnify the third party service provider under
certain circumstances. The terms of the indemnity vary from contract to contract and the amount of the indemnification liability, if any, cannot be determined. The Corporation also enters into
other contracts and agreements; such as, loan sale agreements, litigation settlement agreements, confidentiality agreements, loan servicing agreements, leases and subleases, among others, in
which the Corporation agrees to indemnify third parties for acts by the Corporationa€™s agents, assignees and/or sub-lessees, and employees. Due to the nature of these indemnification
provisions, the Corporation cannot calculate its aggregate potential exposure.a€<Pursuant to their governing instruments, the Corporation and its subsidiaries provide indemnification to
directors, officers, employees and, in some cases, agents of the Corporation against certain liabilities incurred as a result of their service on behalf of or at the request of the Corporation and its
subsidiaries. It is not possible for the Corporation to determine the aggregate potential exposure resulting from the obligation to provide this indemnity.4€<4€<NoteA 14: Derivative and Other
Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risksa€<«The Corporation is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing
needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit in the form of originating loans or providing funds under existing lines of credit, loan sale
commitments to third parties and option contracts. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest-rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. The Corporationa€™s exposure to credit loss, in the event of non-performance by the counterparty to these financial instruments,
is represented by the contractual amount of these instruments. The Corporation uses the same credit policies in entering into financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk as it does for on-
balance sheet instruments. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Corporation had commitments to extend credit on loans to be held for investment of $9.4 million and $2.4 million,
respectively.4€<The following table provides information at the dates indicated regarding undisbursed funds to borrowers on existing lines of credit with the Corporation as well as commitments
to originate loans to be held for investment at the dates indicated below:a€<A€<A€<A€<A€<A€<A€<a€<A€<A A A A JuneA 30,A Commitmentsa€<20244€<2023(In

Thousands)A 4€<A A A 4€<A A Undisbursed loan funds 4€“ Construction loansa€<$ 435a€<$ 2,032Undisbursed lines of credit 4€“ Commercial business loansa€<A 2,9364€<A 607Undisbursed



lines of credit 4€“ Consumer loansa€<A 341a€<A 363Commitments to extend credit on loans to be held for investmenta€<A 9,387a€<A 2,394Totala€<$ 13,0994€<$ 5,396a€<A€<a€<116Table of
ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsNoteA 15: Fair Value of Financial Instrumentsa€<The Corporation adopted ASC 820, &€ceFair
Value Measurements and Disclosures,a€ and elected the fair value option pursuant to ASC 825, &€ceFinancial Instrumentsa€ on single-family loans originated for sale. ASC 820 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. ASC 825 permits entities to elect to measure many financial instruments and
certain other assets and liabilities at fair value on an instrument-by-instrument basis (the a€ceFair Value Optiona€) at specified election dates. At each subsequent reporting date, an entity is
required to report unrealized gains and losses on items in earnings for which the fair value option has been elected. The objective of the Fair Value Option is to improve financial reporting by
providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting
provisions.a€<The following table describes the difference at the dates indicated between the aggregate fair value and the aggregate unpaid principal balance of loans held for investment at fair
value:a€<a€<a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€ A€ «a€«a€«a€a€«a€«a€«a€«Aggregatea€a€«a€ a€«a€«a€«a€«@€«Unpaida€Neta€«a€<Aggregatea€ Principala€«Unrealized(In

Thousands)A A A A FairA ValueA A A A BalanceA A A A LossAs of JuneA 30,A 2024:2€<4€<A€<A€<a€<4€<A€<a€<a€<Loans held for investment, at fair valued€<$ 1,047a€<$ 1,2008€<$
(153)4€<A€<AE<AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAs of JuneA 30,A 2023:4€<A A A a€<A A A a€<A A A Loans held for investment, at fair valuea€<$ 1,312a€<$ 1,483a€<$ (171)a€<ASC 820 establishes a three-
level valuation hierarchy that prioritizes inputs to valuation techniques used in fair value calculations. The three levels of inputs are defined as follows:Level 1-Unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Corporation has the ability to access at the measurement date.Level 2-Observable inputs other than Level 1 such as: quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated to
observable market data for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. Valuation techniques may include the use of discounted cash flow models and similar techniques.Level 3-
Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability that use significant assumptions, including assumptions of risks. These unobservable assumptions reflect the Corporationa€™s estimate of
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques include the use of pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar
techniques.a€<ASC 820 requires the Corporation to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. If a financial instrument uses inputs that fall in different
levels of the hierarchy, the instrument will be categorized based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value calculation.&€<The Corporationa€™s financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis consist of investment securities available for sale, loans held for investment at fair value, other equity investments and interest-only strips;
while loans with individually evaluated allowances and mortgage servicing assets (4€ceMSA&€) are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.a€<Investment securities - available for sale
are primarily comprised of U.S. government agency MBS, U.S. government sponsored enterprise MBS, private issue CMO and investment in equity securities. The Corporation utilizes quoted
prices in active markets for similar securities for its fair value measurement of MBS and investment in equity securities (Level 2) and broker price indications for similar securities in non-active
markets for its fair value measurement of the private issue CMO (Level 3).4€<117Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsLoans
held for investment at fair value are primarily single-family loans which have been transferred from loans held for sale. The fair value is determined by management estimates of the specific
credit risk attributes of each loan, in addition to the quoted secondary-market prices which account for the interest rate characteristics of each loan (Level 3).4€<Loans with individually
evaluated allowance that are recorded at fair value on a nonrecurring basis are loans which are inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the borrowers or of
the collateral pledged. These loans are characterized by the distinct possibility that the Corporation will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. The fair value of a loan with an
individually evaluated allowance is determined based on the discounted cash flow or current appraised value of the underlying collateral. Appraised and reported values may be discounted
based on managementa€™s historical knowledge, changes in market conditions from the time of valuation, and/or managementa€™s expertise and knowledge of the collateral. For commercial
real estate loans with an individually evaluated allowance, the fair value is derived from the appraised value of its collateral. Loans with an individually evaluated allowance are reviewed and
evaluated on at least a quarterly basis for additional allowance and adjusted accordingly, based on the same factors identified above (Level 3). This loss is not recorded directly as an adjustment
to current earnings or other comprehensive income (loss), but rather as a component in determining the overall adequacy of the ACL. These adjustments to the estimated fair value of loans with
an individually evaluated allowance may result in increases or decreases to the provision for (recovery of) credit losses recorded in current earnings.a€<The fair value of other equity
investments is derived from quoted prices in active markets for the equivalent or similar investments (Level 2).4€<The Corporation uses the amortization method for its MSA, which amortizes
the MSA in proportion to and over the period of estimated net servicing income and assesses the MSA for impairment based on fair value at each reporting date. The fair value of the MSA is
derived using the present value method; which includes a third partya€™s prepayment projections of similar instruments, weighted average coupon rates, estimated servicing costs and
discount interest rates (Level 3).a€<The fair value of interest-only strips is derived using the same assumptions that are used to value the related MSA (Level 3).a€<The Corporationa€™s
valuation methodologies may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. While management believes the
Corporationa€™s valuation methodologies are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of
certain financial instruments could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date.a€<118Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated
Financial StatementsThe following fair value hierarchy tables present information at the dates indicated about the Corporationa€™s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis:A€<a€ A€ <A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE FairA ValueA MeasurementA atA JuneA 30,A 2024 Using:(In

Thousands)A A A A LevelA 1A A A A LevelA 2A A A A LevelA 3A A A A TotalAssets:4€<A€ A€ <A€<A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ Investment securities - available for

sale:a€<a€a€ a€a€a€«a€«ae€«a€«a€«a€«ae<U.S. government agency MBSa€«$ 4€74€<$ 1,208a€<$ 4€74€<$ 1,208U.S. government sponsored enterprise MBSa€<«A a€”a€<«A 553a€<A a€”a€A
553Private issue CMOA€<A 4€”a€<A 4€”a€<A 88a€<A 88Investment securities - available for saleA€<A A€"a€<A 1,7614€<A 88AE<A 1,8494€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAELoans held
for investment, at fair valuea€<A a€”a€A a€”a€<A 1,047a€<A 1,0470ther equity investments, fair valuea€«a€« a€”a€<«a€< 540a€<a€« 4€"a€<«a€« 540Interest-only strlpsa€<A A€”a€A a€”a€A
8a€<A 8Total assetsa€«p A€"A€<$ 2,3014€<$ 1,1434€<$ 3,4448€AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAELiabilities:A€«$ AE”A€«$ AE"AE€<$ A€”AE<$ A€"Total liabilitiesA€«$ AE"AE€<$ A€"AE<H AE"AE<S
A€ A€ <A€ A€ AL AEAEAEAEAE AEAEAEAEAEAEAE FairA ValueA MeasurementA atA JuneA 30,A 2023 Using:(In

Thousands)A A A A a€<LevelA 1a€<a€<LevelA 2A A A A a€<LevelA 3A A A A 4€<TotalAssets:A€<A€<A€<AE€AEAEAEAEAEAEAE A€ Investment securities - available for

sale:a€<A€ A€ A€ A€ AL AEAEAEaEaEéaeU.S. government agency MBSa€«$ a€”a€<$ 1,370a€<$ 4€”a€<$ 1,370U.S. government sponsored enterprise MBSa€<A a€”a€<A 683a€«A a€”a€<A
683Private issue CMOAE<A 4€"AE<A 4€"A€<A 1024€<A 102Investment securities - available for saled€<A 4E"AE<A 2,05386<A 1023€<A 2,155€<A€<AEAEAEAEAE<AEAEAEAEAE<EELoans
held for investment, at fair valuea€<A a€”a€<A a€”a€<A 1,312a€<A 1,312Interest-only stripsa€«A A€”a€<A A€"a€«A 9a€<A 9Total assetsa€«$ A€a€<$ 2,0534€<$ 1,4234€<$
3,4764€<a€<a€<A€<A€ A€ A€ <a€<af<a€<aka€«a€«Liabilities:a€<$ 4€7a€<$ a€”a€<$ 4€7a€<$ a€”Total liabilitiesa€<$ &€”a€<$ A€"a€<$ 4€"a€<$ 4€7a€<119Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL
HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsThe following tables provide a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances during the periods shown of recurring fair value
measurements recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition using Level 3

inputs:a€ A€ <A€<AE <AL AL AL AL AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEFairA ValueA Measuren}ept§€<a€<UsmgA SlgmflcantA OtherA Unobservqblp@ Ipputsa€<a€<(LevelA 3)a€<a€<anatea€<LoansA Held
Fora€<Interest-a€<a€<a€a€<Issued€nvestment,A ata€<«Onlya€<a€«(In Thousands)A A A A CMOA A A A fairA value(1)A A A A StripsA A A A TotalBeginning balance at JuneA 30,A 2023a€<$
102a€<$ 1,312a€<$ 9a€«$ 1,423Adjustment due to ASC 326 CECL adoptiona€«a€« a€”a€«a€« 28a€«a€« a€”a€<«a€« 28Total gains or losses
(realized/unrealized):A€ <A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ <A€<a€<a€<a€Included in earningsa€«A &4€”&€<A (10)a€<A a€”a€<«A (10)Included in other comprehensive income (loss)a€<A (1)a€<A a€”a€<A
(1)a€<A (2)Purchasesa€«A a€”a€«A a€”a€<A A€”a4€<A A€"Issuancesa€«A A4€"a€«A A€”A€<A a€”a€<A A€”Settlementsa€«A (13)a€<A (283)a€A a4€”a€<A (296)Transfers in and/or out of Level
3a€<A a€"a€<A a€”a€<A 4€”4€<A a€”Ending balance at JuneA 30,A 20244€<$ 88a€<$ 1,0474€<$ 84€<$ 1,1434€<«(1)The valuation of loans held for investment at fair value includes
managementa€™s estimate of the specific credit risk attributes of each loan, in addition to the quoted secondary-market prices which account for interest rate

characteristics.4€<a€<A€ A€ A€ A€ AE<AEAEAEAEAE<AEaEA€FairA ValueA Measurementa€«4€<UsingA SignificantA OtherA UnobservableA Inputsa€<a€«(LevelA 3)a€<a€<Privated€<LoansA Held/
4€<4€<A€ A€ Issuea€Investment,A ata€<Onlya€<a€«(In Thousands)A A AACMOA A A A fairA value(1) AA A A StrlpsA AAA TotalBeginning balance at JuneA 30,A 20224€<$ 1134€<$ 1,396a€<$
7a€<$ 1,516Total gains or losses (realized/ unrealized): A€<A A€<AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEIncluded in earnmgsa€<A 4€78€<A 23€<A a€”3€<A 2Included in other comprehensive income
(loss)a€<A 34€<A a€”a€<A 23€<A SPurchasesa€<A A4€"EA A€"AE<A aE€"AE<A 4€Issuancesi€«A A€"A€<A a€7aE<A A4€"AEA A€”Settlementsa€<A (14)3€<A (86)a€<A a€”a€A (100)Transfers
in and/or out of Level 3a€<A 4€”a€<A a€”a€<A 4€”a€<A 4€”Ending balance at JuneA 30,A 20234a€<$ 102a€<$ 1,3124€<$ 94€<$ 1,4234€<(1)The valuation of loans held for investment at fair value
includes managementa€™s estimate of the specific credit risk attributes of each loan, in addition to the quoted secondary-market prices which account for interest rate characteristics.a€<The
following fair value hierarchy table presents information about the Corporationa€™s assets measured at fair value at the dates indicated on a nonrecurring

basis: A€ A€ <AE€ A€ AL AEAE AL AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEFairA ValueA MeasurementA atA JuneA 30,A 2024A Using:(In

Thousands)A A A A LevelA 1A A A A LevelA 2A A A A LevelA 3A A A A TotalLoans with individually evaluated allowancea€«$ a€"a€<$ 4€"a€<$ 695a€<$ 695Mortgage servicing assetsa€<A
4€7a€<A a€”a€<A 87a€<A 87Totala€<$ 4€”a€<$ A€"A€«$ 782a€«$ 782a€<120Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statementsa€ A€ A€ <A€ A€ A€ <A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEFairA ValueA MeasurementA atA JuneA 30,A 2023A Using:(In Thousands)a€<LevelA 1a€<LevelA 2a€<LevelA 3a€<TotalLoans with
individually evaluated allowanceA A A A $ 4€”4€<$ 2514€<$ 1,0494€<$ 1,300Mortgage servicing assetsa€<A a€”a€<A 4€”a€<A 904€<A 90Totala€«$ 4€"4€<$ 251a€<$ 1,1394€<$ 1,3904€<The
following table presents additional information about valuation techniques and inputs used for assets and liabilities, including derivative financial instruments, which are measured at fair value
and categorized within Level 3 as of June 30,

2024:4€ A€ A€ AE AL AEAEAEAEAEAE AL AL AL AL AL AE AL AEAEAEAEAEImpactA toa€ A€ FairA Valuea€ a€ a€ A€ A€ «a€«a€«Valuationa€«a€«AsA ofa€«a€«A€«AE«AL«AE A€ fromA ana€«a€Jun
In Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A TechniquesA A A A UnobservableA InputsA A A A (WeightedA Average)A A A A Inputs(2)Assets:a€<4€<a€<A€<A€<A€<A€A€<A€<A€<a€ Securities available-for
sale: Private issue CMOa€<$ 88A Market comparable prlcmgA Comparability adJustmentA (2.0%) - (6.5%) (2.9%)A Increasea€ A€ a€ A€ a€<a€<a€a€a€a€«a€<a€<Loans held for investment, at
fair valuea€<$ 1,047A Relative value ana1y51sA Broker quotesA 86.9% - 89.0% (88.2%) of parA Increasea€ A€ <a€a€<a€«a€<a€«Credit risk factorA 1.0% - 1.1%

(1. O%)a€<Decreasea€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<L0ans with individually evaluated allowancea€«$ 695A Discounted cash flowA Default

rateA 5.0%A4€<Decreased€ A€ <a€<a€ A€ A€ a€«Discount ratea€<6. 9%a€<Decreasea€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<MSAsa€<$ 87A Discounted cash flowA Prepayment rate (CPR)A 5.1% -
60.0% (9.6%)A Decreasea€<a€<a€«a€<a€«a€<A Discount rateA 9.0% - 10.5% (9.1%)A Decreased€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ <AE«aE€ a€a€Interest-only stripsa€«$ 8A Discounted cash

flowA Prepayment rate (CPR)A 7.3% - 12.3% (8.6%)a€<Decreased€<a€<a€a€<a€<a€<A Discount

rateA 9.0%A Decreased€ A€ <a€ A€ A€ AfAE A€ AE«AE A€ AEAEAE AL AEAEAEAEAEAEAE«At A€ Liabilities:A€AAAAAAAAAAAAAAA A 2€AE€AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAENoOnea€aea
range is based on the historical estimated fair values and management estimates.(2)Unless otherwise noted, this column represents the directional change in the fair value of the Level 3
investments that would result from an increase to the corresponding unobservable input. A decrease to the unobservable input would have the opposite effect. Significant changes in these
inputs in isolation could result in significantly higher or lower fair value measurements.a€<The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Corporationa€™ s assets
and liabilities include the following: CMO offered quotes, prepayment rates and discount rates, among others. Significant increases or decreases in any of these inputs in isolation could result in
significantly lower or higher fair value measurement. The various unobservable inputs used to determine valuations may have similar or diverging impacts on valuation. For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2024, there were no significant changes to the Corporation's valuation techniques and inputs that had, or are expected to have, a material impact on its consolidated financial
position or results of operations.121Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsThe carrying amount and fair value of the
Corporationa€™s other financial instruments as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 were as

follows: a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<]uneA 30,A 20244€<a€<Carryinga€«Faira€ a€ «a€ a€ a€«a€«a€«a€«ae«(In

Thousands)A A A A AmountA A A A ValueA A A A LevelA 1A A A A LevelA 2A A A A LevelA 3Financial assets:4€<4€ <€ A€<A€AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE<A€AELoans held for investment, not
recorded at fair valuea€<$ 1,051,932a€<$ 973,453a€<$ a€”a€«$ a€”a€«$ 973,453Investment securities - held to maturitya€<$ 130,051a€<«$ 114,393a€<$ a€”a€<$ 114,393a€«$ a€"FHLB a€“ San
Francisco stocka€«<$ 9, 568a€<$ 9, 568a€<$ a€”é€<$ 9,5684€<$ A€”A€<AE€ A€ AL A€ AEAEAEAE AL A aE«aE«aE«aE«a€Financial

liabilities:a€<A A A 4€<A A A 4€<A A A 4€<A A A 4€<A A A Depositsa€«$ 888,3484€<$ 888,527a€<$ 4€"a€<$ 888,5274€<$ 4€”Borrowingsa€«$ 238,5004€<$ 237,6914€<$ 4€”a€<$ 237,691a€$
a€"a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<]uneA 30,A 2023a€<a€<Carrymga€<Falra€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<(ln

Thousands)A A A A AmountA A A A ValueA A A A LevelA 1A A A A LevelA 2A A A A LevelA 3Financial assets:4€a€<a€<a€<a€ A€ a€<a€<a€ A€ a€«a€«a€«a€@d€<Loans held for investment, not
recorded at fair valued€<$ 1,076,317a€<$ 970,277a€<$ a€”a€«$ 4€”a€<$ 970,277Investment securities - held to maturitya€«$ 154,3374€<$ 135,5414€<$ a€”a€«$ 135,541a€<$ 4€”"FHLB a4€“ San
Francisco stocka€<$ 9,505a€<$ 9,505a€<$ A€”4€<$ 9,5058€<$ A€ AEAE<AE< AE<AEAE« AEAEAE« AEAEAE« AE<AE<AE« 4€<Financial liabilities:a€<A &4€<A€<A A4€<AEA A€AEA &€AEA
4€<Depositsa€<$ 950,571a€<$ 949,116a€<$ 4€”a€<$ 949,116a€<$ a€”Borrowingsa€«$ 235,009a€<$ 232,764a€<$ a€”a€<$ 232,764a€«$ a€”a€<Loans held for investment, not recorded at fair value:
For loans that reprice frequently at market rates, the carrying amount approximates the fair value. For fixed-rate loans, the fair value is determined by either (i)A discounting the estimated
future cash flows of such loans over their estimated remaining contractual maturities using a current interest rate at which such loans would be made to borrowers, or (i)A quoted market
prices.a€<Investment securitiesA - held to maturity: The investment securitiesA - held to maturity consist of U.S. SBA securities, U.S. government sponsored enterprise MBS and U.S.
government sponsored enterprise CMO. For the U.S. SBA securities and U.S. government sponsored enterprise MBS and CMO, the Corporation utilizes quoted prices in active markets for
similar securities for its fair value measurement (Level 2).4€<FHLBA a€“ San Francisco stock is carried at cost/par value and represents its fair value. When redeemed, the Corporation will
receive an amount equal to the par value of the stock.a€<Deposits: The fair value of time deposits is estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation. The discount rate is based upon
observable inputs, including rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities. The fair value of transaction accounts (checking, money market and savings accounts) is equal
to the carrying amounts payable on demand.&€<Borrowings: The fair value of borrowings has been estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation. The discount rate on such borrowings is
based upon rates currently offered for borrowings of similar remaining maturities.d€<The Corporation has various processes and controls in place to ensure that fair value is reasonably
estimated. The Corporation generally determines fair value of their Level 3 assets and liabilities by using internally developed models which primarily utilize discounted cash flow techniques
and prices obtained from independent management services or brokers. The Corporation performs due diligence procedures over third-party pricing service providers in order to support their
use in the valuation process. &€<While the Corporation believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or
assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a 122Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statementsdifferent estimate of fair value at the reporting date. For the fiscalA year ended June 30, 2024, there were no significant changes to the Corporationd€™s valuation techniques that
had, or are expected to have, a material impact on its consolidated financial position or results of operations.a€<a€<NoteA 16: Revenue From Contracts With Customersa€<In accordance with
ASC 606, revenues are recognized when goods or services are transferred to the customer in exchange for the consideration the Corporation expects to be entitled to receive. The largest



portion of the Corporationd€™ s revenue is from interest income, which is not in the scope of ASC 606. All the Corporationa€™s revenue from contracts with customers in the scope of ASC 606
is recognized in non-interest income.a€<If a contract is determined to be within the scope of ASC 606, the Corporation recognizes revenue as it satisfies a performance obligation. Payments
from customers are generally collected at the time services are rendered, monthly, or quarterly. For contracts with customers within the scope of ASC 606, revenue is either earned at a point in
time or revenue is earned over time. Examples of revenue earned at a point in time are automated teller machine ("ATM") transaction fees, wire transfer fees, overdraft fees and interchange
fees. Revenue is primarily based on the number and type of transactions that are generally derived from transactional information accumulated by the Corporationa€™s systems and is
recognized immediately as the transactions occur or upon providing the service to complete the customer's transaction. The Corporation is generally the principal in these contracts, with the
exception of interchanges fees, in which case the Corporation is acting as the agent and records revenue net of expenses paid to the principal. Examples of revenue earned over time, which
generally occur on a monthly basis, are deposit account maintenance fees, investment advisory fees, merchant revenue, trust and investment management fees and safe deposit box fees.
Revenue is generally derived from transactional information accumulated by its systems or those of third-parties and is recognized as the related transactions occur or services are rendered to
the customer.&€<Disaggregation of Revenue:a€<The following table includes the Corporation's non-interest income disaggregated by type of services for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and
2023:4€ A€ <A€ A€ AE<AEAEAEAE<AEYear Ended JuneA 30,A Type of ServicesA A A A 2024A A A A 2023(In Thousands)A &€<A A A 4€<A A Loan servicing and other fees(1)a€<$ 337a€<$
414Deposit account feesd€«a€« 1,154a€<a€« 1,296Card and processing feesa€«a€« 1,384a€«@€« 1 ,5250ther(2)a€<A 1,066a€<A 840Total non-interest incomea€«$ 3,941a€<$ 4,075a€<(1)Not within
the scope of ASC 606.(2)Includes income on BOLI of $186 thousand and $186 thousand, net loss on sale of loans of $66 thousand and net gain on sale of loans of $124 thousand and net
unrealized gain on other equity investments of $540 thousand and $0 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, which are not within the scope of ASC 606.a€<For the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, substantially all the Corporationd€™s revenues within the scope of ASC 606 were for performance obligations satisfied at a specified date.a€<Revenues
recognized within the scope of ASC 606:a€<Deposit account fees: Fees are earned on the Bank's deposit accounts for various products offered to or services performed for the Bank's customers.
Fees include business account fees, non-sufficient fund fees, ATM fees and others. These fees are recognized on a daily, monthly or quarterly basis, depending on the type of service.&€<Card and
processing fees: Debit interchange income represents fees earned when a debit card issued by the Bank is used. The Bank earns interchange fees from cardholder transactions through a third
party payment network. Interchange fees 123Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsfrom cardholder transactions represent a
percentage of the underlying transaction value and are recognized daily, concurrently with the transaction processing services provided to the cardholder. The performance obligation is
satisfied and the fees are earned when the cost of the transaction is charged to the cardholders' debit card. Certain expenses directly associated with the debit cards are recorded on a net basis
with the interchange income.a€<Other: Includes asset management fees, stop payment fees, wire services fees, safe deposit box fees and other fees earned on other services, such as merchant
services or occasional non-recurring type services, are recognized at the time of the event or the applicable billing cycle. Asset management fees are variable, since they are based on the
underlying portfolio value, which is subject to market conditions and amounts invested by customers through a third-party provider. Asset management fees are recognized over the period that
services are provided, and when the portfolio values are known or can be estimated at the end of each month.a€<NoteA 17: Holding Company Condensed Financial Informationa€<This
information should be read in conjunction with the other notes to the consolidated financial statements. The following is the Condensed Statements of Financial Condition for Provident
Financial Holdings (Holding Company only) as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 and Condensed Statements of Operations and Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and
2023.4€<«Condensed Statements of Financial Cond1t10na€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<}uneA 30,A (In Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 20234€<A€ A€ <AEAE€AE<AE AssetsAt A€ A€ a€«a€éa€«Cash
and cash equivalentsa€«<$ 3, 385a€<$ 3,737Investment in sub81d1arya€<A 126,6014€<A 125,9490ther assetsa€<A 644€<A 674€<a€<$ 130,0504€<$ 129,7534€<4€<A A A 4€<A A A Liabilities and
Stockholdersa€™ Equitya€<A A A a€<A A A Other liabilitiesd€<$ 1094€<$ 66Stockholdersa€™ equ1tya€<A 129,9414€<A 129,687a€<a€<$ 130,050a€<$ 129,7534€<4€«Condensed Statements of
Operatlonsa€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<Year Ended ]uneA 30,A (In Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 20234€<4€a€<a€<a€<a€<a€Dividend from the Banka€«$ 7,000a€<$ 9,500Interest and
other incomea€<A 2a€<A 3Total incomea€«A 7,002a€<A 9, 503a€<a€<A A A 4€<A A A General and administrative expensesa€<A 1,2944€<A 1,267Earnings before income taxes and equity in
undistributed earnings of the Banka€<A 5,7084€<A 8,236a€<4€<A A A 4€<A A A Income tax benefitd€<A (382)a€<A (373)Earnings before equity in undistributed earnings of the Banka€<A
6,090a€<A 8,6094€<4€<A A A 4€<A A A Equity in undistributed earnings of the Banka€<A 1,261a€<A (17)Net incomea€«$ 7,3514€<$ 8,5924€<124Table of ContentsPROVIDENT FINANCIAL
HOLDINGS, INC.Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsCondensed Statements of Cash Flowsa€<a€<a€<a€<a€«a€a€«a€«a€«a€<«Year Ended JuneA 30,A (In

Thousands)A A A A 2024A A A A 20234€<4€<A€<A€<A€<A€<a€<Cash flow from operating activities:A 4€<A A A 4€<A A Net incomea€<$ 7,3514€<$ 8,592Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities: &€<A A A 4€<A A A Equity in undistributed earnings of the Banka€<A (1,261)a €<«A 17Decrease (increase) in other assetsa€<A 3a€<A (6)Increase in other
liabilitiesa€<A 434€<A 29Net cash provided by operating activitiesa€<A 6,136a€<A 8,632a€a€<A A A a€<A A A Cash flow from financing activities: a€<A A A a€<A A A Treasury stock
purchasesa€<A (2,601)a€<A (4,648)Cash dividendsa€<A (3, 887)a€<A (3, 998)Net cash used for financing activitiesa€<A (6,488)a€<A (8,646)Net decrease in cash durlng the yeara€<A

(352)a€<A (14)Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yeara€<A 3,737a4€<A 3,751Cash and cash equivalents at end of yeara€<$ 3,385a€<$ 3,7374€<4€<4€<NoteA 18: Subsequent Eventsa€«On
July 25, 2024, the Corporation announced that the Provident Financial Holdings Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.14 per share. Shareholders of Provident Financial
Holdings common stock at the close of business on August 15, 2024 are entitled to receive the cash dividend, payable on September 5, 2024 4€ ckkkkikiiiika€ 1 25EXHIBITA 132024 Annual
Report to Stockholdersa€«a€<«a€<a€«a€«a€<a€«a€«a€<a€«a€«a€«a€<«a€«a€<2024 Annual Reporta€<a€«a€<«a€<Message From the ChairmanDear Shareholders:4€<I am pleased to forward our Annual
Report for fiscal 2024 highlighting our financial results. Last year at this time, it was noted in the Chairmana€™s Message that, &€ceCurrent general economic conditions do not seem to be
improving and the Federal Open Market Committee (4€ceFOMC&€) has responded to higher inflation data by raising the federal funds rate to the highest level in 22 years and at the quickest
pace in 40 years.a€ A year later and inflation numbers are finally starting to decline in a consistent manner. Like many others, we began the 2024 calendar year believing that rate cuts were
likely and there would be multiple rate cuts in the year. Today, we are more than half way through the year and we are still waiting for the rate cuts to materialize. But we may finally start to
see some rate relief as the FOMC has recently signaled that inflation is declining, which would allow for a less restrictive monetary policy. Throughout this last fiscal year, we have continued to
be good stewards of our capital by executing a strategy that called for us to slow growth in a potential recessionary environment and work to ensure strong credit quality. This conservative
credit culture has served us well in the past and continues to do so in the present, particularly in light of the elevated credit risk around commercial real estate loans. A 4€<Fiscal 2024

A Overall, our fiscal 2024 financial results, described in the following Financial Highlights, reflected a decline in both net income and total assets compared to the prior year. Throughout fiscal
2024, operating conditions were challenging with the macroeconomic headwinds of an inverted yield curve, higher interest rates, high inflation, rising unemployment rates and modest gross
domestic product growth. As a result, the Bank made the strategic decision to restrict loan growth and took a defensive position with the balance sheet, resulting in a lower balance of loans
held for investment, but thereby limiting new exposures to credit risk. In addition, the deposit environment was highly competitive and depositors were actively seeking higher rates for their
deposits. This resulted in a decline in our total deposits and an increase in our interest expense as we were competing to retain those relationships or replace them with higher cost funding
sources. Last year, we described that our fiscal 2024 Business Plan forecast disciplined growth in loans held for investment, growth in retail deposits (primarily core deposits), control of
operating expenses, and sound capital management decisions. The Business Plan was predicated on the forecast of gradual rate cuts by the FOMC and the beginning of the return to a normally
sloped yield curve. But when the rate environment we envisioned did not materialize, we deviated from the Business Plan as it relates to loan growth. A Loan originations and purchases for the
held for investment portfolio were $75.5 million in fiscal 2024, a 68 percent decrease from the fiscal 2023 volume, and loan prepayments exceeded new loan origination volume resulting in a
two percent decrease in loans held for investment. On the funding side, core deposits decreased by $115.1 million or 16 percent at June 30, 2024 from the same date last year as a result of
depositors moving funds into higher yielding investment opportunities and were partially replaced with brokered certificates of deposit such that total deposits declined by seven percent.
Operating expenses for fiscal 2024 increased by approximately one percent from the prior year resulting from the inflationary environment but were well-controlled. Last year, we mentioned
our intent to expand our contingency funding sources and successfully executed that plan by increasing total borrowing capacity from all sources by approximately seven percent in comparison
to the prior fiscal year. In addition, we paid a quarterly cash dividend of $0.14 per share in fiscal 2024 while repurchasing approximately 197,000 shares of our common stock under the stock
repurchase plans. Our capital management activities resulted in an approximately 88 percent distribution of fiscal 2024 net income.a€<Fiscal 2025Similar to fiscal 2024, we plan to emphasize
measured growth in loans held for investment; the continued growth of retail deposits; disciplined control of operating expenses where we continue to improve operating efficiencies; and sound
capital management decisions. We believe this is reasonable in a less restrictive monetary policy environment, where elevated interest rates and the inverted yield curve begin to reverse course
and normalize. We currently plan to return capital to shareholders in the form of cash dividends and believe that maintaining our cash dividend is very important to shareholders. We also
recognize that prudent capital returns through stock repurchase programs is an essential capital management tool that we will continue to use as a component of our capital management
strategy. We remain committed to single-family, multi-family, and commercial real estate mortgage lending as our primary sources of asset growth and we will redeploy cash flows from
investment securities to support the growth of our loan portfolio. Since we suspect that we are on the cusp of interest rate cuts by the FOMC, we believe there will be adjustments to the yield
curve that will better support loan growth in the balance sheet at a lower cost of funds, and likely expansion in our net interest margin. This strategy is intended to improve core revenue, over
time, through a higher net interest margin, higher net interest income and ultimately, coupled with the growth of the Company, an increase in net income. A 4€<A Final WordAs I think about the
upcoming year framed by recent operating conditions, the word that comes to mind is resilience. The last few years have seen the world recovering from a once in a lifetime pandemic, banking
industry turmoil in terms of elevated liquidity, interest rate and commercial real estate credit risks, and the highest rate of inflation in over 40 years. I would like to share a quote that I believe
is apropos to our experience. &€ceEveryone experiences tough times; it is a measure of your determination and dedication how you deal with them and how you can come through them.a€ a€“
Lakshmi Mittal (Executive Chairman for ArcelorMittal, the worlda€™ s second largest steelmaking company). As we look to the next fiscal year, I want to assure you that we are determined and
dedicated. We adjust our operating strategies on an ongoing basis to overcome challenging conditions but not in a way that jeopardizes our long-term viability in &€<exchange for short-term
profitability. In this competitive environment, we understand we need to balance profitability against risks, but believe that moving further out on the risk curve within our core competencies is
warranted at this time given our strong financial foundation and general outlook for improving operating conditions. But we will not move away from our community banking roots or from
serving the families and small businesses of the Inland Empire, moreover we will celebrate and continue to expand on that heritage. A A A A In closing, I would like to recognize and thank our
staff of banking professionals and Directors for their dedication to Provident. We could not operate our business without their loyalty and dedication. I would also like to express my appreciation
to our customers, shareholders, and the communities we serve. To all of you, thank you for your continued patronage and support. We recognize that our continued success is inextricably linked
to each of you and is dependent upon your ongoing support.a€<a€<Sincerely,a€<«a€<a€«/s/ Craig G. Blundena€«Craig G. Blundena€<«Chairman of the Board of Directorsa€<a€<«a€«Financial
HighlightsThe following tables set forth information concerning the consolidated financial position and results of operations of the Corporation and its subsidiary at the dates and for the periods
indicated. A€ <B€ A€ A€ AL HE AL AL AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEBEALA orA ForA TheA YearA EndedA JuneA 30A (In Thousands, Except Per Share

1,272,200a€<$ 1,332,948a€<$ 1,187,038a€<$ 1,183,596a€<$ 1,176,837Loans held for investment, neta€<a€«< 1, 052 9794€<4€< 1,077,629a€<a€< 939,9924€<4€< 850,960a€<a€< 902,796Cash and
cash equivalentsa€<a€« 51,376a€<a€« 65,849a€<a€« 23,4144€<a€« 70,270a€<a€« 116,034Investment securitiesa€<«a€<« 131,9004€<a€< 156,4924€<4€<« 188,421a€<a€< 226,8934€<a€<
123,344Depositsa€«a€« 888,348a€<a€< 950,5714€<a€< 955,5044€<a€<« 937,973a€<a€< 892,969Borrowingsa€<«a€« 238,5004€<a€<« 235,0098€<a€« 85,000a€<a€« 100,983a€<a€<
141,047Stockholdersa€™ equitya€<a€« 129,9414€<4€« 129,687a€<a€<« 128,6504€<a€« 127,280a€<a€« 123,976Book value per shared€«a€« 18.984€«a€<« 18.414€<a€<« 17.66a€<a€« 16.884€<4€«

16.674€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAQEOPERATING DATA:A€A€A A A€AEA A a€<AE<A A A€AE€<A A 4€<a€<A A Interest incomea€«$ 54,730a€<$ 45,9924€<$ 34,7308€<$
35,201a€<$ 42,456Interest expensea€<«a€<« 19,807a€<a€<« 9,007a€<a€<« 3,135a€<a€<« 4,562a€<a€< 6,055Net interest incomea€<a€« 34,923a€<a€« 36,985a€<a€<« 31,595a€<a€< 30,639a€<a€«

36,401 (Recovery of) provision for credit lossesa€ @€« (63)a€«a€« 374a€«a€« (2,462)a€«a€« (708)a€«a€« 1,119Net interest income after (recovery of) provision for credit lossesa€<a€« 34,986a€ @€«
36,611a€<a€< 34,057a€<a€« 31,347a€<a€« 35,282Loan servicing and other feesa€<a€« 337a€<«a€« 414a€<a€< 1,056a€<a€< 1,170a€<a€<« 819(Loss) gain on sale of loans, neta€<a€« (66)a€a€«
1244€<a€< 40a€<a€« (103)a€<a€< (132)Deposit account feesa€«a€« 1,1544€<a€< 1,296a€<a€« 1,3024€<a€< 1,247a€<a€< 1,610Card and processing feesa€<«a€« 1,3844€<a€<« 1,525a€<a€< 1,639a€<a€<
1,605a€<a€< 1,4540ther non-interest incomea€<a€« 1,132a€<a€« 716a€<a€< 679a€<a€« 654a€<a€<« 7690perating expensesa€«a€« 28,540a€<a€« 28,270a€<a€« 25,915a€<a€« 25,733a€<a€«<
28,900Income before income taxesa€<«a€« 10,387a€<a€<« 12,4164€<a€< 12,8584€<4€< 10,187a€<a€<« 10,902Provision for income taxesa€<«a€« 3,036a€<a€« 3,8244€<4€<« 3,765a€<4€<« 2,6264€<a€<
3,213Net incomea€«$ 7,351a€<$ 8,592a€<$ 9,093a€<$ 7,561a€<$ 7,689Basic earnings per sharea€«$ 1.06a€<«$ 1.20a€<$ 1.23a€<$ 1.014€<$ 1.03Diluted earnings per sharea€«$ 1.06a€<$ 1.19a€<$
1.228€<$ 1.004€<$ 1.01Cash dividend per sharea€<$ 0.56a€<«$ 0.564€<$ 0.564€<$ 0.564€<$ 0.56a€<a€<4€<a€<Financial

Highlightsa€<a€<a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AtA orA ForA TheA YearA EndedA JuneA 30,4€<4€<A A A A 2024A A A A 2023A A AA2022A AAA2021A A A A 20204€<KEY OPERATING
RATIOS:A A A A 4€<4€<A€<AE<AE<AEAEAEAEAEAEAE AL AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEPerformance Ratiosa€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ Return on average assetsa€« 0.57%A A 0.68%A A
0.76%A A 0.64%A A 0.69%Return on average stockholdersa€™ equitya€« 5.624€< 6.584€« 7.144€< 6.05a€<« 6.26a€Interest rate spreada€« 2.624€« 2.924€« 2.69a€« 2.624€« 3.304€<Net interest
margind€« 2.78a€<« 2.99a€« 2.724€« 2.66a€« 3.36a€<Average interest-earning assets to average interest- bearing liabilitiesa€< 110.284€< 110.27a€< 110.67a€<« 110.78a€« 111.32a€<Operating
expenses as a percentage of average total assetsa€< 2.22a€« 2.23a€« 2.17a€« 2.18a€« 2.59a€<Efficiency ratio(1)a€« 73.44a€« 68.85a€« 71.37a€< 73.08a€« 70.62a€«Stockholdersa€™ equity to total
assets ratiod€« 10.214€« 9.734€< 10.844€< 10.754€< 10.534€<Dividend payout ratioa€« 52.83a€« 47.06a€<« 45.88a€« 55.83a€« 55.458€ A€ A€ A€ <A€<A€ A€ A€ <A€<A€ A€ a€<a€<The Bank's Regulatory
Capital Ratiosa€<A A a€<A A a€<A A a€<A A a€<A A a€<Tier 1 leverage capital (to adjusted average assets)a€< 10.02%A A 9.59%A A 10.47%A A 10.19%A A 10.13%CET1 capital (to risk-
weighted assets)a€« 19.29a€« 18.50a€« 19.58a€« 18.58a€« 17.51a€<Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets)a€« 19.29a€« 18.50a€« 19.584€« 18.58a€<« 17.514€<Total capital (to risk-weighted
assets)a€« 20.384€« 19.38a€« 20.474€< 19.76a€<« 18.764€ A€ <A€ AEAE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAsset Quality Ratiosa€<A A a€<A A a€<A A a€<A A a€<A A a€«Non-performing loans as a
percentage of loans held for investment, neta€< 0.25%A A 0.12%A A 0.15%A A 1.02%A A 0.55%Non-performing assets as a percentage of total assetsa€« 0.20a€< 0.104€< 0.12&€< 0.734€<
0.42a€<Allowance for credit losses as a percentage of gross loans held for investmenta€« 0.67a€« 0.55a€<« 0.59a€« 0.88a€« 0.91a€<«Net (recoveries) charge-offs to average loans receivable, neta€«
4€”4€« 4€74€< (0.05)a€« a€”a€« (0.01)a€<a€<«(1)Operating expenses as aA percentage of net interest income and non-interest income.a€<a€<Shareholder InformationANNUAL MEETINGThe
annual meeting of shareholders will be held virtually by means of remote communication on Thursday, NovemberA 21, 2024 at 11:00A a.m. (Pacific). A formal notice of the meeting, together
with a proxy statement and proxy form, will be mailed to shareholders. CORPORATE OFFICEProvident Financial Holdings,A Inc.3756 Central AvenueRiverside, CA 92506(951) 686-
6060INTERNET ADDRESSwww.myprovident.comSPECIAL COUNSELBreyerA & Associates PC8180 Greensboro Drive, SuiteA 785McLean, VA 22102(703) 883-1100INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRMDeloitteA & Touche LLP695 Town Center Drive, SuiteA 1000Costa Mesa, CA 92626-7188(714) 436-7100TRANSFER AGENTFirst
Class/Registered/Certified Mail:Computershare Investor Services P.O. Box 43006 Providence, RI 02940-3006A A A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Courier
Services/Overnight: Computershare Investor Services150 Royall StreetCanton, MA 020214€<MARKET INFORMATIONProvident Financial Holdings,A Inc. is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select
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Carpentera€<Tam B. NguyenHead of Medical Network Operationsa€«Senior Vice PresidentAkido Labsa€<Chief Financial Officer anda€<a€<Corporate SecretaryDebbi H. Guthriea€<a€<Retired
Executivea€<Provident BankRaincross Hospitality Corporationa€<a€«a€<«a€<Donavon P. TernesBrian N. Hawleya€<President and Chief Executive OfficerChief Executive Officera€«a€<Luminex
Software, Inc.4€<Tam B. Nguyena€<a€«Senior Vice PresidentKathy M. Michalak&€<Chief Financial Officer andFormer Executive Directora€«Corporate SecretaryHabitat for Humanity
Riversidea€<a€«a€«a€<Robert a€oeScotta€ RitterWilliam E. Thomas, Esq.a€<Senior Vice PresidentExecutive Vice President and General Counsela€«<Single-Family DivisionThe KPC
Groupa€<a€«a€«a€«Lilian SalterMatthew E. Webba€<Senior Vice PresidentPresident and Chief Executive Officera€<Chief Information OfficerAlbert A. Webb Associatesa€<a€<a€<a€David S.
WeiantSenior Vice PresidentChief Lending Officera€<«Gwendolyn L. WertzSenior Vice PresidentRetail Banking

Divisiond€<a€<«a€<a€<«a€«a€<a€«a€ a€<a€«a€a€<a€<a€«af«a€«a€«a€«a€<a€«a€«a€«a€<«a€ «a€«a€<«a€ a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€<«Provident

Locationsa€a€«a€«a€a€<a€<A A A A 4€<A€A€AERETAIL BANKING CENTERSA€<4€ A€ <A€<A€Blythea€«Moreno Valley350 E. Hobson Waya€<12460 Heacock StreetBlythe, CA 922254€<Moreno
Valley, CA 92553(760) 922-6105a€<a€<(951) 242-3149Canyon Cresta€«Orangecrest5225 Canyon Crest Drive, SuiteA 304€¢19348 Van Buren Boulevard, SuiteA 119Riverside, CA
92507a€<Riverside, CA 92508(951) 781-80804€<4€<(951) 780-7170Coronad€<Rancho Mirage487 Magnolia Avenue, SuiteA 1014€<71991 Highway 111Corona, CA 928794a€<Ranch Mirage, CA
92270(951) 270-2926 a€<a€<(760) 340-5644Downtown Business Centera€<Redlands4001 Main Streeta€<125 E. Citrus AvenueRiverside, CA 925014a€<«Redlands, CA 92373(951) 682-
3272a€<a€<(909) 793-2992Hemeta€<Sun City1690 E. Florida Avenuea€<«27010 Sun City BoulevardHemet, CA 925444€<Sun City, CA 92586(951) 658-7224a€<a€<(951) 679-23014€<Home
Officea€<Temecula6570 Magnolia Avenuea€<«40705 Winchester Road, SuiteA 6Riverside, CA 92506a€<Temecula, CA 92591(951) 782-6177 4€<4€<(951) 296-2429La Sierrad€<a€<3312 La Sierra
Avenue, SuiteA 105a€<a€<Riverside, CA 92503a€<a€<(951) 353-98974€a€<a€a€«Customer Information 1-800-442-5201 or

www.myprovident.coma€ a€<«a€<a€<a€ a€<a€«a€ a€<a€<a€ A€ <a€<a€ «a€«a€<a€«a€«a€<a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«@€«Corporate Office3756 Central Avenue, Riverside, CA 92506(951) 686-
6060&€<wvyvy.Ipxp{oyi@el}t;cqm”é@NASDAQ Global Select MarketA - PROVEXHIBIT 21.14€<SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANTA€ A€ <a€<a€<a€<a€<Parent

IncorporationProvident Savings Bank, F.S.B.&€<100%&a€<United States of AmericaProvident Financial Corp(1)a€<«100%a€«CaliforniaProfed Mortgage, Inc.(1)(2)a€<100%a€«CaliforniaFirst Service
Corporation(1)(2)a€<100%a€«California(1) This corporation is a wholly owned subsidiary of Provident Savings Bank, F.S.B.(2) Currently inactive. EXHIBITA 23.14€<CONSENT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM&a€<«We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-140229, 333-171344, 333-192727, and 333-
268827 on Form S-8 of our reports dated August 30, 2024, relating to the consolidated financial statements of Provident Financial Holdings, Inc., and subsidiary (the &€ceCorporationa€),
appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Corporation for the year ended June 30, 2024.4€</s/ Deloitte & Touche LLPa€<Costa Mesa, CaliforniaAugust 30, 2024EXHIBIT
31.1a€<CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICERPURSUANT TOSECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 20024a€<I, Donavon P. Ternes, certify that:a€<1.I have reviewed
this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Provident Financial Holdings, Inc.;4€<2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;a€<3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;a€<4.The registranta€™s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:a€«(a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;a€«(b)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;a€«(c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registranta€™s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; anda€«(d)Disclosed in this report any change in the registranta€™s
internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the registranta€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting; anda€<5.The registranta€™ s other certifying officer and I have
disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registranta€™s auditors and the audit committee of the registranta€™s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):a€<(a)All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrantd€™s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; anda€«(b)Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves
management or other employees who have a significant role in the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting.a€<a€<a€<a€<Date: August 30, 2024A /s/ Donavon P.
Ternesa€<Donavon P. Ternesa€<President and Chief Executive Officera€<EXHIBIT 31.2a€<CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICERPURSUANT TOSECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002&€<I, Tam B. Nguyen, certify that:4€<1.1 have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Provident Financial Holdings, Inc.;4€<2.Based on my knowledge, this
report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;a€<3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;a€<4.The
registranta€™ s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:a€<(a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or
caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;a€«(b)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused
such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;a€<(c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registranta€™s disclosure controls and
procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; anda€«(d)Disclosed in this report any change in the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrantd€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registranta€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registranta€™s internal control over financial
reporting; anda€<5.The registranta€™s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registranta€™s
auditors and the audit committee of the registranta€™ s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):a€«(a)All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the
design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registranta€™s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; anda€«(b)Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registranta€™s internal control over financial
reporting.a€<a€«a€«a€<«Date: August 30, 2024/s/ Tam B. Nguyena€<Tam B, Nguyena€<Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officera€<EXHIBIT 32.14€<«CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL
EXECUTIVE OFFICERPURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C.A A SECTION 1350,AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TOSECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 20024€<In connection with the
accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-K of Provident Financial Holdings, Inc.A A (the &€ceCorporationa€) for the period ended June 30, 2024 (the &€ceReporta€), I, Donavon P. Ternes, in my
capacity as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation, hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that:a€<1.The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; anda€<2.The information contained in the Report fairly
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Corporation as of the dates and for the periods presented in the financial statements included in such
Report.a€<a€«a€<a€<Date: August 30, 2024/s/ Donavon P. Ternesa€<Donavon P. Ternesa€«President and Chief Executive Officera€<EXHIBIT 32.2a€<CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL
OFFICERPURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C.A A SECTION 1350,AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TOSECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 20024€<In connection with the accompanying Annual
Report on Form 10-K of Provident Financial Holdings, Inc.A A (the 4€ceCorporationa€) for the period ended June 30, 2024 (the 4€ceReporta€), I, Tam B. Nguyen, in my capacity as Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation, hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:4€<1.The
Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and2.The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Corporation as of the dates and for the periods presented in the financial statements included in such
Report.a€<a€«a€<a€<Date: August 30, 2024/s/ Tam B. Nguyena€<«Tam B. Nguyena€<Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officera€<Exhibit 97PROVIDENT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS,
INC.2€<COMPENSATION RECOVERY POLICY&€<4€<In accordance with the applicable rules of Section 10D of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 4€ceExchange Acta€), Rule
10D-1 promulgated under the Exchange Act (4€ceRule 10D-14€) and Nasdaq Listing Rule 5608 (the a€ceListing Standardsa€), the Board of Directors of Provident Financial Holdings, Inc. (the
4€ceCompanya€) has adopted this Policy to provide for the recovery of certain incentive compensation in the event of an Accounting Restatement (as defined below).1.AdministrationExcept as
specifically set forth herein, this Policy shall be administered by the independent members of the Companya€™s Board of Directors (the 4€ceAdministratora€). The Administrator is authorized to
interpret and construe this Policy and to make all determinations necessary, appropriate or advisable for the administration of this Policy. Any determinations made by the Administrator shall
be final and binding on all affected individuals and the Company and need not be uniform with respect to each individual covered by the Policy. In the administration of this Policy, the
Administrator is authorized and directed to consult with Company counsel, the full Board, or such other committees of the Board, such as the Companya€™s Audit Committee, as may be
necessary or appropriate.Subject to any limitation of applicable law, the Administrator may authorize and empower any officer or employee of the Company to take any and all actions necessary
or appropriate to carry out the purpose and intent of this Policy (other than with respect to any recovery under this Policy involving such officer or employee).2.DefinitionsAs used in this Policy,
the following definitions shall apply:a€ceAccounting Restatementa€ means an accounting restatement of the Companya€™s financial statements due to the Companya€™ s material
noncompliance with any financial reporting requirement under U.S. securities laws, including any required accounting restatement to correct an error in previously issued financial statements
that is material to the previously issued financial statements (commonly referred to as &€ceBig Ra€ restatements), or that would result in a material misstatement if the error were corrected in
the current period or left uncorrected in the current period (commonly referred to as &€welittle ra€ restatements).a€ceAdministratora€ has the meaning set forth in Section 1
hereof.a€oeApplicable Perioda€ means the three completed fiscal years immediately preceding the earlier of (i) the date the Board, a committee of the Board, or the officer or officers of the
Company authorized to take such action if Board action is not required, concludes (or reasonably should have concluded) that an Accounting Restatement is required or (ii) the date a regulator,
court or other legally authorized entity directs the Company to undertake an Accounting Restatement. The &€ceApplicable Perioda€ also includes any transition period that results from a change
in the Companya€™s fiscal year within or immediately following the three completed fiscal years identified in the preceding sentence; except that a transition period that comprises a period of
at least nine months shall count as a completed fiscal year.a€ceCovered Executivesa€ means the Companya€™s current and former executive officers, referred to as Senior Management by the
Company, as determined by the Administrator in accordance with the definition of 4€ceexecutive officera€ set forth in Rule 10D-1 and the Listing Standards.a€ceErroneously Awarded
Compensationa€ has the meaning set forth in Section 5 of this Policy.a€ceFinancial Reporting Measurea€ is any measure that is determined and presented in accordance with the accounting
principles used in preparing the Companya€™s financial statements, and any measure that is derived wholly or in part from such measure and includes &€cenon-GAAPa€ measures for purposes
of Regulation G promulgated under the Exchange Act. Financial Reporting Measures include but are not limited to the following (and any measures derived from the following): Company stock
price; total shareholder return (a€ceTSRa€); revenues; net income; operating income; operating net income, operating pre-tax pre-provision income, tangible book value, tangible book value per
share, profitability or growth of one or more reportable segments; financial ratios (e.g., yield on loans, rates on deposits, efficiency ratio, nonperforming loans to total loans, nonperforming
assets to total assets, loans to assets ratio, loans to deposits ratio); liquidity measures (e.g., capital, operating cash flow); return measures (e.g., net interest margin, return on assets, return on
equity); earnings measures (e.g., earnings per share); any of such financial reporting measures relative to a peer group, where the Companya€™s financial reporting measure is subject to an
Accounting Restatement; and tax basis income. A Financial Reporting Measure need not be presented within the Companya€™ s financial statements or included in a filing with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.a€celncentive-Based Compensationd€ means any compensation that is granted, earned, or vested based wholly or in part upon the attainment of a Financial
Reporting Measure. Incentive-Based Compensation is d€cereceiveda€ for purposes of this Policy in the Companya€™s fiscal period during which the Financial Reporting Measure specified in
the Incentive-Based Compensation award is attained, even if the payment or grant of such Incentive-Based Compensation occurs after the end of that period. Examples of &€celncentive-Based
Compensationa€ include, but are not limited to: non-equity incentive plan awards that are earned based wholly or in part on satisfying a Financial Reporting Measure performance goal; bonuses
paid from a d4€cebonus pool,a€ the size of which is determined based wholly or in part on satisfying a Financial Reporting Measure performance goal; other cash awards based on satisfaction of
a Financial Reporting Measure performance goal;A restricted stock awards, restricted stock units, performance share awards or units, stock options and stock appreciation rights that are
granted or become vested based wholly or in part on satisfying a Financial Reporting Measure performance goal; and proceeds received upon the sale of shares acquired through an incentive
plan that were granted or vested based wholly or in part on satisfying a Financial Reporting Measure performance goal. Examples of compensation that is not 4€ceincentive-based
compensationa€ include, but are not limited to:A salaries (except to the extent a salary increase is earned wholly or in part based on the attainment of a Financial Reporting Measure
performance goal); bonuses paid solely at the discretion of the Personnel/Compensation Committee or Board that are not paid from a 4€cebonus poola€ that is determined by satisfying a
Financial Reporting Measure performance goal; bonuses paid solely upon satisfying one or more subjective standards (e.g., demonstrated leadership) and/or completion of a specified
employment period; non-equity incentive plan awards earned solely upon satisfying one or more strategic measures (e.g., consummating a merger or branch acquisition or divestiture), or
operational measures (e.g., opening a specified number of branches, completion of a project, increase in market share); and equity awards for which the grant is not contingent upon achieving
any Financial Reporting Measure performance goal and vesting is contingent solely upon completion of a specified employment period and/or attaining one or more nonfinancial reporting
measures.3.Covered Executives; Incentive-Based CompensationThis Policy applies to Incentive-Based Compensation received by a Covered Executive (a) after beginning services as a Covered
Executive; (b) if that person served as a Covered Executive at any time during the performance period for such Incentive-Based Compensation; and (c) while the Company had a listed class of
securities on a national securities exchange. This Policy does not apply to Incentive-Based Compensation received by a Covered Executive (x) while that person was serving in a non-executive



capacity prior to becoming a Covered Executive or (y) who is a Covered Executive on the date on which a€<2a€<«he Company is required to prepare an Accounting Restatement but who was not
a Covered Executive at any time during the performance period for which the Incentive-Based Compensation is received.4.Required Recoupment of Erroneously Awarded Compensation in the
Event of an Accounting RestatementIn the event the Company is required to prepare an Accounting Restatement, the Company shall promptly recoup the amount of any Erroneously Awarded
Compensation received by any Covered Executive, as calculated pursuant to Section 5 hereof, relating to the Applicable Period.5.Erroneously Awarded Compensation: Amount Subject to
RecoveryThe amount of 4€ceErroneously Awarded Compensationa€ subject to recovery under the Policy, as determined by the Administrator, is the amount of Incentive-Based Compensation
received by the Covered Executive that exceeds the amount of Incentive-Based Compensation that would have been received by the Covered Executive had such compensation been determined
based on the restated amounts.Erroneously Awarded Compensation shall be computed by the Administrator without regard to any taxes paid by the Covered Executive in respect of the
Erroneously Awarded Compensation. By way of example, with respect to any compensation plans or programs that take into account Incentive-Based Compensation, the amount of Erroneously
Awarded Compensation subject to recovery hereunder includes, but is not limited to, the amount contributed to any notional account based on Erroneously Awarded Compensation and any
earnings accrued to date on that notional amount.For Incentive-Based Compensation based on stock price or TSR: (a) the Administrator shall determine the amount of Erroneously Awarded
Compensation based on a reasonable estimate of the effect of the Accounting Restatement on the stock price or TSR upon which the Incentive-Based Compensation was received; and (b) the
Company shall maintain documentation of the determination of that reasonable estimate and provide such documentation to The Nasdaq Stock Market (a€ceNasdaqa€) and the Covered
Executive.6.Method of RecoupmentThe Administrator shall determine, in its sole discretion, the timing and method for reasonably promptly recouping Erroneously Awarded Compensation
hereunder, which may include without limitation (a) seeking reimbursement of all or part of any cash or equity-based award, (b) cancelling prior cash or equity-based awards, whether vested or
unvested or paid or unpaid, (c) cancelling or offsetting against any planned future cash or equity-based awards, (d) forfeiture of deferred compensation, subject to compliance with Section 409A
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (&€eIRC&€), and the regulations promulgated thereunder and (e) any other method authorized by applicable law or contract. Subject to
compliance with any applicable law, the Administrator may effect recovery under this Policy from any amount otherwise payable to the Covered Executive, including amounts payable to such
individual under any otherwise applicable Company plan, program, or contract, including base salary, bonuses or commissions and compensation previously deferred by the Covered
Executive.The Company is authorized and directed pursuant to this Policy to recoup Erroneously Awarded Compensation in compliance with this Policy unless the Personnel/Compensation
Committee of the Board has determined that recovery would be impracticable solely for the following limited reasons, and subject to the following procedural and disclosure requirements:a—
The direct expense paid to a third party to assist in enforcing the Policy would exceed the amount to be recovered. Before concluding that it would be impracticable to recover any
a€<3a€<«amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation based on expense of enforcement, the Administrator must make a reasonable attempt to recover such Erroneously Awarded
Compensation, document such reasonable attempt(s) to recover and provide that documentation to Nasdaq; ora—Recovery would likely cause an otherwise tax-qualified retirement plan, under
which benefits are broadly available to employees of the Company, to fail to meet the requirements of Sections 401(a)(13) or 411(a) of the IRC and the regulations thereunder.7.No Additional
PaymentsIn no event shall the Company be required to award Covered Executives an additional payment if the Accounting Restatement results in a higher Incentive-Based Compensation
payment.&a€<8.No Indemnification or Reimbursement of Covered ExecutivesNotwithstanding the terms of any other policy, program, agreement, or arrangement, in no event will the Company or
any of its affiliates indemnify or reimburse a Covered Executive for any loss under this Policy and in no event will the Company or any of its affiliates pay premiums or reimburse the Covered
Executive for premiums he or she paid on any insurance policy that would cover a Covered Executivea€™ s potential obligations with respect to Erroneously Awarded Compensation under this
Policy.9.Administrator IndemnificationAny members of the Administrator, and any other members of the Board or officers of the Company who assist in the administration of this Policy, shall
not be personally liable for any action, determination or interpretation made with respect to this Policy and shall be fully indemnified by the Company to the fullest extent under applicable law
and Company policy with respect to any such action, determination, or interpretation. The foregoing sentence shall not limit any other rights to indemnification of the members of the Board
under applicable law or Company policy.10.Effective Date; Retroactive ApplicationThis Policy shall be effective as of December 1, 2023 (the a€ceEffective Datea€). The terms of this Policy shall
apply to any Incentive-Based Compensation that is received by Covered Executives on or after the Effective Date, even if such Incentive-Based Compensation was approved, awarded, or granted
to Covered Executives prior to the Effective Date. This Policy shall supersede and replace any existing policy regarding compensation recovery previously approved by the
Board.11.Acknowledgement by Covered Executives; Condition to Eligibility for Incentive-Based Compensation.The Company will provide notice and seek acknowledgement of this Policy from
each Covered Executive in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, provided that the failure to provide such notice or obtain such acknowledgement will have no impact on the applicability or
enforceability of this Policy. After the Effective Date, the Company must be in receipt of a Covered Executivea€™s acknowledgement as a condition to such Covered Executivea€™ s eligibility to
receive Incentive-Based Compensation awarded or received after such date. All Incentive-Based Compensation subject to this Policy will not be earned, even if already paid, until the Policy
ceases to apply to such Incentive-Based Compensation and any other vesting conditions applicable to such Incentive-Based Compensation are satisfied.a€<«a€<4a€<«12. Amendment;
TerminationThe Board may amend, modify, supplement, rescind or replace all or any portion of this Policy at any time and from time to time in its discretion, and shall amend this Policy as it
deems necessary to comply with applicable law or any rules or standards adopted by a national securities exchange on which the Companya€™ s securities are listed.13.0ther Recoupment
Rights; Company ClaimsThe Board intends that this Policy shall be applied to the fullest extent of the law. Any right of recoupment under this Policy is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other
remedies or rights of recoupment that may be available to the Company under applicable law or pursuant to the terms of any similar policy in any employment agreement, equity award
agreement, or similar agreement and any other legal remedies available to the Company.Nothing contained in this Policy, and no recoupment or recovery as contemplated by this Policy, shall
limit any claims, damages, or other legal remedies the Company or any of its affiliates may have against a Covered Executive arising out of or resulting from any actions or omissions by the
Covered Executive.14.SuccessorsThis Policy shall be binding and enforceable against all Covered Executives and their beneficiaries, heirs, executors, administrators, or other legal
representatives.15.Exhibit Filing RequirementA copy of this Policy and any amendments thereto shall be posted on the Companya€™ s website and filed as an exhibit to the Companya€™s
Annual Report on Form 10-K.a€<4€<5a€<«a€«EXHIBIT Aa€<TO BE SIGNED BY THE COMPANYa€™S EXECUTIVE OFFICERS:a€<a€<«Compensation Recovery Policy Acknowledgmenta€<The
undersigned agrees and acknowledges that I am fully bound by, and subject to, all of the terms and conditions of Provident Financial Holdings, Inc. Compensation Recovery Policy (as it may be
amended, restated, supplemented, or otherwise modified from time to time. In the event of any inconsistency between the Policy and the terms of any employment agreement to which I am a
party, or the terms of any compensation plan, program, or agreement under which any compensation has been granted, awarded, earned, or paid, the terms of the Policy shall govern. In the
event it is determined by the Administrator that any amounts granted, awarded, earned, or paid to me must be forfeited or reimbursed to the Company, I will promptly take any action necessary
to effectuate such forfeiture and/or reimbursement. Any capitalized terms used in this Acknowledgment without definition shall have the meaning set forth in the Policy.a€<a€<a€<By:

[Name] Date[Title]a€«




